g
Town of Surfside
Town Commission Meeting
August 10, 2010
7 p.m.
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2™ FI
Surfside, FL 33154

AGENDA

1. Opening

A, Call to Order

B. Roll Call of Members

C. Pledge of Allegiance

D. Mayor and Commission Remarks — Mayor Daniel Dietch

E. Agenda and Order of Business (Additions, Deletions)

F. Community Notes — Mayor Daniel Dietch

G. Community Center Update- Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings

3. Consent Agenda
All items on the consent agenda are considered routine by the Town Commission and will
be approved by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these itens unless a
Commissioner so requesfs, in which event, the item will be moved fo the main agenda
under the appropriate heading for consideration.

Recommended Motion: To approve all consent agenda items as presented below.

A. Minutes — July 7, 2010 Special Commission Meeting
July 12, 2010 Commission Agenda Meeting
July 13, 2010 Commission Meeting
July 15, 2010 Water/Sewer Rate Study Workshop

B. Monthly Budget to Actual Summary - Martin Sherwood, Finance Support Services
Department Head

C. Projects Progress Report — Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.

D. Insurance Broker of Record Revised Resolution —~ Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA CORRECTING RESOLUTION 10-1939 APPROVING
A CONTRACT WITH STANTON M. BERSHAD, CLU TO BE THE
INSURANCE BROKER FOR ALL OF THE TOWN’S SERVICES RELATED
TO EMPLOYEE HEALTH, DISABILITY, LIFE, DENTAL AND OTHER

Page 1



Agenda
Regular Commission Meeting
August 10, 2010

RELATED BENEFITS PROGRAMS; AUTHORIZING AN INITIAL
CONTRACT TERM OF NOT MORE THAN TWO AND ONE-QUARTER
YEARS, WITH SERVICES TO CONTINUE UNTIL: A SUBSEQUENT RFQ
FOR THE SAME SERVICES IS ISSUED AND AWARDED TO COMMENCE
OCTOBER 1, 2010; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.,

4, Ordinances and Public Hearings

A. Second Readings (Ordinances)

Page 2

1. Re-adoption of Zoning Code (Ordinance 08-1491) Lynn Dannheisser,
Town Attorney

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA
AMENDING CHAPTER 90”ZONING” OF THE CODE OF SURESIDE,
FLORIDA BY REPEALING AND REPLACING CHAPTER 90
ENTITLED “ZONING” IN IT’S ENTIRETY; ADOPTING A NEW
CHAPTER 90 ENTITLED “ZONING” INCLUDING ADOPTION OF
AN OFFICIAL TOWN ZONING MAP FOR ALL DISTRICTS;
PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING PROVISIONS;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION
IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

[This ordinance re-adopts 2008 ordinance plus all changes to date]

2. Red Light Traffic Control Signals — Chief David Allen

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPER 74 “TRAFFIC AND
VEHICLES”, CREATING ARTICLE III “DANGEROUS INTERSECTION
SAFETY”; SECTION 74 PROVIDING FOR RECORDED IMAGE
MONITORING AND ENFORCEMENT OF RED LIGHT TRAFFIC
CONTROL SIGNALS CONSISTENT WITH GENERAL LAW AS
PROFIDED BY CHAPTER 2010-80, LAWS OF FLORIDA (2010);
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDNG FOR INCLUSION IN
THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS, RATIFICATION AND
RESERVATION OF RIGHTS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

[This ordinance allows for the establishment of red-light traffic monitoring
within the Town as permitted by Florida Statutes.]

3. Re-naming of Facilities — Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 75 “NAMING,
RENAMING, AND CO-DESIGNATION OF TOWN FACILITIES, ROADS
OR PROPERTY”TO DELETE THE REQUIREMENT THAT
MUNICIPAL ROADS, FACILITIES OR PROPERTIES MUST BE
NAMED POSTHUMOUSLY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR
CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.



Agenda
Regular Cemmission Meeting
August 10, 2010

[This ordinance deletes the requirement that municipal roads, facilities or
properties ne named only posthumously.]

B. First Readings (Public Hearings on Ordinances)

1. Elimination of requirement for licensed architect — Lynn Dannheisser,
Town Attorney

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90-15 (b) ELIMINATING
THE REQUIREMENTS FOR A LICENSED ARCHITECT TO SERVE ON
THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE;
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

2. Proposed Water and Sewer Utility Rate Adjustment — Martin Sherwood,
Finance Support Services Depariment Head

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FL.ORIDA
AMENDING CHAPTER 78 “UTILITIES” INCLUDING ESTABLISHING
AMONG OTHER THINGS NEW SERVICE CHARGES WHICH SHALL
BE EFFECTIVE BEGINNING FISCAL YEAR 2010-2011; PROVIDING
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

5. Resolutions and Proclamations

A. Referendum for Amendment to Town Charter — Gary Word, Town Manager and

Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENT OF THE TOWN
CHARTER TO DELETE SECTION 31.1, “PERSONNEL APPEALS BOARD”,
PROVIDING REQUISITE BALLOT LANGUAGE FOR SUBMISSION TO
ELECTORS; PROVIDING FOR COPIES OF THIS CHARTER
AMENDMENT TO BE AVAILABLE IFFOR PUBLIC INSPECTION;
PROVIDING FOR THE TOWN CLERK TO UTILIZE THE SERVICES OF
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CHARTER;
PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION OF ENABLING RESOLUTION; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

B. Red Light Camera Contract — Chief David Allen

Page 3

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO AN
AGREEMENT PIGGYBACKING OFF A COMPETIVELY BID CONTRACT
BY AND BETWEEN AMERICAN TRAFFEC SOLUTIONS, INC,, AND THE
TOWN OF SURFSIDE ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT “A” AUTHORIZING THE
TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY TO DO ALL THINGS



Agenda
Regular Commission Meeting
August 10, 2010

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS OF THE CONTRACT; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

6. Good and Welfare
Public comments for subjects or items not on the agenda. Public comment on agenda
items will be allowed when agenda item is discussed by the Commission.

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports
Petition Received by Town Clerk 7-19-2010 — Debra Eastman, Town Clerk

8. Unfinished Business and New Business
A. Committee appointments — appointments and ratification of appointments
B. Town Manager Search Process
C. Report of Town Manager re; life rings on beach
D. Discussion of 9450 Collins Parking Lot
E. Construction RFP Landscaping

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications
A. Commission Meeting Recordings on Loan To Public - Vice Mayor Joe Graubart
B. Education Committee — Commissioner Marta Olchyk
C. Zoning Code Referendum — Vice Mayor Joe Graubart

10. Adjournment

Res ectﬁllly submltted

Gar y
Town Manager

THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC. IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH
DISABILITIES ACT OF 1980, ALL PERSONS ARE DISABLED, WHO NEED SPECIAL
ACCOMMODATIONS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING BECAUSE OF THAT DISABILITY
SHOULD CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK AT 305-893-6511 EXT. 226 NO LATER
THAN FOUR DAYS PRIOR TO SUCH PROCEEDING. HEARING IMPAIRED PERSONS MAY
CONTACT THE TDD LINE AT 305-893-7936.

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES,
ANYONE WISHING TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE
COMMISSION, WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR
HEARING, WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, MAY
NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH
RECORD SHALL INCLUDE THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO
BE BASED,

AGENDA ITEMS MAY BE VIEWED AT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK, TOWN OF SURFSIDE

TOWN HALL, 9293 HARDING AVENUE. ANYONE WISHING TO OBTAIN A COPY OF ANY
AGENDA ITEM SHOULD CONTACT THE TOWN CLERK AT 305-861-4863, A COMPLETE

Page 4




Agenda
Regular Commission Meeting
August 10, 2010

AGENDA PACKET IS ALSO AVAILABLE ON THE TOWN WEBSITE AT www.townofsurfsidefl.gov

TWO OR MORE MEMBERS OF OTHER TOWN BOARDS MAY ATTEND THIS MEETING.

THESE MEETINGS MAY BE CONDUCTED BY MEANS OF OR IN CONJUNCTION WITH
COMMUNICATIONS MEDIA TECHNOLOGY, SPECIFICALLY, A TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
CALL. THE LOCATION 9293 HARDING AVENUE, SURFSIDE, FL 33154, WHICH IS OPEN TO THE
PUBLIC, SHALL SERVE AS AN ACCESS POINT FOR SUCH COMMUNICATION.

Page 5




Town of Surfside
Special Town Commission Meeting
July 7, 2010
7p.m.
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2" Fl
Surfside, FL 33154

MINUTES

1. Opening
A. Call to Order Mayor Daniel Dietch called the meeting to order at 7:07 p.m.

B. Roll Call of Members
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman called the roll with Commissioner Michael Karukin,
Commissioner Edward Kopelman, Commissioner Marta Olchyk, Vice Mayor Joe
Graubart and Mayor Daniel Dietch in attendance.

C. Pledge of Allegiance Police Chief David Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Discussion on re-adoption zoning code
Mayor Dietch explained the purpose of the meeting and asked that public comments be
limited to two minutes.
Jason Nevader requested a review of curb cuts and suggested that a base of 50 feet be
used so that a 100 foot lot could have two curb cuts. At the request of Mayor Dietch,
Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner will bring before the Planning and Zoning Board for review.
Jason Nevader spoke in favor of side yard storage for boats as opposed to front yard
storage.
Harvey Moscowitz asked about the new limit of one hour parking.
Town Planner, Sarah Sinatra reviewed the PowerPoint presentation (attached) pages 1
through 6.
Galen Bakken spoke about change of use to allow hotels seemed to have allowed for
smaller units which increases density.
Alan Gorme asked about changes being required by referendum. Town Attorney, Lynn
Dannheisser explained.
Tony Blate questioned the lot area per dwelling. Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner explained.
Neisen Kasdin representing Transacta introduced Cecelia Ward who concurred with the
presentation and explanation of the Town Planner, Sarah Sinatra.

Town Planner, Sarah Sinatra presented page 7 of the PowerPoint. Mayor Dietch
explained the old code is pre-2008 and the new code is 2008 with any changes adopted
since then.

Ken Arnold spoke about hotels on Collins Avenue.

Stan Bershad reminded that South Florida was built on tourism and spoke of its
importance to the economy.

Page 6



Mario Border asked why the Town is going through this process. Town Attorney, Lynn
Dannheisser explained the litigation which triggered the review of the adoption process.

Town Planner, Sarah Sinatra explained page 9, Net v Gross for hotel rooms.
Sylvia Coltrane explained that 350 sq ft gross is a generous room for most hotels and is
more than required.

Town Planner, Sarah Sinatra explained page 10 of the PowerPoint “Parking”.

There was a discussion about the tendency to avoid valet parking due to extra cost. It
was suggested that the cost of valet could be imbedded in the room rate. Sarah Sinatra
suggested that the cost might be tied to site plan approval as a voluntary act. Town
Attorney, Lynn Dannheisser suggested that with further study, there may be a way to
accomplish this.

Jason Kasdin suggested that the requirement might be tied to licensing.

Sylvia Coltrane explained the number of parking spaces with consideration for
occupancy rate.

Bernie Obelander suggested that the Town Commission seek area within the town for
parking.

Bernice Alfonso expressed concern with limited parking and the need for additional
security personnel.

Shaun Grenald suggested a parking trust fund.

Richard lacobacci spoke in favor of tandem parking.

Town Planner, Sarah Sinatra explained pages 11 and 12 of the PowerPoint.

Barbara Cohen spoke in favor of a new hotel.

Barbara McLaughlin spoke in favor of proposed hotel.

Cecilia Ward on behalf of Transacta pointed out that the Town’s Comprehensive Plan
indicates that hotels are critical to the Town.

Shaun Grenald spoke in favor of the proposed hotel.

Richard lacobacci spoke in favor of the proposed hotel.

Frank Cardoso spoke in favor of the adopting the new code.

Alan Gorme asked about what flag the hotel developer is considering.

Sergio Castenada spoke in favor of tourism.

Sylvia Coltrane spoke about the proposed hotel and that she is negotiating with Marriott,
Starwood and Hilton and gave proposed occupancy and estimated revenue to the Town
and surrounding businesses.

Chuck Edelstein spoke in favor of the proposed hotel.

Louise Riholta spoke in favor of the proposed hotel.

Neisen Kasdin spoke in favor of the proposed hotel.

Commissioner Marta Olchyk made a motion to direct the Town Clerk to advertise the
ordinance to re-adopt the zoning code for the consideration of the Town Commission at
their August regular meeting. The motion received a second from Commissioner Edward
Kopelman. The Town Clerk called the roll and the motion passed 4-1 with Vice Mayor
Joe Graubart voting in opposition.

Page 7



Agenda
Special Commission Meeting
July 7, 2010

Town Attorney, Lynn Dannheisser requested the call of an Executive Session relating to
the Bankes litigation strategy. After discussion, it was agreed that the session would be
set for July 15, 2010 at 6 p.m.

Mayor Daniel Dietch thanked all of those in attendance and the Town Commission for
their participation.

3. Adjournment The meeting adjourned at 9:20 p.m.

Accepted this day of , 2010.

Daniel Dietch, Mayor

Attest:

Debra E. Eastman, MMC
Town Clerk

Page 8



i

9|npayos
indul d1jqnd
S)o9p doj jJooy
ndul d1gnd
sunjied

ndui d1jqnd
SS0.43 SNSI2A 19N
indul d1jqnd
0€H @Y3 ul sasn
induj a1gnd
Sonss|

epuagdy SullaaIN
uolissiwwo) |e1ads 010 L AInf

Page 9



sysisy sutpjing sjqemojje
wnuwiixew syl Jo Soijel e3Jje J0O}} 3jgemojje wnuwiixew ‘seale
100}]} 3jgeMojje wnwixew po32Xa jouued uswdojaasg Aremruing

‘apisfing fo umo| ayj Jo si0323(3 ay3 Jo
ajon b Aq panosddp pup apisfins fo umo] ayl Jo U0I1123]a pajnpayds
Alupinbas b 10 10//bg 3yl uo paszpjd aip suoisinoid buipasiadns
J0 Qualipuawib ‘Uoisinad ‘|padal ssajun papasiadns 1o ‘papuawp
‘DasInal  ‘pajpadal ag 1ou [jpys J4a1pyy apisfins Jo umol ay1
0] juaWpuawip siyy ‘aniaffa buiwosaq uodn -apisfins fo umol ayl
Jo s1032312 ay31 fo aj0n b AQ panoiddp si JuaWpUIWD SIY1 10Y1 3I10P
Y1 U0 123ffo ul 3Ib YdIym ‘aAi12141534 1SOW 3D SUOISINOID J1aA3YIIYM
‘apisfing fo umoy ayl fo apor 3yl 40 up|d anisuayardwor apisfing o
UMo| a3yl ul Ino 13s a4p 1byl siybiay Buipjing ajgomojjp Wnwiixopu
3Y31 40 S0I30J D31V J00}f B|qLMOJID WNWIXOW ‘SP3ID J00)f 3]qDMO|[D
Wnwixpw 3yl paadxa Jjou [pys apisfing Jfo umol 3yl uiyum
$a4n3anJis pup juawdolanap fo ybiay pup ‘Ausuaiul Asuap ayy

19HeYD ¥00C¢

Page 10



19148y ay3 JO suolsinoid asay3 91e|0IA 10U
sa0p asn e Sulppy "ysiay pue.y ‘eale J0O|} Ul
s9sealdul JwJad Jou sa0p Jaueyd) ay] :asuodsay .

'Sasn [aj0y Juwiiad jou pip pub S12141S1p buiuoz
[DIAUBPISaI A[1D141S 249M SIDLIISIP Z-QH pub T-agY
Y] 'SIo1IISIp 3yl ul pajywiad Ajsnoinald 10U alam
A3yl alaym S|a10H 21NS pup S[210H 3Z1IoYyino
DOEH 01 z-gH pub T-gY wWolf suoipaifipow

uoipubisap  buiuoz  pasodoid ay] WIBD .

SONSS|

Page 11



‘[210Y pasodoid 3yl yiim palejola uaaq Jou sey pJepuels siyl pue
240k Jad sijiun |910Yy 80T SMO||e uejd 2AIsUayaJdwo) ay]| :3nss| suluue|d

"]JOB} UO paseq jou
SI A11sua1u| JO Yy4 Ul asealoul ue Jo uondwnsse Auy "sasn Alossadoe Jiay}
pue sjo10y 03} 9|gedi|dde 10U SI SIY| ‘|elauapisas-uou 4o} Ajuo aue ‘ueld
SAISUayaJdwo) 2y ul Joj papilaosd se ‘Ajisudiul pue Yyd :anss| Ja1ieyd

:IsU0dsay

Y4 pup AYsuaiul
buispaioul ‘saspaioul 311S [a10y [piuzzod p Jfo jundioof juawdojanap
ayr ‘sapo) mau ayr Japun bupyipd wapupy buimojip Agq A|p1auassy
‘bunppd wapupy 4of moyp sjpuawaiinbas buplpd ay) 22uUlS ‘94N3onuls
13b.1p] Uana up o uoIIINIISUOI 3Y] 40f MO|ID [[IM ‘aSNn |210H Y1 YLUM Wapup]
ul ‘asn mau sty -asn Aiossanp payuwiiad o sp  bupyupd, papppb Osip
DOEH 01 T-gY wodf uonvaitfipow uonpubisap buiuoz pasodod ayj :ulie]d

SaNSs|

Page 12



[T

"911S B U0 1]Inq
9q ued 1eyl |enuspisal-uou Jo a3e100) aienbs [e101 9yl S|0JIU0D ||13S pue
posueyd 10U sey |eluapisai-uou 4ol Hy4 3yl 3daouod ugdisep ueqan ue
SI yoedias paJinbaJ ul uoidnpas 3y padedspue| aq 01 10| aY1 Jo uoniod
Jeas 3yl Jo 940 J0) uswalinbal e pue spod §00Z 9yl Ul siuswaiinbaul
Jojng aJde 3J1ayl "9po0d /007 9yl ul suswalinbal adedspue| 10U diaMm
21941 ?Joeqgias Jeal 9yl Ul uoildnpal e sem auayl ysnoyyje :anss| uiuueld

's9sn AJ0ssadoe Jisyl pue s|910y 01 ajgedljdde 10u SI SIY| |ernuapisal

-uou 10} AJuo alde ‘ue|d aAIsUayaIdwo) 3yl Ul Joy papirosd se ‘Alisuaiu)

pue Yy4 dauey) ayi Ag paiendal 10U aJe SHOBQISS oNnss| Jaueyd
:95U0dSoY

‘01104 D34 J00If pUD AJSUAIUI Y] ISDIJIUI
}ynsas o sp yoiym ‘ays ayl fo ndioof jawidojanap ayl saspaioul os[p
SIY ] "SY20q1as 300{ (0T) uai sainbau Ajuo apos pasodoid ayl 3jiym ‘sopgias
100f (0z) A1uaml paiinbai apo) bBuluoy bunsixa 3yl ‘Uonippp uj :wied

SONSS|

Page 13



(Ssul|joD 4o apIs 1som pue 1se3) 0ZTH pue OfH 9yl ul Ajlwes-oml
pue Ajlwey} s|3uis 01 21j10ads uonenwi| ySey 1004 Q€ B PpY T

10

(SuljjoD JO apIS 1SoM pue 1ses) S1o1ISIP
OCTH pPue Of7H 24l wod} Ajlwej-om) pue Ajiwe} 9|8uls aAowWdY T

:SMO[|0} Se P02 9yl SuiSINS 9|B1IOJWOI SI JelS :asuodsay .

"UoIlbubIsap T-NY Snoinaid ayl Aqg (sa1103s £
pup g) uoizpiiwij A101s ayl sanowad os|p uonpubisap buiuoz
OvH mau ay| '123f (0t) A110f 03 sasn ||p 4of uoirpwil 1ybiay
wnuwixow ayl saspaiaul OpH 01 uoipdifipouws uonpbubisap
buiuoz pasodoid ayj -saocuapisal Ajwinf-omi pup Ajwiof
ajbuis 4of 193/ (0€) A11y1 Jo suonoywij 3ybray poy 12143sip
IT-WY 3yl apo) buiisixa ayl Japun ‘aJoWiayling :udie)d .

SONSS]

Page 14



[ I

JOEH

oyl Ul S9SN

Page 15



SuUl||0D JO 9pPIS 1SoM
uo paniwiad sjPlow 31NSs 1 s|o10W A|SNOIA3I]
guipieH Jo apis 1ses

Uo papwJad s|ajoy a1ns Jo S[910Yy ou A|Snoinaid
(SuipJeH jo apis 1sea) DOEH pue (suljjoD Jo apis
1SaM) OfH 01 pappe aljam s|910y 31INS ] S|910H
'S|910Y 01 pailejal Suiyted

pue s[a10y Joj sasn Alossadoe ‘s|a1oy 01 d140ads
ssuneaw / aJom iyl uasaldd ayl 01 8007
WwoJ} SJa11ew apod 3uluoz uo s3ullLawW 9 Jo INQ

S|910H 21INS 3 S|910H

Page 16



(9]

S||lem
2pISInNo apn|oul 01 3 bs g€ aya sywuad ssou8 1 bs 0g¢ —

S||lem apisul ay3 ulyaim 34 bs gg¢ sadinbau 19u Y bs g —
9|dwex3

"9P02 Ul Ipn|dul [|IM pue uolledllie|d pasaN
paJlinbaJ s| poyiaw YydIiym uo uolledljlield
9pIn0.d s9p02 00T dY1 Jou £00Z dY3} J2YUSN
S||em apISIno ayi Jo 98e100) aienbs — ssodo

S||em apisul ayl Jo adejo0) aienbs —1oN

 SWOO0Y |910H 40} SSOUD) "SA 19N

Page 17



o1

‘elJ91JD AJOSSD22E, 19W BsSn
oy JI ‘@oeds Sulleaw pue syueanelsad se yons ‘sasn
AJ0ossa22e 910y J0) Sa2eds Ul UoIdNpPaJ e J0) PIpIACId —

(popinoid
19|BA Uaym) s|a10y Joj Sadeds wapue] paniwisd —

s9oeds 10edwo) paAoway —

°P0D 300C -

(papinoud 19]eA Usym) s1iun uljjamp Q9 ueyl
191943 yiim s3o3foad Joj sooeds wapue] panliwisd —

(9T X 8) s22eds 10edwWo) %GE POIIWIR] —
9P0D LOOC e

sunjied

Page 18



it

paJinbaJ Suidedspue] —

paJinbad s)oeqiss 14 0T —

JOOJ 31 JO %0/ 01 payiwl| aJam s)oap dol Jooy —
-9P0) 8OOC

SUOI1J1J1Sad OU pey syaap doi Jooy :3p0) 007

O '8 DOEH Ul 323 do] JOoY

Page 19



Zt

0T0C
‘0T 1sn8ny :Suipeald ,,Z UOISSILUWOD) UMO]

010¢ ‘6 A|nr :8uluoz pue Suiuue|d e

9[NP3aYIS

Page 20



Town of Surfside
Town Commission Meeting
July 13, 2010
7p.m.
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2" F
Surfside, FL 33154

MINUTES OF AGENDA MEETING JULY 12, 2010

1. Opening

A. Call to Order Mayor Daniel Dietch called the meeting to order at 8:31 a.m.

B. Roll Call of Members Town Clerk, Debra Eastman called the roll with
Commissioner Michael Karukin, Commissioner Edward Kopelman, Commissioner
Marta Olchyk, Vice Mayor Joe Graubart and Mayor Daniel Dietch in attendance.
Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor and Commission Remarks — Mayor Daniel Dietch

Remarks by Commissioner Edward Kopelman

Agenda and Order of Business (Additions, Deletions)

Special Presentations

Employee of the Quarter — Stacie Barrett, Parks and Recreation — Tim Milian,
Director of Parks and Recreation

Community Notes — Mayor Daniel Dietch

Community Center Update— Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.

Gary Word, Town Manager updated the Town Commission on the status of permits
pending, expenditures and the status of the website camera. Mayor Dietch asked that
the schedule of values and critical path be added to the website as well.
Commissioner Kopelman requested that a cutout be made in the construction fencing
for viewing purposes.

Commissioner Marta Olchyk requested that agenda items 8 and 9 be heard earlier in
the meeting, rather than waiting to the end of the agenda. Town Attorney, Lynn
Dannheisser clarified that it is the intent of the Commission to do this on an
experimental basis and if the Commission decides to change the agenda order
permanently the ordinance can be modified.

I. Report of Fausto Gomez, Legislative Lobbyist

OO0

am

I o

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings

3. Consent Agenda
All items on the consent agenda are considered routine by the Town Commission and will
be approved by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
Commissioner so requests, in which event, the item will be moved to the main agenda
under the appropriate heading for consideration.

Page 21



July 13, 2010 agenda

Recommended Motion: To approve all consent agenda items as presented below.

A

C.

Minutes — Town Commission Agenda Meeting, May 10, 2010

Town Commission Regular Meeting, May 11, 2010

Town Commission Workshop, May 17, 2010

Special Town Commission Meeting, June 3, 2010

Town Commission Workshop, June 6, 2010

Town Commission Agenda Meeting, June 7, 2010

Town Commission Regular Meeting, June 8, 2010
Commissioner Karukin noted that page 6 of the agenda, minutes contain an error
indicating that he both moved and seconded an item. The Town Clerk will review
and make the correction.

Monthly Budget to Actual Summary - Martin Sherwood, Finance Support Services
Department Head

Projects Progress Report — Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.

4. Ordinances and Public Hearings

A

Page 22

Second Readings (Ordinances)

1. Proposed Franchise Agreement Renewal-Florida Power & Light — Martin
Sherwood, Finance Support Services Department Head

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING TO FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT
COMPANY, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, A NON-EXCLUSIVE
ELECTRIC FRANCHISE, IMPOSING PROVISIONS AND
CONDITIONS RELATING THERETO, PROVIDING FOR MONTHLY
PAYMENTS TO THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, AND PROVDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

[This ordinance approves a thirty year non exclusive franchise Agreement
with FP & L]
Commissioner Olchyk questioned possible technological advances that may be
available in the thirty year period and the possibility of the agreement limiting the
residents’ ability to upgrade. Mayor Daniel Dietch explained his review of the
agreement.

2. Parking Trust — Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING,”
ARTICLE VII “OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING,” DIVISION 1
“OFF-STREET PARKING,” SECTION 90-77 “OFF-STREET PARKING
REQUIREMENTS” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF
ORDINANCES REGARDING OFF-STREET PARKING COMPLIANCE
FOR THE SD-B40 ZONING DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION
IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF



July 13, 2010 agenda

ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

[This ordinance provides an alternate means to comply with off-street
parking requirements in the downtown business district by payment of a
mitigation fee into a parking trust fund.]

B. First Readings (Public Hearings on Ordinances)

A. Red Light Traffic Control Signals — Chief David Allen

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPER 74 “TRAFFIC AND
VEHICLES”, CREATING ARTICLE 111 “DANGEROUS INTERSECTION
SAFETY”; SECTION 74 PROVIDING FOR RECORDED IMAGE
MONITORING AND ENFORCEMENT OF RED LIGHT TRAFFIC
CONTROL SIGNALS CONSISTENT WITH GENERAL LAW AS
PROFIDED BY CHAPTER 2010-80, LAWS OF FLORIDA (2010);
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDNG FOR INCLUSION IN
THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS, RATIFICATION AND
RESERVATION OF RIGHTS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
Commissioner Edward Kopelman spoke in favor. Vice Mayor Joe Graubart
indicated his research in other communities. Mayor Daniel Dietch spoke in favor
of allowing police force more flexibility in deploying their resources.
Commissioner Michael Karukin expressed concern regarding rear end crashes.
Chief David Allen reported on the testing, the warning period and the breakdown
of income.

B. Re-naming of Facilities — Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 75 “NAMING,
RENAMING, AND CO-DESIGNATION OF TOWN FACILITIES, ROADS
OR PROPERTY”TO DELETE THE REQUIREMENT THAT
MUNICIPAL ROADS, FACILITIES OR PROPERTIES MUST BE
NAMED POSTHUMOUSLY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR
CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

5. Resolutions and Proclamations

A. Appointing Planning and Zoning Board — Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPOINTING MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING AND
ZONING BOARD; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND, PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Vice Mayor Joe Graubart indicated that he will be making an appointment to the Board.

B. Reimburse Project Costs with Proceeds of Tax-Exempt Financing — Martin

Page 23



July 13, 2010 agenda

Sherwood, Finance Support Services Department Head

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA ESTABLISHING
ITSINTENT TO REIMBURSE CERTAIN PROJECT COSTS INCURRED WITH
PROCEEDS OF FUTURE TAX-EXEMPT FINANCING OR OTHER
OBLIGATIONS; PROVIDING CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION
THEREIN; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Town Manager, Gary Word explained this is a funding mechanism that will allow the
Town to borrow funds for improvements to the Town’s infrastructure. It does not require
a referendum.

Mayor Daniel Dietch asked that the consent order to make improvements be distributed
to the Town Commission.

C. Retainer Agreement — Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION FOR THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING A RETAINER AGREEMENT WITH
LEWIS STROUD & DEUTSCH TO REPRESENT THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE
IN CONNECTION WITH BANKES V. SURFSIDE MATTERS AND ANY
OTHER RELATED LITIGATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
Commissioner Marta Olchyk asked about a “cap” on the cost of this issue. Town
Attorney, Lynn Dannheisser explained the obligation of the Town to defend itself and the
agreement of Special Counsel to a discounted rate. She further explained the upcoming
Executive Session.

D. Proposed Millage Rate — Martin Sherwood, Finance Support Services Department
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, DETERMINING A PROPOSED OPERATING
MILLAGE RATE, DETERMINING THE CURRENT YEAR ROLLED-BACK
RATE; ESTABLISHING THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE FOR THE FIRST AND
SECOND PUBLIC BUDGET HEARINGS AS REQUIRED BY LAW;
DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO FILE SAID RESOLUTION WITH THE
PROPERTY APPRAISER OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PURSUANT TO THE
REQUIREMENTS OF FLORIDA STATUTES AND THE RULES AND
REGULATIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FOR THE STATE OF
FLORIDA; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Commissioner Marta Olchyk asked about the difference in the ad valorem tax and the
millage rate. Commissioner Michael Karukin thanked the staff for keeping the rate low.

E. Interlocal Agreement to Purchase and Install Bus Shelters — Fernando Rodriguez,
Director of Public Works

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH MIAMI-DADE COUNTY TRANSIT
AUTHORITY TO PURCHASE AND INSTALL BUS SHELTERS ON COLLINS
AND HARDING AVENUES USING STIMULUS FUNDS, AUTHORIZING THE
TOWN MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL PURCHASE ORDERS OR OTHER
REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION; AUTHORIZING THE TEMPORARY

Page 24



July 13, 2010 agenda

DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS TO PAY FOR REQUIRED PERMIT FEES; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Town Manager, Gary Word explained that the cost will be paid by CITT funds. Vice
Mayor Joe Graubart suggested placing the Town Seal on the bus shelters.

F. Parking Pay Stations — John DiCenso, Assistant Police Chief

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSIONOF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING THE AGREEMENT WITH HARRINGTON
RESOURCES INC., dba PARKER SYSTEMS FOR THE PURCHASE,
DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION OF 23 “LUKE” PARKING PAY STATIONS;
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY TO
IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT;
AUTHORZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO EXPEND PARKING FUND
PROCEEDS; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE
CONTRACT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Commissioner Marta Olchyk asked about the bidding of this project and the cost of the
project. Chief John DiCenso explained the piggybacking of the contract and the purpose
for recommending the digital pay stations. It was suggested that a discount could be
obtained for prompt payment.

G. Community Center Construction Administration — Chris Giordano, CGA

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHORZING THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO
ADDENDUM TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH AECOM
FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR SURFSIDE COMMUNITY CENTER,
AUTHORIZING THE FUNDS TO PAY FOR; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

Chris Giordano of Calvin Giordano and Associates explained the addendum of the
negotiated professional services agreement with AECOM and recommended that the
Town Commission continue with the same architect. Commissioner Olchyk suggested
that the cost could be further reduced. Commissioner Michael Karukin expressed that the
momentum needs to keep moving forward and his pleasure with the reduction in cost by
AECOM.

6. Good and Welfare
Public comments for subjects or items not on the agenda. Public comment on agenda
items will be allowed when agenda item is discussed by the Commission.

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports

8. Unfinished Business and New Business
A. 84™ Annual Conference, Florida League of Cities, Designation of Voting
Delegate — Gary Word, Town Manager
B. Tourist Bureau Concerns — Duncan Tavares, Tourist Bureau Director
C. Town Manager Resignation — Commissioner Marta Olchyk
D. Committee Appointments — Mayor and Town Commission

Page 25



Minutes

Agenda Meeting Regular Commission Meeting
July 12, 2010 for

July 13, 2010 agenda

Mayor Daniel Dietch asked that the members of the Town Commission come to the
meeting with their appointments. Town Attorney, Lynn Dannheisser reminded that
there is no minimum number of committee members necessary for an ad hoc

committee.

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications

Report on Elected Officials Seminar — Commissioner Michael Karukin
Resort Tax Analysis — Commissioner Michael Karukin

Architectural and Engineering Professional Services — Mayor Daniel Dietch
Commission Agenda Meetings — Commissioner Marta Olchyk

Commission Agenda Meetings — Vice Mayor Joe Graubart

Life Preserver Ring — Vice Mayor Joe Graubart

mmoow

10. Adjournment The meeting adjourned at 10:05 a.m.

Accepted this day of , 2010.

Daniel Dietch, Mayor

Attest:

Debra E. Eastman, MMC
Town Clerk

Page 26



Town of Surfside
Town Commission Meeting
July 13, 2010
7p.m.
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2" F
Surfside, FL 33154

MINUTES
1. Opening

A. Call to Order Mayor Daniel Dietch called the meeting to order at 7 p.m.

B. Roll Call of Members
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman called the roll with Commissioner Michael Karukin,
Commissioner Edward Kopelman, Commissioner Marta Olchyk, Vice Mayor Joe
Graubart and Mayor Daniel Dietch in attendance.

C. Pledge of Allegiance Chief David Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance.

D. Mayor and Commission Remarks — Mayor Daniel Dietch
Mayor Daniel Dietch thanked everyone for their participation in the July 7, 2010
meeting to discuss the readoption of the zoning code. Mayor Dietch outlined the
vision of the Town Commission as well as being able to accomplish the vision
together as a community.
Remarks by Commissioner Edward Kopelman
Commissioner Edward Kopelman read a prepared statement. He made a motion to
hold a no confidence vote in Vice Mayor Joe Graubart. There was no second.
Vice Mayor Joe Graubart requested the opportunity to respond. Mayor Daniel Dietch
asked if there was a motion to add a response to the agenda. Vice Mayor Graubart
made a motion to allow his response. There was no second.

E. Agenda and Order of Business (Additions, Deletions)
Commissioner Marta Olchyk made a motion to move item 8 to become the new item
1J. The motion received a second from Commissioner Michael Karukin. Mayor
Dietch called for the vote and all were in favor.

F. Special Presentations

Page 27

Employee of the Quarter — Stacie Barrett, Parks and Recreation — Tim Milian,
Director of Parks and Recreation

Director of Parks and Recreation, Tim Milian introduced Stacie Barrett and thanked
her for her accomplishments and service.

Commissioner Edward Kopelman made a motion to add the presentation of Police
Officer of the Month to the agenda. The motion received a second from



Commissioner Michael Karukin. Mayor Dietch called for the vote and all were in
favor.

Police Chief David Allen presented the Officer of the Month award for the month of
May, 2010 to Lesmes Ruiz and commended him for his alertness and exemplary
police work.

Police Chief David Allen presented an award as Police Civilian of the Month to Dina
Goldstein and commended her for her active involvement in community events and
volunteering her time and effort during the evening and weekends.

Community Notes — Mayor Daniel Dietch

Mayor Daniel Dietch announced the Library is open on Monday, Wednesday and
Friday from 10 a.m. to 4 p.m.

Mayor Dietch reminded utility users of the e-billing notification service. Mayor
Dietch announced the Surfside Spice program which will run from August 1 through
September 30, 2010. Mayor Dietch announced the newly created hurricane guide.

Community Center Update— Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.

Chris Giordano of Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc. updated the Town
Commission on the status of equipment on site, grading, installation of piles and tree
relocation.

Report of Fausto Gomez, Legislative Lobbyist

Legislative Lobbyist, Fausto Gomez provided an oral report to the Town
Commission regarding legislative bills that did and did not pass during the last
session. State Representative Richard Steinberg gave an overview of the bills that
came before the State Legislature.

Alina Ramirez expressed concern on the subject of Sober Houses.

A motion was made by Commissioner Edward Kopelman to move forward the
second reading of the FPL agreement to come before the Commission as the next
item. The motion received a second from Commissioner Marta Olchyk. Mayor
Dietch called for the vote and all were in favor.

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings

3. Consent Agenda

All

items on the consent agenda are considered routine by the Town Commission and will

be approved by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
Commissioner so requests, in which event, the item will be moved to the main agenda
under the appropriate heading for consideration.

Recommended Motion: To approve all consent agenda items as presented below.

A.

Page 28

Minutes — Town Commission Agenda Meeting, May 10, 2010



Town Commission Regular Meeting, May 11, 2010
Town Commission Workshop, May 17, 2010
Special Town Commission Meeting, June 3, 2010
Town Commission Workshop, June 6, 2010

Town Commission Agenda Meeting, June 7, 2010
Town Commission Regular Meeting, June 8, 2010

B. Monthly Budget to Actual Summary - Martin Sherwood, Finance Support Services

Department Head

C. Projects Progress Report — Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.

A motion to approve the consent agenda was made by Commissioner Michael Karukin.
The motion received a second from Commissioner Marta Olchyk. The Town Clerk
called the roll and all were in favor.

4. Ordinances and Public Hearings

A. Second Readings (Ordinances)

Page 29

1. Proposed Franchise Agreement Renewal-Florida Power & Light — Martin
Sherwood, Finance Support Services Department Head

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING TO FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT
COMPANY, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, A NON-EXCLUSIVE
ELECTRIC FRANCHISE, IMPOSING PROVISIONS AND
CONDITIONS RELATING THERETO, PROVIDING FOR MONTHLY
PAYMENTS TO THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, AND PROVDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

[This ordinance approves a thirty year non exclusive franchise Agreement
with FP & L]
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman read the title of the ordinance. Commissioner
Edward Kopelman made a motion to adopt the ordinance on second reading. The
motion received a second from Commissioner Michael Karukin. Mayor Daniel
Dietch opened the public hearing.
Richard lacobacci spoke in favor of the agreement.
Ken Arnold requested that FPL be encouraged to repair the distribution network
as part of the agreement.
Aletha Playa of FPL explained prior requests for the cost to have lines
undergrounded.
Randi McBride asked if the Town had followed up on repairs that need to be
done.
Town Manager, Gary Word asked FPL to look at a pole at 94" and the alley
behind. Mayor Dietch closed the public hearing.
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman called the roll and all were in favor.

2. Parking Trust — Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING,”



ARTICLE VII “OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING,” DIVISION 1
“OFF-STREET PARKING,” SECTION 90-77 “OFF-STREET PARKING
REQUIREMENTS” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF
ORDINANCES REGARDING OFF-STREET PARKING COMPLIANCE
FOR THE SD-B40 ZONING DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION
IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

[This ordinance provides an alternate means to comply with off-street
parking requirements in the downtown business district by payment of a
mitigation fee into a parking trust fund.]

The Town Clerk read the title of the ordinance. A motion to adopt the ordinance
on second reading was made by Commissioner Edward Kopelman. The motion
received a second from Commissioner Michael Karukin. Town Planner, Sarah
Sinatra gave the analysis. Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing. There being
no one wishing to speak, Mayor Dietch closed the public hearing. The Town
Clerk called the roll and all were in favor.

B. First Readings (Public Hearings on Ordinances)

Page 30

A. Red Light Traffic Control Signals — Chief David Allen

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPER 74 “TRAFFIC AND
VEHICLES”, CREATING ARTICLE 111 “DANGEROUS INTERSECTION
SAFETY”; SECTION 74 PROVIDING FOR RECORDED IMAGE
MONITORING AND ENFORCEMENT OF RED LIGHT TRAFFIC
CONTROL SIGNALS CONSISTENT WITH GENERAL LAW AS
PROVIDED BY CHAPTER 2010-80, LAWS OF FLORIDA (2010);
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN
THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS, RATIFICATION AND
RESERVATION OF RIGHTS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
The Town Clerk read the title of the ordinance. Police Chief David Allen spoke
in favor of the ordinance and recommended passage. Commissioner Edward
Kopleman made a motion to introduce the ordinance on first reading. The motion
received a second from Commissioner Marta Olchyk.

Alina Ramirez asked about traffic accidents and spoke in opposition to the
cameras.

The Town Clerk called the roll and the motion passed 4-1 with Commissioner
Michael Karukin voting in opposition.

Vice Mayor Joe Graubart made a motion to bring item 5G before the Town
Commission next for consideration. The motion received a second from
Commissioner Michael Karukin. Mayor Daniel Dietch called for the vote and all
were in favor.

B. Re-naming of Facilities — Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney



AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 75 “NAMING,
RENAMING, AND CO-DESIGNATION OF TOWN FACILITIES, ROADS
OR PROPERTY”TO DELETE THE REQUIREMENT THAT
MUNICIPAL ROADS, FACILITIES OR PROPERTIES MUST BE
NAMED POSTHUMOUSLY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR
CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The Town Clerk read the title of the ordinance. Commissioner Marta

Olchyk made a motion to introduce the ordinance on first reading. The
motion received a second from Vice Mayor Joe Graubart. Town

Attorney, Lynn Dannheisser explained that the ordinance is a policy

decision of the Town Commission. The Town Clerk called the roll and

the motion passed 3-2 with Commissioner Edward Kopelman and
Commissioner Michael Karukin voting in opposition.

5. Resolutions and Proclamations

A. Appointing Planning and Zoning Board — Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPOINTING MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING AND
ZONING BOARD; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND, PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The Town Clerk read the title of the resolution. Vice Mayor Joe Graubart appointed
Galen Bakken to the Planning and Zoning Board.

B. Reimburse Project Costs with Proceeds of Tax-Exempt Financing — Martin
Sherwood, Finance Support Services Department Head

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA ESTABLISHING
ITSINTENT TO REIMBURSE CERTAIN PROJECT COSTS INCURRED WITH
PROCEEDS OF FUTURE TAX-EXEMPT FINANCING OR OTHER
OBLIGATIONS; PROVIDING CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION
THEREIN; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The Town Clerk read the title of the resolution. Finance Support Services Director,
Martin Sherwood explained. Commissioner Edward Kopelman made a motion to adopt
the resolution. The motion received a second from Commissioner Michael Karukin. The
Town Clerk called the roll and the motion passed 4-1 with Vice Mayor Joe Graubart
voting in opposition.

C. Retainer Agreement — Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION FOR THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING A RETAINER AGREEMENT WITH
LEWIS STROUD & DEUTSCH TO REPRESENT THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE
IN CONNECTION WITH BANKES V. SURFSIDE MATTERS AND ANY
OTHER RELATED LITIGATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
The Town Clerk read the title of the resolution. Commissioner Michael Karukin made a
motion to adopt the resolution. The motion received a second from Commissioner

Page 31



Edward Kopelman. Town Attorney, Lynn Dannheisser explained that no notice has been
received that the lawsuit has been cancelled. The Town Clerk called the roll and the
motion passed 3-2 with Commissioner Marta Olchyk and Vice Mayor Joe Graubart
voting in opposition.

D. Proposed Millage Rate — Martin Sherwood, Finance Support Services Department

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, DETERMINING A PROPOSED OPERATING
MILLAGE RATE, DETERMINING THE CURRENT YEAR ROLLED-BACK
RATE; ESTABLISHING THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE FOR THE FIRST AND
SECOND PUBLIC BUDGET HEARINGS AS REQUIRED BY LAW;
DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO FILE SAID RESOLUTION WITH THE
PROPERTY APPRAISER OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PURSUANT TO THE
REQUIREMENTS OF FLORIDA STATUTES AND THE RULES AND
REGULATIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FOR THE STATE OF
FLORIDA; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The Town Clerk read the title of the resolution. Commissioner Michael Karukin made a
motion to adopt the resolution. The motion received a second from Commissioner
Edward Kopelman. Finance Support Services Director, Martin Sherwood explained the
purpose of the resolution. The Town Clerk called the roll and the motion passed 3-2 with
Commissioner Marta Olchyk and Vice Mayor Joe Graubart voting in opposition.

E. Interlocal Agreement to Purchase and Install Bus Shelters — Fernando Rodriguez,
Director of Public Works

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH MIAMI-DADE COUNTY TRANSIT
AUTHORITY TO PURCHASE AND INSTALL BUS SHELTERS ON COLLINS
AND HARDING AVENUES USING STIMULUS FUNDS, AUTHORIZING THE
TOWN MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL PURCHASE ORDERS OR OTHER
REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION; AUTHORIZING THE TEMPORARY
DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS TO PAY FOR REQUIRED PERMIT FEES; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The Town Clerk read the title of the resolution. Commissioner Edward Kopelman made
a motion to adopt the resolution. The motion received a second from Commissioner
Michael Karukin. Public Works Director, Fernando Rodriguez explained the project.
Litsa Kyrellis asked about capital projects and repayment.

The Town Clerk called the roll and all were in favor.

F. Parking Pay Stations — John DiCenso, Assistant Police Chief

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSIONOF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING THE AGREEMENT WITH HARRINGTON
RESOURCES INC., dba PARKER SYSTEMS FOR THE PURCHASE,
DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION OF 23 “LUKE” PARKING PAY STATIONS;
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY TO
IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT;
AUTHORZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO EXPEND PARKING FUND

Page 32



PROCEEDS; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE
CONTRACT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The Town Clerk read the title of the resolution. Commissioner Edward Kopelman made
a motion to adopt the resolution. The motion received a second from Commissioner
Michael Karukin. Chief John DiCenso explained the pay stations and how they will
operate. Richard lacobacci asked about the removal of old meters. The Town Clerk
called the roll and all were in favor.

G. Community Center Construction Administration — Chris Giordano, CGA

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHORZING THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO
ADDENDUM TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH AECOM
FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR SURFSIDE COMMUNITY CENTER,
AUTHORIZING THE FUNDS TO PAY FOR; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

The Town Clerk read the title of the resolution. Commissioner Michael Karukin made a
motion to adopt the resolution. The motion received a second from Commissioner
Edward Kopelman. Chris Giordano, Calvin Giordano and Associates explained the
contract and fees and recommended passage. The Town Clerk called the roll and the
motion passed 3-2 with Commissioner Marta Olchyk and Vice Mayor Joe Graubart
voting in opposition.

6. Good and Welfare
Public comments for subjects or items not on the agenda. Public comment on agenda
items will be allowed when agenda item is discussed by the Commission.
Lou Cohen spoke regarding government and discontent and asked that the hatefulness be
stopped.
Barbara McLaughlin thanked the Commission and the Tourist Bureau members for their
service.
Richard lacobacci thanked Commissioner Kopelman and spoke of negativity on a blog
site.
C. Wallace Hume spoke regarding short term rentals.
Orestes Jimenez spoke regarding the proposed hotel.
Dorie Lurie spoke in opposition of bonds and spending.
June Neville spoke about voting.
Alan Gorme spoke concerning public and private schools being allowed in the area and
taxation.
Peter Neville spoke in opposition to Commissioner Kopelman’s prior comments and the
position of Town Attorney.
Alina Ramirez acknowledged Olga Guillot, a resident of Surfside, who recently passed
away.
Randi McBride spoke in opposition to Commission agenda meetings.
Jason Nevader spoke in favor of the in-house town attorney and suggested replacing
wooden electric poles with concrete.
DJ Cannava spoke in support of an in-house town attorney and the on-going parking of
construction workers.

Page 33



Sasha Plutno spoke of the expense to add an iron gate to his house, subsidy of recreation
programs and in opposition of the contract with CGA.

Roxanne Fontaine expressed concern with the inability to play with unleashed dogs on
the beach.

Commissioner Edward Kopelman made a motion to extend beyond the 45 minute allotted
time for Good and Welfare. The motion received a second from Commissioner Michael
Karukin. Mayor Daniel Dietch called for the vote and all were in favor.

Commissioner Marta Olchyk spoke about dogs on the beach. Town Attorney, Lynn
Dannheisser explained that Miami Dade County governs that beach area. She also
explained the issue of notice as in the Town Code currently and previously.
Commissioner Michael Karukin addressed a comment regarding user fees for the use of
the Community Center and that issue has not been discussed by the Town Commission.
Vice Mayor Joe Graubart expressed that major issues should be put to a referendum.

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports
Town Manager, Gary Word gave a report listing a website to monitor the Gulf Oil Spill,
reminding the Commission of the Thursday Commission workshop on the budget,
reported on FEMA insurance efforts, reported that Town Planner, Sarah Sinatra will be
on maternity leave and replaced by Shelly Eichner and reported the FOP negotiations
have begun.
Town Attorney, Lynn Dannheisser reviewed the Town Attorney report as submitted.

8. Unfinished Business and New Business

A. 84" Annual Conference, Florida League of Cities, Designation of Voting
Delegate — Gary Word, Town Manager
The Town Commission designated Commissioner Michael Karukin as their
representative for this purpose.

B. Tourist Bureau Concerns — Duncan Tavares, Tourist Bureau Director
Tourist Bureau Director, Duncan Tavares gave an overview of the concerns of the
Tourist Bureau Board. Mayor Daniel Dietch summarized the discussion of the
Commission giving direction for the Tourist Bureau Director to use the information
available to put together an action plan and to come back before the Town
Commission for further discussion.

C. Town Manager Resignation — Commissioner Marta Olchyk
Mayor Daniel Dietch announced that Gary Word, Town Manager has confirmed with
him his intention to resign October 1, 2010.

D. Committee Appointments — Mayor and Town Commission
The following members were appointed to the Personnel Appeals Board: Brian
Doreck, Alina Ramirez, Richard lacobacci and Norma Padrone. Commissioner
Michael Karukin requested that the elimination of the Personnel Appeals Board be
on the November County Ballot.
The following members were appointed to the Parks and Recreation Committee:
Eliana Salzhauer, Pilar Carvajal, Rasciel Socaras, and Arni Notkin.
The following members were appointed to the Tourist Bureau Board: Ricardo
Mualin, Litsa Kryellis, Eli Tourgeman and Jocobo Blachar.

Page 34



The following members were appointed to the Beautification Committee: David
Steinfeld, Jennifer Brilliant, Sandra Argow. Commissioner Michael Karukin stated
he would like to direct focus of this Committee to the beach walk area.

The following members were appointed to the Website Ad Hoc Committee:

Cheryl Arnold, Ann Pastreich.

The following members were appointed to the Code Enforcement Ad Hoc
Committee: Randal Rubin, Tony Blate.

Commissioner Edward Kopelman made a motion to appoint the above. The motion
received a second from Commissioner Michael Karukin. Mayor Daniel Dietch
called for the vote and all were in favor.

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications
A. Report on Elected Officials Seminar — Commissioner Michael Karukin
Commissioner Michael Karukin reported on his attendance at the Elected Officials
Seminar and encouraged others to attend.
B. Resort Tax Analysis — Commissioner Michael Karukin
Commissioner Michael Karukin passed on this item. Commissioner Marta Olchyk and
Vice Mayor Joe Graubart commended Commissioner Karukin on his work.
C. Architectural and Engineering Professional Services — Mayor Daniel Dietch
Mayor Daniel Dietch suggested that the Town should recompete work now being done
by CGA. He would to direct the Town Manger to do a new solicitation where multiple
firms would be selected to drive the best value. It was concurred to direct the Town
Manager to prepare an RFQ.
D. Commission Agenda Meetings — Commissioner Marta Olchyk
Commissioner Marta Olchyk stated that she has not seen the value of holding the agenda
meetings.
E. Commission Agenda Meetings — Vice Mayor Joe Graubart
Vice Mayor Joe Graubart suggested that the agenda meetings might have been helpful to
a new Commission, but agrees that they could be eliminated at this point. Mayor Daniel
Dietch stated that the meetings provide an opportunity for dialogue. Commissioner
Edward Kopelman spoke in favor of the meetings. Commissioner Marta Olchyk made a
motion to discontinue the agenda meetings. The motion received a second from Vice
Mayor Joe Graubart. The Town Clerk called the roll and the motion passed 3-2 with
Mayor Dietch and Commissioner Kopelman voting in opposition.
F. Life Preserver Ring — Vice Mayor Joe Graubart
Vice Mayor Joe Graubart suggested that the Town install life rings on a post for
emergency purposes and that perhaps County Commissioner Heyman’s Office could be
contacted for possible funding. Town Manager, Gary Word indicated that he will bring
back a proposal to the next meeting regarding how the life rings could be financed and
the possible liability.
Norma Padron suggested mounting the rings in a glass case in order to prevent theft.
Paul Yavis suggested that the Town should have lifeguards.

10. Adjournment The meeting adjourned at 11:55 p.m.

Page 35



Minutes
Regular Commission Meeting
July 13, 2010

Accepted this day of , 2010.

Daniel Dietch, Mayor

Attest:

Debra E. Eastman, MMC
Town Clerk

Page 36 10



Town of Surfside
Special Town Commission Workshop
July 15, 2010
7 p.m.
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2" F|
Surfside, FL 33154

MINUTES

1. Opening
A. Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 7:05 p.m.

B. Roll Call of Members Town Clerk, Debra Eastman called the roll with
Commissioner Michael Karukin, Commissioner Edward Kopelman,
Vice Mayor Joe Graubart and Mayor Daniel Dietch in attendance.
Commissioner Marta Olchyk was absent.

C. Pledge of Allegiance Vice Mayor Joe Graubart led the Pledge of Allegiance.
D. Public Comments for Non-agenda Items There were no comments.

2. Town Commission Workshop/Water and Sewer Rate Analysis
A. Watet/Sewer Fund Financial Overview — Martin D. Sherwood, Finance
Support Services Martin Sherwood gave an overview of anticipated increases
in the proposed budget as published.
B. Water/Sewer State of the Infrastructure Overview — Fernando J. Rodriguez,
Director of Public Works and Calvin, Giordano & Associates
Fernando Rodriguez explained the status of the current aging infrastructure.
John Messarian of Calvin, Giordano and Associates explained the current
water loss within the system, the videoing that was done to the sewer pipes
and the plan for replacement and relining.
C. Water/Sewer Rate Analysis Overview — Brian Jewett, TischlerBise
i, Objectives of Analysis
ii.  Rate Setting Principles and Approach
iii.  Presentation of Proposed Water/Sewer Rates

iv.  Comparative Agency Analysis

Page 37




Minutes
Town Comimission Workshop
July 15, 2010

v. Customer Impact of Proposed Rates

Brian Jewett, TischlerBise, fiscal engineering and economic consultant
gave a presentation of the above (attached).

Vice Mayor Joe Graubart requested that some of the information in the
presentation be published in the Gazette. Mayor Daniel Dietch requested
that the Commission be provided with a histogram to see how many users
fall into each category.

Commissioner Michael Karukin asked for the median bimonthly water
use.

3. Commission Discussion and Rate Policy Direction

Mayor Daniel Dietch asked to be provided with the cost of outsourcing of
utility billing.

Vice Mayor Joe Graubart requested that the rate structure include a
provision for the elderly and less fortunate.

Mr, Jewett gave the Commission his recommendations of option two, all
three of the reserve targets, eliminate minimum consumption charges,
eliminate discount program and begin a monthly billing cycle.

Utility Coordinator, Catherine Colonna answered questions from the
Commission,

Alina Ramirez asked about water as a renewable resource and aboui
reclaiming water.

Kathy Imberman stated she is in favor of removing the minimum, but not
in favor of option 2,
Litsa Kyrellis asked about past water bills and possible pressure testing of

pipes.

4, Schedule and Next Steps

Page 38

A. Tonight: Rate Policy Direction

The Commission gave the following direction: Water rates — in favor of
option 2. Sewer rates — in favor of option 2. Reserve Targets — in favor of
some interim targets. Minimum consumption charges — eliminate, Billing
cycle - asked for a comparison of in-house and outsourced bimonthly and
monthly for both. Commissioner Kopelman asked that the FPL model for
disconnection of service be investigated. Mayor Dietch asked Mr. Jewett to

explore adding the penalty provision to the bill,

. Community Outreach Meeting & Discussion: 8/3/10 (meeting has been

noticed on customer water bills and posted on Town of Surfside website)



Minutes
Town Commission Workshop
July 15, 2010

C. First Public Hearing & Ordinance: 8/10/10
D. Second Public Hearing & Ordinance: 9/14/10

3. Adjournment The meeting adjourned at 10:10 p.m.

Accepted this day of , 2010.

Daniel Dietch, Mayor

Attest:

Debra E. Eastman, MMC
Town Clerk

Page 39



yy um UB|d %g DIWLI0UO3T ]

_____ &_—_um___.

OSTEISTYISLT, — JOMI[ URLIg

BPLIO[] “9pPIS}INS JO UMO]T,

0102 ‘ST Am(

doys310AA UOISSTUILIO)) UMO],
uonejussalJ Apms ey I9MOG 3 I9Jep

Page 40



SqUnsLe Sujuunid g NWoUeR] Xl

SIsAeue joedwl IDWOISND APISJINS =
SUOSLIEdmwO) 9B AJUIFY =
u31sop el pasodoid 29 ueyd [BIOURUIL] =

MITAIIAO SUINAS ALY =

SISATRUR Q)R
JO S9ATD3[QO 29 SUOTIRIIPISUOD J03[0I] =

ARPO) JIA0D [[, M JBYAA

Page 41



wuanLUeg Tuuued i oUeRY [Tt
SSIgaSYIsIL

Suruue[d arnyny J0J [opow el d[qepurisIopun
29 Ap1JS 918 [EULIOJ “QAISUAYAIdTIOD JOJ PN =

UOIMBAJISUOD 20JNOSIY =
Annba 91ex 10WOISN)) =
Surpuny e1ded I9)JR SOAIISAI PAONPAI AJURIJIUSIS =

191813 PUB 9,0 [ AQ TIA AIIAD
JurseaIour 1509 yoeag TWerA Jo A1) 22 ASMAM AN =
§1509 juamaoe[dal pue xedas JULIIJIUSIS =

AIIQIXS[] [BIOURUL]/AI[IR)S QNUIAIY =

SUONBIIPISU0) 333[0a]

Page 42



SSIgIs| US|
9181 PAISIN] — UONBAISSUOD JOJeM dFBINOIUH =

SJUNOISIP
29 SWNWIUIW SSAIPPE — AJINba 2J0W0I] =
sayids aje1 9ININJ PIOAR pUR
ANIQIXY] TeroueUL) J0J SAOI[0d SAIISII YSI[qRISH =
suondo armonys ajer dAneUIde doJoAd(] =
(SPUOQ ANUIAJI UO ITAIIS
199p) Teuded 29 N0 puny AJ[ny 03 s91e1 do[aad(d =
SONI[IIN JOMIS
29 1918 M 10T sueld [eroueul] JBIA-C dOTOAd(T =

SIANIIIQO SISATRUR dBY

Page 43



syumpruoy Rt 2w

asigiojyasiy

u31s9(g 91vy 9sodoid =

2INONNS 918y JUALIN)) MIIADY =
QIMONIS IBY USISO( =

UOIJBIO[[V 1S0)) JoWOISN) =

TUOWdO[9AS(] QOTAIAS JO SHU[) =

SUOIIBOO[[V 150D Tende) pue N =
JTAIAS JO IS0 =

1uowdo[eA(] ue[d [BIOUBUI] =

(d1D) stuewaanbay sanioe] [eyde) =

suonoaloid N29() PUB SONUIAYY =

SIUQWIAIINDIY ANUIAYY =

MIIAIIA(Q) SUIIS ANBY

Page 44



S9X®] 10U ‘sajeI AQ AJ2]0S 10]
pred spuoq uawesINquIRI D ‘S1esSe PAloLSAIun 29 POy =

gurpung J10

sosuadxo Sunerado 94,¢7 01 dn — SAIISIY PAOLYSATU[) =
SONUIALI [BNUUER 94,()] 01 dn — UOIRZI[IqRIS 9By PAIOINSIY =

$ dID pazifenuue Xz 03 dn — Y293 pAIOLNSNY =

Suruue[d [eroueur) Juapnid I0J saoULR[Rg 9AIISAT 193IR].
A[[enuue 94()°S 01 9 ()7 JO 93U 9U) Ul PAIR[JU] =

$1S00 A1)

15png pesodoid 11/010T A =

IBIA aseq

SIBOA [BOSIJ G 1X2U JOAO 94C7 () =

9181 YIMO0IS [BUITON

sy Fujudciy B opneoven] ey

astgayasI

suonduinssy Apm<

Page 45



SpuCLe SujUUEd 5 MU '|E51S
Ssigieost

SISA[RUY [eIdUBUL]

Page 46



uInaneD S|y A 3UOUeD] T

SSIgHOYISIL

o

R

e

,19)eM IPISFING JO SIS0 Y} 1B JBYAA

Page 47



saueEy suUAsy TTA0T AdSmueEag AMUIND Y B

sasuRdxg Junzmdo-bo ) e {Fawuas 1qa0) ¢ sasuadiy Bumesed g e

foeacasis

g

SEAPTIZ M PIICRCT 82 ETSTELE A | Hm TE/9T0E 4

CACTOCES

a1 [

ACVCACTS




?

rvice

What are the costs of sewer se

Page 49

S
hene
e

sl
e S
-

S
B

e
S
.

e
i

Yo

e

S

A
.
gk

Flszal, Econarmic & Planning Consultants



sasua iy Bunelados-UoN e

Fauejed puny TL/OT A SuuuEasg o

(ROLURS 1036 D et

anuRas Bun 2 sd (P10 o

sasuahq Sunesady ;

loga'ton Els

STAFTOT A

SLAEIOR AL

Nﬂ,&aw_t

{pon'onsis

LEAToZ A

CAC0ea LS

D005 TS

0O0'O0'ES

0OG'00S 2S

s3jey Jamas Juasin) 3uisn suoildaloud




-

A3
v

PPN SNMUIAIY AJEY JIEM JO UONEOO[V

UMD UL 1] JHWOUCR] (Dl

asigiajijosi

Page 51



Allocation of Sewer Rate Revenue Required

Page 52

! Al

s . et

SRR AT

s

e
A

o e i
R e R N
e me s e

e

)

e
e
S R e e
e

o 5@/5%}» SR
j:f\,“ﬁ”(\a L

Gk o
b
i e

s
x moh e

s Cati e e
S ey
L o :

. -
Fehs e e
R s
= e v

G 3 st i o R

e

et
Sl

R
o

e
o

sl

St
\%\z\% Ly

i

e i

e

2l
=

g

s

AAl O
e

e
aaat Sheene
S e

S

o
G

Tty

e

e

g

L

S
L
T

o

seal, Ceanamic & Planning Congultonts



USISA( AvY

au) e Bucsustl 4 3WONa2] DEE

Page 53



13MQD Burdus|a 7§ UCE0) 1IsH

aSIgIIUISIL
SONSSI AJI[IGEIS NUAAI pue AMbY =
s1owWoIsNY [18 10J (183 000°1/69 +$) 918l WLIOJTUN

191U ,8/C I0F SYIUOW 7/SUO[[ES 000 CT
'379 “9ZIS J9)oW U0 Paseq SIUAUNO[[e AMO[J J1oMIS TNITUTIA

JOMIS =
UOTIBAIISUOD I9]eM JOJ SANJUIOUL O[N] =
sonssI AI[IqRIS oNUAAdX pue AyNby «

SIOWO}SNO
18 107 (183 0001 /#S €$) 2161 gos%nsmqoo /3]qeLIBA WIOJIU[) =

1910 /G I0F SyIuour 7/Suof[esd 000l
‘39 ‘9ZIS J9)oWI U0 Paseq SIUQUNO[[. asn Ia1em WINUWITULIA

ISJBA\ =

SI.INJINI)S IJe.1 JUILIN)

Page 54



WY FuILL 7T JIMIOUE2] UX1d

T1q A1[1N JO [0IIUO0D AIOW JOUI0ISND SIALD) =

pazijeuad J0U SIdSN JUSIOJH =

puewWop Ay} J0J Aed “pUBWOP ST} ISNLD
O 9SOT) — 2IMIONAS 9 J[qeIND IO =
ISN JAISSAIXD 0NPAI 29
UOTJBAIISUOD 9FBINOJUD 0} Yoroidde oA109J =

S[E0S USISIP kI YI0[(q SuTurdu]

Page 55



SSIgHOJISIL
(SuIIq ATUOW-1¢] 10 A[IUON =

GSIUNOOSI(] =
SIQUWIOISNO 910 [[& 10¥ d)ex uondwmnsuod

WLIOJTUN ‘S A[IURJ-9[SUIS JOJ SYO0[q el
¢ ‘98180 J01OW PAXI] ‘SWNWIUIW ON 7 uondQ
{SUI[[Iq ATUOW-1g 10 A[IUON =
,SIUNOSI(] =

SIQWIO)SND
[[e 9181 tondwnsuod ULIOJIun 9gIeyd

I919UWI PAXIJ ‘swnwiIui oN : [ uondQ

suondo 2.1m)INas B IIJBAA

Page 56



R BULTLY 7 ICLOYL 2t

osigHoelUas

70858 ALY vE9 00°0L¥') 8
1A 0g6l5 76 Loy 09°6¥8 u9
€9 78¢ 01Le 8eece 07096 a7
16081 8L Ll 95ivl 0c €8¢ ue

6 201 8¢ a0l WAL il a6
A3Vl eF el 689 A4 7165 9678 rAN
G005 191y L16Fy Er ey A ¥995 ub
Wwye ¢ iz $ ee0e $ ivee $ W $ ever  § 815

ShPLAd  PHELAd  EMELAY ZTHILAY LWOL A4 jusiind

3518 ) ISBY/INIIAl PIXI]

Page 57



oD Suiultld 2 3Wouen] v

aSIgoaSY,

Az ¢E8. w08l 9¢'969 68950 00°9kY) 8
L0°¢cS Gl L6 10 60 OF cv Fily 09°6v8 Y

6¥ ¢l 1G°65¢ 8 £670E¢ 68°11L¢ 07 986 of
89°¢Ll 9F 791 Gleql L0971 9078El 0¢¢8¢ W&

13 ¢0! ¢616 LE°¢6 Gli8 A4 v¥ icl ul
18l 0¥ 69 FAA"Y 118 1686 9678 «Ofb |
oLy 115414 G0ty 9 0¥ ¢E8e ya9g ab
G6Ze  $ 8€IE  $§ 096¢ ¢6iz $ S€% § vy 8 W85

ShyLAd  PMELAd  SHELAd  THILAY  BHOLAd jusung IZI§ I8

3SR ) ISBY/INIAl PIXL]

Page 58



*adr|Aoue) Bueye|g 7 3|LUOUOD] ‘WT)

asigu|Ujosi]
M § 4o7 g g2y uLenn
BO000) Jed ey YR (o)
HOgORgEY
o9 T3 188528 Fa0EE 8T 028 GRS ({28 00y wogdunsuog ey 12 pepeivd
SHFL A4 FLEL AL AL Ad CHEL A4 FHOE A

Eje(] 150

1 uondQ — 98aey) uondwinsuo))

Page 59



Juimpfinae Bultld 1§ SUeU0TE 1DTH

¥ § LFF S [EF § 96T § FC 5 5% 0§ UE gtz Bkl Y]
ehgpg'| Jed ey Jsng [osd
UCRIRDEH
TROTZL LT FONIZE +870EE SRF RIS 21085 000 1) uegdunsue) ealy 18 padsitig
SLFE A AT E SLEE Ad FAT{ AR E LLIBE A EJB( 1500

1 uondQ — dsaey) uondunsuo))

Page 60



g1g L 15 e 320G 5S¢ 25 L {23 QOO FE sa0qel © X208
BE SFF 1A S5E iog $C°¢ ¥l {125 000've - L0 ZLY £ N0
0Ly EEE BHE 25 E e oL ool (2O O0TE - 00 | 3008
=000’ Jad Ejey WRETT) rezmampg
acgd
£C52E (£8°2E BRIZE e SENEE B0 L0052 ano0E) £ NI0IG TasM] JERN, aNssalT
SFEVEL OLFEE 3I0ECE LEEEEL QLOEEE {20 0O0EE ~ 100'EE! & ¥oUIE ‘s JeE, ABuogesisi]
FoLog 595 58 FCIGE n¥s'ee iEEce {20 00n'Es - Ok L 300 Tesn SR 1000U]

- (125 000" 1) 3ooig sad uogdwnseod By paRelg

WUEyAnUeD Suru|g 5 3 LeUe] eXsy

SsiguRosIL

FARE L HEiD1 A4

SEivl AL

FhHEL A3 £hZ} Ad

SJBuojSNY [EQUBRISSY HIC i abueyy vogdums logdg

zuondQ — ew.:z_o uonduwnsuo))

Page 61



LULALUCY BUIUe]d g IRUOUe3] 15

asIgRUyIsl

gy § 5%y Y DEF % S0P 8 SIE 8 OFEE B HBY Loy
20000') Jed =ey Wauny

356 18 18I 8198 By A0 ker gl -5 000’ 1) wogdiunsea) fealy Jey pRdaiid

SiYbAd FHSLAY SWRIA ZWRLAD LMOLAd Lopdiosa

7 uond(Q —3saey)) uonduwnsuo))

Page 62



<Jueyrsned Bujulierg = oHuoues3 ‘sl

SSIgHaIsI]

o7 B I =
& &
Ior B or B o

861 1128 000'FT SAngE) £
171 e5 Q00FE ~ L0021 g aseg
0oL 2B LouEL - b 1 500

ehgoo't Jad aiey WAL

P AN
£FEELT
0FSSe

SPYZE
e
Frage

= AN
JIFEEL
FELEE

028ZE
0I0¥EL
55558

£E5 28
SEEYEL
Ferog

- {188 ppgL) oug Jad wopdinsen] B Pl

femuamBEgId
atiid

IR0 [O0TZ 270GE) £ XOUE "9S[] JERAN, ANSSEDg
(20 000°FZ - 1O0EL) 2 210018 'S J2hy, ARuenaeas|]
{25/ 00'zL - Ob L Wooig “asq) ey o0nu]

N SEAE | AT L el A4

SEiFL D

FLED &4

7 [weiboid jonodsig oN] S1suojsn)

zuondQ — .ow.E:U uonduwinsuo))

Page 63



0D Suiiueld 18 JWoN0T ol

asigejyosy

8k § SEF § LT § 88t S B30T § FEE B djey wioen

20 ooy Jed Ay WaLm)

985 8 18148 31928 B5F L8 187 Ie - 18 pL0 ') vogdunsuo eauny Jay pessinid

EHFlL A4 FLEl A4 ELEh A4 CHE A4 UL uogduass(

I R ™ T T,
m.mm.c, _t. T N L I T k|

7 uondQ —3sgaey) uondumsuo))

Page 64



U] Ruwbstlg 2 JWOUOYL {ISy

(SUI[[Iq A[JIUOW-1¢ 0 A[[UOIA =
SIOWIO)SND [[B JOJ )kl MO[J WLIOJIun “d8Ieyd
TUNOJ0R PAXI] ‘SWNWIUIW ON 17 uondQ

{SUI[Iq ATIUOW-1g 10 A[YIUOIA =
SIOWO0ISNO
[[e 9181 MO[J WLIOJIUN ‘STUnIuItI oN : 1 uondQ

suondo 21nIN.NSs et IOMIS

Page 65



oy Bumitstd 72 JWouns) "wos

sSigeyIsIL

£es $ 9841 $ ¥¢1 $ 099 $ 629 $ 697 % Sjey uuohun
126 000°| Jed 3.y e

60112 £EV 0icC 65692 980°69¢ Gly89¢ r@_mm 000°1) MO|4 fenuuy pajosiold

6I£°/62TS TOZVZL'CS 69E096°LS COL'6Z8LS 06E68SL $ SIS0)) lemag [elo]

SLivL Ad yligel Ad el Ad L Ad PLIOL A4 Eje( 1s0D

1 uond() — 98I JOMIS

Page 66



unsun) Aujuued rg SHuoUeR et

SSEgOISIL

[AFA $ 601 $ €99 $ ¥i9 $ 897G $ 697

$ Sjey sjgetie, ULoiuf

1eb 000’1 Jod sey uaLng

60}°LiT €€V 0.T 6G1°69¢ 980'69¢ GL¥'80e

0F8'8e0°7$ €F98L6TLE <2G9'88I°LS 0£0CS9 IS <Cr8GZS LS

, (126 000°}) aoi4 fenuuy psjosioid

SIS0 MOl JeMas

SHYL Ad FLiEL A4 £Lel Ad cHil Ad 1101 Ad

Bleq 1505

snJ |ly abiey) sjqeuieA -  ucndo :g}, e

J[RLIBA 29 PIXL] ‘7 uond( — de.a JoMdG

Page 67



sy Suraer)g 5 3o sy

SSig{USI

ISz $ WSz ¢ £t 0§ ¥le $ w00 3 WN 8buey) paxi4 AyuopHg

126 0o’ L Jod sley wauny

vig) LIEL 19¢°) ¥9€°) 09¢’} siswiojsng pajosioid
¥EG8lZ $ 069G0¢ $ ZLiL6L $ €I0ZLL $ i¥GEol § SIS0 JUNCIJY JBWOIsND

ShPLAS FHELAd  EUELAd TV Ad 1101 Ad gle( 3500

J[qRBLIBA 2 PIXI ‘7 uond( — 9)e.1 JIMIS

Page 68



ueniuos Juur|d 1 3Woued] "rTE
SSIGRUISIL

SOIUIIY
YO 0) suosrreduwio))

Page 69



LA S T P R TV O TP

[€5 000°CT “19)oU (/S
AS] [BNIUIPISIY SAV :[[IE JIICAN

Page 70



SISO JUIULd 1 HWOUOR] '[¥2% 3
SSICUIUISH]

[€3 000°C1 “I93oW Your g/s
‘MO[] [BI)UIPISIY SAY — IS TS

Page 71



s)oeduwuy Jour03sn)) IPIS}Ing

ApUCTLE) P 5 3HUBUODY 1L
SSigHR|ostL

Page 72



i e R Tt
i ReEea e
e

Sl

KA

.
o -

S, 5

et i

nt, Residential

1ISCou

No Min, No D

Option 1

Page 73

Flacil, Teonamic & Planming Cormultants

TischlerBise



ey Yoo[g sururdu]
[BDUSPISTY YUNOISI(J ON ‘UIIA] ON

B Youl §/S

¢ uondQ

SRSy FUINUET R oL TSl

asigoIst

Page 74



U Nsued Jujuugd i 5WeUe] 1014

sasuadxa N O %S7 01 dn «
UOIIBZI[IQR)S )BI JOJ SINUIAJI eI 94, 01 dn «

uerd 109loxd 1endes pazienuue x7 01 dn =

:S193IB) QAIISY =
dJel J[qeLIRA pue paxXL] — 7 uond() =

AJuoO 91R1 9[qRLIRA — | Uond() =

:SQIBI IOMIS =
(3[00[q SUTUI[OUI) 9JBI UOIBAIISUO) — 7 uond() =

dres wxoJiu) — [ uond(Q) =

:SO1RI IOJBA\ =

UON)IIII(] UOISSTUITIO )

Page 75



AZUEHmEUeD JUjUUCE) 5 SHOBUGDY '|EX 1
SSIgR|osy,

A

IUOW-1g JO A[JIUOIA — [OAD SUI[[Ig =

dreurwl[q Jo doay — weidord Junodsi(] =

Sfeultdirg
10 dooy[ — sadreyd uondwnsuod WNWIUTJA =

UONIIII(] UOISSIUITIO )

Page 76



sjoEnAe) Fulaue]d 1 IHUOLEE sk

01/1/6 “Aepsong.
— Q0URUIPI() 29 SULIBIH JI[qNJ PUT =

01/01/8 ‘Aepsang,
— JoURUIPI() 29 SULIBIH J1[qNnJ IS =

01/€/8 ‘Aepsan] — yorann( AIUnwwio)) =

1YSTUO], - dOUSYIOA\ UOISSTWUIO ) UMO], =

sda)Q IXoN

Page 77



UOISSNISI(T
SIIMSUY ‘suonsang)

sFUEUNSUOY Aujuuey 5 SHUBUO?Y (8IS
Ssigiepyost)

Page 78



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA
MONTHLY BUDGET TO ACTUAL EXPENSE SUMMARY
FISCAL YEAR 2009/2010

As of MAY 31, 2010

67% OF YEAR EXPIRED (BENCHMARK)

Agenda ltem #

Agenda Date: August 10, 2010

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND

RESORT TAX
POLICE FORFEETUREIéONF!SCAT!ON
TRANSPORTATION SURTAX

CAPITAL PROJECTS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS:
WATER & SEWER

‘MUNICIPAL PARKING
SOLID WASTE

STORMWATER

Page 79

$7,316,461 $13,074,845 57%
$95,298 $134,000 1%
$43,062 $73,250 59%
$62,096 $223,261 28%

$142,534 $5.035,000 3%
$1,456,413 $4,850,096 30%
$520,568 $2,097,100 25%
$661,033 $1,282,304 52%
$67.524 $246,000 27%

Town Manager

X sz{/JWA

3B


deastman
Typewritten Text
3B


Daniel Dietch
Mayor

Joe Graubart
Vice Mayor

Marta Olchyk
Commissioner

Michael Karukin
Commissioner

Edward Kopelman
Commissioner

Gary Word
Town Manager

Page 80

3C
TOWN OF SURFSIDE

9293 Harding Avenue
Municipal Building
9293 Harding Avenue
Surfside, Florida 33154
(305) 861-4863

(305) 861-1302

TOWN OF SURFSIDE
PROJECTS PROGRESS REPORT
August, 2010

1. Community Center — Staff has been successful in obtaining the FDEP

permit for construction of the Community Center. The Contractor has
began grading the site and installing the support piles. After the piles are
complete they will begin installation of the underground utilities. Staff has
received payment application #1 from West Construction. The Contractor’s
submittals continue to be submitted and reviewed for appropriate action.

Planning and Community Development — Staff prepared comparative
analysis of the 2007 and 2008 zoning codes for the July Special Commission
meeting, the July Planning and Zoning meeting and the August Commission
meeting. There was no quorum for the DRB in July, therefore if the Board
can accommodate there may be a special DRB meeting in August to avoid
property owners waiting until the end of August to address the Board. Staff
IS preparing a rezoning for the newly acquired parking lot adjacent to the
post office lot. Staff continues to answer general zoning calls and emails
from the public. Staff is also in the process of responding to numerous public
records requests.

. Website, Information Technology, TV Broadcasts - IT has completed

preparation and testing of laptops for emergency situations (disaster / post
disaster) in preparation for hurricane season. VPN (Virtual Private Network)
has been installed, configured and tested on the laptops. VPN provides
secure access and connectivity to SunGard Naviline from outside the
network during post disaster, and the SunGard Naviline has been tested
successfully on all laptops. A new card has been put into the phone system
to replace failed card. Server room has been updated with new battery
backup power supply and a new switch to replace a failed device. IT will be
working to survey the network and diagram all connected network ports for
troubleshooting.

Public Utilities / Engineering —

Bay Drive Drainage Improvements

The Bay Drive Drainage Improvements are part of the Florida Department
of Environmental Protection grant that included stormwater pumps and
drainage wells. This project is scheduled for construction at the ssame time
as the proposed water main replacement and the sanitary sewer renovation.
Since this work will occur simultaneously, the impacts to the roadways and


deastman
Typewritten Text
3C


the neighborhoods will be kept to a minimum.

Florida Department of Environmental Protection Stormwater Project

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection project consists of three below grade
duplex pump stations, 9 drainage wells, drainage structures, and stormwater collection system
to improve both the water quality and quantity before discharging into the Biscayne Bay. The
following items are complete:

Task 1: Surveying

Task 2: Engineering Design

Task 3: DERM Permit

Task 4: Grant Administration — in process

Task 5: Education — Required for the duration of the project

The Stormwater projects will require several phases to complete to coincide with the grant
schedule and other funding sources. Construction of water mains, sanitary sewer and the
undergrounding of cable and phone lines should also coincide with the stormwater sewer
phases to reduce pavement restoration costs.

Stormwater Master Maintenance

The stormwater drainage system is being cleaned and maintained on a yearly basis as required
by the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System Permit. Repairs and replacement
program coincide with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection Stormwater
project and grants

Wastewater System

The 89th Street Pump Station flowmeter has stopped working as of the end of May; however,
new meters have been ordered to accurately compare with the Miami Beach meters. This will
apply to both the 89tha and 93" Street stations. . Installing these flow meters will insure
accurate Peak Hourly Flow reporting, as now required for NAPOT reporting. Also replacing
the flow meters will provide one flowmeter model, as opposed to the two models currently in
use.

The design for wastewater improvements, including the sanitary sewer pump station
replacements, sewer lining and repairs are currently being evaluated for implementation. The
existing rehabilitation of the existing sanitary sewer pump stations is currently under design
and will be ready for DERM and WASD approval for mid August of 2010. The rehabilitation
of both pump stations includes the replacement of existing valves, pumps, pump control
panels, emergency standby system, and structural rehabilitation of the existing wet-well and
pump station building. Construction is set to begin in early October of 2010.

Costs and unit prices are being established for lining the moderately cracked pipes and point

repairs for the broken pipes. Bidding of the repairs is expected this year for lining the existing
sanitary lines and manholes. Calvin Giordano and Associates is currently coordinating with

Page 81



the Florida Department of Transportation and their engineering consultant to determine
Harding and Collins overlay impacts to sanitary sewer lining/replacement. Plans (60%) were
received from their consultant on March 1, 2010. Construction is scheduled for July of 2010.

The 2009 through 2010 Annual Sanitary Sewer System Evaluation and Rehabilitation Report
were submitted to the County by Calvin Giordano and Associates on March 26, 2010. This is
a yearly report required by the county in order to identify that the Town has been actively
maintaining, repairing, restoring and/or replacing the sanitary sewer system. The report was
favorable in the Town’s behalf since the sewer system was cleaned and videoed in 2009 and a
lining/replacement program is schedule for 2010.

Water System

The watermain taps within FDOT right of way have been submitted, and are currently being
reviewed by MDWASD, Miami Dade Department of Health and DERM. The plans are
expected to be permitted by August 2010. Construction is scheduled for November of 2010.

Florida Department of Transportation Local Agency Program

The project includes the replacement of handicap ramps, bus stop pads and solar lights along
92" Street between Harding and Collins Avenue. The contract was awarded to Horsepower
Electric in the amount of $139,027. The Florida Department of Transportation will reimburse
the Town for the cost of the project through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act
program. The original bid came in higher than anticipated and exceeded the program funding.
Some of the scope of the project was eliminated so that the Town’s costs would be 100%
reimbursed by the program.

5. Grants -

a. The FY 2010 application for the Department of Environmental Protection Section
319 Non-point Source  Management Program Grant will be submitted by May
23, 2010 for the stormwater improvements.

b. Grants for sanitary and water system improvements, as well as roadway
improvements and other Town improvements are being reviewed as possible
revenue sources to accomplish the projects.

6. Capital Improvement Projects - Calvin Giordano has provided the town with a list of
concerns regarding safety issues and American Disability Act access for several Beach Walk
Access points in the Capital Improvement Projects reports. Upon request by The Town, the
Landscape Architecture Department will provide detailed plans to address these deficient
areas.

Page 82



Page 4
Town of Surfside
Projects Progress Report

7. Transportation and Traffic Engineering

As per Miami Dade County request, staff is completing the evaluation of roadway impact
methodology. This includes review of the Comprehensive Plan and the Transportation
Element.

Page 83



Town of Surfside
Commission Communication

Agenda Item # 3D

Agenda Date: August 10, 2010

Subject: Revised Resolution Naming Insurance Agent of Record
Objective: Readopt a resolution naming Mr. Stan Bershad as the Town of Surfside

insurance agent of record.

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Town Commission adopt the attached
resolution clarifying the commission arrangement and commencement date of Mr. Stan
Bershad as the Town of Surfside insurance agent of record.

Background / Analysis: At its regular meeting on May 11, 2010, the Town Commission
designated Mr. Stanley Bershad as its insurance agent of record. A resolution was prepared
that reflected that action of the Commission. However, there were some wording provisions
that were not totally reflective of the intent of the Commission as it related to the agent's
commission and service start date. As such there is a need to adopt this clarifying resolution
to reflect greater accuracy. The Town Attorney has redrafted the resolution to make it
acceptable to Mr. Bershad and the insurance companies he is negotiating with on the Town’s
behalf (Att. A).

Alternatives: N/A

Growth Impact: There is no impact to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan with this action.

Budget Impact: There is no budget impact with the adoption of this resolution

Staff Impact: There is no impact to staff on this matter.

@%Z/AJ

Department Head Town Mandger

Page 84


deastman
Typewritten Text
3D


RESOLUTION NO. 10-___
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA CORRECTING
RESOLUTION 10-1939 APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH
STANTON M. BERSHAD, CLU TO BE THE INSURANCE
BROKER FOR ALL OF THE TOWN’S SERVICES
RELATED TO EMPLOYEE HEALTH, DISABILITY, LIFE,
DENTAL, AND OTHER RELATED BENEFITS
PROGRAMS; CLARIFYING THE COMMENCEMENT
DATE OF THE INITIAL CONTRACT OF TWO AND ONE-
QUARTER YEARS TO BE OCTOBER 1, 2010; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, on March 18, 2010 the Town received eleven (11) proposals from Claridge
Group, Inc., Brown & Brown Insurance, Inc., Brown & Brown Public Risk Insurance Agency,
Citrin Financial & Insurance, Inc,, Gehring Group, Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc., The Rhodes
Insurance Group, Stanton M. Bershad, CLU, Employers Mutual, Inc. (EMI), McKinley Financial
Services, Inc., and Edify National Marketing and those bids were publicly opened and read.

WHEREAS, on March 25, 2010, all proposals were thoroughly reviewed and ranked by
the Town on the basis of the following evaluation criterion: qualifications of the brokerage firm;
qualifications of personnel and their specific time commitments to the account; program
approach for benefit analysis, insurance marketing, program maintenance and communications;
proposal quality; references; broker and/or firm domicile; and cost.

WHEREAS, after reviewing all proposals and conducting preliminary interviews as
needed, Staff has made a recommendation to the Town Comumission; and

WHEREAS, on May 11, 2010 by Resolution 10-1939 the Town Commission has

selected Stanton M., Bershad, CLU, found the acceptance of his proposal to be in the best interest

of the Town, and made Stan Bershad agent of record; and

Page 85



WHERFEAS, because the actual commencement date of the contract for initial contract of
two and one-quarter years, with services to continue until a subsequent rfq for the same services
is issued and awarded shall not commence until October 1, 2010 at which time the yearly
compensation of $15,000 shall also commence, this corrective resolution clarifying these issues
needs to be passed by the Town Commission.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated

into this Resolution by this reference.

Section 2. Corrective _resolution Accepted. The Town Commission hereby

corrects Resolution 10-1939 approving and appointing Stanton M. Bershad, CLU as Agent of
Record for the Town of Swifside as the Town’s insurance broker by clarifying that the date of
commencement of that coniract is October 1, 2010.

Section 3. Authorization for Compensation, The compensation not to exceed

fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) per year for the term of the contract shall also commence
Qctober 1, 2011.

Section 4,  Effective Date, This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon

adoption.

PASSED and ADOPTED on this 9™ day of August, 2010.

Motion by Commissioner ,
Second by Commissioner

Page 86



FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION

Commissioner Michael Karukin
Commissioner Edward Kopelman
Commissioner Marta Olchyk
Vice Mayor Joseph Graubart
Mayor Daniel Dietch

Daniel Dietch, Mayor

Attest:

Debra E. Eastman, MMC
Town Clerk

APPROVED AND TO FORM AND
LEL}:X/I; SUFFICIENCY FOR THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY:
Z/‘:’X - //f /w - &M‘J&m—w
" Lyfifi M. Dannheisser
Town Attorney

Page 87



4A1

MEMORANDUM

To: Town Commission

Thru: Gary Word, Town Manager .

CC: Lynn Dannheisser, Town Atto ey

From: Shelley Eichner, AICP, Town Planner

Date: August 10, 2010

Re: Comparison of 2007 & 2008 Zoning Codes

The 2008 Zoning Code was reviewed at the June 8, 2010 Town Commission meeting. It was
recommended for approval on first reading and a Special Commission meeting was scheduled
for July 7, 2010 to answer additional questions from the public. The Commission voted to
schedule the 2008 Zoning Code for second reading on August 10, 2010. The Planning and
Zoning Board held a public hearing on the zoning code on July 29, 2010 and recommended
the code for approval to the Town Commission.

There were two changes in the code from first reading that are included in this version. First,
on page 47, there was a clerical error in the transcription which this version addresses relating
to Places of Public Assembly. The 2008 Code refers to Ordinance 07-1479, which limits
Places of Public Assembly to the second floor of the business district. However, the 2008
code did not reflect this restriction. It was clearly included in the referenced Ordinance, 07-
1479, therefore, staff recommends including this change for clarification purposes only.

Secondly, on page 50 the 2008 Code provided a maximum height within the H40 Zoning
District of 40 feet in height. A question was raised that the 2007 Code limited Single Family
and Two-Family in the RM-1 District, which is comparable to the 2008 Code’s H40 District, to
30 feet in height. Although there are no existing or proposed Single Family or Two-Family
structures in this district, staff recommends revising the 2008 code to add the limitation of 30
feet in height for Single-Family and Two-Family structures within the H40 Zoning District.

The proposed Zoning Code for the Town of Surfside has fransformed the seven existing
zoning districts (not including MU) into six new zoning districts. A breakdown of the existing
districts and proposed districts is as follows:

2007 Code District 2008 Code District

RS-1 H30A
RS-2 H30B
RD-1 H30C
RD-2 H30C
RM-1 H40
RT-1 H120

B-1 SD-B40
MU MU

Page 88


deastman
Typewritten Text

deastman
Typewritten Text
4A1


in order to compare the differentiations between the existing and proposed district, Staff
prepared comparison charts of the zoning districts & major changes in the 2007 and in the

2008 codes.
Issue Section
Determination that height should be measured from the crown of the road 90.2
Clarification of design review procedures for design review board 90.18
New requirements for development review 90.19 & 90.20
New standards of review for rezoning applications 90.35
Adding administrative variance procedure 90.36
Adding licensed therapeutic massage as a permitted use 90.41
Allowance of public schools as a permitted use in H30C and H40 districts 90.41
McMansion provisions 90.45
Amending the projection of balconies info setbacks 90.47
Adding setback requirements for mechanical equipment 90.47
New provision requiring the staggering of balconies 90.47
New provisions requiring pervious area 90.49
Allowance and regulation of roof decks 90.50
Allowance and regulation of portable storage units 90.53
Clarifying the intrusion into setbacks by uncovered patios and terraces 90.54
Restriction on height of fences in the front setback 90.56
Clarification of measurement of wall height from crown of road 90.56
New provisions requiring the articulation of ornamental walls 90.56
New provisions requiring weep holes at the base of ornamental walls 90.56
Allowance and regulation of temporary construction fences 90.56
Amending the length allowance of docks to thirty-five (35) feet 90.57

Page 89



Regulations on Carport Canopies 90.58

Boat Storage regulations 90.65
Modified parking for hotel accessory uses 90.77
Modified parking for municipal uses 90.77
Allowance and regulation of shared parking 90.81
New provisions requiring landscape buffers 90.95

Inclusion of Town's adopted Design Guidelines as Zoning Code Exhibit A Exhibit A

Page 90




rage 4

RS-1 (2007) H30-A (2008)
Permitted: Permitted:
+ Detached Single Family » Detached Single Family
+ Public parks and playgrounds | « Parks and Open Space
» Playgrounds
Permitted Accessory: Permitted Accassory:
Uses + Boat Docks » Boat Docks + Moorings
+ Game Courts » Game Courts
+ BBQ Grills + Home BBQ Grills
» Swimming Pools * Swimming Pools
¢ Domestic Storage
¢ Temporary Buildings
. Principal Building 30f 30 ft
Height
(Max) Accessory Not Specified 12 ft
Stories 2 Not Specified
Lot Width (Min) 50 ft 50 f
Lot Lot Area/dwelling (Min) 8,000 sq ft 8,000 sq ft
Lot Coverage (Max) 40% 40%
Minimum F| Area {(Min) 2,500 ft Not Specified
Primary 20 ft 20 ft
Interior side 5 ft 5t
Sethacks interior side for lots over
(Min) 50 ft in width 10% of frontage 10% of frontage
Rear 20 ft 20 ft
Secondary (corner only) 10 ft 10 ft
Pervious Area (Min) 0% 35%

Summary of changes:
« Height

o The 2007 code does not require a height limitation for accessory structures.
o The 2008 code provides a height limitation of 12 feet for accessory structures.

e Pervious Area

o The 2007 code does not reguire minimum pervious area.
o The 2008 code provides a minimum pervious area of 35%.

Page 91



Page b

RS-2 (2007)

H30-B (2008)

Permitted:
s Detached Single Family
» Public parks and Playgrounds

Permitted Accessory:

Permitted:

+ Detached Single Family
¢ Parks and Open Space
¢ Playgrounds

Permilted Accessory:

Uses « Boat Docks o Game Courts
» Game Couris + Home BBQ Grills
* BBQ Grills ¢ Swimming Pools
« Swimming Pools
+ Domestic Storage
¢ Temporary Buitdings
_ Principat Building 301t 30 ft
Height
(Max) Accessory Not Specified 12 ft
Stories 2 Not Specified
Lot Width (Min) 50 {t 50 ft
Lot Lot Area/dwelling (Min) 5600 sq ft 5,600 sq ft
Lot Coverage (Max) 40% 40%
Minimum FiI Area (Min) 1,800 it Not Specified
Primary 20 ft 201t
Interior side 5t 5 ft
Setbacks Interior side for lots over
(Min) 50 ft in width 10% of frontage 10% of frontage
Rear 20 ft 20 ft
Secondary (corner only) 10 ft 10 ft
Pervious Area (Min) 0% 35%

Summary of changes:
¢ Height

o The 2007 code does not require a height limitation for accessory structures.
o The 2008 code provides a height limitation of 12 feet for accessory structures.

s Pervious Area

o The 2007 code does not require minimum pervious area.
o The 2008 code provides a minimum pervious area of 35%.

Page 92



Fage &

RD-1 (2007)

H30C (2008)

Permitted: Permitted:
» Detached Single Family + Detached Single Family
s Public parks and playgrounds ¢+ Duplex
« Two Family Dwelling +  Multi-Dwelling Structure
o Multi-family building (Lots 75 feet or larger, | » Townhouse
east side of Harding Ave) « Hotel
» Suite-Hotel
s Public or Private Schools
+ Public Assembly
s Parks & Open Space
Uses +« Playgrounds
Permitted Accessory: Permitted Accessory:
s Boat Docks ¢ Game Courts
« Domestic Storage + Home BBQ Grills
¢« Game Couris ¢ Laundry/Service Rooms
o« BBQ Grills ¢ Recreational Rooms
¢ Swimming Pools ¢  Swimming Pools
+ Temporary Buildings +« Vending Machines
o Parking
Determination Single family Two-family Multi-Family | Zoning District
; Principal Building 30 ft 30 ft 30 ft 30 ft
Height
(M) Not Not Not
Accessory Specified Specified Specified 12 ft
Stories 2 2 2 Not Specified
Lot Width {Min) 50 ft 50 ft 75 ft 50 ft
Lot area/
Lot dwelling (Min) 5,000 sq ft 2,500 sq ft 2,500 sq ft Not Specified
Lot Coverage (Max} | Not Specified Not Specified | Not Specified | Not Specified
Minimum Fl Area
{Min) 1,800 sq ft 950 Sq ft Based on use | Not Specified
Primary 20 ft 20 ft 20 {t 20 ft
Interior side 5 ft 51t 7 ft 51t
Setbacks | Nterior side forfots | 40% of 10% of 10% of
(Min) over 50 ft in width frontage frontage frontage 10% of frontage
Rear 20 ft 20 ft 10 f 10 1t
Secondary
(corner only) 10 fi 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft
Pervious Area (Min) None None None 20%

Summary of changes:
o Uses

o The 2008 code allows for additional permitted uses including hotels and parking, however
parking was provided in the 2007 code with a Conditional Use Permit.

¢ Height

o The 2007 code utilizes use to determine height and other lot properties

o The 2008 code utilizes the zoning district to determine height and other iot properties
o The 2007 code does not require a height limitation for accessory structures.

o The 2008 code provides a height limitation of 12 feet for accessory structures.

« Pervious Area

o The 2007 code does not require minimum pervious area.
o The 2008 code provides a minimum pervious area of 20%.

Page 93



rage /

RD-2 (2007)

H30C (2008)

Permitted: Permitted:
¢ Detached Single Family ¢ Detached Single Family
+ Public parks and playgrounds + Duplex
+  Two Family Dwelling ¢ Muiti-Dwelling Structure
s Townhouse
* Hotel
» Suite-Hotel
» Public or Private Schools
¢ Public Assembly
» Parks & Open Space
Uses e Playgrounds
Permitted Accessory: Permitted Accessory:
» Boat Docks s Game Couris
» Domestic Storage +» Home BBQ Grills
» Game Couris s Laundry/Service Rooms
« BBQGrills + Recreational Rooms
+  Swimming Pools «  Swimming Pools
» Temporary Buildings ¢ Vending Machines
e Parking
Determination Single family Two-family Multi-Family | Zoning District
Height Principal Bidg 30 ft 30 ft 30 ft 30 ft
(Max) Not Not Not
Accessory Specified Specified Specified 12 ft
Stories 2 2 2 Not Specified
Lot Width (Min) 50 ft 50 ft 75ft 50 ft
Lot Area/dwelling (Min) | 5,000 Sq fi 2,500 Sq fi 1,200 Sq ft Not Specified
Lot Not Not Not _
Lot Coverage (Max) Specified Specified Specified Not Specified
Minimum F| Area (Min) | 1,800 Sq ft 950 Sq ft Based on use | Not Specified
Primary 20§t 20 ft 20 ft 20 ft
Interior side 5 ft 5 ft 71t S5t
Setbacks Interior side for lots 10% of 10% of 10% of
(Min) over 50 ft in width frontage frontage frontage 10% of frontage
Rear 10 ft 10t 10 ft 10 ft
Secondary
(corner only) 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft
Pervious Area {Min) None None None 20%

Summary of changes:
¢ Uses

o The 2008 code allows for additional permitted uses including hotels and parking, however
parking was provided in the 2007 code with a Conditional Use Permit.

¢+ Height

o The 2007 code utilizes use to determine height and other lot properties

o The 2008 code utilizes the zoning district to determine height and other lot properties .
o The 2007 code does not require a height limitation for accessory structures.

o The 2008 code provides a height limitation of 12 feet for accessory structures.

+ Pervious Area

o The 2007 code does not require minimum pervious area.
o The 2008 code provides a minimum pervious area of 20%.

Page 94




Page 8

RM-1 (2007)

H40 (2008)

Permitted:

Detached Single Family
Two Family Dwelling
Muitiple-family Dwellings
Motels

Suite-Motels

Permitted Accessory:

Permitted:

Detached Single Family
Duplex

Muiti-Dwelling Structure
Townhouse

Hotel

Suite-Hotel

Public or Private Schools
Parks & Open Space

Playgrounds

Permitted Accessory:

Uses « Boat Docks « Game Courts
» Domestic Storage ¢ Home BBQ grills
» Game Courts ¢ Laundry / Service Rooms
« BBQ Grills » Office Spaces
« Swimming Pools » Recreational Rooms
« Temporary Buildings « Swimming Paools
* Rental Bidg Admin Office » Vending Machines
¢ Lounges, card rooms, auxiliary kitchens ¢ Parking
« Laundry rooms
« Vending Machines
¢ Off-Street Parking & loading
¢ Swimming Pools, cabanas, game couris
single | Two Multi Hotelg | Widthis Width is Width is
Determination | family family Family Motel S 50 ft >50ft&<100ft | (100 ft
40 ft {Single | 40 ft(Single 40 ft(Single
family & two- | family & fwo- family & two-
Hei family family family
ght
(Max) s_trl._lctures are s_.trgctures are s_trt_tctures are
limited to 30 | limited to 30 limited to 30
Principal Bldg 30 ft 30 ft 40 ft 40 ft feet in height) | feet in height) feet in height)
Not Not Not Not
Accessory Specified | Specified | Specified | Specified | 12 ft 12 ft 12 ft
Stories 2 2 3 3 Not Specified Not Specified Not Specified
Lol Width {Min) 50 ft 50 ft 75 ft 100 # =50 ft >50ft8& <1008t | {100t
Lot area/
dwelling {(Min) 5,0008qft | 2,5008qf | 7508qit 400 Sq ft Not Speciffed Not Specified Not Specified
Lot Lol Goverage Not Not Not Not
{Max) Specified | Specified Specified Specified Not Specified Not Specified Not Specified
Minimum Ft Area Basedon | Basedon
{Min} 1,800 sqft | 950 Sqft use Use Not Specified Not Specified Not Specified
Primary 20 ft 201t 20ft 20 ft 20 ft 20 ft 20 it
Interior side 5ft 5 f 71 7 ft 51 7t 7 ft
Interior side for
Setbacks | [ots over 50 ftin |} 10% of 10% of 10% of 10% of 10% of 10% of 10% of
(Min) width frontage | frontage | fronlage | frontage | frontage frontage frontage
Rear 10 ft 10#t 10ft 20 ft 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft
Secondary
{corner only) 10 ft 10ft 10ft 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft
Not Not Not Not
Pervious Area (Min) Specified | Specified | Spscified | Specified | 20% 20% 20%

Summary of changes:
o Uses

o The 2008 code removed motels and replaced them with hotels.

¢ Height

o The 2007 code utilizes use to determine height and other lot properties

o The 2008 code ulilizes lot width to determine height and other lot properties
2007 code does not require a height limitation for accessory structures.
2008 code provides a height limitation of 12 feet for accessory structures.

Page §




Page 9
o Pervious Area
o The 2007 code does not require minimum pervious area.
o The 2008 code requires a minimurm pervious area of 20%.

Page 96



Fage 1U

RT-1(2007)

H120 (2008)

Permitted:; Permilted:
» Detached Single Family ¢ Detached Single Family
« Multiple-family dwellings ¢ Duplex
» Motels ¢ Multi-Dwelling Structure
» Suite-motels + Townhouse
+ Hotels + Hotel
» Suite-hotels ¢ Suite-Hotel
« Parks and Open Space
« Playgrounds
Uses
Permitted Accassory: Permitted Accessory.
¢ Swimming Pools + Game Courts
+ Off-street parking and loading + Home BBQ grills
facilities « Laundry / Service Rooms
» Office Spaces
¢ Recreational Rooms
¢ Swimming Pools
* Vending Machines
Determination Muiti-Family Hotel and Motel | Zoning District
Height Principal Bldg 120 ft 120 ft 120 ft
(Max) Accessory Not Specified | Not Specified | 12 ft
Stories 12 12 Not Specified
| Lot Width (Min) 100 ft 150 ft 50 ft
Lot Lot area / dwelling {Min) [ 400 Sq ft Not Specified Based on use
Lot Coverage {Max) None None None
Minimum £l Area (Min) Based on use Based on use Not Specified
Primary 40 ft 40 ft 40 ft
Setbacks Interior side 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft
(Min)
Rear 30t 30 ft 30 ft
Secondary {corner only) | 20 ft 20 ft 20 ft
Pervious Area (Min) Not Specified Not Specified Not Specified

Summary of changes:
¢ Uses

o The 2008 code no longer permits motels or suite-motels

o Height

o The 2007 code utilizes use to determine height and other lot properties

o The 2008 code utilizes zoning district to determine height and other lot properties
o The 2007 code does not require a height limitation for accessory structures.

o The 2008 code provides a height limitation of 12 feet for accessory structures.

¢ Lot

c

o The 2008 code requires a minimum lot width of 50 ft.

Page 97

The 2007 code requires minimum lot widths of 100 ft and 150 ft.




Page 11

B-1 (2007) SD-B40 (2008)
Permitted: Permitted {Cont.): Permitted: Permitted {Cont.):
Antigue Shops Hardware, paint & wallpaper Antique Shops Hardware, paint & wallpaper
Appliances Interior decorator Appliances Interior decorator
Art and photograph Jewelry Art and photograph galleries  Jewelry
galleries Liquor Stores Art Dealers Liguor Stores
Art Dealers Locksmith Art Supplies Locksmith
Art Supplies Luggage Bakeries Luggage
Bakeries Men's, women’s, children’s Banks Men's, women's, children’s
Banks clothing Barbershops clotiing
Barbershops Millinery Beauty Parlors Millinery
Beauty Parslors Office machines and supplies Books and newspaper Office machines and supplies
Books and newspaper Business & Professional
Business & Professional Pet supplies offices, excep! veterinary Pet supplies
offices, except veterinary Photegraphers and camera offices Photographers and camera
offices slores Candy & Nut Shops stores
Candy & Nut Shops Caterers
Caterers Pottery Cigars & tobacco Pottery
Cigars & tobacco Restaurants Coin-operated machines Restaurants
Coin-operated machines Sale of televisions, radios, Confectionary and ice cream  Sale of televisions, radios,
Confectionary and ice phonograph and recording slores phonograph and recording
cream stores equipment Currency exchange equipment
Currency exchange Savings and loan associales Dglicatessens Savings and loan associates
Delicatessens Sheet music and musical Department Stores Sheet music and musical
Department Stores instruments Drug stores & sundries instruments
Drug stores & sundries Shoe Repair Dry cleaning & laundry Shoe Repair
Uses Dry cleaning & laundry Shoes agency Shoes
agency Sporting goods Dry Gooeds Sporting goods
Dry Goods Stationery & greeting cards Flowers & planis Stationery & greeting cards
Flowers & plants Stocks & bond brokers Fruit Shops Stocks & bond brokers
Fruit Shops Tailor Furniture Tailor
Furniture Telegraph station Furrier Telegraph station
Furrier Telephone exchange General Ticket Agencies Telephone exchange
General Ticket Agencies Toys Gift Shops Toys
Gift Shops Travetl agency Grocery& meat stores or Travel agency
Grocery& meat stores or Video {apes sales & rentals supermarkets Video tapes sales & rentals
supermarkets
Permitted Use (Above 1% floor Only): Permitted Use (Above 1°* floor Only):
Places of public assembly Places of public assembly
Dance or music instruction studios Dance or music instruction studios
Delivery service Delivery service
Driving school offices Driving school offices
Employment agencies Employment agencies
Heaith Studio or Club Health Studio or Ciub
Loan or mortgage office Lean or mortgage office
Medical or dental clinic Medical or dental clinic
Modeling school, language school, or athletic instruction | Modeling school, language school, or athlefic instruction
Radio or television station or studio Radio or television station or studio
Secretarial service, mailing, bookkeeping, court reporter | Secretarial service, mailing, bookkeeping, court reporter
Taxi agency Taxi agency
Title company Tille company
Heiaht Principal Bldg 40 ft 40 ft
(Ma% Accessory Not Specified 121t
Stories 3 Not Specified
Lot Width (Min) O ft 0 ft
Lot Lot Area/ dwelling (Min) Not Specified Not Specified
Lot Coverage (Max) Not Specified Not Specified
Minimum F1 Area (Min) Not Specified Not Specified
Primary oft 0ft
Setbacks | Interior side Oft Oft
(Min) Rear O ft 0 ft
Secondary (corner only) Oft Oft
Pervious Area (Min) Not Specified Not Specified

Summary of changes:
¢+ Uses — No changes proposed
¢ Height
o The 2007 code does not require a height limitation for accessory structures.
o The 2008 code provides a height limitation of 12 feet for accessory structures.

Page 98




RESOLUTION 10-_P&<£ 01-10

A RESOLUTION OF THE LOCAL PLANNING
AGENCY OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE,
FLORIDA, RECOMMENDING TO THE TOWN
COMMISSION THE ORDINANCE REPEALING
AND REPLACING CHAPTER 90, ENTITLED
“ZONING” IN ITS ENTIRETY; ADOPTING A
NEW CHAPTER 90 ENTITLED “ZONING”
INCLUDING ADOPTION OF AN OFFICIAL
TOWN ZONING MAP FOR ALL DISTRICTS;
PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING
PROVISIONS; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION
IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE,

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside (the “Town™) has been updating and
streamlining its Zoning Code and had amended its official Zoning Map to better
teflect the Town's future needs and community vision; and

WHERIEAS, this Ordinance purports to repeal and replace Chapter 90
“Zoning” in its entirety, including bat not limited to, Ordinance 08-1491, all
subsequent amendments thereto, up through and including the date of this Ordinance
(and including but not imited (o 08-1504, 08-1505, 09-1510, 09-1514, 09-1515, 05-
1520, 09-1523, 09-1524; 09-1526; 09-1528, 09-1529; 09-1532; 09-1539; 09-1542;
10-1545;10-1549;10-1550; 10-1551 and 10-1552) as well as the official Zoning Map,
as may have been amended from time to time, all of which is incorporated into the
revised Zoning Code attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board has had numerous public hearings on
this amended code section; and

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has passed this Ordinance on first reading On

July 28, 2010; and

Page 99


deastman
Typewritten Text
P&Z 01-10


WHEREAS, Section 163.3174 (4) (¢), Florida Statutes requires that the Town's local
planning agency review all proposed changes to land development regulations and make
a recommendation to the Town Commission; and

WHEREAS, Scction 90.17 establishes the Plauning and Zoning Board as the Local

Planning Agency.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:
Section 1, The ordinance repealing and replacing Chapter 90 as set forth in Exhibit “A”
be, and the same, is hereby recommended for adoption by the Town Comunission and the
L.PA finds it is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the Town of Surfside.

Section 2, This resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 29th day of July, 2010.

Coadut Toon—

Scarlet Tenen, Chairperson

ATTEST:

/Q/(/é&@{——' 2 Ajgw‘»’"‘/
Debra E. Eastman, MMC
Town Clerk

Approved as to fox m and legalxty for the use

Lynn M Dam
Town Attorney

Page 100



ORDINANCE NO.,
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA
AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING” OF THE CODE OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA BY REPEALING AND REPLACING
CHAPTER 90 ENTITLED “ZONING” IN ITS ENTIRETY;
ADOPTING A NEW CHAPTER 90 ENTITLED “ZONING”
INCLUDING ADOPTION OF AN OFFICIAL TOWN
ZONING MAP FOR ALL DISTRICTS; PROVIDING FOR
REPEAL OF CONFLICTING PROVISIONS; PROVIDING
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN
THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside (the “Town”) has been updating and streamlining its
Zoning Code and had amended its official Zoning Map to better reflect the Town’s future needs
and community vision; and

WHEREAS, this Ordinance purports to repeal and replace Chapter 90 “Zoning” in its
entirety, including but not limited to, Ordinance 08-1491, all subsequent amendments thereto, up
through and including the date of this Ordinance (and including but not limited to 08-1504, 08-
1505, 09-1510, 09-1514, 09-1515, 09-1520, 09-1523, 09-1524; 09-1526; 09-1528, 09-1529; 09-
1532; 09-1539; 09-1542; 10-1545;10-1549;10-1550; 10-1551 and 10-1552) as well as the
official Zoning Map, as may have been amended from time to time, all of which is incorporated
into the revised Zoning Code attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and

WHEREAS, after the prior intended adoption on May 13, 2008 as well as the hearings
for each amendment thereto since 2008, and after conducting a properly noticed public hearing
on June 24, 2008, the Local Planning Agency pursuant to Section 163.3174 (4) (c) has
determined that the aforementioned Zoning Code, Official Zoning Map, and all updates thereto
contained attached as Exhibit “A” are consistent with the Town Comprehensive Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has reviewed this Ordinance at duly noticed and

held public hearings beginning June 8, 2010 and determined that it is consistent with the Town’s

Page 101



comprehensive plan, the continuing development of the vision of the Town, as well as all
requirements of the law; and

WHEREAS, all of the recitals contained in Ord. 08-1491 are hereby incorporated into
and fully adopted as part of this ordinance and the zoning code adopted herein.

WHEREAS, the Town Commission hereby finds and declares that adoption of this
Ordinance is necessary, appropriate, and advances the public interest as well as promotes the
public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town of Surfside.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals, Each of the above stated recitals are true and correct and are

incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. Adoption of the Zoning Code.

A. The Town Commission hereby repeals the existing Chapter 90 “Zoning” of the
Town Code (including Division I Signs) and replaces it with the Zoning Code,
the Official Zoning Map, together with all amendments to the Zoning Code
adopted since May 13, 2008 attached hereto as composite Exhibit “A” and
incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

B. Tt is the not the intent of this Ordinance to increase existing heights, densities
or intensities in any manner whatsoever. Accordingly, regardless of the
measurements, computations or considerations, the density, intensity and
height of development and structures within the Town of Surfside shall not
exceed the maximum allowable floor areas, maximum allowable floor area

ratios or the maximum allowable building heights that are set out in the Town

Page 102



of Surfside Comprehensive Plan or the Code of the Town of Surfside,
whichever provisions are most restrictive, which were in effect on the date
that this amendment was adopted by the electorate in 2004 and to the extent it
was further implemented by the Zoning Code previously in effect in 2007,

Section 3. Repeal of Conflicting Provisions.

All provisions of the Code of the Town of Surfside and any prior Official Zoning Maps
that are in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed.

Section 4, Severability, The provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable

and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be
invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections,
sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance but they shall remain in effect, it being the
legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand notwithstanding the invalidity of any part. It
should be noted Section 90-71 et. seq. of the Code contains its own severability clauses with
respect to “Division 11 Signs” and these severability provisions with respect to Signs shall govern
over this general severability clause if any section of the Code between Section 90.71 through
90.80 is held invalid or unconstitutional.

Section 5. Inclusion in the Code. It is the intention of the Town Commission, and it is

hereby ordained that the provision of this Ordinance shall become and made part of the Town of
Surfside, Florida, Code of Ordinances; that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or
re-lettered to accomplish such intentions; and that the word “Ordinance” shall be changed to
“Section” or other appropriate word.

Section 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be retroactive to May 13, 2008 upon

adoption on second reading.

Page 103



PASSED and ADOPTED on First Reading the 8th day of June, 2010.

PASSED and ADOPTED on Second Reading this day of , 2010,
Daniel Dietch, Mayor

Attest:

Deborah Eastman

Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

Lyntd/ M. Dannheisser, Town Attorney
Moved by:
Second by:
Yote:
Mayor Dietch yes no
Vice Mayor Graubart yes no
Commissioner Karukin ~ yes no
Commissioner Kopelman  yes no
Commissioner Olchyck  yes no

Page 104



deastman
Typewritten Text

deastman
Typewritten Text
8th


Chapter 90 ZONING* { QLD T own Code Page 1 of 2

Chapter 90 ZONING*

*Cross references: Buildings and building regulations, ch. 14; floods, ch. 42.

State law references: Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development
Regulation Act, F.S. § 163.3161 et seq.

Agticle 1. In General
Sec. 90-1. General rules of construction.
Sec, 90-2. Definitions.
Sec. 90-3. Penalty for violation.
Sec. 90-4. Policy and objeclives.
Sec. 90-5. interpretation, purpose, and conflict.
Sec. 90-6. Compliance with regulations.
Sec. 90-7. One building on a lot.
Sec. 90-8. Minimum lot area.
Sec. 90-9. Recorded restrictions,
Sec. 80-10. Encroachment; reduction of lot area,
Saec. 90-11. Accessory buildings, prior construction,
Sec, 90-12. Buildings under construction.
Sec. 90-13. Outstanding permits.
Sec. 90-14. Relationship to the comprehensive plan.
Sec. 90-15. Projections info required yard areas.
Sec. 90-16. Provision for storm drainage.
Secs. 90-17-90-35. Reserved.

Article 11. Administration and Enforcement

Division 1. Generally
Sec. 90-36. Comprehensive plan.
Sec. 80-37. Permits, plats and filing fees.
Sec. 90-38. Site plan.
Sec. 90-39, Certificate of occupancy.
Sec. 90-40. Changes and amendments.
Sec. 90-41. Conditional uses.
Secs. 90-42--90-50. Reserved.
Division 2. Planning and Zoning Board

Sec. 80-51. Created.

Sec 90- 53 Offlcers.

Sec. 90-54. Recommendations.

Sec 90 56 Expandltures, indebtedness,

Sec. 90-57. General regulations governing members.

Sec. 90-58. Applications for zoning changes; rulgs of procedure,

Sec. 80-59. Review of building permits.,

Sec. 90-60, Special meeling or speciat public heating,

Secs. 90-61-90-70. Reserved. .
Division 3. Nonconforming Uses, Lots and Struclures

Sec. 90-71. Nonconforming lots.

Sec. 90-72. Nonconforming use of land.

Sgc. 90-73, Nonconforming use of buildings.

Sec. 90-74. Disconlinuance of nonconforming uses.

Sec. 80-74.1. Discontinuance of nopconforming structure,

Sec. 90-75. Destruction of a nonconforming use.

Sec. B0-76. Existence of nongonforming use.

Sec. 90-77. Buildings nonconforming in helght, area or buik.

Sec. 90-78. Nonconforming uses not validated.

Secs. 90-79—-80-90. Reserved.
Division 4. Special Exceptions, Special Use Permits and Variances

Sec. 90-91, Variances,

Sec. 90-92. Special exceptions.

Page 105
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140 6/19/2006


deastman
Typewritten Text
OLD Town Code


Chapter 90 ZONING*

Sec. 90-93. { apse of special exception or variance,
Sec. 90-94. Special use permits.
Secs. 90-95-9-99, Reserved.

Divisfon 5. Proposed Amendments

Page 2 of 2

Sec. 90-100. Proposed land development regulation amendments and proposed comprehensive plan amendments;

application of equitable estoppel to permits and approvals.
Secs. 90-101--80-120. Reserved.

Article Ill, Zoning Districts Established; Zoning Map
Sec. 80-121. Districts established.
Sec, 80-122. |dentification of district maps.
Sec. 80-123. Interpretation of district houndaries.
Secs, 90-124-90-144. Reserved.

Arlicle IV. District Regulations
Sec. 90-145. RS single-family residential district.
Sec. 90-146. RS-1 and RS-2 single-family residential districts.
Sec, 90-147. RD-1 fwo-family residential diskrict.
Sec. 90-148. RD-2 two-story mulliple family residentiai district.
Sec, 90-149. RM-1 multiple-family residential district.
Sec. 90-150. Reserved.
Sec, 90-151. RT-1 tourist district.
Sec. 90-152, B-1 business district.
Sec. 90-153. NCS-0 neighborhood commergial services overlay district,
Sec. 80-154, MU municipal use district.
Sec. 90-155, District regulations tables.
Secs. 90-156--90-175. Reserved.

Article V. Supplementary Regulations

Division 1. Generally

Sec, 90-176. Modifications of height regulations.
Sec, 90-177. Yards generally, allowable projections.

Sec. 90-178. Modification of front yard regulafions.

Sec. 90-179. Modification of side and rear yard regulations.
Sec. 90-180. Maximum frontage and depth of buildings.

Sec. 90-181. Vision clearance.

Sec. 90-182. Accessory buildings and structures.
Sec. 80-183. Fences, walls and hedges.

Sec. 90-187. Construction adjacent to bulkhead lines,

Sec. 90-188. Paving front yards in single-family and two-family districts.
Sec. 90-189. Outdoor lighting.

Sec. 90-190. Miscellaneous elevations for seawalls, and groins,

Sec. 90-191. Combined lots.

Sec. 90-192, Boat storage.

Sec. 90-193. Temporary storage of campers and house traiters.
Sec. 90-194. Landscaping requiremsnis.

Sec. 80-195. Prohibited plants, frees, weeds, shrubs and vegstation.
Sacs, 90-196--80-205. Reserved.
Division 2. Signs
Sec. 80-206. General and miscellaneous provisions.
Seac. 90-207. Prohihited signs.

Sec. 90-208. Temporary signs.
Sec. 90-209. Signs permitted within specific districts.
Sec. 80-210. Sign construction and illumination.
Sec. 90-211. Nonconforming signs.
Sec. 90-212. Sign permits.
Secs. 90-213-90-225, Reserved.

Division 3. Off-Street Parking
Sec, 90-228, Off-street parking requirements.
Sec. 90-227. Interpretation of these requirements.
Sec, 90-228. Restricted and prohibifed parking.
Sec, 90-229, Joint use and off-site faclilities,
Sec. 90-230. Design standards.
Secs. 90-231-90-240. Reserved.

Division 4. Off-Strest Loading
Sec. 90-241. Off-strest loading requirements.
Seac. 90-242, Interpretation of the chart.

Sec. 90-243. Design standards.
Page 106

http://library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140

6/19/2006



ARTICLE I IN GENERA[(' o Page 1 of 12

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL

Sec. 90-1. General rules of construction.

The following general rules of construction shall apply to the regulations contained in this
chapter:

(1) The singular number includes the piural and the plural the singular, unless the
context clearly indicates the contrary.

(2) Words used in the present tense include the past and future tenses, and the future
the present.

(3) The word "shall" is always mandatory. The word "may” is permissive.

(4) The words "building" or "structure" are synonymous or interchangeable and inciude
any part thereof.

(5) The word "lot" includes the word "plot” or "parcel” or "tract” or "site."

(6) The words "used" or "occupied" include the words "intended,” "designed” or
"arranged" to be used or occupied.

(7) The words "required yards" or "minimum required yards" and "minimum yards"
include the word "setback."

(8) Words and terms not defined herein shall be interpreted in accordance with their
normal dictionary meaning and customary usage.

(Code 1960, § 18-2)

Sec. 90-2. Definitions.

For the purpose of this chapter, certain terms and words are hereby defined. For convenience,
ali defined words and terms are set out in different type.

(1) Accessory building means a detached subordinate building or a portion thereof, the
use of which is incidental to and customary in connection with the main building or use
and which is located on the same lot with such main building or use. Where there is no
main building on the lot, an accessory building shall be considered as a main building for
the purposes of the height, area and bulk regulations.

(2) Accessory use means a subordinate use which is incidental to and customary in
connection with the main building or use and which is located on the same lot with such
main building use.

(3) Alley means a pubiic or private thoroughfare which affords only a secondary means
of access to abutting property.

a. FEstablished alley. One which remains under private ownership with the
incidence and responsibility of maintenance, payment of ad valorem taxes, and
liability for tort; but, without the right of improvements thereon other than paving.

b. Dedicated afley. One which is used generally by the public and dedicated by
deed or platting to such public use. It is not subject to ad valorem taxation; and, it
is maintained by the town, Metropolitan Dade County, or by the state.

Page 107
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/141 6/19/2006



ARTICLE L. IN GENERAI(» o Page 2 of 12

(4) Apartment means a rcom, or group of rooms, occupied or intended to be occupied
as separate living quarters by one family and containing independent cooking and
sleeping facilities. {This term shall include a condominium.) The existence of cooking
facilities within a room or group of rooms shall be deemed sufficient to classify such
room or group of rooms as an apartment.

(5) Reserved.

(6) Awning means a detachable, rooflike cloth cover, supported from the walls of a
huilding for protection from the sun or weather.

(7) Bar means a public establishment licensed by the state which is devoted to the
selling or the dispensing and drinking of alcoholic beverages on the premises.

(8) Basement means that portion of a building between floor and ceiling which has at
least one-half of its height below the grade of the street on which it fronts. The height of
a basement above grade shall not exceed one-half of the average height of a story in the
building.

(9) Breezeway means a covered passageway or space between the main building and
an accessory building, open on two sides and the roof of which is structurally integrated
with the buildings it separates.

(10) Building means any structure having a roof supported by columns or walls for the
shelter or enclosure of persons or property.

(11) Building area means the area within the confines of the exterior walls of the main
buitding, accessory buildings, covered porches and terraces.

(12) Building, completely enclosed, means a building having no outside openings,
other than doors, windows, and ventilators.

(13) Building, height of, means the vertical distance from the grade to the highest point
of the structure.

(14) Building, main, means a building in which the principal use of the lot on which it is
located is conducted, or is intended to be conducted.

(15) Bulk is a term used in these regulations to describe the size {(and shape) of a
building or structure and its relationship to other buildings, to the lot area for a building,
and to open spaces and yards.

(16) Cabana means a permanent or portable bath cabin on the exterior of a residence,
hotel or apartment house, together with only such accessories as wood slat walks or
decks, terraces, rubbing rooms and toilet facilities, but not intended for sleeping or living
quarters. Cabanas erected on the exterior may be of pipe frame and canvas, wood
frame and masonite and be constructed in such a manner that they are portable and
easily dismantled in the event of a hurricane. Cabanas of any other type shall be built of
masonry. Cabanas shall be permitted only in conjunction with an outdoor swimming
pool.

(17) Canopy means a detachable, rooflike cover, made of cloth, metal, plastic or other
permanent material supported from the ground or deck or floor of a building, and from
the walls of a building for protection from sun or weather.

(18) Carport means a roofed and usually wall-less shed projecting from the side of a
building, used as a shelter for automobiles.

{(19) Clinic means an establishment where patients are not lodged overnight, but are
admitted for examination and treatment by a group of physicians or dentists practicing
medicine together. The term does not include a place for the treatment of animals.

Page 108
http://library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140/141 6/19/2006



ARTICLE L. IN GENERA% oo Page 3 of 12

(20) Club, private, means a building and facilities or premises, owned and operated by
a corporation, assoclation, person or persons for social, educational, or recreational
purposes, but not primarily for profit and not primarily to render a service which is
customarily carried on as a business. A private club may include the normal accessory
uses such as tennis courts, cabanas and parking spaces.

(21) Conditional use means any use listed in section 90-41 as a conditional use which
would not be appropriate generally or without restriction throughout a particular zoning
district, but would be appropriate if controlied as to number, area, location, or relation to
the neighborhood.

(22) District means any section of the town within which the zoning regulations are
uniform. (See district map.)

(23) Dwelling means a building or portion thereof, designed or used exclusively for
residential occupancy.

(24) Dwelling, single-family, means a building designed for or occupied exclusively by
one family.

(25) Dwelling, two-family (duplex}, means a building designed for or occupied
exclusively by two families.

(26) Dwelling, multiple-family, means a building designed for or occupied by three or
more families.

(27) Dwelling unit means a room, or group of rooms, occupied or intended to be
occupied as separate living quarters by a single family.

(28) Family means an individual or two or more persons related by blood or marriage
or a group of not more than three unrelated persons {excluding servants) living together
as a single housekeeping unit in a dweliing,

(29) Fence means a structure forming a physical barrier which is so consiructed that
no less than 50 percent of the vertical surface is open to permit the transmission of light,
air and vision through such surface in a horizontal plane.

(30) Filling station means any building, structure, or land used for the sale at retail of
motor vehicles fuels, oils, or accessories, or for the servicing or repairing of minor parts
and accessories, but not including major repair work such as motor repiacement, body
and fender repair, or spray painting, and excluding public garages.

(31) Floor area means the sum of the gross horizontal areas of the several floors of a
building or buildings, measured from the exterior faces of exterior walls or from the
centerline of walls separating two attached buildings.

a. In particular, floor area includes:

1. Basement space used for retailing shall be included for the purposes
of calculating requirements for accessory off-street parking spaces and
accessory off-street loading berths.

2. Elevator shafts or stairwells at each floor.
3. Floor space used for mechanical equipment,
4. Floor space in penthouses.

5. Attic floor space (whether or not a floor has been laid) providing
structural headroom of seven feet six inches or more,

6. Floor space in interior balconies or interior mezzanines,

Page 109
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/141 6/19/2006



ARTICLE L. IN GENERA{‘ ‘ - Page 4 of 12

7. Floor space in porches and pools enclosed with plastic, glass or
permanent type of material.

8. Any floor space used for residential use, no matter where located
within the building.

b. However, the floor area of a building shall not include:
1. Basement space when used for parking of vehicles.
2. Accessory water tanks or cooling towers.
3. Uncovered steps and exterior balconies.
4. Terraces, patios, breezeways, or open porches.

(32) Floor area ratio means the fioor area of a building or buildings on any lot divided
by the area of the lot. :

(33) Frontage, street, means the distance along a street line from one intersecting
street to another or from one intersecting street to the end of a dead-end street.

(34) Frontage, lot, means the distance for which the front lot line and street line are
coincident.

(35) Garage, parking, means a building or portion thereof designed or used for the
temporary storage of motor-driven vehicles.

(36) Garage, private, means an accessory building, not exceeding 900 square feet in
floor area, designed or used for the storage of not more than four automobiles.

(37) Grade means the average datum or elevation of the crown of the pavement upon
the street serving the lot or building site.

(38) Helistop means an area of land, water or structure or portion thereof used or
intended to be used for the landing and takeoff of helicopters providing no facilities for
service or basing of such aircraft are permitted.

(39) Hotel means a building in which lodging is provided and offered, including all
utilities and housekeeping services, to the general public for compensation, with or
without meals, excluding accommodations for employees, and in which ingress and
egress to and from all rooms is made through an inside lobby supervised by a person in
charge at all times. ,

a. Hotel room includes motel room and means a room or group of rooms in a
hotel intended for rental to transients and not intended for use or used as a
permanent dwelling. Each hotel room shall have a private bath attached thereto,
but no cooking facilities therein. The existence of separate utility meters serving
any room or group of rooms shall be deemed sufficient to classify such room or
group of rooms as an apartment.

(40) Indian Creek bulkhead line means the bulkhead line as defined in section 14-101.

(41) Loading space means a space within the main building or on the same fot
providing for the standing, ioading, or unloading of trucks. '

(42) Lot means a parcel of land occupied or which may be hereafter occupied by a
building and its accessory buildings, together with such open spaces and parking spaces
or area as are required under this article and having its principal frontage upon an
officially approved street or place.

(43) Lot area means the total horizontal area within the lot lines of the lot. In
determining usable lot area in the RT-1 district, it shall be from the west lot line fo the

Page 110
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/141 6/19/2006



ARTICLE 1. IN GENERAI{ ; Page 5 of 12

bulkhead line and the north lot line shall be the north boundary and the south lot line
shall be the south boundary.

(44) Lot, corner, means a lot abutting upon two or more streets at their intersection.

(45) Lot coverage means the percentage of the total area of a lot that, when viewed
from above, would be covered by all principal and accessory buildings and structures, or
portions thereof; provided however that allowable encroachments, as described under
"loor area,” shall not be included in determining the building area.

(46) Lot, depth of, means the average horizontal distance between the front and rear
lot lines, except where a lot rears upon the ocean, Indian Creek or other established
waterway; then the depth of the lot shall be the average horizontal distance between the
front lot line and the established bulkhead line along the waterway.

(47) Lot, front, shall be construed to be the portion nearest the street. For corner lots,
the lot front shall be the narrowest portion abutting the street unless otherwise
determined by the town manager.

(48) Lot, interior, means a lot other than a corner lot.

(49) Lot of record means a lot which is part of a subdivision, the map of which has
been recorded in the office of the clerk of the circuit court of the county; or a parcel of
land which became legally established and defined by a deed or act of sale.

(50) Lof, through (double-frontage), means a lot having a frontage on two parallel or
approximately parallel streets or piaces.

(61) Lot width means the horizontal distance between the side lot lines measured at
the required front yard line and paraltel to the front street line, or measured at the street
line if no front yard is required.

(52) Motel or motor inn means a building in which lodging is provided and offered to
the public, including all utilities and housekeeping services, for compensation. As such, it
is the same as a hotel, except that the building is usually designed to serve transients
travelling by automobile and parking is usually adjacent to the room. Ingress and egress
to rooms need not be made through an inside lobby, but there shall be an office
supervised by a person in charge at all times. A motel shall be located only upon lots,
fracts or parcels, in common ownership, having a continuous width of not less than 100
feet. No motel shall contain a bar or cocktail lounge or any facilities for providing
services or selling commodities; however, a motel may contain a coffee shop/dining
room for use solely by guests of the motel.

(53) Nonconforming lot means a lot which had a separate existence prior to the
enactment of these zoning regulations, or any amendment thereto, which requires a
larger area, frontage, width or depth than that which existed prior to such enactment.

(54) Nonconforming sfructure means a structure which lawfully existed prior to the
enactment of these regulations or any amendment thereto, which does not comply with
the restrictions as to size, nature of construction, location of the structure on the land, or
location of the structure in proximity to other buildings required by the regulations
adopted subsequent to its construction, and which is continuously maintained after the
effective date of such regulations or amendment thereto.

(55) Nonconforming use means a use of land and/or buildings which lawfully existed
prior to the enactment of these regulations or any amendment thereto, which does not
comply with the use restrictions applicable to the district in which it is situated, and which
is continuously maintained after the effective date of such regulations or amendment
thereto.

(56) Ocean bulkhead line means that bulkhead line as defined in section 14-86.

Page 111
http://library3. municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/141 6/19/2006



ARTICLE L. IN GENERAL{ : Page 6 of 12

(67) Parking lot means an open, unoccupied area of land used or required for use for
parking automobiles exclusively and in which no gasoline, oil, services, washracks or
accessories are sold or no other business conducted.

(58) Parking space, off-street, means a paved area not in the street or alley and having
an area of not less than nine feet by 20 feet, exclusive of driveways, permanently
reserved for the temporary storage of one vehicle and connected with a street or alley by
a paved driveway which affords ingress and egress for an automobile without requiring
another automobile to be moved.

(59) Regulations means the whole body of regulations, text, charts, tables, diagrams,
maps, notations, references and symbols, contained or referred to in this chapter.

(60} Restaurant means an establishment maintained and operated as a place where
food is regularly prepared, served or sold for immediate consumption on or about the
premises and every establishment preparing food to be called for, delivered to or taken
out by customers.

(61) Servant's quarters means living quarters within a portion of a main building or in
an accessory building located on the same ot with the main building, used for servants
employed on the premises and not rented as a separate dwelling.

(62) Setback means the minimum distance required by section 90-165 that all
structures shall be from front, side and rear lot lines.

(63) Show window or display window means an area enclosed on one or more sides
by glass, adjacent to the public right-of-way, for the purposes of displaying signs and
merchandise to the public. Where transparent glass constitutes part of a front or side of
a building adjacent to the public right-of-way, all areas within five feet of such glass shall
constitute a show window.

(64) Sign means an identification, description, illustration, or device which is affixed to
or represented directly or indirectly upon land or a building or structure or object and
which directs attention to a place, activity, product, person, institution, or business.

(65) Sign area means that area within a line, including the outer extremities of letters,
symbols, trademarks, design, figures, illustrations or ornamentations, or within a line
including the outer extremities of the framework or related background area on which
any such characters, letters, symbols, trademarks, design, figures, illustrations, or
ornamentations are supported or applied, whichever line includes the larger area. The
support for the sign background, whether it be columns, a pylon, or a building or a part
thereof, shall not be included in the sign area. Only one side of a double-faced sign shall
be included in a computation of sign area.

(66) Sign, awning means any sign painted, stamped, perforated or stitched on an
awning, canopy, roller curtain or umbrella.

(67) Sign, banner, means any sign having characters, letters, illustrations or
ornamentations applied to cloth, paper or fabric.

(68) Sign, construction, means a temporary sign which is located at a construction site
and which lists the name of the project, developer, architect, engineer, contractor,
subcontractor and sales information.

(69) Sign, detached, means a sign affixed to the ground, no part of which is attached
to or on a building. A sign attached to a flat surface such as a fence or wall not part of
the building shall be considered a detached sign.

(70) Sign, double-faced, means a sign with two parallel, or nearly parallel faces, back-
to-back and located not more than 24 inches from each other.

Page 112
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/ 140/141 6/19/2006



ARTICLEL IN GENERAI( , Page 7 of 12

(71) Sign, flashing, means an illuminated sign on which the artificial or reflected light is
not maintained stationary and constant in intensity and color at all times when in use.
Any revolving illuminated sign shall be considered a flashing sign for the purpose of
these regulations.

(72) Sign, flaf, means any sign attached to, and erected parallel to the face of, or
erected or painted on the outside wall of a building and supported throughout its length
by such wall or building and not extending more than 12 inches from the building wall.

(73) Sign, illuminated, means any sign designed to give forth artificial light or designed
to reflect light from one or more sources of artificial light erected for the purpose of
providing light for the sign.

(74) Sign, pole, means a sign supported by one or more poles and which is wholly or
partially independent of a building. Pole shall include post, column, pyramid or other
extension from ground level, regardless of the material from which made.

(75) Sign, pylon, means a freestanding sign permanently affixed to the ground without
the need of posts andfor poles, with a maximum overall height not fo exceed five feet
above grade.

(76) Sign, roof, means any sign which is fastened to or supported by or on the roof of a
building. "Roof sign" shall include any which projects above the roofline or parapet wall
of a building.

(77) Site plan means a drawing iliustrating a proposed development of a lot or tract, in
accordance with the specifications and requirements set forth in section 90-38.

(78) Story means that portion of a building other than a basement, included between
the surface of any floor and the surface of the floor next above it; or, if there be no floor
next above it, then the space between such floor and ceiling next above it.

(79) Street means a public thoroughfare which affords the principal means of access to
abutting property.

(80) Streetline means a dividing line between a lot and the adjacent strest.

(81) Structure means anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires
permanent location on the ground or attached to something having a permanent location
on the ground; including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, signs,
backstop for tennis courts, swimming pools, fences, screen enclosures, and pergolas.

(82) Structural alterations means any change that would change the shape or size of
any portion of the exterior of the building or structure, including any work affecting the
supporting members of a building or structure, such as bearing walls, columns, beams,
arches, floor or roof joists, or girders.

(83) Suife-hotel means a hotel containing one or more suite-hotel rooms as defined
below. A minimum of fifteen percent of total gross building area shall be maintained as
common or recreational areas. The building shall have central air conditioning or flush-
mounted wall units; provided, however, no air conditioning equipment may face any
street or body of water. The building shall not have open exterior walkways providing
access to units. Provided that all conditions of this Code are met, a suite-hotel may be a
timeshareproperty as defined in F.S. ch. 721.

a. Suite-hotel room means a hotel room in a suite-hotel and containing not less
than 525 square feet of net useable interior space. A suite-hotel room may
contain cooking facilities.

None of the above provisions shall be subject to waiver, variance or exception in any
circumstances.

Page 113
http://library3.municode.com/mce/DocView/10940/1/140/141 6/19/2006



ARTICLE L. IN GENERAT; / Page 8 of 12

(84) Suite-mote/ means a motel containing one or more suite-motel rooms as defined
below. A minimum of ten percent of total gross building area shall be maintained as
common or recreational areas. The building shall have central air conditioning or flush-
mounted wall units; provided, however, no air conditioning equipment may face any
street or body of water. Provided that all conditions of this Code are met, a suite-motel
may be a timeshare property as defined in F.S. ch. 721.

a. Suite-motel raom means a motel room in a suite motel and containing not
less than 525 square feet of net useable interior space. A suite-motel room may
contain cooking facilities.

None of the above provisions shall be subject to waiver, variance or exception in any
circumstances.

(85) Swimming pool means any permanent structure containing a body of water
intended for recreational purposes, including a wading pool.

(86) Transient means any person who exercises occupancy or is entitied to exercise
occupancy of any structure or part thereof by reason of renting, leasing, letting or
granting a license for a period of 30 consecutive calendar days or less, counting portions
of calendar days as full days.

(87) Use means any purpose for which buildings or other structures or land may be
arranged, designed, intended, maintained, or occupled; or any occupation, business,
activity or operation carried on or intended to be carried on in a building or other
structure or on land.

(88) Wall. A wall, when used as a fence, shall be so constructed that no less than 50
percent of the vertical surface is open to permit the transmission of light, air and vision
through such surface in a horizontal plane.

(89) Yard means an open area which is on the same ot as a building and which is
unoccupied and unobstructed from the ground upward, except as otherwise provided in
these regulations.

(90) Yard, front, means a yard across the full width of the lot extending from the front
line of the building to the front street line of the lot.

(91) Yard, rear, means a yard extending the full width of the lot between the main
building and the rear lot line.

(92) Yard, side, means a yard on the same lot with the building between the main
building and the adjacent side of the lot, and extending from the front yard to the rear
yard thereof.

(Code 1960, § 18-3; Ord. No. 1400, § 2, 3, 5-11-89; Ord. No. 1402, § 1, 5-11-89; Ord. No. 1404, § 1, 6-
8-99; Ord. No. 1446, § 2, 12-9-03)

Cross references: Definitions generally, § 1-2.

Sec. 90-3. Penalty for violation.

Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this chapter or fail to comply therewith or
with any of the requirements thereof, or who shall build or alter any building in violation of any detailed
statement or plan submitted under this chapter, shall, upon conviction, be punished by a fine not to
exceed $1,000.00 or by imprisonment in the discretion of the judge. Each day a violation is permitted to
exist shall constitute a separate offense. The owner or owners of any building or premises, or
partthereof, where anything in violation hereof shall be placed or shall exist, and any architect, builder,
contractor, agent, or person employed in connection therewith and who has assisted in the commission

Page 114
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/141 6/19/2006



ARTICLE L IN GENERAI\.» , Page 9of 12

of any such violation shall be guilty of a separate offense and upon conviction thereof shall be
fined as hereinbefore provided.

(Code 1960, § 18-81)

Sec. 90-4. Policy and objectives.

The purpose of this chapter is to encourage and promote, in accordance with present and future
needs, the safety, morals, health, order, convenience, prosperity, and general welfare of the citizens of
the town and of the citizens of Metropolitan Dade County, Florida, and to provide for efficiency and
economy in the process of development, for the appropriate and best use of land, for convenience of
traffic and circulation of people and goods, for the use and occupancy of buildings, for healthful and
convenient distribution of population, for adequate public utilities and facilities, for promotion of the civic
amenities of beauty and visual interest, and for development in accord with the comprehensive plan by
establishing zoning districts and by regulating the location and use of buildings, structures, and land for
trade and residence, by regulating and limiting or determining the height, bulk and access to light and
air of buildings and structures, the area of yards and other open spaces and the density of same. To
accomplish these objectives, the regulations and districts and accompanying map, have been designed
with reasonable consideration, among other things, to the character of the districts and their peculiar
suitability for particular uses.

(Code 1960, § 18-1)

Sec. 90-5. Interpretation, purpose, and conflict.

In interpreting and applying the provisions of these regulations, they shall be held to be the
minimum requirements for the promotion of the public safety, health, convenience, comfort, prosperity,
or general welfare. It is not intended by these regulations to interfere with or abrogate or annul any
easements, covenants, or other agreement, provided however, that where these regulations impose a
greater restriction upon the use of buildings or premises or upon the height of buildings, or require
larger openspaces or yards or lot areas than are imposed or required by other ordinances, rules,
regulations, or by easements, covenants, or agreements, the provisions of these regulations shall
govern.

(Code 1960, § 18-80)

Sec. 90-6. Compliance with regulations.
Except as hereinafter provided:

(1) No land or water area may be used except for a purpose permitted in the district in
which it is located. Such permitted uses shall include those specifically listed as an
accessory use, conditional use or use permitted subject to the approval of a special use
permit within the district in which the building or land is located. Any use not specifically
listed as provided herein shall be prohibited.

(2) No building shall be erected, converted, enlarged, reconstructed, moved, or
structurally altered, nor shall any building or part thereof be used except for a use
permitted in the district in which the building is located.

(3) No building shall be erected, converted, enlarged, reconstructed, moved, or
structurally altered to exceed the height fimit herein established for the district in which
the building is located.

(4) No building shall be erected, converted, enlarged, reconstructed, moved, or

Page 115
http://library3. municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/141 6/19/2006



ARTICLE 1. IN GENERA] Page 10 0f 12

(,

structurally alteréd except in conformity with the area regulations of the district in which
the building is located. :

(5) No building shall be erected, converted, enlarged, reconstructed, moved, or
structurally altered except in conformity with the off-street parking and loading
regulations of the district in which the building is located.

(6) No building shall be erected, converted, enlarged, reconstructed, moved, or
structurally altered except in conformity with the floor area regulations of the district in
which it is located.

(7) No building shall be erected or moved except in conformity with the established
flood criteria, as indicated on the most current edition of the federal flood insurance rate
maps and in chapter 42, article ll, applicable to the lot on which the building is located.

(8) No building shall be erected or enlarged after the effective date of these regulations,
which reduces any level of service standard established in the town's adopted
comprehensive plan,

(9) All improved properties shall have their street number displayed and clearly visible
from the street on which the front entrance of the building faces. In the B-1 district, all
properties additionally shall have their street numbers displayed and clearly visible from
the rear of the property.

(Code 1960, § 18-7; Ord. No. 1280, § 1, 5-12-92)

Sec. 90-7. One building on a lot.

Except as provided in section 80-150 of these regulations with regard to the RMO-1 district, only
one main building and the accessory buildings and uses customarily incident thereto shall be located
on any single lot. In the case of single-family dwellings, no individual room shall be completely
separated from the remainder of the main building and only one kitchen shall be provided on each lot.

(Code 1960, § 18-8)

Sec. 90-8. Minimum lot area.

No lot area shall be reduced or diminished so as to violate the setback or lot coverage
requirements as herein prescribed, nor shall the minimum lot area per dwelling unit as established in
section 90-155, table |, be decreased in any manner except in conformity with the regulations
established herein.

(Code 1960, § 18-9)

Sec. 90-9. Recorded restrictions.

Any existing recorded restrictions regarding any lot shall be considered a part of this chapter,
except where such restrictions are in actual conflict with the provisions of this chapter, in which case
this chapter shall control.

(Code 1960, § 18-10)

Sec. 90-10. Encroachment; reduction of lot area.

Page 116
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/141 6/19/2006



ARTICLE L. IN GENERAI(- Page 11 of 12

The minimum vard, parking space, open space and minimum lot area per dwelling unit
requirements of these regulations for each and every building existing at the time of passage of the
ordinance from which these regulations were derived, or for any building hereafter erected, shall not be
encroached upon or considered as required yard, parking space or open space for any other building,
except as hereinafter provided, nor shall any lot area be reduced below the requirements of these
regulations.

(Code 1960, § 18-11})

Sec. 90-11. Accessory buildings, prior construction.

No accessory building shall be constructed upon a lot until the construction of a main building
has been actually completed, except where construction of main and accessory buildings is concurrent.
No accessory building shall be used unless the main building on the lot is also being used.

(Code 1960, § 18-12)

Sec. 90-12. Buildings under construction.

Any building or structure for which a lawful building permit has been issued, and the
construction of which has been started prior to the effective date of the ordinance from which this
chapter was derived may be completed and used in accordance with the plans and specifications upon
which such building permit was granted, provided such construction is completed within one year after
the effective date of the ordinance from which this chapter was derived.

(Code 1960, § 18-13)

Sec. 90-13. Outstanding permits.

{a) Where, on the effective date of the ordinance from which this chapter was derived, there
are outstanding valid building permits, authorizing the construction of buildings, structures,
additions or alterations, the use or construction of which do not conform to the requirements of
this chapter, such permits shall be void unless actual construction work, excluding grading or
excavating, is substantially underway on that date.

(b} Where, on the effective date of the ordinance from which this chapter was derived, there
are outstanding valid permits, authorizing the use of land or buildings without construction work,
and where such use is not permissible under the terms of this chapter, such permit shall be void
unless the use is actually in operation on that date.

(Code 1960, § 18-14)

Sec. 90-14. Relationship to the comprehensive plan.

All regulations contained in this chapter and the maps attached thereto shall be amended,
supplemented or changed only in compliance with F.S. ch. 163 as pertains to comprehensive planning
activities.

(Code 1960, § 18-15)

Sec. 90-15. Projections into required yard areas.

Page 117
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/141 6/19/20006



ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL Page 12 of 12
{ ('

In determining compliance with the minimum setback requirements established within these
regulations, the controlling distance on each lot shali be measured between the applicable lot line and
the closest point thereto on any building or structure erected on the lot, and no portion of any roof
overhang, chimney, cornice, or other similar architectural feature shall project into any required front,
side or rear yard, except as provided in section 90-177.

(Code 1960, § 18-16)

Sec. 90-16. Provision for storm drainage.

No structure shall be constructed or enlarged unless it meets all requirements of chapter 34
regarding storm drainage management. Such requirements shall apply to all accessory buildings or
structures or uses serving such structures.

(Code 1960, § 18-17)

Secs. 90-17--90-35. Reserved.

Page 118
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/141 6/19/2006



ARTICLE II. ADMINISTI}ATION AND ENFORCEMENT ' Page 1 of 5

ARTICLE il. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT
DIVISION 1. GENERALLY

Sec. 90-36. Comprehensive plan.

(a) The comprehensive plan, as amended, and made in accordance with F.S. ch. 163, and the
various maps referred to therein, is hereby adopted as the official comprehensive plan of the
town.

(b) All development undertaken by and all actions taken in regard to development orders
concerning land covered by the comprehensive plan shall be consistent with such pian. All land
development regulations enacted or amended shall be consistent with the comprehensive plan.

(c) Any future land development regulations, amendments to the comprehensive plan, land
development code or amendment thereto shall be referred to the town planning and zoning
board, acting in the capacity of the local planning agency, for review and recommendation as to
the relationship of such proposal to the adopted comprehensive plan. Such recommendation
shall be undertaken in accordance with the provisions of F.S. chs. 163 and 166. In all cases
where a recommendation is not made within 60 days after referral, the town commission may
act upon adoption without such recommendation.

(Code 1960, § 18-92)

State law references: Adoption and amendment of comprehensive plan, F.S. § 163.3184 et seq.;
adoption of zoning or land development regulations, F.S. §§ 163.3194, 166.041.

Sec. 90-37. Permits, plats and filing fees.

(a) Permits. No building shall be erected, constructed, altered, moved, converted, extended or
enlarged without the owner or owners first having obtained a permit therefor from the town
manager. Such permit shall require conformity with the provisions of these regulations. When
issued, such permit shall be valid for a period of 180 days.

(b) Preliminary drawings, plot plans, efc.

(1) All applications for building permits shall be accompanied by drawings and plot
plan, in triplicate, showing all dimensions of lot lines, location of all proposed buildings,
all yard dimensions, existing and proposed yard grades and first floor elevations.

(2) A survey prepared by a licensed surveyor, showing all dimensions of the plot and
dimensions of all existing structures and easements thereon and all existing grades on
plot and crown of the road shall be submitted with all applications.

(3) The drawings shall contain suitable notations indicating the use of all land and
buildings. A careful record of the original copy of such drawings, plats, survey and
applications shall be kept in the offices of the town manager and a duplicate copy shall
be kept at the building site at all times during construction.

(4) Submission of preliminary plans and survey, to the building official and the planning
and zoning board, for compliance with this chapter may be filed. Applicant shall, with the
filing of such request, pay a fee of $200.00 to defray costs and expenses.

Page 119
http://library3.municode.com/mce/DocView/10940/1/140/142/143 6/19/2006



ARTICLE 1L ADMINISTI? ATION AND ENFORCEMENT , Page 2 of 5

(c) Applications for building permits. Applications for building permits in RD-2, RM-1, RMO-1,
RT-1 and CO-1 districts must be accompanied by the following:

(1) A plot plan showing provisions for adequate drainage where required.
{(2) A rendering showing details of materials to be used on the exterior of the buiiding.

(3) A detailed landscaping plan, prepared by a registered landscape architect, including
scale demonstrating actual size of plants to be used.

(Code 1960, § 18-77)

Sec. 90-38. Site plan.

(a) Requirement for a site plan. Where required by these regulations, a site plan shall be
submitted fo the town manager for transmittal to the appropriate town board and commission.
Such site plan shall contain all information required by the town to determine compliance with
the provisions of these regulations. Where required by other applicable laws, such site plan
shall be prepared by an engineer or architect licensed to practice in the state.

(b) Content of a site plan. A site plan drawn at a scale of one inch equals 40 feet or such other
scale as may be approved by the town manager shall be prepared that will include and show,
where applicable, the following information:

(1) All of the land in the lot, together with any adjacent or contiguous parcels in the
same ownership, with such detail of adjacent properties and public ways as will relate
the subject premises to the neighborhood and to the street pattern within 1,000 feet from
the perimeter of the subject property. (Such information may be shown on a key map at
a scale of one inch equals 1,000 feet.)

(2) The location size and shape of all existing and proposed buildings and uses on the
subject site and the approximate locations and size of all existing buildings and
structures on the abutting properties which are within 100 feet of the common lot line.

(3) In addition to the information required in subsections (a) and (b) of this section, the
site plan shall also include the following information:

a. Location and size of all parking spaces, loading and unloading spaces, and of
all existing and proposed driveway entrances and exits.

b. Existing and proposed grades If such are significantly altered.

c. Existing and proposed fences, walls, signs, architectural accents, street
furniture and the locations and sizes of all advertising or graphic features.

d. Location of all utility poles, fire hydrants, parking meters on adjacent streets
and the location, type and size of all outdoor lighting. ‘

e. Existing and proposed landscaping, including any existing self-supporting
perennial plant which has a trunk diameter of at least three inches, measured
three feet above grade (at the base of the tree), and which normally grows to a
minimum overall height of 15 feet. Proposed methods of irrigation shall also be
shown.

f. Schematic building pians, including plans, elevations and sections of all major
structures.

g. Tabulations of total gross square footage in the project and the percentages
thereof proposed to be devoted to (i) the various permitted uses; and (ii) ot
coverage by structures.

Page 120
hitp://library3.musicode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/142/143 6/19/2006



ARTICLE IL ADMINISTR{/‘ TION AND ENFORCEMENT Page 3 of 5

h. Tabulation showing (i) the derivation of numbers of off-street parking and off-
street loading spaces shown in subsection a. of this subsection; and (ii) total
project density in dwelling units per acre.

i. If common facilities (such as recreation areas or structures, common open
space, etc.) are to be provided for the project, statements as to how such
common facilities are to be provided and permanently maintained.

j- Water, storm drainage and sanitary sewerage plans, including information
showing the projected volume of usage or discharge proposed.

k. Plans indicating size and location of all proposed signs.

[. Plans for recreation facilities, if any, including location, size and shape of all
buildings proposed for such use.

m. Location of facilities being provided for trash and garbage, location of any -
outdoor fixed seating, and the location of all other accessory structures.

n. Such additional data, maps, plans, or statements as the town may require fo
fully describe and evaluate the particular use or activity proposed.

The town manager shall have the right to waive submission of any of the items required herein if, in the
town manager's opinion, such information is not required in order to render a decision on the site plan
application as submitted.

(Code 1960, § 18-76)

Sec. 90-39. Certificate of occupancy.

(a) No vacant land shall be occupied or used until a certificate of occupancy shall have been
issued by the town building official.

(b) No premises shall be used and no buildings hereafter erected or structurally altered shall
be used, occupied, or changed use until a certificate of occupancy and compliance shall have
been issued by the town building official, stating that the building or proposed use of a building
or premises complies with the building laws and the provisions of these regulations.

(c) Certificates of occupancy and compliance shall be applied for within ten days after the
erection or structural alteration of such have been completed in conformity with the provisions of
these regulations. A record of all certificates shall be kept on file in the office of the town
manager. ‘

(Code 1960, § 18-78)

Sec. 90-40. Changes and amendments.

(a) Changes and amendments. The town commission may, from time-to-time, amend,
supplement, or change, by ordinance, the boundaries of the districts or the regulations herein
established.

(b) Reconsideration of district boundary changes. When a proposed change in district
boundaries has been acted upon by the town commission and disapproved or failed of passage,
such proposed change, in the same or substantial similar form, shall not be reconsidered by the
town for a period of at least one year following the date of such action.

(c) Withdrawal of a pelition. Any pstition for amendment, suppiement, or change may be
withdrawn by a request in writing from the petitioner at any time before a decision of the town

Page 121 _
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/142/143 6/19/2006



ARTICLE 1. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

{ (

commission, but if withdrawn after advertisement for a pu
the same or a substantially similar petition covering the st
except by the town manager or a member of the town co
date established for the prior hearing. Filing fees shall not L

(Code 1960, § 18-79)
State law references: Zoning amendments, F.S. §§ 163.3194, 1

Sec. 90-41. Conditional uses.

Pa

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to provide
determine if certain uses, hereafter referred to as conditional
review of conditional uses is required because such uses are (
character and are essential and desirable for the general
community; but because of the nature of the use and possible iinpa
require the exercise of planning judgment on location andsite plan.

(b) Conditional uses enumerated. The following buildings, str
approved by the town commission as conditional uses in any
specifically allowed, as indicated within the provisions for individua
such conditional use(s) in accordance with the procedures and st
only be granted where it has been clearly shown that the public
general welfare will not be adversely affected; that adequate o
accordance with this chapter, will be provided; and that necessary
for the protection of surrounding property:

(1) Churches and synagogues.

(2) Institutions, educational or philanthropic, inciuding r
nursing homes or hospitals.

(3) Off-street parking lots and garages.
(4) Public and governmental buiidings.

(5) Public utilities or public service uses, buildings, str
thereto.

(6) A bar accessible from the pool or pool deck for use st
motels in the RT-1 tourist district. In all cases, it shall be t
the owner, operator, tenant or user of the property to ass
consumption of beverages shall occur or be allowed to occ
portion of the property lying east of the bulkhead line.

(c) Site plan required. Each application for approval for =
accompanied by a site plan. Such site plan shall be prepared in ac
of section 90-38. In addition, each application shall be accompz
indicating compliance with all of the provisions of section 90-38, al
as may be required to permit a determination of the exact nature
effect on surrounding properties, the adjacent neighborhood, and it
adopted comprehensive plan.

(d} Procedures; conditional uses. Applications for approval of a ¢
with the procedural requirements of section 90-94. The planning
the town commission may contain recommendations regarding
imposed by the town commission in approving the conditional use
establish these and/or additional conditions for an approval by a sin

e 122

http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/142/143



ARTICLE IL ADMINISTI?A TION AND ENFORCEMENT _, Page 5 of 5
{

Approval of a conditional use under this section shall lapse and/or be extended under the provisions of
section 90-93.

(Code 1960, § 18-69; Ord. No. 1407, § 1, 1-11-00)

Secs. 90-42--90-50, Reserved.

Pa%e 123
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/142/143 6/19/2006



DIVISION 2. PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD* __ Page 1 of 4
( {

DIVISION 2. PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD*

*Cross references: Boards, commissions and committees, § 2-46 et seq.

Sec. 90-51. Created.
There is created a town planning and zoning board.
(Code 1960, § 18-32)

Sec. 90-52. Membership; terms of officers; vacancies; meetings; quorum.

(a}) The planning and zoning board shall consist of five members. The term of each
appointment shall be for a period of two years. Each member of the commission shall be
entitled to one appointment to the board, subject to the approval of a majority of the
commission; any member of the commission shall have the right to replace his or her
appointment for the unexpired term in the case of removal or vacancy, subject to the approval of
a majority of the commission. Any member may be removed and replaced, with or without
cause, by a majority vote of the town commission. Terms shall expire on the last Tuesday of
March of the applicable year, except that applications for hearings filed before March 10th of the
applicable year shall be heard by the then existing board.

(b) A vacancy shall exist on the date that any member ceases to possess any of the
qualifications for membership established herein; and a vacancy shall exist when a member has
been absent from three consecutive regularly convened meetings of the board, or has been
absent from five regularly convened meetings of the board within a board year.

(c) The board year shall commence on the last Tuesday of April in each year. Regular
meetings of the board shall be held on the last Tuesday of each month and three members
present shall constitute a quorum; however, three affirmative votes shall be required to approve
a request for a variance.

(d) One commissioner, appointed by the town commission, shall be a liaison, nonvoting
representative; and, the town manager shall be an ex officic member without vote. Neither the
commission representative nor the town manager may be counted in determining that a quorum
is present.

(e) Meetings of the board may be held in the town hall or community center, Special meetings
must be called by the chairman upon approval of a quorum. Records shall be kept of all
proceedings.

(Code 1960, § 18-83)

Sec. 90-53. Officers.

One member shall be elected by the planning and zoning board as chairman, at its first regular
meeting in April of each year. In addition, the board shall, at the same time, elect one of its members as
vice-chairman. In the event of the resignation, removal, or inability of the chairman to serve, the vice-

Pa%e 124 i
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/142/144 6/19/2006



DIVISION 2. PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD* Page 2 of 4
( {

chairman shall succeed to the position of chairman for the unexpired term; and the board shall,
thereupon, elect one of its members as vice-chairman for the unexpired term. The chairman shall
preside at all meetings. In his absence, the vice-chairman shall preside. The chairman shall submit to
the town commission all reports and recommendations of the planning and zoning board. The town
shall provide a secretary for the board and the town clerk shall be custodian of all records, books, and
journails of the board.

(Code 1960, § 18-84; Ord. No. 1364, § 1, 6-11-96)

Sec. 90-54. Recommendations.

The planning and zoning board will submit its recommendations to the town commission, by and
through the chairman or vice-chairman,

(Code 1960, § 18-85)

Sec. 90-55. Reserved.

Sec. 90-56. Expenditures; indebtedness.

The town commission may authorize the expenditure by the planning and zoning board of such
funds as the commission may deem necessary to the performance of the requirements of this chapter.
The town commission may appropriate from the general fund as set up in the annual budget and such
sums as it may from time to time authorize the board to expend. The board may not incur indebtedness
without prior commission approval.

(Code 1960, § 18-87)

Sec. 90-57. General regulations governing members.

Vacancies on the planning and zoning board shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired
term in the same manner as original appointments are made. Appointed members of the board shall
not, during their term, hold any other public office, paid position, or serve on any other board under the
town government, except as a member of a temporary board, or that of a voluntary fireman.
Membership on this board shall cease concurrently with the filing of a nominating petition for town
commission.

(Code 1960, § 18-88)

Sec. 90-58, Applications for zoning changes; rules of procedure.

The following rules shall govern procedure on all applications for zoning changes, special use
permits, conditional uses, and/or variances:

(1) All applications shall be submitted to the planning and zoning board on the
prescribed form and accompanied with the prescribed fee, The planning and zoning
board shall be required to meet and hold a public hearing not later than 30 days after
receipt of such zoning, special use permit or variance request. The board shall make its
views and recommendations known to the town commission for the town commission’s
determination. If the board fails to take action within the prescribed time, the commission
shallassume its duties.

Page 125
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/142/144 6/19/2006



DIVISION 2, PLANNING #ND ZONING BOARD* _ Page 3 of 4
z i
(2) In the RS-1, RS-2 and RD-1 zoning districts, a fee of $250.00 shall be paid for each
application, with an additional fee of $50.00 for any additional special use permit,
conditional use or variance processed at the same time for the same property. For all
other zoning districts, the fee shall be $400.00, with an additional fee of $50.00 for each
additional special use permit, conditional use or variance processed at the same time for
the same property. The fee for special use exceptions for canopy carports in all zoning
districts shall be $175.00.

(3) A public hearing shall be advertised at least once in a local newspaper of general
circulation or publicly posted in the town hall at least ten days prior to the public hearing.
Written courtesy notices shall be sent by first class mail to affected property owners
within a radius of 375 feet. Where practicable, such advertising shall contain, in addition
to a legal description, a street address, together with the specific intended use in
layman's language, i.e., "apartment house" rather than "multiple dwelling,” "meat market”
rather than "B-1" or "business zoning."

(4) A notice, 18 inches by 24 inches, shall be placed in a prominent place on the
property by the applicant at his own expense denoting the following:

ZONING CHANGE REQUESTED

for use as
(here insert use)
Public Hearing at Town Hall 8:00 p.m.
Tuesday Date

(Yellow background/black letters)
Such notice to be posted not less than ten days prior to such hearing.

(5) A posted notice shall contain the requested use change in laymen’s language as in
subsection (3) of this section. Posted notice shall be of standard size in standard colors,
approved by town manager before erection.

(8) All applications for rezoning must be made and presented by the fee title owner or
owners of the property sought to be rezoned or by a tenant or attorney for the owner with
the owner's written approval.

(7) Applications for variances, conditional uses and special use shall follow,
substantially, the same procedure as applications for zoning changes.

(8) A copy of each variance, special use permit, conditional use or zoning change and
ordinance affecting change in this chapter shall be sent to each member of the planning
and zoning board by the town manager after the commission grants it. All variances
granted by the town commission shall be kept in a journal kept for such purpose.

(Code 1960, § 18-89; Ord. No. 1252, §§ 1, 2, 5-14-01)

Sec. 90-59. Review of huilding permits.

(a) Prior to the issuance of building permits, all applications for new structures, additions or
exterior changes which affect the exterior dimensions of any structure, together with any
applicable detailed plans, specifications and plot plans, shall be submitted to the planning and
zoning board for its review and recommendations. Except as to tool sheds provided for in
section 90-182, building permits, where the proposed construction does not exceed the total
value of $1,000.00, need not be so submitted.

(b) To assure that the architectural design shall be in harmony with the architecture of the
neighborhood, the planning and zoning board shall suggest such changes in the design of the

Page 126
http://library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140/142/144 6/19/2006



DIVISION 4. SPECIAL E)%(‘EPTIONS, SPECIAL USE PERMITS AND VARIANCES Page 2 of 6
. {

planning and zoning board, for a meeting of the town commission.

(1) Public hearing. The town commission shall hold one public hearing on the variance
application.

(2) Action by the town commission. In considering whether to approve or deny the
application, the town commission shall review the application, the purposes and
standards set forth in this section, the staff report, the recommendation of the planning
and zoning board, and relevant evidence, including oral and written comments received
at the public hearing. No variance shall be granted except upon the affirmative vote of at
least four members of the town commission. :

(h) Standards of review. The town commission shall approve a variance only if the variance
applicant demonstrates by clear and convincing evidence that all of the following are met and
satisfied: '

(1) Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure,
or building involved, and which are not applicable to other lands, structures, or buildings
in the same zoning district;

(2) The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the
applicant or a prior owner of the property,

(3) Literal interpretation of the provisions of the Town Code deprives the applicant of
rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district under the terms
of the Town Code and resulis in unnecessary and undue hardship on the applicant;

(4) The hardship has not been deliberately or knowingly created or suffered to establish
a use or structure which is not otherwise consistent with the Town of Surfside
Comprehensive Plan or the Town Code;

(5) An applicant's desire or ability to achieve greater financial return or maximum
financial return from his property does not constitute hardship,

(6) Granting the variance application conveys the same treatment to the applicant as to
the owner of other lands, buildings, or structures in the same zoning district;

(7) The requested variance is the minimum variance that makes possible the
reasonable use of the land, building, or structure; and

(8) The requested variance is in harmony with the general intent and purpose of the
Town of Surfside Comprehensive Plan and the Town Code, is not injurious to the
neighborhood, or otherwise detrimental to the public safety and welfare, is compatible
with the neighborhood, and will not substantially diminish or impair property values within
the neighborhood.

(i) Conditions and restrictions. The town commission may impose such conditions and
restrictions upon the premises benefitted by a variance as may be necessary to comply with the
standards set out in this section, and to prevent or minimize adverse effects on other property in
the neighborhood. Violation of such conditions and restrictions, when made a part of the terms
under which a variance is granted, shall be deemed a violation of the Town Code, and shall
constitute grounds for revocation of the variance.

(i) Expiration of approval. The approval of a variance shall be void if the applicant does not
obtain a building permit or other development order to implement the variance within 12 months
after the granting of the variance. An applicant who has obtained approval of a variance may
request an extension of this time period within the original approval period. The town
commission may grant one or more extensions for a period of up to a total of six months for
good cause shown by the applicant.

(k) Amendments and alterations to approved variances. Any expansion to an approved

Page 127
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/142/146 6/19/2006



DIVISION 2. PLANNING }(%T\TD ZONING BOARD* _ Page 4 of 4
(

structure to preserve the traditional aesthetic treatment and excellence of design of the
community. In considering the design of the building, the board shall consider and render a
recommendation as to any element or facet of the design and location of the building.

(Code 1960, § 18-90)

Sec. 90-80. Special meeting or special public hearing.

In the event, upon the request of any applicant, the planning and zoning board should call a
special meeting or special public hearing other than specifically required by this chapter, the applicant
shall thereupon pay the sum of $100.00 in order to help defray the costs and expenses of calling the
special meeting or special public hearing. Nothing contained in this section shall obligate or require the
planning and zoning board to call a special meeting or special public hearing except as may be
provided in this chapter. '

(Code 1960, § 18-91)

Secs, 90-61--80-70. Reserved.

Page 128
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/142/144 6/19/2006



_ DIVISION 4. SPECIAL ‘J:"lX?1 BPTIONS, SPECIAL USE PERMITS AND VARIANCES Page 1 of 6
: i ‘ {

DIVISION 4. SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS, SPECIAL USE PERMITS
AND VARIANCES

Sec. 90-91. Variances.

(a) Purpose, definition, scope and limitations. A variance is a relaxation of the terms or
provisions of the Code of the Town of Surfside (Town Code) where such action will not be
contrary to the public interest and where, owing to conditions peculiar to the property and not
the result of actions of the applicant, a literal enforcement of the Town Code would result in
unnecessary and undue hardship on the property. As used in this section, a variance is
authorized only for lot coverage, dimensions of yards, setbacks, other open spaces, building
spacing,parking, or loading requirements.

(b) Uses and height of structures not subject to variance. A variance is authorized only as set
out in subsection (a). L

(1) Under no circumstances shall the town commission grant a variance that would
allow a use of property that is not allowed within the zoning district under the Town of
Surfside Comprehensive Plan and the Town Code..

(2) Under no circumstances shall the town commission grant a variance that would
allow height of development and structures within the Town of Surfside that exceeds the
maximum building heights that are set out in the Town of Surfside Comprehensive Plan
or the Town Code, whichever provisions are more restrictive,

(c) Nonconforming uses and structures not grounds for granting varfance. Nonconforming use
of neighboring lands, structures, or buildings in the same zoning district, and permitted use of
lands, structures or buildings in any other district, shall not be considered grounds for granting a
variance. : -

(d) Town manager nof authorized to vary ierms of section. The town manager has no authority
to relax the terms of this section. Authority to grant variances is lodged solely with the town
commission. o _

(e) Application requirements. An application for a variance shall be filed by the owner of the
property upon which the variance is requested or the owners designated representative. The
following shall, at minimum, be required: to support a variance application: Statements of
ownership and contro! of the property, executed and sworn to by the owner or owners of 100
percent of the property described in the application, or by tenant or tenants with the owners'
written, sworn consent, or by duly authorized agents evidenced by a written power of attorney if
the agent is not a member of the Florida Bar. Only applications which the town commission is
authorized to consider and act upon shall be accepted for filing. The application shail be on a
form provided by the town manager, and shall include any required application fee.

() Staff review. The town manager shall review the application to determine whether the
proposed variance complies with the general purpose and standards set forth herein. The town
manager shall compile a written staff report summarizing the facts regarding the application,
including all relevant documents. The complete staff report shall be transmitted to the planning
and zoning board and to the town commission.

(g) Review by planning and zoning board and by the town commission. The town manager
shall schedule the variance application for a meeting of the planning and zoning board. The
planning and zoning board shall conduct one public hearing on the variance application, review
the application, and make recommendations to the town commission for final action. The town
manager shall then schedule the variance application, including the recommendation of the

Page 129
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/142/146 6/19/2006



DIVISION 4. SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS, SPECIAL USE PERMITS AND VARIANCES Page 3 of 6
f {

variance and any addition to or expansion of an existing variance shall require the same
application, review, and approval as required under this section for the original variance.

(Code 1960, §§ 18-72, 18-73; Ord. No. 1299, § 1, 10-13-92; Ord. No. 1450, § 2, 4-13-04)

Sec. 90-92. Special exceptions.

The following are special exceptions which may be granted by resolution requiring at least three
affirmative votes:

(1} Nonconforming uses as follows:

a. A nonconforming use now existing in any part of a building to be extended
vertically or laterally to other portions of the building.

b. To determine the existence of a nonconforming use as required under
division 3 of this article.

(2) Other special use exceptions as follows:

a. To determine, in cases of uncertainty, the classification of any use not
specifically named in these regulations; provided, however, such use shall be in
keeping with uses specifically listed in the district.

(3) An exception to permit the erection of a carport canopy, constructed of canvas and
pipe in accordance with section 90-185 in a front, side or rear yard setback in the RS-1,
RS-2 and RD-1 districts.

{Code 1960, §§ 18-70, 18-71)

Sec. 90-93. Lapse of special exception or variance.

After the town commission has approved a special exception or granted a variance, the special
exception or variance so approved or granted shall lapse after the expiration of one year from its
effective date if a building permit has not been issued, or if no substantial construction or change of use
has taken place in accordance with the plans for which such special exception, or variance was
granted. However, the town commission may grant an extension of up to one year prior to the
expiration of the original approval.

(Code 1960, § 18-74)

Sec. 90-94. Special use permits.

(a) Purpose and intent. The development and execution of a comprehensive zoning ordinance
is based upon the division of the community into zoning districts in which the use of land and
buildings and the bulk and location of buildings in refation to the land are substantially uniform.
However, it is recognized that within the town generally, or within certain zoning districts in
particular, certain structures, uses, and/or occupancies specified in this chapter are of a nature
requiring special and intensive review to determine whether or not they should be permitted in
specific locations, and if so, the special limitations, conditions, and safeguards which should be
applied as reasonably necessary to promote the general purpose of this chapter, and in
particular, to protect adjoining properties and the neighborhood from avoidable potentially
adverse effects. 1t is further intended that the expertise and judgment of the town commission
be exercised in making such determinations, in accordance with the rules, considerations, and
limitations relating to special use permits as established herein.

Page 130
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/142/146 6/19/2006



DIVISION 4. SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS, SPECIAL USE PERMITS AND VARIANCES Page 4 of 6
[ (

{b) Applications for special use permits. All applications for special use permits shall be filed
with the town manager, and the town manager is hereby charged with the responsibility for their
receipt, fee collection, processing, and/or distribution.

(1) Applications for special use permits shall be made by the owner of the subject
property, on forms provided for the purpose, and shall be accompanied by such plans,
reports, or other information, exhibits, or documents as may be reasonably required to
make the necessary findings in the case.

(2) The applicant shall, upon filing an application for special use permit, pay to the town
the sum of $300.00 as a special use permit fee, which fee shall be nonrefundable.

(3) For the purposes of establishing time limitations on processing, no application shall
be deemed to have been filed unless and until such applications shall have been
completed; all plans, reports or other information, exhibits, or documents required by this
chapter or any administrative rules adopted pursuant hereto shall have been fully
complied with; and all fees due at the time of filing shali have been paid.

(4) If during the processing of any application, it is determined by the designated agent,
agency, or body of the town, that in the particular circumstances of such case, additional
information is required to make necessary findings bearing on its approval, denial, or
conditions and safeguards to be attached, such information may be requested. Failure to
supply such supplementary information may be used as grounds for denial of the permit.

(c) Content of special use permit application. Where applicable to the activity or development
for which a special use permit is required and where necessary to formulate a decision on an
application for special use permit, all of the following elements shall be required:

(1} Names of the owners of the proposed development or activity and a statement
describing in detail the character and intended use of the proposed development or
activity.

(2) General location map, showing relation of the site or activity for which special use
permit is sought to major streets, existing utilities, shopping areas, important physical
features in and adjoining the project or activity and the like.

(3) A survey of the subject property dated within six months of the date of the
application, showing all existing structures, easements, etc. Such survey shalt be sealed
by a surveyor licensed to practice in the state.

(4) A site plan in accordance with the requirements of section 90-38.

(d) Findings which shall govern issuance of special use permits. A special permit shall not be
granted until the town commission has determined that all of the following conditions have been
satisfied:

(1) Compliance with the comprehensive plan and this chapter. The proposed use of
the subject property is consistent with the purpose and intent of the town's
comprehensive plan, and the proposed use is one which is permitted to be established
within the district in which the subject property is located, subject to the approval of a
special permit.

(2) Orderly development. The location, type, character and size of the use and of any
building or other structure in connection therewith shall be in harmony with the
appropriate and orderly development of the fown and the neighborhood and will not
hinder or discourage the appropriate development and use of adjacent property.

(3) Property values and character. The proposed use will not depreciate adjacent
property values and the size and height of all proposed buildings and the extent of all
proposed site improvements shall both be such as to harmonize with the existing

Page 131
http://library3.municode.comy/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/142/146 6/19/2006



DIVISION 4. SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS, SPECIAL USE PERMITS AND VARIANCES Page 5 of 6
{ {

character of the neighborhood in which such use is fo be established.

(4) Public safety. The nature and location of the proposed use and of any building or
other structure therewith shall be such that there is adequate access to it for the purpose
of fire protection, police protection, and other emergency equipment.

(5) Traffic considerations. The streets serving the proposed use are adequate to carry
all prospective traffic; adequate provision is made for entering and leaving the subject
site in such a manner that no undue hazard to traffic or undue traffic congestion shalil be
created; adequate off-street parking and loading facilities are provided as required by
article V of these regulations; and the development of the subject site provides for the
continuation and appropriate improvement of adjacent streets and alleys.

(6) Landscaping and buffers. The site on which the proposed use is to be located will
be suitably landscaped to protect the neighborhood and adjacent property and the
proposed use of the subject property will not result in the loss of any existing buffering
between the subject site and adjacent single-family residentially zoned properties. When
adequate buffering is not found to exist, sufficient buffers between the proposed use and
adjacent properties shall be provided.

(7) Relationship to utility systems, drainage systems and impact on community
faciliies. The subject site has adequate water and sewerage systems to service the
proposed use. Adequate provision for stormwater drainage can be provided without
adversely affecting neighboring properties or adjacent public drainage systems,
adequate provision has been provided for enclosed onsite storage of all trash and
garbage and the proposed use will not adversely impact existing community facilities.

(8) Compliance with zoning regulations. In addition to meeting the other conditions
described herein, the proposed use and the arrangement of all proposed buildings,
structures, facilities and other site improvements shall comply with all applicable
provisions of these zoning regulations.

(e) Procedures regarding special use permits.

(1) The town commission shall be solely responsible for determinations on applications
for special use permits.

(2) The town commission shail refer all applications for special use permits to the
planning and zoning board for recommendations, and may make referrals to other
agencies, bodies, or officers for review, analysis, andfor technical findings and
determinations and reports thereon.

(3) Three affirmative votes of the commission shall be required to approve a special
use permit,

(4) An application for a special use permit may be withdrawn at any time, but if
withdrawn after the public hearing has been convened at which it was to be considered,
substantially the same appflication shall not be considered again until 12 months after the
date of withdrawal.

(f) Conditions and safeguards. The town commission, in approving a special permit, may
impose such restrictions as appear to the commission to be reasonable to protect or promote
the rights of individuals, property values and the environment in the area as a whole, the public
health, safety or weifare, sound planning and zoning principles, improved land use, site planning
and land development, or better overall neighborhood compatibility. Such restrictions may
concern, without limitation, the components of the site plan; building location, size and layout;
distribution of and relationship between uses and structures; vehicular and pedestrian
circulation; parking; open space; landscaping and screening; signs and lighting; and the design
and architectural treatment of all structures.

(g) Substantial construction within one year. If substantial construction has not begun on a

Page 132
http://library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140/142/146 6/19/2006



DIVISION 4. SPECIAL EXF.‘“.PTIONS, SPECIAL USE PERMITS AND VARIANCES ~ Page 6 of 6
(

building or structure, or no use has been established on a lot for which a special permit was
approved by the town commission, within one year from the date of issuance of such special
permit for such building, structure or use, such special permit shall become null and void.
Substantial construction shall include the erection of all foundation structures and at-grade
slabs.

However, in its discretion, and for good cause, the town commission, upon request of the
applicant, may extend for an additional six months the period for the beginning of substantial
construction or establishment of a use, provided such extension shall be granted only once for any
particular special permit.

(h) Mandatory inspections. Each applicant, successor or assign shall make the premises
available fo the designated agent, agency or body of the town authorized to make the foilowing
inspections. Such agents of the town responsibie for the enforcement of special use permits and
attached safeguards and/or conditions shall make regular inspections of the subject property to
assure compliance with all provisions, conditions and safeguards of such special use permit.

(i) Building permits and certificates of use or occupancy. Where bullding permits or certificates
of use or occupancy are required by this chapter or other codes or ordinances of the fown, no
such building permit or certificate of use or occupancy shall be issued where this chapter
requires special use permits unless and until any and all special use permits required have been
obtained. Where uses or occupancies do not require building permits or certificates of use or
occupancy, but are otherwise subject to requirements of this chapter, no such use or occupancy
shall be initiated or maintained unless and until any and all special use permits herein in relation
thereto have heen obtained.

(Code 1960, § 18-75)

Secs. 90-95--9-09. Reserved.

Page 133
http://library3.municode.com/mee/DocView/10940/1/140/142/146 6/19/2006



DIVISION 5. PROPOSED .?MENDMENTS _ Page 1 of 3
l‘

DIVISION 5. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

Sec. 90-100. Proposed land development regulation amendments and proposed
comprehensive plan amendments; application of equitable estoppel to permits and
approvals.

(a) Amendments to land development regulations shall be enforced against all applications or
requests for project approval upon the earlier of favorable recommendation by the pianning and
zoning board or the applicable effective date of the land development regulation amendment, as
more particularly provided below. After submission of a completed application for a project
approval, to the extent a proposed amendment to tand development regulations would, upon
adoption, render the application nonconforming, thenthe following procedure shall apply to all
applications considered by the town or any appropriate town board:

(1) In the event applicant:

a. Obtains (i) approval for a variance, special exception or special use permit or
(i) a full building permit; and

b. Satisfies paragraph a. above prior to a favorable recommendation by the
planning and zoning board with respect to any land development regulation
amendment that is adopted by the town commission within 90 days of the
planning and zoning board's recommendation,

then the project shall be presumed to have received a favorable determination that equitable estoppel
applies and the subject land development regulation amendment shall not be enforced against the
application or project (hereinafter, "favorable determination"). If at any time before expiration of the 90
days the proposed amendment fails before the town commission, then the project shall no longer be
deemed nonconforming.

(2) In the event applicant:

a. Obtains (i) approvai for a variance, special exception or special use permit or
(ii} a full building permit; and '

b. Satisfies paragraph a. above prior to the effective date of any land
development regulation amendment where there was an unfavorable
recommendation by the planning and zoning board with respect to the land
development regulation amendment or when the planning and zoning board
recommends favorably but the town commission fails to adopt the amendment
within the specified 90 day period,

then the project shall be presumed to have received a favorable determination and the subject land
development regulation amendment shall not be enforced against such application or project.

(3) If an applicant does not qualify under subsections (1) or (2) of this section (a) for a
presumption of a favorable determination to avoid enforcement of adopted amendments
against an application or project, then applicant may seek a determination from a court
of competent jurisdiction as to whether equitable estoppel otherwise exists. If, however,
an applicant fails to seek such determination, or if the court has made a determination
unfavorable to applicant and such determination is not reversed on furtherreview, then
the town shall fully enforce the adopted land development regulation amendment against
applicant's application or project.

(4) Any presumption of a favorable determination under subsections (1) and (2) of this
section (a), or any favorable determination under subsection (3) of this section (a), shall

Page 134 :
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/142/147 6/19/2006



DIVISION 5. PROPOSED }?MENDMENTS Page 2 of 3
{

lapse contemporaneously with the failure, denial, expiration, withdrawal or substantial
amendment of the application, approval or permit reiative to the project or application to
which the favorable determination is applied.

(5) For purposes of this section (a), all references to obtaining approval of a variance,
special exception or special use permit shall mean the meeting date at which the town
commission approves such application. For purposes of this section (a), "substantial
amendment” shall mean an amendment or modification (or a proposed amendment or
modification) to an application, approval or permit which, in the determination of the town
manager, is sufficiently diflerent from the original application or request that
theamendment would require submission of a new application or request for approval.
All references to obtaining a building permit shall mean the date of issuance of the
permit.

(6) After submission of a completed application for a project approval, to the extent a
proposed amendment to land development regulations would, upon adoption, render the
application nonconforming, then the town or any appropriate town board shall not
approve, process ot consider an application unless and untit (i) the project has cured the
nonconformity or the applicant acknowledges that the town shall fully enforce the
adopted land development regulation amendment against the applicant's application or
project; (i) the project qualifies under subsections (1) or (2), and subject to subsection
(4) of this section (a) above; or; (iii) a favorable determination is made by a court. Except
as otherwise provided herein, any proceeding or determination by any town employee,
department, agency or board after a project becomes nonconforming shall not be
deemed a waiver of the town's right to enforce any adopted land development regulation
amendment.

(b) Amendments to the comprehensive plan shall be enforced against all applications or
requests for project approval upon the earlier of favorable recommendation by the planning and
zoning board or the applicable effective date of the comprehensive pian amendment, as more
particularly provided below. After submission of a completed application for a project approval,
to the extent a proposed amendment to the comprehensive plan would, upon adoption, render
the application nonconforming, then the following procedure shall apply to all applications
considered by the town or any appropriate town board:

(1) In the event applicant:

a. Obtains (i) approval for a variance, special exception or special use permit or
(i) a full building permit; and

b. Satisfies paragraph a. above prior to a favorable recommendation by the
planning and zoning board with respect to any comprehensive plan amendment
that is adopted by the town commission within 120 days after receiving
comments on the transmitted proposed amendment from the Department of
Community Affairs,

then the project shall be presumed to have received a favorable determination that equitable estoppel
applies and the subject comprehensive plan amendment shall not be enforced against the application
or project (hereinafter, "favorable determination"). If the town commission fails to adopt a resolution
providing for transmittal of the proposed amendment to the Department of Community Affairs, or rejects
the amendment within 90 days after a favorable recommendation by the planning and zoning board or
failsto enact or rejects the amendment within 120 days after receiving comments on the transmitted
proposed amendment from the Department of Community Affairs, then the project shall no longer be
deemed nonconforming.

(2) In the event applicant:

a. Obtains (i) approval for a variance, special exception or special use permit or
(ii) a full building permit; and

Page 135
hitp://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/142/147 6/19/2006



DIVISION 5. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS Page 3 of 3
{ {

b. Satisfies paragraph a. above prior to the effective date of any comprehensive
plan amendment where there was an unfavorable recommendation by the
planning and zoning board with respect to the comprehensive plan amendment,
or when the planning and zoning board recommends favorably but the town
commission rejects the amendment within the specified 90 day period, or the
town commission fails to enact or rejects the amendment within 120 days after
reviewing comments on the transmitted proposed amendment from the
Department of Community Affairs,

then the project shall be presumed to have received a favorable determination and the subject
comprehensive plan amendment shall not be enforced against such application or project.

(3) In the event an applicant does not qualify under subsections (1) or (2) of this section
(b) for a presumption of a favorable determination to avoid enforcement of adopted
amendments against an application or project, then applicant may seek a determination
from a court of competent jurisdiction as to whether equitable estoppel otherwise exists.
If, however, an applicant fails to seek such determination, or if the court has made a
determination unfavorable to applicant and such determination is not reversedon further
review, then the town shall fully enforce the comprehensive plan amendment against
applicant's application or project.

(4) Any presumption of a favorable determination under subsections (1) and (2) of this
section (b), or any favorable determination under subsection (3) of this section (b), shall
lapse contemporaneously with the failure, denial, expiration, withdrawal or substantial
amendment of the application, approval or permit relative to the project or application to
which the favorable determination is applied.

(5) For purposes of this section (b), all references to obtaining approval of a variance,
special exception or special use permit shall mean the meeting date at which the town
commission approves such application. For purposes of this section (b), "substantial
amendment” shali mean an amendment or modification (or a proposed amendment or
modification) to an application, approval or permit which, in the determination of the town
manager, Is sufficiently different from the original application or request that
theamendment would require submission of a new application or request for approval.
All references to obtaining a building permit shall mean the date of issuance of the
permit.

(6) After submission of a completed application for a project approval, fo the extent a
proposed comprehensive plan amendment would, upon adoption, render the application
nonconforming, then the town or any appropriate town board shall not approve, process
or consider an application unless and until (i) the project has cured the nonconformity or
the applicant acknowledges that the town shall fully enforce the adopted comprehensive
plan amendment against the applicant's application or project; (ii} the project qualifies
under subsections (1) or (2), and subject to subsection (4) of this section (b) above; or;
(iii) a favorable determination is made by a court. Except as otherwise provided herein,
any proceeding or determination by any town employee, department, agency or board
after a project becomes nonconforming shall not be deemed a waiver of the town's right
to enforce any adopted comprehensive plan amendment.

{Ord. No. 1428, § 1, 6-11-02)

Secs. 90-101--90-120. Reserved.

Page 136
http://library3. municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/142/147 6/19/2006



ARTICLE III. ZONING DISTRICTS ESTABLISHED; ZONING MAP Page 1 of 2
( {

ARTICLE lll. ZONING DISTRICTS ESTABLISHED; ZONING MAP

Sec. 90-121. Districts established.

In order fo regulate and restrict the location of trades and residences, and the location of
buildings erected or altered for specific uses, to regulate or limit the height and buik of buildings
hereafter erected or structurally aitered, fo regulate and limit population density of same and the
intensity of the use of lot areas, and to regulate and determine the areas of yards, and other open
spaces within and surrounding such buildings, the following zoning districts are hereby established:

TABLE INSET:

RS Singie-family residential district

RS-1 Single-family residential district

RS-2 , Single-family residential district

RD-1 Two-family residential district

RD-2 Two-story multiple-family residential district
RM-1 Multiple-family residential district
RMO-1 Residential multifamily overlay district
RT-1 Tourist district

B-1 Business district

COA1 Commercial office overlay district

MU Municipal use disfrict

(Code 1960, § 18-4; Ord. No. 1430, § 1, 8-13-02)

Sec. 90-122. Identification of district maps.

Such land and the zoning district classification thereof shali be shown on a map designated as
the Zoning District Map of Surfside, Florida, dated June 12, 1990, and signed by the mayor and town
clerk of Surfside, Florida, upon adoption. This zoning district map and all notations, dimensions,
references, and symbols shown thereon pertaining to such districts shall be as much a part of these
regulations as if fully described herein, and shall be filed as part of these regulations by the clerk of the
town. Such map shall be available for public inspection in the offices of the town clerk and the town
manager and any later alterations to this map, adopted by amendment as provided in these regulations,
shall be similarly dated, filed, and made available for public reference.

(Code 1960, § 18-5; Ord. No. 1430, § 2, 8-13-02)

Sec. 90-123. Interpretation of district boundaries.

(a) Map symbols. A district name or letter-number combination shown on the district maps
indicates that the regulations pertaining to the district designated by that name or letter-number
combination extend throughout the whole area in the municipality bounded by the district
boundary lines which such name or letter-number combination is shown or indicated, except as
otherwise provided by this section.

Page 137
http://library3. municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/148 6/19/2006



ARTICLE M. ZONING DISTRICTS ESTABLISHED; ZONING MAP Page 2 of 2
{ .

{
{

(b} Interpretation. Where uncertainty exists with respect to the boundaries of the various
districts as shown on the map accompanying and made a part of these regulations, the
following rules shall apply:

(1) In cases where a boundary line is given a position adjacent to or within a street or
alley, easement, or canal, it shall be deemed to be in the center of the street, alley,
easement, or canal and if the actual location of such street, alley, easement or canal
varies slightly from the location as shown on the district map, then the actual location
shall control.

(2) In cases where a boundary line is shown as being located a specific distance from a
street line or other physical feature, this distance shall control.

(3) Where the district boundaries are not otherwise indicated and where the property
has been or may hereafter be resubdivided into blocks and lots, the district boundaries
shall be construed to be the lot lines, and where the districts designatied on the map
accompanying and made a part of these regulations are bounded approximately by lot
lines, such lot lines shalf be construed to be the boundary of such districts untess such
boundaries are otherwise indicated in the map or by ordinance.

(4) All water areas within the zoning jurisdiction are considered to be within a zoning
district and controlled by applicable district regulations. Straight line district boundaries
over water areas shall be assumed to continue as straight lines until they intersect with
each other or with the town limit line.

(Code 1960, § 18-6)

Secs. 90-124--90-144. Reserved.

Page 138
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/148 6/19/2006



ARTICLE IV. DISTRICT R]?IGULATIONS Page 1 of 15
i ' {

ARTICLE IV. DISTRICT REGULATIONS

Sec. 90-145. RS single-family residential district.

{(a) Purpose of the district. The purpose of the RS single-family residential district is to protect
the excellent character of single-family estate development now prevailing throughout parts of
the town by preventing encroachment of incompatible uses. The RS single-family residential
district requires a very large floor area and a very large lot area that conform to an established
pattern of the development. _

(b) Permitted uses. A building or land shall be used only for the following purposes:

(1) Detached single-family dwellings, subject to the following restrictions and
limitations, as follows: '

a. No structure shall be used or permitted to be used and no structure shall be
hereafter erected, constructed, moved, reconstructed, structurally altered or
maintained for any purpose which is designed, arranged or intended to be used
or ocoupied for any purpose other than as a one-family residence, including
every customary use not inconsistent therewith.

b. Every use not specifically authorized and permitted is prohibited and nothing
herein shall authorize or be consfrued to permit the renting of a room or a portion
of the property or improvement; or, to permit the use of any part of the premises
as a business, office or establishment for the purpose of carrying on any
business or the practice of rendering personal, trade or professional services.

c. An accessory or subordinate building, attached or detached from the main
premises in a single-family district,-shall be construed to permit the use of such
building for the purposes of garages, cabanas, storage and home workshops
{non-commercial). However, nothing herein shall authorize or be construed to
permit the occupancy or the use of any accessory building or structure, as a
place of abode or dwelling, and no cooking facilities shall be permitted.

d. No building or buildings shall be altered by adding an exterior door to such
building or buildings, nor shall any addition be constructed to any building or
buildings which would add an exterior door; except that in the addition of an
enclosed porch or Florida room, an exterior door may be installed on the wall
facing the rear yard. When a garage is converted for any other use, the garage
door or doors shall be replaced by a solid exterior wall and access to the former
garage area shall be from the main premises only. At least one window shall be
provided. It is intended hereby to prohibit and prevent any violation of the single-
family classification and to minimize the burden upon the administrative forces of
the town in policing and enforcing the provisions hereof.

(2) Public parks and playgrounds.
(c) Permitted accessory uses.
(1) Boat docks and boat moorings for private use only.

(2) Domestic storage, including automobiles in a main building or in an accessory
building.

(3) Home barbecue grills, swimming pools and game courts for the use of residents
and guests.

Page 139 _
http://Iibra1y3_.municode.com/mcc/DocView/ 10940/1/140/149 6/19/2006



ARTICLE IV. DISTRICT ?’“GULATIONS Page 2 of 15

(4) Temporary building incidental to new construction, which building shall be removed
upon completion of new construction.

(d) Height, area and yard requirements. Maximum height regulations and minimum
requirements for floor and lot area and for yards are contained in section 90-155.

(e) Nonconforming lots. Anything in this section to the contrary notwithstanding, all lawfully
platted lots with less than 75 feet frontage, under single ownership and not contiguous to other
property owned or controlled by the same property owner as of July 1, 2002, may be used for
improvements that conform in all other respects to applicable zoning regulations.

(Ord. No. 1430, § 3, 8-13-02; Ord. No. 1432, § 1, 9-10-02; Ord. No. 1448, § 2, 1-13-04})

Sec. 90-146. RS-1 and RS-2 single-family residential districts.

(a) Purpose of the district. The purpose of the RS-1 and RS-2 single-family residential districts
is to protect the excellent character of single-family development now prevailing throughout
much of the town by preventing encroachment of noxious and incompatible uses. The RS-
single-family district requires a larger floor area and lot area which conforms to the established
pattern of the development. The RS-2 district permits smaller lot areas and is related to lot sizes
occupied by the majority of the single-family residences.

(b) Permitted uses. A building or land shall be used only for the following purposes:

(1) Detached single-family dwellings, subject to the following restrictions and
limitations, as follows:

a. No structure shall be used or permitted to be used and no structure shall be
hereafter erected, constructed, moved, reconstructed, structurally altered or
maintained for any purpose which is designed, arranged or intended to be used
or occupied for any purpose other than as a one-family residence, including
every customary use not inconsistent therewith.

b. Every use not specifically authorized and permitted is prohibited and nothing
herein shall authorize or be construed to permit the renting of a room or a portion
of the property or improvement; or, to permit the use of any part of the premises
as a business, office or establishment for the purpose of carrying on any
business or the practice of rendering personal, trade or professional services.

¢. An accessory or subordinate building, attached or detached from the main
premises in a single-family district, shall be construed to permit the use of such
building for the purposes of garages, cabanas, storage and home workshops
(non-commercial). However, nothing herein shall authorize or be construed to
permit the occupancy or the use of any accessory building or structure, as a
place of abode or dwelling, and no cooking facilities shall be permitted.

d. No building or buildings shall be altered by adding an exterior door to such
building or buitdings, nor shall any addition be constructed to any building or
buildings which would add an exterior door; except that in the addition of an
enclosed porch or Florida room, an exterior door may be installed on a
nonbearing wall facing the rear yard. When a garage is converted for any other
use, the garage door or doors shall be replaced by a solid exterior wall and
access to the former garage area shall be from themain premises only. At least
one window shall be provided. It is intended hereby to prohibit and prevent any
violation of the single-family classification and to minimize the burden upon the
administrative forces of the fown in policing and enforcing the provisions hereof.

(2) Public parks and playground's.

Page 140
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/2006



ARTICLE IV, DISTRICT REGULATIONS ) Page 3 of 15
{ {

(c) Permitted accessory uses.
(1) Boat docks and boat moorings for private use only.

(2) Domestic storage, including automobiles in a main building or in an accessory
building.

(3) Home barbecue grills, swimming pools and game courts for the use of residents
and guests.

(4) Temporary building incidental to new construction, which building shall be removed
upon completion of new construction.

(d) Height, area and yard requirements. Maximum height regulations and minimum
requirements for floor and lot area and for yards are contained in section 90-155.

(Code 1960, § 18-18; Ord. No. 1374, § 2, 7-8-97; Ord. No. 1447, § 2, 12-0-03)

Sec. 90-147. RD-1 two-family residential district.

(a) Purpose of the district. The purpose of the RD-1 two-family residential district is to provide
for both single-family and two-family residences, and in certain instances for more intensive
residential uses along the east side of Harding Avenue, but building heights shall be limited to
two stories o protect nearby single-family residences.

(b) Permitted uses. A building or land shall be used only for the following purposes:
(1) Any use permitted in the RS-1 and RS-2 single-family residential districts.
{2) Two-family dwellings.

(3) The owner of 75 feet or more of property along the east side of Harding Avenue
may erect a multiple-family building.

(¢) Permitted accessory uses. Any accessory use permitted in the RS-1 and RS-2 single-
family residential districts.

(d) Permitted conditional uses. Those uses which may be permitted as conditional uses shall
be only those described under subsections 90-41(b)(1), 90-41(b)(2), 90-41(b)(3), 90-41(b)(4)
and 80-41(b)(5). '

(e) Height area and yard requirements. Maximum height regulations and minimum
requirements for floor and lot area and for yards are contained in section 80-155.

(Code 1960, § 18-19)

Sec. 90-148. RD-2 two-story multiple family residential district.

(a) Purpose of the district. The purpose of the RD-2 two-story mulitiple family residential district
is to provide for moderate density residential development in buildings not more than two stories
in height.

(b) Permitted uses. A building or land shall be used only for the following purposes:
(1) Any use permitted in the RS-1 and RS-2 single-family residential districts.
(2) Two-family dweilings.
(3) Multiple-family dwellings.
(c) Permitted accessory uses. Any accessory use permitted in the RS-1 and RS-2 single-

Page 141
http:/library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/2006



ARTICLE IV, DISTRICT REGULATIONS Page 4 of 15
{

family residential districts.

(d) Height area and yard requirements. Maximum height regulations and minimum
requirements for floor and lot area and for yards are contained in section 80-155.

(Code 1960, § 18-20)

Sec. 90-149. RM-1 mulitiple-family residential district.

(a) Purpose of the district. The purpose of the RM-1 multiple-family residential district is to
encourage a good standard of rental living units that will accommodate both tourists and
yearround residents. However, no services or sales to guests shall be permitted within buitdings
within this district.

(b) Permitted uses. A building or land may be used only for the following purposes:
(1) Any use permitted in the RD-1 two-family residential district.
(2) Multiple-family dwellings.
(3) Motels.

(4) Suite-motels, but only for buildings newly-constructed or converted to suite-motels
on or after June 1, 1999, No building shall convert from another use to a suite-motel
unless it meets all requirements for a suite-motel, including but not limited to all zoning
requirements of this Code.

(c) Permitted accessory uses.

(1) Any accessory use permitted in the RS-t and RS-2 single-family residential
disfricts.

(2) An office containing an area of not more than two percent of the gross floor area of
the building for administration of rental units in a building containing ten or more living
units,

(3) Lounges, card rooms and auxiliary kitchens which are solely for the use of residents
and guests. :

(4) A laundry room for the use of residents and guests of a multiple-family dwelling.
Coin-operated laundry machines may be utilized.

(5) Coin-operated vending machines such as for candy, tobacco, ice, soft drinks and
sundries inside a building containing ten or more living units or guest rooms.

(6) Off-street parking and loading facilities.

(7) Swimming pools, cabanas and game courts for the use of guests of the hotel, motel
or residential development.

(d) Permitted conditional uses. Those uses which may be permitted as conditional uses shall
be only those described under subsections 90-41(b)(3), 80-41(b)(4) and 90-41(b)(5).

(e) Height, area and yard requirements. Maximum height regulations and minimum
requirements for floor and lot area and for yards are contained in section 90-155.

(Code 1960, § 18-21; Ord. No. 1400, § 4, 5-11-99; Ord. No. 1404, § 2, 6-8-99)

Sec. 90-150. Reserved.

Editor's note: Ord. No. 1395, § 1, adopted Feb. 9, 1999, repealed § 90-150 in its entirety. Formerly,
said section pertained to RMO-1 Residential multifamily overlay district. See the Code Comparative

Page 142
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/2006



ARTICLE IV. DISTRICT ?“GULATIONS Page Sof 15

Table.

Sec. 90-151. RT-1 tourist district.

(a) Purpose of the district. The purpose of the RT-1 tourist district is to provide facilities that
will afford convenience for tourists and enable intensive use of the ocean frontage. Tall buildings
are permitted but ample open space is required around such buildings.

(b) Permitted uses. A building or land shall be used for the following purposes:

(1) Any uses permitted in the RM-1 multifamily residential district except that no
churches or synagogues shall be permitted.

(2) Private ciubs.
(3) Hotels and motels.

(4) Hotels and motels may provide a barbershop, beauty parlor, dining room, and
coffee shop, bar or cocktail lounge, telegraph office, tobacco, candy, and newsstand,
automobile rentals where rental vehicles are not kept on premises, ready to wear shops,
travel agencies, gift and sundry shops, coin operated machines as defined in section 70-
33, washing machines as defined in section 70-33, and marble, coin or amusement
machines (other than gambling devices), and diet and health spas providing services
solely toguests; provided, however, that such facilities may be entered only from the
inside of the structure and there shall be no window or evidence of such facilities from
outside the hotel or motel except as provided in section 90-209(b)(1)b.

(5) Suite-hotels, but only for buildings newly-constructed or converted to suite-hotels on
or after June 1, 1999. No building shall convert from another use to a suite-hotel unless
it meets all requirements for a suite-hotel, including but not limited to all zoning
requirements of this Code.

(6) Suite-motels, but only for buildings newly-constructed or converted to suite-motels
on or after June 1, 1999. No building shall convert from another use to a suite-motel
unless it meets all requirements for a suite-motel, including but not fimited to all zoning
requirements of this Code. _

(c) Permitted accessory uses.
(1) Any accessory use permitted in the RM-1 multifamily residential district.

(2) Swimming pools, cabanas and game courts for the use of guests of the hotel, motel
or apartment.

(3) Off-street parking and loading facilities.

(d) Height, area, yard and bulk requirements. Maximum height regulations and minimum
requirements for floor and lot area and for yards are contained in section 90-155.

(e) Permitted conditional uses. Those uses which may be permitted as conditional uses shall
be only those described under subsection 90-41(b)(6).

(Code 1960, § 18-23; Ord. No. 1400, § 5, 5-11-89; Ord. No. 1408, § 1, 1-11-00)

Sec. 90-152. B-1 business district.

(a)} Purpose of the district. The purpose of the B-1 business district is to provide for retail
shopping and personal service needs of the town's residents and tourists. it is intended to
prevent uses and activities which might be noisy, offensive, obnoxious or incongruous in

Page 143
http://library3.municode.com/mce/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/2006



ARTICLE IV. DISTRICT l?“GULATIONS Page 6 of 15

behavior, tone or appearance and which might be difficult to police.

(b) Permitted uses. No building or land within this district shall be used In whole or in part
except for one or more of the following permitted uses:

(1) Artagencies:
Antique shops.
Gift shops.

Art dealers.
Art supplies.

L L A

Photographers and camera stores.

Th

Art and photograph galleries.
(2) Bakeries, subject however, to the following restrictions and conditions:

a. That no baking shall be done on the premises for other retail or wholesale
outlets.

b. That ovens or oven capacity is limited in total usable baking space, not to
exceed in volume 18 standard pans of 18 by 26 inches in width and length.

¢. That adjoining properties shall be safeguarded and protected from exhaust
fan or other obnoxious noises and odors at all times.

d. That all baking will be done by the use of electric or natural gas (not bottied
gas) ovens only.

e. All machinery and equipment shall be entirely confined within the main
building.

f. That the hours of baking operation shall be limited to those hours between
6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.

g. That the entire store area shall be fully air-conditioned as required for
comfort.

h. That baking shall not be permitted within 20 feet of the store front, and shall
be separated from the sales area by a partition or counter.

(3) Barbershops.

(4) Beauty parlors: Exterior windows on the ground floor shall be screened, curtained or
otherwise made opaque four feet six inches from the grade of the adjacent sidewalk so
as to block the view of the interior premises from the public right-of-way. However, such
screening shall not be required where only hair styling and manicures are performed
within 20 feet of the public right-of-way.

(5) Business and professional offices, except veterinary offices.
(6) Clothing stores and services:
a. Men's, women's, children's clothing.
Millinery.
Tailor.
Shoes.

® 2 o T

. Dry cleaning and laundry agency, provided all machinery which provides
cleaning or laundry services shall be separated from customer areas by a

Page 144 _
hitp://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/2006



ARTICLE IV. DISTRICT R™3ULATIONS : ' Page 7 of 15
1

partition or counter and no customers shall be permitted to use such machinery.
In addition, all drycleaning machinery shall be nonventilated, sealed system type
machinery in which "Fluorocarbon R-113" type solvents are used.

f. Furrier.

g. Shoe repair, provided no machinery for providing repairs shall be visible from
the sidewalk or street and no shoe repair shop shall be permitted on Harding
Avenue.

h. Dry goods.
(7) Department stores.
(8) Entertainment:

a. Video tape sales and rentals, provided all tapes sold are prerecorded, and all
tapes are rated either G, PG, PG-13, or R.

b. Caterers.
¢. General ticket agencies.
d. Theatre and cinema.

(9) Existing filling station on the unnumbered lot at the southwest comer of Block 4,
Altos Del Mar No. 6,

(10) Food products, provided that no sales shall be made through an open window to
any street, alley, driveway or sidewalk:

a. Delicatessens.
b. Restaurants.
c. Candy and nut shops.

d. Grocery and meat stores or supermarkets, provided no live meat or poultry
shall be kept on the premises.

e. Confectionery and ice cream stores.
f. Fruit shops,
g. Liquor stores.

(11) General or special merchandise:

a. Toys.

b. Hardware, paint and wallpaper.

¢. lLuggage.

d. Office machines and supplies.

e. Pet supplies.

f. Stationery and greeting cards.

g. F_urniture, provided no repairing or servicing of furniture is permitted on the
premises.

h. Jewelry.

i. Flowers and plants.

j. Sporting goods.

Page 145
http://library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/2006



ARTICLE IV, DISTRICT %?"“‘GULATIONS ' Page 8 of 15

k. Drug stores and sundries.
{. Cigars and tobacco.
m. Books and newspapers.
n. Appliances.
o. Pottery.
p. Interior decorator.
- {12) Locksmith, except on Harding Avenue.
(13) Monetary services:
a. Banks.
b. Savings and loan associations.
c. Stock and bond brokers.
d. Currency exchange.
(14) Music:
a. Sale of televisions, radios, phonograph and recording equipment.
b. Sheet music and musical instruments.
(15) Public services:
a. Telegraph station.
b. Telephone exchange.
(16) Travel agency.

(17) Coin-operated machines. Coin-operated machines for dispensing goods or
services are permitted, except that washing machines, dryers and other laundry-related
equipment are prohibited. No coin-operated games of chance are permitted, but coin-
operated games of skill are permitted within establishments solely dispensing liquor, as
defined in chapter 6, for consumption on the premises only; provided, however, that not
more than three such games of skill are permitted in any such establishment, and that
such games shall not be used for wagering nor for the awarding of prizes of any vaiue.

(18) The following uses shall be permitted throughout this district, provided such uses
shall be located above the first floor level:

a. Dance or music instruction studios, provided such studios meet all of the
following restrictions and conditions:

1. That the premises be air conditioned and soundproofed.

2. That no dance instruction or dancing shall be visible from any
sidewalk, street or alley.

3. That the opening and closing hours for such studios may be
established by the town commission at its discretion at any time.

b. Delivery service.

c. Driving school offices, provided such use shall be limited to offices only, and
shall not be interpreted in any manner as permitting the conduct of any such
school's or schools' business, activities or functions upan the public streets of the
town.

Page 146
http:/library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/20006



ARTICLE IV, DISTRICT I?W}ULATIONS _ Page 9 of 15

d. Employment agencies, provided that such agencies maintain at all times
sufficient office space to accommaodate all applicants for employment using their
services and obviate the congregating or loitering of such applicants in any
hallway or on any sidewalk.

e. Health studio or club, or reducing salon.

f. Loanor moﬁgage office.

g. Medical or dental clinic.

h. Modeling school, language school, or athletic instruction.
i. Private club or lodge hall.

j. Radio or television station or studio.

k. Secretarial service, mailing, bookkeeping, court reporter.
|. Taxi agency.

m. Title company.

(¢) Permitted accessory uses in the B-1 disirict. Any subordinate building or use which is
clearly incidental to and customary in connection with the main building or use, provided there
shall be no open storage of products and materials, including garbage and debris, on any lot.

(d) Business conduct in the B-1 district. All of the above uses permitted in the B-1 districts,
other than off-street parking and the existing filling station, shall be conducted entirely within a
completely enclosed building and for the purposes of this section, the display of merchandise
shall be construed to be part of, and incidental to, the conduct of business.

(e) Uses not specifically listed in the B-1 district. Any use not included in the listing under
subsection (b) of this section is prohibited. However, any use not listed above, but having the
same general characteristics and of such nature that the same would not lower the standards of
the area, may be permitted provided such use is granted a special use exception under the
provisions of section 90-94.

(f) Height, area and yard requirements in the B-1 district. Maximum height regulations and
minimum requirements for floor and lot area and for yards are contained in section 90-155.

(g) Awnings, canopies or canopy valances In the B-1 district. After the effective date of this
section, no awnings, canopies or canopy valances shall be erected except those of the following
colors: beige, black, blue, brown, green, grey, pink, red, white or yellow. No more than two of
the foregoing colors shall be used in any one awning, canopy or canopy valance. No neon,
fluorescent, "dayglo" or similar type of colors shall be used. All awnings shall be made of a cloth
or plastic fabric.

Awnings or canopies shall not extend more than six feet over the public right-of-way, measured
from the adjacent property line, and shall be at least eight feet in height above the pavement. Such
awnings or canopies shall be entirely supported from the face of the structure they serve, and shall fuily
conform to all requirements of the South Florida Building Code.

(Code 1960, § 18-24; Ord. No. 1333, § 1, 12-14-93)

Sec. 90-153. NCS-0 neighborhood commercial services overlay district.

(a) Purpose and intent of the district. The purpose of the NCS-O neighborhood commercial
services overlay district is to provide for the foodstuffs and comestibles conveniently needed to
serve the town's residents and tourists. It is intended that this district will complement and
expand the flexibility of existing underlying commercial, residential and tourist zoning districis to

Page 147 .
http:/library3.municode.com/mee/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/2006



ARTICLE IV, DISTRICT I(QDGULATIONS Page 10 of 15

assure the continued availability of neighborhood-serving grocery establishments that meet the
daily needs of the town, typically requiring easy and convenient accessby pedestrians and local
automobile traffic. This district is to be located only in areas served by collector and arterial
roadways with convenient access to town residential and tourist neighborhoods and directly
accessible by public transportation systems, and whose site location complies with the
standards and criteria set forth herein.

(b} Effect of the NCS-O district designation. The effect of these NCS-O regulations shall be to
modify regulations within portions of the zoning districts included within the NCS-O boundaries,
but only to the extent indicated herein.

(c) Permitted uses in the NCS-O district. Uses permitted by underlying zoning districts shall be
unchanged and subject to the regulations of the underlying zoning. In addition, no building or
land within this district and subject to the provisions of this district shall be used in whole or in
part except for the following permitted use, provided such use is granted a special use permit
under the provisions of section 80-94:

Grocery supermarkets, provided no live meat, poultry or fish, except seafood, shall be kept on
the premises, and individual establishments shall not be less than 20,000 square feet or more
than 29,500 square feet in air conditioned floor area and not more than 33,000 square feet in
gross floor area. Grocery Supermarkets shall be full-service providers of foodstuffs and
comestibles, which shall include:

(1) Delicatessen,

(2) Bakery, subject however, to the restrictions and limitations provided in section 80-
152(b)(2),

(3) Fresh seafood,
(4) Fresh fruits and vegetables,
(5) Butcher shop with meats cut-to-order.

Other food, beverage (including beer and wine solely for consumption off premises) and
pharmaceutical goods may be sold, including an outdoor food court, provided the above listed
items are included. An establishment vending primarily packaged, canned or bulk food items
shall not be construed to be grocery supermarket full-service provider.

No sales shall be made through a window or other opening to any street, alley, driveway or
sidewalk.

(d) Permitted accessory uses in the NCS-O district. Parking and loading clearly incidental to
and customary in connection with the main building or use, provided there shall be no open
storage of products or materials, including garbage or debris, on any property.

(e) Business conduct in the NCS-O district. All of the above uses permitted in the NCS-O
district, other than off-street parking and loading, shall be conducted entirely within a completely
enclosed building, and only for the purposes of this section.

() Activities not specifically listed in the NCS-O district. Subject to subsection (¢) above and
the permitted accessory uses of underlying zoning districts, for the purposes of this district, any
activity not included in the listing of permitted district uses in this section is prohibited. However,
any activity not so listed, but having the same general characteristics, and that is normally and
customarily included in the functions of a grocery supermarket and that would not lower the
standards of the area and still comply with the purpose and intent of the district, may be
permitted.

(g) Height, area and yard requirements in the NCS-O district. Maximum height shall be three
stories and 40 feet. Minimum requirements for floor area, lot area and yards shall be as
provided in the underlying zoning districts.

Page 148
http:/library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/20006



ARTICLE TV. DISTRICT I[?“GULATIONS : Page 11 of 15

(h) District location standards. The NCS-O district may be applied as an overlay only to B-1,
RD-2, RM-1, RS-2 and MU zoning districts, and only when all of the following conditions are
met:

(1) To assure concentration and compatibility of commercial services and
reinforcement of the existing town commercial center, not less than 2/3 of the gross
square footage of any structure permitted pursuant to this section shall be located within
the B-1 district, and providing the principal building entrance be located facing Harding
Avenue. In no event shail the gross building square footage constructed in all districts
exceed by more than 15 percent the maximum permitted in the B-1 district portion of
theNCS-0 district.

(2) Any portion of the NCS-O district that overlays an RS-2 district shall be located not
more than 50 feet from the B-1 district portion of the overlay district (as measured by a
straight line between their closest points to each other), and shall be utilized solely for
employee surface parking, subject to meeting all yard setbacks and landscape buffering
requirements with no variances.

(3) To avoid concentrations of vehicular traffic at peak use periods and burdens on
available public parking facilities, no permitted uses may be located within 500 feet of
each other (as measured by a straight line between their closest points to each other).

(4) To assure a compact pedestrian environment and pedestrian safety and security, a
permitted use shall be a contiguous parcel of not less than 65,000 square feet.

(i) Parking standards. Minimum parking requirements shall be as provided in section 80-226.

() Special use permit required. All applications for a building permit shall require the prior
approval of a special use permit in accordance with the provisions of section 90-94.

(Ord. No. 1423, § 2, 9-11-01)

Sec. 90-154. MU municipal use district,

(a) Purpose of the district. Upon ownership of any property by the town, such property shall
automatically be included within a MU municipal use district.

(b) Permitted uses. The specific use shall be determined in accordance with the town's
comprehensive plan and under the regulations set forth for special permits. No land, water, air
or structure may be used in whole or in part, except for one or more of the foilowing uses:

(1) Publicly owned and operated recreational facilities, playgrounds, playfields, and
parks.

(2) Public and governmental buildings, services and uses such as governmental office,
police station, fire station, library, museum, auditorium.

(3) Municipal parking areas, parking structures, vehicle and equipment storage,
maintenance and service areas.

{4) Public utilities or public service structures or appurtenances.

(5) Any use similar to those listed above and in accordance with the comprehensive
plan for the specific area under construction.

(6) Accessory uses for the above uses.
(c) Lot size. There shall be no minimum lot area or minimum frontage requirement.

(d) Required setbacks. The minimum setback requirements shall be determined by the
adjacent use district or districts and shall be consistent with setback requirements for similar

Page 149
http:/Aibrary3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/2006



ARTICLE V. DISTRICT ](?DGULATIONS _ Page 12 of 15

uses as designated in this chapter.
(e) Maximum building height. There shall be no maximum building height.
(f) Maximum floor area. There shall be no maximum floor area.

(@) Maximum density. Maximum density applies only to residential uses and shall be
determined by the adjacent use district or districts and shall be consistent with maximum
densities of similar uses as designated in these regulations.

(Code 1960, § 18-26)

Sec. 90-155. District regulations tables.

TABLE |1

Height, area and bulk requirements for the various districts shall be as indicated in the chart below
together with the use, height and bulk regulations contained elsewhere in this chapter.

TABLE INSET:

Minimum Lot Mit
Requirements
Maximum Height —
Lot Area
per
Dwelling Lot Eﬁ
District Unit in Width Stories Feet Ya
Square in Feet in i
Feet
Single-
RS family 11,250 |75 2 35 30
residential !
Single-
family
RS-1 residential 8,000 50 2 30 20
Single-
family )
RS-2 residential 5,600 50 2 30 20
RD-1 Residential
Singte- 5,000 50 2 30 20
family
Two-family | 540 50 2 30 20
Multifamily 1 5 500 75 2 30 20
Page 150

http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/2006



ARTICLE IV. DISTRICT I?UGULATIONS Page 13 of 15

Multifamily
RD-2 residential
Single-
Two-family 2,500 50 9 30 00
Multifamily 1,200 75 P 0 20
Multifamily
RM-1 residential
Single-
family 5,000 50 2 30 20
Two-family 2,500 50 9 30 20
Multifamily 750 75 3 10 20
Hotel and
motel | 400 100 3 ‘ 40 20
Multifamily All
RMO-1 residential stn
Single-
family
townhouse | 220 150 2 3 30
Two-family 1st
550 150 2 3 30 20
Multifamily 2n¢
550 160 2 5 60 o
3rc
(H¢
-5C
3rc
(Ce
20
Sic
ant
(He
-7¢
Stc
an
(Cc
30
RT-1 Tourist 3
Multifamily | 400 100 12 120 40

Page 151
http:/library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/2006



ARTICLE 1V. DISTRICT %?“-GULATIONS Page 14 of 15

Hotel and .
motel - 180 12 120 40
No
dwelling No No
B-1 Business units minimum | 3 40
. rec
permitted
CO-1 Commercial
office
Multifamily } 25 100 5 60 20
Hotel/motel 400 100 5 60 20
Office
building 100 5 60 20

1 A dash (-} indicates no applicable regulation.

2 -However, the minimum lot width on through lots running from Collins Avenue to Harding Avenue
shall be 100 feet provided such minimum width is continuous from Coliins to Harding Avenue.

3 On those lots and parcels within this district where construction is regulated by the State of Florida
Coastal Construction Code, swimming pools and their associated decks may be constructed at any lot
or parcel west of the ocean bulkhead line, provided such structures and their adjacent decks do not
project more than eight feet above grade. Lot area in this district shall be measured from the front
property line to the ocean bulkhead line.

4 Whenever a lot abuts upon a public alley, one-half of the alley width may be considered as a portion
of the required yard; however, a required yard of ten feet shall be provided exclusive of the alley width,
and no portion of any building, including allowable encroachments, shall be permitted within ten feet of
any alley.

5 Any property on which a foundation was commenced prior to June 1, 1992, is subject to a minimum
front yard depth of 25 feet.

6 As modified by sections 90-178, 90-179.

7 The number of efficiencies in any building shall not exceed ten percent of the total number of
dwelling units in said building. An efficiency is a dwelling unit of not less than 600 square feet,
consisting of a combination living room/bedroom, with small or auxiliary rooms such as kitchenette,
breakfast nook and bath, arranged so as to consist of only one habitable room. See Table .

8 On lots or parcels within this district, the minimum depth of a rear yard abutting Collins
Avenue, Harding Avenue or Abbott Avenue shall be 20 feet.

9 On lots or parcels within this district, the minimum width of a side yard abutting any east-west
street shall be 15 feet.

TABLE II. MINIMUM FLOOR AREA FOR APARTMENTS, HOTEL/SUITE-HOTEL ROOMS AND
MOTEL/SUITE-MOTEL ROOMS

TABLE INSET:

Residential apartments
Efficiency | 600 square feet

Page 152
http://library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140/149 6/19/2006



ARTICLE 1V. DISTRICT l{?uGULATIONS

One-bedroom apartment

800 square feet

Two-bedroom apartment

950 square feet

Three-bedroom or more apartment

1,150 square feet

Minimum average unit size per building

1,000 square feet

Hotels and motels, each room

350 square feet

Suite-hotels and suite-moteis, for each room

525 square feet

Page 150f 15

(Code 1960, ch. 18, art, Va; Ord. No. 1279, § 1, 5-12-92; Ord. No. 1391, § 1, 10-13-98; Ord No. 1429,
§§ 1, 2, 8-13-02; Ord. No. 1430, § 4, 8-13-02; Ord. No. 1436, § 2, 1-14-03)

Secs. 90-156--90-175. Reserved,

Page 153
http:/library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/149

6/19/2006



ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMEI?""ARY REGULATIONS Page 1 of 16

ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS
DIVISION 1. GENERALLY

Sec. 90-176. Modifications of height regulations.

(a) In the RS-1, RS-2, RD-1 and RD-2 districts, cupolas, chimneys, flagpoles, and similar
architectural features occupying in the aggregate not more than one percent of the total roof
area, may be erected to a reasonable and necessary height, not to exceed an additional three
feet above the maximum building height established herein.

(b) In the RM-1, RMO-1, B-1 and CO-1 districts, spires, steeples, stair accessways, antennas,
cupolas, chimneys, flagpoles, ventilators, tanks, elevator equipment rooms and simifar
architectural features and/or mechanical spaces, occupying in the aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total roof area, and not used for human habitation, may be erected to a
reasonable and necessary height, not to exceed an additional 12 feet above the maximum
building height established herein.

(c) In the RT-1 district spires, steeples, stair accessways, antennas, cupolas, chimneys,
ftagpoles, ventilators, tanks, elevator equipment rooms and similar architectural features and/or
mechanical spaces, occupying in the aggregate not more than 30 percent of the total roof area,
and not used for human habitation, may be erected to a reasonable and necessary height, not
to exceed an additional 20 feet above the maximum building height established herein. Any
enclosure having a floor area of more than 15 square feet shall be constructed as required for
the main portion of the building. ’

(d) Regulations regarding stories, extensions in certain districts are as follows:

(1) An area in a RM-1, RMO-1, RT-1 or CO-1 district, at least 42 inches below grade,
that is used primarily for off-street parking spaces shall not be considered a story for the
purpose of determining the number of stories allowed in section 90-155.

(2) Underground facilities in an RT-1 district used primarily for off-street parking spaces
may extend into the side and rear yards to the property lines, provided the top surface of
such extensions is not more than five feet above grade. However, where such
extensions are used for driveways leading to building entrances, the top surface of such

. extensions shall not be more than eight feet above grade. In all cases the front yard
setback shall be landscaped in accordance with section 90-194.

(3) In the RT-1 district, where excavation is prohibited by state law or regulation, a
garage structure on grade and not exceeding ten feet in height shall not be considered a
story for the purpose of determining the number of stories allowed in section 80-155.

(e) In the RT-1 district, on lots or parcels where construction is regulated by the State of
Florida Coastal Construction Code, maximum height shall be measured from whatever elevation
is established by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection for the first floor.

() In the RM-1 district, lots with less than 75 feet of frontage may be used for multifamily
development as provided in this code with the following interdependent limitations and
requirements:

(1) A height limit of three residential floors plus one floor of parking (either at grade or
below grade) with a maximum building height of 40 feet.

Page 154
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151 6/19/2006



ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMEi{\,"“ARY REGULATIONS

Page 2 of 16

(2) Front setback shall be 25 feet, with other setbacks as stated in section 90-155, table

[, under RM-1, multifarmily.

(3) At least 60 percent of the front setback shall be landscaped, except as may be
otherwise approved by the fown commission. Lighting shall be provided as may be

required by the town manager.

(4) Parking is absolutely prohibited in any portion of the front yard area, but is permitted
in side and rear yards, subject to landscaping requirements imposed by the town

manager.

(5) Unit size minimum floor area shall be:

TABLE INSET:

Efficiency

None permitted

One bedroom

1,000 square feet

Two bedrooms

1,150 square feet

Three bedrooms

1,350 square feet

In order to qualify for these supplementary regulations, all of the above requirements and limitations

must be met without exception.
(Code 1960, § 18-27; Ord. No. 1318, § 1, 8-10-83; Ord. No. 1437, § 2, 1-14-03)

Sec. 90-177. Yards generally, allowable projections.

(a) Every part of a required yard shall be open to the sky, except ordinary projections of sills,
cornices, roof eaves and ornamental features may project not more than 24 inches into any
required yard.

(b) Moveable awnings may be placed over doors or windows and may project not more than
three feet into any required yard.

{c) In connéction with a single-family or two-family residence, air conditioning equipment, a
pool pump or other mechanical equipment may be located in a required side or rear yard,
provided such equipment is at least 15 feet from any other single-family or two-family residence
and is not visible from any street or waterway.

(d) In the RM-1 district on lots with less than 75 feet of frontage developed in accordance with
the supplementary regulations provided in section 90-176(f), unenclosed balconies may extend
into a required front yard not more than 2 1/2 feet.

(e) In all districts except the RT-1 district, open, unenclosed building entrance porches,
platforms or paved terraces, not covered by a roof or canopy, and which do not extend above
the level of the grade or entrance floor of the building, may extend or project into the required
front or side yard not more than six feet.

(f) In the RT-1 district, open unenclosed balconies may extend into a required front, side or
rear-yard not more than five feet. However, provided a special use permit is obtained in
accordance with section 90-94, for the purpose of encouraging architectural creativity and
break-up of building mass: for any "unbuiit" building area buildable as-of-right under the Code,
60 percent of such "unbuilt" area may be built, as open balconies, beyond the established five
feet balcony setback. Further provided:

(1) The total area of all balconies built shall not exceed 65 percent of the total area of
all balconies buildable as-of-right under the code; and

Page 155
http:/library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151 6/19/2006



ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMEI?""ARY REGULATIONS Page 3 of 16

(2) Maximum extension of balconies shall not exceed three feet beyond the established
five fest.

(g) Provided a special use permit is obtained in accordance with section 80-94, in the RT-1
district, for the purpose of creating architectural landmarks and icons and for the protection of
pedestrian and vehicular traffic, a cantilevered canopy will be permitted in the required front
yard, subject to the following:

(1) The structure must be completely supported (cantilevered) from the main structure;

(2) The structure must be transparent in nature with a solid to transparent materiai ratio
of no more than 35 percent solid to 65 percent transparent;

(3) The structure must not exceed 30 feet in width; and
(4) The structure must not extend more than 20 feet in the required front yard.

(Code 1960, § 18-28; Ord. No. 1319, § 1, 8-10-93; Ord. No, 1370, § 1, 7-8-97; Ord. No. 1417, § 2, 7-
10-01)

Sec. 90-178. Modification of front yard regulations.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in these regulations on through lots, the required front yards
shall be provided on each street.

(b) In lieu of that stated in section 90-155, table |, the required front yard setback applicable to
Lots 10 through 18, Biock 2, and Lots 11 through 20, Block 3, Normandy Beach Subdivision,
Second Amended, shall be ten feet from Collins Avenue.

(Code 1960, § 18-28; Ord. No. 1373, § 1, 7-8-97)

Sec. 90-179. Modification of sice and rear yard regulations.

(a) The minimum width of side yards for libraries, churches and synagogues, recreational
centers and other public and semipublic buildings located within a residential district shall be 15
feet.

(b) In all districts other than the RT-1, B-1 and CO-1 districts, the required side yard setbacks
for corner lots adjoining a street, or north or south canals, shall be a minimum of ten feet from
the adjacent street or canal.

(c) In the RS-2 district, no building shall be erected within 25 feet of the seawall on Point Lake
nor within 50 feet of the sea wall on Biscayne Bay or on any iots in Blocks 26, 28 and 28A of the
Normandy Beach Subdivision, Second Amended.

(d) Inthe RT-1 district, when a building exceeds a height of 30 feet, the width of each side yard
shall be increased by one foot for every three feet of building height above 30 feet, provided,
however, on a corner lot the minimum width of the side yard adjoining a street need not exceed
20 feet.

(e) Where a lot abuts an established alley, the depth of the rear yard shall be seven feet.

(f) In the RS-1, RS-2, RD-1, RD-2, and RM-1 district each side yard, for lots or parcels in
excess of 50 feet in width, shall be a minimum of ten percent of the total width of such lot or
parcel.

{(g) When the first floor of a building in a RMO-1 district is used primarily for off-street parking
purposes, a side yard setback of ten feet and a rear yard setback of five feet shall be permitted
in lieu of that stated in section 90-155, table |, provided such setback area is well landscaped

Page 156
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151 6/19/2006



ARTICLE V. SU?PLEMEI?‘"“ARY REGULATIONS Page 4 of 16
N

and visual separation is provided between the parking areas and the adjacent properties. In
addition, a single-stair tower may project into the Harding Avenue setback not more than 20
feet, provided that the total encroachment per floor does not exceed 500 square feet.

(Code 1960, § 18-30)

Sec. 90-180. Maximum frontage and depth of buildings.

The intent of the maximum frontage and depth of buildings regulations is to preserve the
existing and historical scale and character of these zoning districts of moderate to high density lodgings
apartments and motels with typical 50-foot and 75-foot frontage in the RD-1, RD-2 and RM-1 districts
and beachfront apartments and hotels in the RT-1 district of 100-foot to 150-foot widths, accented with
front courtyards, landscaped terraces and through view corridors, and to foster compatible scale
relationshipswith abutting districts, so as to assure adequate light, air and open space within and
adjacent to these zoning districts.

(1) In the RD-1 and RD-2 districts, building walls facing a public right-of-way shall not
exceed 50 feet in length measured parallel to the public right-of-way. Maximum total
building width or depth shall not exceed 100 feet. Adjacent segments of the building wall
facing the public right-of-way shall vary in their setback by not less than 25 feet. Spaces
(with building walls on three sides) formed by such setbacks or recesses in the building
wall shall have a minimum width of 25 feet measured parallel to the public street right-of-
way. The open areas created by such setback variations shall be substantially
landscaped with over-story and under-story plant material further to reinforce the visual
separation of building wall segments and reduce the scale of the overall structure.

(2) In the RM-1 district, building walls facing a public right-of-way shall not exceed 75
feet in length measured parallel to the public right-of-way. Maximum total building width
or depth shall not exceed 150 feet. Adjacent segments of the building wall facing the
public right-of-way shall vary in their setback by not less than 25 feet. Spaces (with
building wails on three sides) formed by such setbacks or recesses in the building wall
shall have a minimum width of 35 feet measured parallel to the public right-of-way. The
open areas created by such setback variations shall be substantially landscaped with
over-story and under-story plant material further to reinforce the visual separation of
building wall segments and reduce the scale of the overall structure.

(3) The maximum frontage of any building on Collins Avenue (north to south) located in
the RT-1 district shall not exceed 150 feet. No building in the RT-1 district may be
erected, constructed or reconstructed with a depth in excess of 200 feet.

(4) All buildings so constructed shall meet all other requirements set forth for the district
in which they are located.

(Code 1960, § 18-31; Ord. No. 1418, § 2, 7-10-01)

Sec. 90-181. Vision clearance.

As an aid to free and safe movement of vehicles at and near street intersections and in order to
promote more adequate protection for the safety of children, pedestrians, operators of vehicles and for
property, for proposed construction hereafter, there shall be limitations on the height of fences, walls,
gateways, ornamental structures, signs, hedges, shrubbery, and other fixtures, construction, and
planting on corner lots in all districts where front yards are required as follows:

(1) Such barriers to clear, unobstructed vision at corners of intersecting streets shall be
limited to a height of not over two feet above the established elevation of the nearest
curb, for a distance of 25 feet along both the front and side ot lines, measured from the

Page 157
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151 6/19/2000



ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMEI{\"‘"ARY REGULATIONS Page 5 of 16

point of intersection, of the intersecting lot lines.

(2) it shall be unlawful for any person to plant or cause to be planted any tree, shrub or
flowers or to place any structure in the public right-of-way or anywhere on public
property without a permit from the town manager. The grade of the public right-of-way
adjacent to private property shall not be altered except by written permission from the
town manager.

(Code 1960, § 18-32; Ord. No. 1317, § 1, 6-8-93)

Sec. 90-182. Accessory buildings and structures.

(a) Accessory buildings which are not a part of the main building, although connected by an
open breezeway, may be constructed in a rear yard, provided such accessory building does not
exceed 12 feet in height, occupy more than 30 percent of the area of the required rear yard
setback and provided it is located at least five feet from adjacent rear or interior side lot lines
and ten feet from any street lot line. A screen enclosure shall be inciuded in the computation of
area occupied in a required rear yard butan open, uncovered pool, porch, patio or terrace shall
not be included, provided such structures are located at least five feet from adjacent rear or
interior side lot lines and ten feet from any street lot line.

(b) Accessory swimming pools, open and unenclosed, or covered by a screen enclosure, may
occupy a required rear or side yard setback, provided they are not located closer than five feet
to a rear or interior side lot line and not closer than ten feet from any street lot line.

(c) Tents and canvas cabanas for temporary shelter and not used for overnight sleeping or
containing cooking facilities shall be considered as accessory buildings and subject to the same
regulations as other accessory buildings.

(d) A detached garage shall not be remodeled and used as a part of the main building and an
attached garage may not be remodeled and used as a part of the main building unless all
required off-street parking spaces are provided elsewhere on the lot.

(e) A tool shed, the length and width of which does not exceed six feet by eight feet shall be
permitted in a rear yard, provided, that it is located at least five feet from adjacent rear or interior
side lot lines and ten feet from any street lot line. Such shed shall be anchored to a four-inch
concrete slab; meet all requirements of the South Florida Building Code for hurricane force wind
resistance; and otherwise meet all applicable requirements of the South Florida Building Code.

(Code 1960, § 18-33; Ord. No. 1371, § 1, 7-8-97)

Sec. 90-183. Fences, walls and hedges.

An ornamental fence, wall or hedge, not more than five feet in height, may project into or
enclose any side or rear yard, except as otherwise provided herein. The height of such ornamental
fence, wall or hedge shall be measured from the ground upon which it is located. No fence, wall or
structure of any kind shall be constructed in a front yard, nor on a corner lot in a side yard, where such
side yard abuts a public right-of-way. An ornamenta! hedge with a height of not more than three feet
shall be permitted. Under no circumstances is any fence, wall or hedge to be located on a corner lot in
such a way as to conflict with the requirements of section 190-181 (vision clearance).

(Code 1960, § 18-34; Ord. No. 1401, § 1, 5-11-99)
Sec. 90-184. Marine structures.

Page 158
http://library3.municode.com/mce/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151 6/19/2006



ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMEI?-"‘ ARY REGULATIONS Page 6 of 16

The following regulations shall apply to boat docks, piers, and mooring piles, in any district:

(1) Projection of docks and piers into waterways beyond the waterway line, lot line, or
established bulkhead lines shall be limited as follows, subject to final approval of the
U.S. Corps of Engineers:

a. Biscayne Bay: 20 feet.
b. Indian Creek: 10 feet.
¢. Point Lake: 15 feet.

(2) Under no circumstances shall any dock or pier be constructed so as to project into
any waterway for a distance equal to more than ten percent of the width of such
waterway.

(Code 1960, § 18-35)

Sec. 90-185. Carport canopies.

Carport canopies may be constructed, if approved as a special exception under the provisions
of section 90-92, in a front, side or rear yard setback in the RS-1, RS-2 and RD-1 districts. Such canopy
may not exceed 20 feet in length, nor ten feet in width, in front yards of lots of less than 100-foot
frontage. On lots of 100-foot frontage or more, or on corner lots where such canopy is to be outside the
front yard setback, 20 feet by 20 feet may be allowed. A canopy 20 feet by 20 feet also may be allowed
inthe front yard setback of lots with 75-foot frontage or more, where such canopy is directly in front of
the entrance to a two-car garage or, alternatively, over a two-car driveway, perpendicular to the street
and located no less than five feet and no more than 30 feet from an interior side lot line. No canopy
shall extend beyond a property line or shall be closer than five feet to the rear of the street curb, and
supporting pipes shall be no closer than seven feet. The height of such canopy shall not exceedten
feet, measured from the ground level to the uppermost point of the cover. A front yard canopy shall be
at least five feet from the side property line. A canopy shall at all times remain open on all four sides, if
free standing, and open on three sides if attached to the main building. The area under a canopy must
be entirely concreted or asphalted. Side openings shalt be at least six feet, three inches, in height.

(1) Each applicant for a special yard exception shall submit with his application
samples of the actual materials which will cover the canopy and a plot plan showing the
location and dimensions of the canopy in relation to the lot lines and existing structures.

{2) The planning and zoning board shall adopt such aesthetic standards as to color and
patterns of canopy materials as it may choose, and such standards shall be given fo
each applicant with the application for an exception.

(3) Any exception granted shall be for a period of three years only, but shall be
automatically renewable at the beginning of each three-year period upon certification by
the town manager that the canopy is structurally sound, and that the materials are in
good condition (i.e. free from tears, holes, fading, rust, corrosion or mechanical
damage).

(4) In addition to all provisions of the South Florida Building Code, the following
construction standards for canvas-covered canopies are required and shall be complied

with:
a. No canopy carport shall be constructed except of canvas (or similar material)
covered pipe. Framework shall be galvanized Scheduie 40 pipe assembled either
with Schedule 40 galvanized fittings or welded and joints painted with a liquid
zinc compound. For a ten-foot by 20-foot canopy, uprights shall be of not less
than 1 1/4-inch pipe; the perimeter shall be of not less than one-inch-pipe and the
Page 159

http://library3.municode.com/mce/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151 6/19/2006



ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS _ Page 7 of 16
i

rafters of not less than three-fourths-inch pipe. For a 20-foot by 20-foot canopy,
the pipe sizes shall each be increased by one-fourth inch. All uprights shall be
either lag-bolted into a concrete base or, if mounted in dirt, concreted at least
one-foot deep with a safety tee at the bottom of the pipe. The design and the
minimum size of structural members shall not be less than required to resist a
75-mile-per-hour wind with applicable shape factors. All fabric shall be designed
for quick removal, which shall be required at a wind velocity in excess of 75 miles
per hour.

b. The framework height shall be a maximum of ten feet and a minimum of
seven feet above grade. No uprights shall be installed closer than two feet from
the front iot line.

¢. Covering material shall carry the California Fire Marshal's certificate of
nonflammability. The material shall be attached to the framework by lacings only.
The canvas side openings shall be not less than six feet three inches in height
from grade.

(Code 1960, § 18-36; Ord. No. 1367, § 1, 12-10-96)

Sec. 90-186. Outdoor receiving and broadcasting antennae.

No outdoor receiving or broadcasting antenna, whether tower, pole, mast, disk, bowl, planar or
similar structure, weighing more than 20 pounds shall be placed or erected in the town without a permit
from the town. Only one such permit shall be issued for each main building on a lot.

(1) Permit application. The application for a permit shall be made to the town manager,
accompanied by a site sketch, showing dimension and location of the antenna in relation
to the site boundaries, setback lines and the existing structures on the site; and drawings
by a licensed structural engineer, showing the method of permanently anchoring the
antenna and listing the materials to be used in such anchoring. A landscaping or
covering plan may be required when appropriate.

(2) Fee. The charge for a permit fee shall be $100.00, except that if an antenna is for
commercial use, the permit fee shall be $500.00.

(3) Construction provisions; yard placement. All such antennae shall be constructed to
withstand a 125-mile-per-hour wind and in accordance with the provisions of the South
Florida Building Code and these regulations; and in no case shall they be placed within,
or intruding into, the front or side yards of any property. In the RT-1 zoning district,
Collins Avenue shall be deemed to be the front of the property.

(4) Roof placement. No antenna requiring a town permit shall be placed upon the roof
of any structure except in the RT-1 zoning district.

() Height limits--Tower, pole, mast. For aesthetic reasons, tower, pole or mast
antennae, except in the RT-1 zoning district, shall not be more than eight feet, at their
highest point, above the highest point of the main structure's roof. However, such
antennae for amateur broadcasting purposes (ham radio) may have antennae 35 feet in
height from the average grade of the lot, or 50 feet in height, if the antennae is of a
retractable type that can readily be lowered to 25 feet or less when not in use.

(8) Height limits—-Disk, bowl, planar. Disk, bowl, planar or similar-shaped antennae in
any zoning district, except RT-1, shall not exceed a total of 12 feet in height above the
ground, including supporting structures; and the diameter shall not exceed ten feet on
fots up to and including 75 feet in width. On lots more than 75 feet in width, such
antennae shall not exceed a total of 14 feet in height, including supporting structures,
above the ground; and the diameter shall not exceed 12 feet. All such disk, bowl, planar

Page 160
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151 6/19/20006



ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMEI{\""ARY REGULATIONS , Page 8 of 16
{

or similar-shaped antennae shall be sufficiently landscaped or covered so as to obscure
the antennae from view from surrounding and adjacent properties.

(Code 1960, § 18-37)

Sec. 90-187. Construction adjacent to bulkhead lines.

(a) Ocean bulkhead lines are established in section 14-86 and the following regutations shall
control construction adjacent thereto:

(1) No permit shall be issued for the construction of any building or other structure of
any nature whatsoever which shall be closer than 20 feet to the ocean bulkhead line.

(2) No permit shall be issued for the repair, extension, alteration or replacement of any
structure lying within 20 feet of the ocean bulkhead line.

(b) Indian Creek bulkhead lines are established in section 14-101 and the following regulations
shall control construction adjacent thereto:

(1) Permits required. It is hereby declared to be unlawful for any person to construct or
erect any bulkhead, sea wall or other shore protection work along the shore line of
Indian Creek in the town without first obtaining a permit therefor from the town manager.

(2) General limitations. No permit shall be issued for construction, repair, alteration,
extension or replacement of any structure of any nature whatsoever other than a
bulkhead, seawall or shore protection work as mentioned in the preceding section, or
marine structure as mentioned in subsection 90-184(1), which shall be closer than 20
feet to the Indian Creek bulkhead line. Provided however, that a swimming pool may be
constructed no closer than 15 feet to the Indian Creek bulkhead line.

A swimming pool construction landward of less than 20 feet of the Indian Creek
bulkhead line shall be thoroughly investigated by a registered structural engineer known
to the building official to be qualified to evaluate retaining walls, seawalls, bulkhead or
other shore protective structures. The structural engineer shall certify that said
construction will not compromise the structural capacity of the adjacent retaining wall,
seawall, bulkheads or other shore protective structure, and such construction will allow
continued maintenance of said retaining wall, seawall or bulkhead, including anchors
and soil supports. A certification shall be included on the drawings that the proposed
construction has been designed in accordance with the South Florida Building code and
all applicable laws. Upon project completion the registered engineer shall submit to the
building official a letter attesting that the construction of the improvements has been
observed and is in accordance with Section 307.2 of the South Florida Building Code
and all applicable local ordinances. The letter shall be signed and have the impressed
seal of the registered structural engineer, as applicable.

No permit shall be issued for the construction of a bulkhead, seawall or other shore
protection work, unless the plans and specifications of the bulkhead, seawall or other
shore protection work show that the bulkhead, seawall or other shore protection work is
so located as not to extend outward beyond the Indian Creek bulkhead line as
heretofore established, and shall show that the bulkhead, seawall or other shore
protection work will be constructed of precast concrete slab or reinforced concrete and
shallhave an elevation of not less than plus five feet above mean low water, U.S,
Engineering Department Biscayne Bay Datum, and shall be of sufficient depth below
mean low water to ensure the retention of all fill or soil on the landward side thereof, and
of sufficient weight and strength to withstand hurricanes, windstorms and high tide
waters and waves incident thereto.

(c) All structures on Biscayne Bay and Point Lake shall be required to obtain a permit and

Page 161
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151 6/19/2006



ARTICLE V., SUPPLEMEI?T'"ARY REGULATIONS i Page 9 of 16

{

meet the setbacks and general limitations established in subsection (b) of this section (Indian
Creek bulkhead lines).

(d) All applications for building permits in the RS-1, RS-2 and RT-1 districts shall include a
certified survey showing the point of intersection of the indian Creek or ocean buikhead line or
other regulated seawall line with the adjacent side lot lines and/or street lot lines of the property
on which construction is proposed, together with a certificate of a registered engineer or
surveyor indicating that all of the work proposed to be done under the permit complies with all
provisions of this section.

(e) The owner of the property on which or adjacent to which any such seawall, bulkhead or
other shore protection work shall be constructed, in accordance with a permit issued in
accordance with the provisions of this section, shall furnish to the town manager a certificate
signed by the owner and the contractor doing the work, that such seawall or bulkhead has been
erected or constructed in strict accordance with the terms of such permit and the plans and
specifications submitted for such work.

(Code 1960, § 18-38; Ord. No. 1273, § 1, 11-12-91; Ord. No. 1376, § 1, 9-9-97)

Sec. 90-188. Paving front yards in single-family and two-family districts.

Front yards in the RS-1, RS-2 and RD-1 districts shall not be more than 50 percent paved over
with any type of material that is not readily permeable by rainwater and groundwater. Not less than 30
percent of the front yard shall be landscaped. No front yard shall be accessible by vehicles from a
public street by more than two curb cuts. No curb cut shall be located within five feet of a side lot line.

(1) Where there is a single curb cut for any one property, the curb cut shall not be more
than 18 feet in width.

(2) Where there are two curb cuts for any one property, the curb cuts shall not be more
than 12 feet in width, and there shall be at least 12 feet between curb cuts. Where a
driveway is installed with two curb cuts, a landscaped island containing at least 60
square feet shall be provided between the curb cuts in the front yard area, extending
from the front property line o the paved area.

{3) On corner lots where vehicular access and off-street parking are provided in a side
yard, these same regulations shall apply also to the side yard. Such side yards shall not
be more than 50 percent paved over with any type of material that is not readily
permeable by rainwater and groundwater and not less than 30 percent of the side yard
shall be landscaped. :

(Code 1960, § 18-39)

Sec. 90-189. Outdoor lighting.

To assure that outdoor lighting is in harmony with the site architecture design, the adjacent area
and the neighborhood; and to prevent a nuisance to adjacent properties or creation of traffic hazards on
adjacent streets by reason of glare, reflection or the like; outdoor lighting for areas such as but not
limited to, off-street parking, security or any other purposes, shall be permitted under the following
conditions:

(1) Plans indicating the location of the lighting fixtures; type of lights, height of lights
and levels of illumination; shade, type and height of lighting poles; and bases, deflectors
and beam directions shall be submitted to the town manager for approval.

(2) Lighting fixtures and lighting poles, including mounting bases, shall not exceed 18
feet in height from grade, shall be of decorative nature and shall be in harmony with the

Page 162
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151 6/19/2006



ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMEI?T"‘ ARY REGULATIONS _ Page 10 of 16
{

site architecture design, the adjacent area and the neighborhood. Decorative lighting
poles and bases shall be constructed of anodized aluminum, pigmented concrete,
fiberglass or other materials of similar characteristics as approved by the town manager.

(3) Outdoor lighting shall be designed so that any overspill of lighting onto adjacent
properties shall not exceed one-half foot-candle (vertical) and one-haif foot-candie
(horizontal) illumination on adjacent properties. An outdoor lighting instaliation shall not
be placed in permanent use until a letter of compliance from a registered architect or
engineer is provided to the town manager, certifying that the installation has been fleld-
checked and meets the requirements set forth above.

{(4) The town manager may issue a permit for such proposed outdoor lighting, if, after
review of the plans and after consideration of the design characteristics of the lighting
fixtures and lighting poles and bases, they are found to be in harmony with the site
architecture design, the adjacent area and the neighborhood, will be deflected, shaded
and focused away from adjacent properties; and will not be a nuisance to adjacent
properties and traffic.

{5) All of the foregoing installations shall conform to the South Florida Building Code.
(Code 1960, § 18-40; Ord. No. 1381, § 1, 2-10-98)

Sec. 90-190. Miscellaneous elevations for seawalls, and groins.

(a) The elevation of all ocean bulkheads or sea walls shali be plus 12 feet above the mean low
water.

(b) The elevation for the top of shore end of ali groins or other shore protective work shall be
plus five feet above mean low water,

(¢) The elevation for the top of seaward end of all groins and other shore protective work shall
be plus 2 1/2 feet above mean low water.

(d) The elevation of the top of all seawalls fronting on the waters of Biscayne Bay, Indian
Creek and Point Lake shall be plus five feet above mean low water.

(Code 1960, § 18-41)

Sec. 90-191. Combined lots.

Where two or more parallel adjoining and abutting lots under a single ownership are used, the
exterior property lines so grouped shall be used in determining setback requirements. Provided,
however, that no structure shall be constructed, altered or maintained on a single lot in any zoning
district which does not conform with the setback requirements applicable to such lots, irrespective of
the common ownership of abutting lots, unless and until a restrictive covenant running with the title to.
such lots, assuring obedience to setback requirements in a form acceptable to the town attorney, shall
first have been recorded in the public records of Dade County, Florida. Joinder in such a restrictive
covenant must be effected by alf interested parties, including, but not limited to, dower, lienholders,
mortgagees, and all others claiming any right, title or interest in and to such real property.

(Code 1960, § 18-42)

Sec. 90-192. Boat storage.

No more than one boat, not over 20 feet in length may be parked temporarily on any lot in a RS-
1 or RS-2 district subject to the following conditions:

Page 163 :
http:/library3 .municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151 6/19/2006



ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMEl?T'“ ARY REGULATIONS ; Page 11 of 16

(1) Boats and places of parking shall be kept in a clean, neat and presentable
condition.

(2) No major repairs or overhaul work shall be made or performed on the premises.

(3) Boats shall not be used for living or sleeping quarters, and shall be placed on and
secured to a transporting trailer.

(4) The place of parking shall be parallel with and immediately adjacent to the driveway
and shall be within the required setback area, and no parking of boats shall take place
on any public right-of-way.

(Code 1960, § 18-43)

Sec, 90-193. Temporary storage of campers and house trailers.

No house car, camp car, camper or house trailer, nor any vehicle or part of a vehicle designed
or adapted for human habitation by whatever name known, whether such vehicle moves by its own
power or by power supplied by a separate unit, which exceeds 20 feet in length or eight feet in height,
shall be kept or parked on public streets or public property anywhere within the town, nor on private
property in the RS-1 or RS-2 district, for more than 24 hours within a calendar week beginning at 12:01
a.m. Sunday and ending at 12:00 midnight on Saturday. No house car, camp car, camper, house
trailer, or any similar vehicle shall be attached to any public or private external source of electricity,
water, gas or sanitary sewer at any time, except that an electrical connection may be made for the sole
purpose of recharging a vehicle's storage batteries.

(Code 1960, § 18-44)

Sec. 90-194. Landscaping requirements.

(a) Al front yard areas, exclusive of required driveways and entrance ways (but never less
than 50 percent of the entire front yard area) shall be landscaped and be readily permeable by
rainwater and groundwater, except as provided in section 90-188. Where bricks or pavers of
any kind are utilized, openings in them or spaces between them shall not be considered in the
50 percent landscape requirement.

(b} Rear yard areas in the RS-1, RS-2 and RD-1 districts, shall not be less 40 percent
landscaped and be readily permeable by rainwater and groundwater.

(c) All off-street parking areas, and all lands upon which vehicles traverse the property as a
function of its primary use, including but not limited to, activities of a drive-in nature, such as, but
not limited to, filling stations, grocery and dairy stores, banks, restaurants and the like, shall
conform to the landscaping requirements of Dade County Code Section 18A as same shall be
amended from time to time. :

(d) In the RT-1 district, in lieu of subsection (c), for the purpose of creating shade, screening
and architectural landscaping ornamentation, a trellis structure will be permitted within the
internal side setback area subject to the following:

(1) The structure's purpose is to support landscaping material.

(2) The structure must be completely open on all four sides. However, the side abutting
the adjacent property may contain virtually transparent plant-supporting material.

(3) The structure shall not be roofed.
(4) The top of the structure must be open with an open to solid ratio of at least 70
percent open to 30 percent solid.

Page 164
http://library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151 6/19/20006



ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMEI?T"‘ ARY REGULATIONS

Page 12 0of 16

(5) The structure shall not exceed ten feet in height. The vertical supports must not
exceed a slenderness ratio of ten feet to eight inches in thickness and may not be less
than 12 feet apart. The structure may not exceed 35 percent of the internal side yard

area.

(e} Landscaping plans shall be submitted as required by subsection 90-37(c)(3), and shall be
subject to the approval of the town manager with the recommendation of the planning and

zoning board.

(Code 1960, § 18-45; Ord. No. 1274, § 1, 11-12-91; Ord. No. 1345, § 1, 10-11-84; Ord. No. 1419, §2,

7-10-01)

Sec. 90-195. Prohibited plants, trees, weeds, shrubs and vegetation.

it shall be unlawful and shall be a violation of this Code for any person fo plant, replant, permit
to be planted or permit to be repianted any of the following plants, trees, weeds, shrubs and vegetation:

TABLE INSET:

Scientific name

Common name

Acacia auriculiformis earleaf acacia
Aeginetia indica aeginetia
Aeginetia spp., all aeginetia

Ageratina adenophora

_crofton weed

Albizia julibrissin

mimosa tree

Albizia lebbeck

woman's tongue

Alectra fluminensis

yerba de hierro

Alectra spp., all

yerba de hierro

Alternanthera philoxeroides

alligator weed

Alternanthera sessilis

sessile joyweed

Ardisia crenata coral ardisia
Ardisia elliptica shoebutton ardisia
Asphodelus fistulosus onionweed

Avena sterilis animated oat
Azolla pinnata Asian mosquito fern
Bischofia javanica bishop wood

Borreria alata

broadleaf butfonweed

Broussonetia papyrifera

paper mutberry

Carthamus oxycantha

wild safflower

Casuarina spp.

Australian pines

Chrysopogon aciculatus pilipiliula
Cinnamomum camphora camphor tree
Colocasia esculenta taro
Colubrina asiatica tatherleaf

Commelina benghalensis

Benghal dayflower

Crassula helmsii

swamp stonecrop

Page 165

http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151

6/19/2006



ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMEI!\"“ARY REGULATIONS

Crupina vulgaris

common crupina

Page 13 of 16

Cupaniopsis anacardioides carrotwood
Cuscuta japonica Japanese dodder
Cuscuta megalocarpa bigfruit dodder
Cuscuta potosina globe dodder

Cuscufa spp. except natives

exotic dodder vines

Dalbergia sissoo

Indian rosewood

Digitaria abyssinica

couch grass

Digitaria velutina

velvet finger grass

Dioscorea alata white yam
Dioscorea bulbifera air potato
Drymaria arenarioides alfombrilla

Eichhornia azurea

anchored waterhyacinth

Eichhornia spp., all

waterhyacinths

Emex auslralis

three-cornered jack

Emex spinosa

devil's thorn

Enterolobium contortisliquum

ear-pod tree

Eucalyptus spp. (1 or more)

eucalyptus trees

Euphorbia prunifolia

painted euphorbia

Fatoua viflosa

hairy crabweed

Festuca arundinacea

tall fescue

Festuca elatior

tall fescue

Festuca ovina

sheep fescue

Festuca pratensis meadow fescue; rye grass
Festuca rubra red fescue
Festuca sp. fescue

Ficus altissima false banyan
Ficus benghalensis banyan tree
Ficus benjamina weeping fig
Ficus carica edible fig

Ficus decora rubber tree
Ficus nitida Cuban laurel
Ficus religiosa bo tree
Flacourtia indica governor's plum
Flueggea virosa fluegga
Foeniculum vulgare fennel

Fragaria chiloensis var. ananassa strawberry
Fraxinus uhdei shamel ash
Galega officinalis goatsrue
Grevillea robusta silk oak
Heracleum mantegazzianum giant hogweed
Hibiscus tiliaceus mahoe

Page 166

http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151

6/19/2006



ARTICLE V, SUPPLEMEI{W" ARY REGULATIONS

Hydrilla verticillata

hydrilla

Page 14 of 16

Hygrophila polysperma

Miramar weed

Imperata brasiliensis

Brazilian satintail

Imperata cylindrica

cogon grass

Ipomoea aquatica

Chinese waterspinach

Ipomoea fistulosa

shrub morning glory

Ipomoea trifoba

little bell morning glory

Ischaemum rugosum

murain grass

Jacaranda acutifolia

jacaranda

Jasminum dichotomum

Gold Coast jasmine

Koelreuteria elegans

golden rain tree

Lagarosiphon major

oxygen weed

Lagarosiphon spp., all

African elodeas

Lanfana camara

shrub verbena

Leptochloa chinensis

Asian sprangletop

Leucaena leucocephala

lead tree

Ligustrum sinense

Chinese privet

Limnochatis flava

Sawa flowering-rush

Limnophila sessiliflora

ambulia

Lonicera japonica Japanese honeysuckle
Lycium ferocissimum African boxthorn

Lygodium japonicum Japanese climbing fern
Lygodium microphyllum Old World climbing fern

Lythrum salicatia

purple loosestrife

Manilkara zapota sapodiila

Melaleuca quinquenervia melaleuca
Melastoma malabathricum indian rhododendron
Melia azederach Chinaberry tree

Mikania cordata

mile-a-minute vine

Mikania micrantha

mile-a-minute vine

Mimosa invisa

giant sensitive plant

Mimosa pigra

cat-claw mimosa

Monochoria hastata

monochoria

Monochoria vaginalis

Asian pickerel weed

Myriophyflum spicatum

Eurasian watermilfoil

Nassella trichotoma

serrated tussock

Nechamandra alternifolia

Indian elodea

Neyraudia reynaudiana

Burma reed

Opuntia aurantiaca

‘jointed prickly pear

Orobanche cernua

nodding broomrape

Orobanche crenata

bean broomrape

Orobanche minor

hetlroot

" Page 167

http:/library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151

6/19/2006



ARTICLE V., SUPPLEMEI?T"‘ ARY REGULATIONS

Orobanche ramosa

hemp broomrape

Page 15 0f 16

Orobanche riparia

river broomrape

Orobanche spp. except native (O. uniflora ) broomrape
Oryza longistaminata red rice
Oryza punctata red rice
Oryza rufipogon wild red rice
Ottelia alismoides duck-lfettuce
Paederia cruddasiana sewer vine
Paederia foetida skunk vine
Paspalum scrobiculatum Kodo-millet

Pennisetum clandestinum

kikuyu grass

Pennisetum macrotrum

African feather grass

Pennisetum pedicellatum

kyasuma grass

Pennisetum polystachyon

mission grass

Pislia stratiofes

water-fettuce

Pontederia rotundifolia

fropical pickerelweed

Prosopis spp. except natives mesqulite
Prosopis spp., all mesquite
Pueraria montana kudzu
Rhodomyrtus tomentosa downy rose-myrtle
Rottboellia cochinchinensis itch grass

Rubus fruticosus

European bramble blackberry

Rubus moluccanus

Asian wild raspberry

Saccharum spontaneum

wild sugarcane

Sagittaria sagittifolia

Eurasian arrowhead

Salsola vermiculata

wormleaf salsola

Salvinia auriculata

giant salvinia

Salvinia biloba

giant salvinia

Salvinia herzogii

giant salvinia

Salvinia molesta

giant salvinia

Sapium sebiferum

Chinese tallow tree

Scaevola faccada

beach naupaka

Schinus terebinthifolius

Brazilian pepper tree

Setaria pallideftisca -

cattail grass

Solanum tampicense

wetland nightshade

Solanum forvum

turkeyberry

Sofanum viarum

tropical soda apple

Sparganium erectum

exotic bur-reed

Siratiotes aloides

water-aloe

Striga asiatica

Asiatic witchweed

Striga densiflora

denseflower witchweed

Striga gesnerioides

cowpea witchweed

Page 168

http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151

6/19/2006



ARTICLE V. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS
{

Striga hermonthica

purple witchweed

Page 16 of 16

Syzygium cumini Java plum
Syzygium jambos rose-apple
Thespesia populnea seaside mahoe
Trapa spp., all water chestnuts
Tridax procumbens coat buttons

Urochloa panicoides

liverseed grass

Vossia cuspidata

hippo grass

Wedelia trilobata

wedelia

(Ord. No. 1434, § 1, 11-12-02)

Secs. 90-196--90-205. Reserved.

Page 169

http://library3. municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/151

6/19/2006



DIVISION 2. SIGNS { Page 1 of 10

DIVISION 2. SIGNS

Sec. 90-206. General and miscellaneous provisions.

(a) Use of streets, walerways, sidewalks and other public property. Except as otherwise
authorized by the town commission, no sign of any type shall be suspended across any public
street, alley or waterway; nor shall any sign of any description be stenciled, written, painted,
posted, printed, nailed or otherwise affixed to any curb, sidewalk, tree, light standard, utility pole,
hydrant, traffic signal device, street sign and its pole, bridge, wall, or any other structure, which
is within the property lines of any street, alley, waterway or other public property within thetown.

(b) Use of vacant fots, unoccupied buildings or temporary structures. Except as provided by
section 90-208, no sign of any type shall be suspended across any vacant lot, unoccupied
building or temporary structure; nor shall any sign of any description be stenciled, written,
painted, posted, printed, nailed or otherwise affixed to any vacant fot, unoccupied building or to
any temporary structure within the town.

(c) Removal of sign upon cessation of business. Any sign previously associated with a
vacated premises shall either be removed from the premises by the owner or lessee not later
than six months from the time such activity ceases to exist, or such sign shall be altered or
resurfaced by the owner or lessee within the same six-month period, so that the sign no longer
displays letters, numerals, symbols, figures, designs or any other device for visual
communication that pertains to the activity formerly associated with the vacated premises. No
occupationallicense shall be issued for a new business until all signs associated with the former
business have been removed.

(d) Pest controf or warning signs. All such signs shall be displayed prominently on the front
lawn of property requiring this service. Signs shall not exceed a size of eight inches by ten
inches. The printed wording shall read horizontally only and shall contain only such language as
is required by law or by reasonable safety precautions and a statement of the antidote to the
insecticide used. The word "WARNING" shall occupy one-half of the sign and the name and
address of the company performing the service only one-fourth of the sign, it being intended that
the word "WARNING" shall be most prominent. Further, it shali be required that such sign be
removed from the premises no later than 24 hours after the warning is no longer required.

(e) Definition of frontage. For the purpose of determining total sign area, running foot of
frontage shall include that side of the building or lot that faces on a public street. When the
building or lot is on a corner, the footage of each street shall be included in determining the fotal
allowable frontage.

(Code 1960, § 18-46; Ord. No. 1439, § 1, 5-13-03)

Sec. 90-207. Prohibited signs.

(a) No sign shall be erected, constructed, or affixed in violation of the provisions of these
regulations, and any sign not specifically provided for and permitted by these regulations shall
be prohibited.

(b) No billboard, temporary sign or sandwich sign shall be erected or maintained within the
corporate limits of the town, except as permitted under the provisions of section 90-208.

(c) No sign advertising goods or services not sold or performed on the premises shall be
erected or maintained within the corporate limits of the town,

Page 170
hitp://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/150/152 6/19/2006



DIVISION 2. SIGNS - Page 2 of 10

(d) No sign shall be constructed, erected, used, operated or maintained which simulates,
copies, or implies any official traffic signal or police caution device.

(e} No permit shall be issued for any sign which proposes to display any obscene matter, or
contains wording which violates any federal, state or county stafute, ordinance or rule and it
shall be unlawiul for any person to display upon any wall or other advertising structure any
matter which is obscene or wording which violates any federal, state or county statute,
ordinance or rule.

(f) No sign shall be constructed, erected, used, operated or maintained so as to display
intermittent lights, to move or revolve.

(g) No sign shall be constructed, erected, used, operated or maintained which contains
wording which constitutes fraudulent or misleading advertising.

{h) No sign shall have spinning devices, or strings of spinning devices, or other similar devices.

(i) Signs which are not securely affixed to the ground, or otherwise affixed in a permanent
manner to an approved supporting structure, shall be prohibited.

(i} Roof signs shall be prohibited.

(k) Pennants, banners, streamers, balloons and all other fluttering, spinning or similar type
signs and advertising devices are prohibited, except for national flags and flags of political
subdivisions of the United States.

(Code 1960, § 18-47)

Sec. 90-208. Temporary signs.
(a) "For Sale" and "For Lease" signs.

(1) Unimproved propertfy. Not more than one "For Sale," "For Lease," or similar sign
shall be placed upon any unimproved property. Such sign shall not exceed 18 inches by
24 inches in size. All such signs shall be constructed in the following manner; The face
of the sign shall be either wood, tempered masonite, metal, or any other sound and safe
material approved by the town manager, and shall be securely fastened to a wood or
metal stake of sufficient strength to support such sign in a manner not to constitute a
hazard to the welfare of the community during a hurricane, and shall not exceed 36
inches in overall height above the adjacent ground. Approval and fees for the erection of
such signs shall be in the manner prescribed in subsection (3) of this subsection.

(2) Improved property. Not more than one "For Sale," "For Lease," or similar sign shall
be placed upon any improved property. Such sign shali not exceed 18 inches by 24
inches in size. All signs erected on the exterior of a building or placed within the ground
outside of a building shall be constructed in the following manner: The face of the sign
shall be either wood, tempered masonite, metal, or any other sound and safe material
approved by the town manager, and shall be securely fastened to a wood or metal stake
of sufficientstrength which shall be placed securely in the ground. Such signs shall be
erected in such a manner as to not consfitute a hazard to the welfare of the community
during a hurricane. In lieu thereof, a single paper sign not more than 18 inches by 24
inches in size may be placed within the window of any building on the premises which is
for sale or lease. In addition, portable "Open For Inspection" signs, not over two feet by
three feet in size, may be displayed within the property lines only while the owneror
agent of the owner is actually upon the premises. Approval and fees for the erection of
such signs shall be in the manner prescribed in subsection (3) of this subsection.

(3) General requirements. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Code

Page 171
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/152 6/19/2006




DIVISION 2. SIGNS [ Page 3 of 10

inconsistent herewith, there shall not be displayed, constructed, reconstructed, situated,
maintained or erected upon any lot or parcel of fand within the town or upon the
premises located thereon, any "For Sale,” "For Lease,” "Open For Inspection," or kindred
sign, unless such sign shall meet the following requirements:

a. No such sign shall be displayed, constructed, reconstructed, situated,
maintained or erected by any one other than the owner or lessee of the lot,
parcel of land or premises, or the duly authorized agent of such owner or lessee,
and then only on the lot or premises referred to in such sign as herein set forth.

b. There may be only one such sign on the lot or parcel of land, or on the
improvements thereon, regardless of the size of such lot, parcel or
improvements, except for "Open For Inspection” signs as described in this
subsection, and such sign may contain only one of the following designations, to
wit: "For Sale," "For Lease," "For Sale or Lease," "For Rent," or "Available." if
duly qualified and applicable, the name of the real estate broker or realtor as the
same is registered with the Florida Real Estate Commission, in letters not
exceeding one inch in height with a designation following such name as being
either (a) "realtor" or (b) "broker," may appear on such sign. The telephone
number of the owner or lessee, or a duly qualified realtor or broker as above set
forth, only, may appear on such sign except, however, that the telephone number
of an authorized agent may be contained or placed thereon, upon written request
of the owner or lessee duly filed with and approved by the town manager. The
above designations and telephone numbers are the only permissible inscriptions
on signs described herein. The provisions of this subsection shall be applicable
in all zoning districts.

c. Such sign shall not be nearer than five feet from any property line if placed
upon vacant property, and if placed on land improved by a building it shall not be
placed nearer than five feet from any property line, unless the main wall of the
building is less than five feet from a front or side property line, in which case the
sign may be placed in or upon a front or side door or window of the building; if
there be a wall upon the property line, then such sigh may be placed against
such wall.

d. Permits for such signs may be issued by the town manager upon application
by the owner or lessee or their duly authorized agent appearing in person with
drawings describing such sign and giving proof of such ownership, tenancy, or
agency, and all such permits shall automatically expire within six months from the
date of issuance. The town manager shall issue a sticker which shail be placed
on the bottom of the face of each sign, which shall indicate the date the permit
expires and the permit number.

e. A fee of $2.00 shall be charged for a permit for the erection, construction or
maintaining of a sign on any lot or parcel of land or premises and reapplication
for a permit may be made every six months.

f. All signs referred to in subsections (1) and (2) of this subsection shall be in
plain black lettering on white background with no iridescent lettering or lighting
and shall be of neat professional appearance.

(b) Construction signs. There shall be only one signboard erected on each construction site
and all signs for the project must be placed on this signboard. Signboards may include the
names of the parties involved in the design, construction and financing of the project. In
addition, multiple-family buildings may have a second sign with the name of the project and the
unit types and commercial buildings may have a sign indicating the name of the project and the
names of tenants, and either of these signs may include a rendering ofthe proposed project.
Under no circumstances shall any sign on a construction site indicate any type of price

Page 172
http://library3 municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/150/152 6/19/20006



DIVISION 2. SIGNS i : Page 4 of 10

information and no construction signs shall be permitted for construction projects whose
duration is less than 30 days.

(1) Except in RS-1 and RS-2 districts, the total allowable sign area for all construction
signs on a single site shall be limited to one square foot of sign area for every two feet of
lot frontage with no single signboard or other project sign exceeding 50 square feet in
total area, exclusive of any renderings. In the RS-1 and RS-2 districts the total allowable
sign area for the allowed signboard shall not exceed four square feet.

(2) Construction signs may be erected and maintained at any time after the issuance of
a building permit and shall be removed prior to the issuance of a ceriificate of
occupancy.

(c) Political signs. Signs concerning the election of candidates for public office or public
guestions are permitted in RS-1, RS-2, RD-1, RD-2 and B-1 zoning districts under the following
conditions:

(1) No political sign shall be placed on any public property, building, right-of-way or
easement, at any time.

(2) Signs may not be erected or displayed more than 60 days prior to the actual primary
or general election at which the candidacy or issue being advertised is decided and all
such signs shall be removed within seven days after the aforementioned election.

{3) No more than one sign for each candidate or issue is permitted on any developed or
undeveloped property under single ownership or tenancy.

(4) In the RS-1, RS-2, RD-1 and RD-2 districts, signs may be displayed outdoors,.
provided each sign shall not exceed 16 inches by 22 inches in size and 36 inches in
height above grade.

(5) Such signs may not be closer than ten feet from any lot line. If such sign is placed in
a window on improved property, it shall be in lieu of the outdoor sign as described
above. In the B-1 district, outdoor signs are prohibited, but signs not exceeding 16
inches by 22 inches may be displayed in a window or glass door provided, however, that
the total area of all signs displayed, whether political or otherwise, does not exceed 25
percent of the glass area of such window or door.

(Code 1960, § 18-48)

Sec. 90-209. Signs permitted within specific districts.
(a) Signs in RS-1, RS-2 and RD-1 residential districts.

(1) Mailboxes and street numbers serving the main building or structure on a lot or one
sign indicating the name of the occupant of a residential structure may be erected on a
lot in a RS-1, RS-2 or RD-1 district. However, the total sign area on any single ot in a
RS-1 or RS-2 district shall not exceed two square feet and no single sign may be over
one square foot in size. in the RD-1 district the total sign area on any singte lot shall not
exceed 12 square feet and no single sign may be over six feet in size.

(2) Private directional signs, not exceeding one square foot in area, may be erected in
the RS-1, RS-2 and RD-1 districts provided that not more than two of these signs are
placed on any single lot or parcel.

(3) Ground-mounted signs may be erected in the RD-1 district only, provide such signs
are setback at least five feet from all property lines and no portion of any such sign shall
be permitted to project within this five-foot setback area. Building mounted signs shall
also be permitted in the RD-1 district as long as they do not project more than three feet

Page 173
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/150/152 6/19/2006



DIVISION 2. SIGNS ( ; Page 50f 10
{

beyond the wall of the building to which they are attached.

(4) No portion of any ground-mounted sign shall be more than five feet above the
ground. No portion of any building-mounted sign shall project above the ridge line of any
pitched roof or the parapet surrounding any flat roof of the building to which it is
attached. '

(b) Signs in RD-2, RM-1, RMO-1, RT-1 and CO-1 zoning districts.
(1) Area.

a. The total area of exterior signs for any building in a RD-2, RM-1, RMO-1 or
RT-1 district shall be limited to one square foot for each running foot of frontage
of the Iot or portion of lot upon which the operating enterprise is located.
Whenever the running footage Is less than 25 feet, total sign area of up to a
maximum of 25 square feet shall be permitted. In no case, however, shall total
sign area on any single operating enterprise exceed 150 square feet, except as
provided in subsection (2)c. of this subsection. For apartment houses total
signage shall not exceed 75 square feet and no single sign shall exceed 50
square feet.

b. Such signs shall be attached fo the main facade of the building or to a
canopy covering the main entrance to the building and shall not project into the
required front yard for a distance of more than two feet, or shall be erected on a
metal pole or reinforced concrete post, provided that no part of such sign shall
project over a dedicated street or sidewalk. Any sign in need of replacement shall
conform with this section.

(2) Approved word content. Signs may include only the following:
a. Trade name of establishment.

b. Nature of business, services rendered or products sold on premises, except
as provided for in subsection (2)c. of this subsection.

c. The total allowable area for all supplemental signs for any establishment
hereunder reading "Vacancy,” "Private Beach," "Swimming Pooi," "Cabanas,"
"Office,” "Air Conditioning,” "Cocktail Lounge," "Coffee Shop," "Dining Room,"
"Restaurant” and other such wording shall be limited to eight square feet for each
main building, and such sign area shall not be included in computing the
maximum sign area for the lot. In permitting the advertising by visible signs from
the outside of buildings or structures presently zoned so as to permit the uses
described herein, such signs shall be dignified in character, shall be restricted to
the wording described above, and no single sign shall exceed three square feet
in size; except, in the RT-1 district, a hotel or motel with a restaurant may display
a supplemental sign, not to exceed five square feet in size, containing the name
of the restaurant. Any such sign shall be included in the total eight feet limitation.

(3) Prohibited word content. Signs may not include the following:
a. Any reference {o rates.

b. Identification of a business conducted within hotels, apartment houses or
similar structures, other than those permitted under supplemental signs, as
described under subsection (2)c. of this subsection, is not to be advertised by
any sign visible from the outside of such building or structure in which such
business is located.

(4) Miscelfaneous.

a. A sign not larger than 16 inches in width and five inches in héight, made of

Page 174
http://library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/152 6/19/2006



DIVISION 2. SIGNS ( _ Page 6 01 10
{

plastic or mefal, may be affixed to the wall of buildings in these districts stating
"Managed by " with the name of the individual, partnership or
corporation that manages the building.

(5) Location.

a. No sign shall be erected so that any portion thereof shall project over a
dedicated street, alley or sidewalk or so that any portion shall project more than
five feet from any main building wall.

b. Subject to the provisions of subsection (1) of subsection (b) of this section,
one sigh may be erected on a metal pole with an area of not more than 45
square feet, including any supplemental signs; provided that no part of such sign
shall project over a dedicated street, alley or sidewalk.

c. Signs shall not be placed on or near the rear of a lot or building so as to face
a designated zoning district other than the one in which the sign is located.

d. Signs not over four square feet in size may be erected at each exit or
entrance of parking lots serving buildings in these districts, and such signs may
be illuminated by indirect lighting only. Lettering on these signs shall be limited to
the name and address of the apartment or hotel, the word "Parking," and the
words "For Guests Only" or "Private Parking," and designation as to whether it is
an entrance or exit.

(c) Signs in the B-1 zoning district.
(1) Area.

a. The total area of all exterior signs for any building in a B-1 zoning district shall
be limited to one square foot for each running foot of frontage of the lot or portion
of tot upon which the operating enterprise is located. Whenever the running
footage is less than 25 feet, a sign up to a maximum of 25 square feet shall be
permitted. In no case, however shall the total sign area for any operating
enterprise exceed 150 square feet, and no single sign in this district shall exceed
45 square feet in area.

(2) Approved word content. Signs may include only the following:

a. Trade name of establishment.

b. Nature of business, services rendered or products sold on premises.
(3) Prohibited word content. Signs may not include the foliowing:

a. Any reference to price, except as provided in subsection (6)d. of this
subsection with regard to window signs.

(4) Miscelfaneous.

a. A sign not larger than 16 Inches in width and five inches in height, made of
plastic or metal, may be affixed to the wall of buildings in this district stating
"Managed by " with the name of the individual, partnership or
corporation that manages the building.

(5) Location.

a. With the exception-of theater marquees and V-Box signs as described in
subsection (8) of this subsection, no sign shall be erected so that any portion
thereof shall project over a dedicated street or sidewalk or so that any portion
thereof shall project more than five feet from any main building wall.

b. Subject to the provisions of subsection (1)a. of this subsection, one sign may .

Page 175 .
http:/library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/152 6/19/2006



DIVISION 2. SIGNS ( : Page 7 0of 10

be erected on a metal pole with an area of not more than 45 square feet,
including any supplemental signs; provided that no part of any such sign shall
project over a dedicated street or sidewalk.

c. Signs shall not be placed on or near the rear of a lot or building so as to face
a designated zoning district other than the one in which the sign is located;
provided, however, that signs may be installed on the rear walls of commercial
buildings in Blocks number 3, 4, 5, and 6 of Altos Del Mar Subdivision Number 6,
in the town. Such signs shall be limited to a maximum size of 25 square feet and
may be illuminated by a bulb with an angle reflector type shield. These signs
shall not be included in computingmaximum sign area for a given operating
enterprise.

(6) Window signs.

a. It shall be unlawful for temporary signs of any nature to be attached by any
means to glass windows or doors, or to be mounted within 12 inches of the glass
window or door towards which they face, except as provided in subsections b.,
c., or d. of this subsection. '

b. Temporary paper signs announcing a licensed going-out-of-business sale or
future business shall be permitted to be displayed within glass display windows
of such business establishments not to exceed 20 percent of the area of the
glass.

¢. Temporary signs, professionally lettered, may be displayed within a window
providing they are more than 12 inches from the glass surface they are facing,
and providing that in total they do not exceed in area 20 percent of the area of
the glass window they are facing. A temporary sign not exceeding 144 square
inches may be affixed to any window or glass door stating special hours or
closing days due to holidays, or bona fide business or personal emergencies.
There shall be not more than one such sign per window or door. Such sign shall
not be maintained for more than 14 calendar days.

d. Signs, not in excess of six square inches, listing price, may be attached to
items displayed in display windows.

e. Signs of a permanent nature may be applied fo the inside or outside surface
of a glass window or door or displayed within 12 inches of a glass window or
door, provided that they are done in a professional manner, that the lettering
does not exceed eight inches in height and that they give only the name of the
establishment and the nature of the business, except sit-down restaurants may
display a menu in their window or adjacent to their front door which does not
exceed 1 1/2 square feet in size. Lettering not more than two inches in height
may be applied to either side of one window or glass door per business stating
hours of operation. No other type of sign stating hours of operation or "open,"
"open for business," "closed," or similar signs may be displayed except as
provided in subsection (c)(6)c. of this section. Such signs shall not exceed 20
percent of the area of the glass window or door in which they are displayed. In
addition, each business establishment may display, at a single location on a
glass window or door, not over four ancillary decals, signs or logos, indicating
national charge cards which are accepted therein, provided the total area of all
such decals, signs or logos so displayed does not exceed 144 square inches.
The area of such decals, signs or logos shall not be included in the 20 percent
limitation above. Not more than one primary sign may be displayed in any one
window or door. All such signs shall require a permit approved by the town
manager.

(7) Lettering on awnings. Lettering shall be prohibited on awnings, canopies or

Page 176
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/152 6/19/20006



DIVISION 2. SIGNS ; , Page 8 of 10
: (

valances projecting over a dedicated strest or sidewalk; except that the side,
perpendicular to the street, may bear the trade name of the establishment in letters not
higher than five inches. Where an existing awning, canopy or valance is being replaced
or recovered or substantially repaired, a permit is required from the town, and the
awning, canopy or valance must conform to this section.

(8) V-Box signs. Any ground floor business in the B-1 district may attach a single sign,
commonly known as a V-Box sign, of triangular section, containing a completely
concealed fluorescent tube, to a permanent canopy over the sidewalk. Such sign shall
be mounted perpendicular to the face of the building to which the canopy is attached,
with an end (smallest side of the sign) facing the building. Such sign shall not exceed 4
1/2 feet in length and 12 inches in depth, and shall allow at least an eight-foot clearance
above the pavement. The sign shall carry only the business name.

(9) Sign for upper floor tenants. Each upper floor tenant shall be entitled to erect a
single sign, not over 108 square inches in size, at the entrance or lobby of the building
which provides egress to such upper floor. In addition, each upper floor tenant may paint
a sign on one upper floor window of this establishment, which indicates the name of his
business, provided such sign meets all of the requirements of subsection (c)(6)c. of this
section.

(Code 1960, § 18-49; Ord. No. 1248, §§ 1, 2, 1-14-91; Ord. No. 1332, § 1, 12-14-93; Ord. No. 1346, §
1, 12-13-94)

Sec. 90-210. Sign construction and illumination.
(a) Construction.

(1) Generally. Each sign constructed or maintained shall be so constructed and
anchored in accordance with the South Florida Building Code standards.

(2) Electrical outlets, efc. All exterior electrical outlets for signs shall terminate in a
galvanized or plastic box with a blank cover, which shall be flush with and not protrude
beyond the finished surface of the exterior wall. Transformer boxes and other accessory
equipment for any sign shall be placed so as not to be visible from the street level.
Wooden signs shall not have electric lights or fixtures attached in any manner.

(b) llumination.
(1) General requirements.

a. IMuminated signs, or illumination in show windows, display windows and
displays, in or upon any building or structure shall have the source of light
concealed from view from the exterior of the building or structure, except that
where channel letters or figures are used for any sign, the illumination thereof
may be visible if recessed within the depth of the channel. Intensities of
illumination in all cases shall be approved by the electrical inspector of the town
before issuance of the sign permit.

b. Only lighting of fixed intensity shall be supplied to signs while illuminated and
the use of any blinking, moving or flashing light or lights, or similar device, in
window areas or store fronts is prohibited, except decorative flashing illumination
may be used between December 10 and January 5.

(2) Special requirements.

a. Neon illumination or other lighting for advertising purposes shall be prohibited
inside second story windows.

Page 177
http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/152 6/19/2006



DIVISION 2. SIGNS (,. Page 9 of 10

b. All strip lighting shall be limited to one foot of tubing for each foot of frontage.
In multiple-family districts, two feet of strip lighting will be allowed for every
running foot of frontage.

¢. Exposed neon tubing for signs or decorations is prohibited on the exterior or
in the show windows of any building in the town.

(Code 1960, § 18-50)

Sec. 90-211. Nonconforming signs.

(a) Existing nonconforming signs. Any sign which does not conform with the provisions of
these regulations, regardiess of whether or not a permit therefor has been issued, shall be
removed not later than October 1, 1989. Any such sign may continue in use until October 1,
1989, unless same is subject to removal in accordance with any other provision of the Code, but
no permit for any additional sign shall be issued for any premises on which there is any
nonconforming sign.

(b) Removal of nonconforming signs. Authority is hereby given to the town manager, and it
shall be his duty, to remove or cause to be removed any and all signs constructed or maintained
in the town in violation of any of the provisions of this chapter and to assess the cost of such
removal against the owner of the property upon which such nonconforming sign is located.

(Code 1960, § 18-51)

Sec. 90-212, Sign permits.

(a) Permit requirements. With the exception of window signs as provided in subsections 90-
209(c)(6)b., 90-209(c)(6)c. and 90-209(c)(6)d. and temporary signs as provided in section 90-
208, no sign shall be erected, altered or relocated without the approval of the town manager.
Such approval shall be evidenced by the issuance of a sign permit which shall remain in full
force and effect so long as all conditions of these regulations are complied with. If more than
one sign is to be erected, each sign shall require separate approval and a separate permit. Prior
to the erection of any sign, all necessary building and electrical permits shall be obtained from
the town manager. A ’

(b) Applications. The application for approval shall include the following data:
(1) Name, address and telephone number of the sign owner and of the sign erector.

(2) Drawings showing the design, including the size, height, copy, or type of copy if
changeable copy type sign, location on the lot and materials to be used for the sign, as
well as structural details of each sign and its supporting structure and the method of
lighting proposed.

(3) Statement indicating the purpose of the sign.

(4) The size, dimensions, lighting and location of all signs existing on the premises at
the time of making said application.

(5} Any other pertinent information as required by the town manager to insure
compliance with these regulations.

{(c) Fees. The fee for each sign approval shall be as established by the town commission of
the town.

(d) Appeals from town manager's decision. Any person aggrieved by a decision of the town
manager may appeal same to the town commission.

Page 178
http://library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/152 6/19/2006



DIVISION 2. SIGNS ' | Page 10 of 10

(Code 1960, § 18-52)

Secs. 90-213--90-225. Reserved.

Page 179
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/150/152 6/19/2006



DIVISION 3. OFF -STREE;T PARKING

DIVISION 3. OFF-STREET PARKING

Sec. 90-226. Off-street parking requirements.

Page 1 of 4

(a) Except as otherwise provided herein, when any building or structure is hereafter
constructed:; or structurally altered so as fo increase the number of dwelling units or hotel/motel
rooms; to increase its total commercial floor area; or when any building or structure is hereafter
converted to any of the uses listed in subsection (b) of this section, off-street parking spaces
shall be provided in accordance with the requirements of subsection (b} of this section, or as
required in subsequent sections of this article.

(b) The number of off-street parking spaces that shall be required to serve each building or
structure and use shall be determined in accordance with the following table:

(1) Single-family dwelling in the RS-1 district: Two spaces.
(2) Single-family dwelling in all other districts: One space.
(3) Two-family dwelling: One space for each dwelling unit.

(4) Multiple-family dwelling, for each dwelling unit: -

TABLE INSET:
Efficiency and one-bedroom unit: 1.5 spaces
Two and three bedroom unit: 2.0 spaces
Four-bedroom or more unit: 2.25 spaces

For projects of greater than 60 dwelling units, parking spaces may be provided as tandem
spaces, provided, however, a minimum of one unencumbered parking space, tandem or
regular, must be provided for each dwelling unit and valet parking service shall be provided at
all times. One visitor parking space for each 15 dwelling units unless tandem parking with valet
services is provided in which case one visitor space for each 20 units is required.

(5) Hotel and motel: One space for each room.
(6) Suite-hotel and suite-motel; One and one-quarter spaces for each room.

(7) Church, synagogue, temple or other place of assembly: One space for every four
seats and one space for every six feet of bench seating.

(8) Private clubs and lodges: One space per 250 square feet of gross floor area.
(9) Auditorium or theatre: One space for each four seats.

(10) Grocery, fresh fruit or meat market: One space for each 250 square feet of gross
floor area.

(11) Retail store or personal service establishment: One space for each 300 square
feet of gross floor area.

(12) Office or office building: One space per 400 square feet of gross floor area;
however, medical offices, dental offices and clinics shall provide one space per 300
square feet of gross floor area.

{13) Restaurants or other establishments for the consumption of food and beverages
on the premises: One space per four seats.

Page 180
http://library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/153 6/19/2006



DIVISION 3. OFF -STREEF" PARKING ( Page 2 of 4

(14) Place of assembly without fixed seats: One space for each 50 square feet of floor
area available for seats.

(15) Banks, savings and loans or other financial institutions: One space per 300 square
feet of gross floor area.

(Code 1960, § 18-53; Ord. No. 1437, § 3, 1-14-03)

Sec. 90-227. Interpretation of these requirements.

(a) The parking required herein is in addition to space required for the loading and unloading of
trucks or other vehicles used in connection with a business, commercial, or industrial use.

(b) Where fractional spaces result, the parking spaces required shall be construed to be the
next highest whole number.

(¢) The parking space requirements for a use not specifically listed in this section shali be the
same as for a listed use of similar characteristics of parking demand generation.

(d) In the case of mixed uses, uses with different parking requirements occupying the same
building or premises, the parking spaces required shall equal the sum of the requirements of the
various uses computed separately.

(e} Whenever a building or use, constructed or established after the effective date of this
article, is changed or enlarged in floor area, number of dwellings or sieeping units, seating
capacity or otherwise, to create a requirement for an increase in the number of required parking
spaces, such spaces shall be provided on the basis of the enlargement or change.

(Code 1960, § 18-54)

~ Sec. 90-228. Restricted and prohibited parking.

(a) Off-street parking spaces in RS-1, RS-2 and RD-1 districts shall not be located in a
required front yard except as follows:

(1) Driveway space for access to parking areas or garages located in a required front
yard.

(2) It shall be unlawful to park vehicles of any type in private driveways or front yards in
said disfricts uniess they belong to the occupant of such residence, a member of his
immediate family, a resident of the household residing on the property, or a bona fide
guest or visitor thereof.

(3) When an automobile vehicle or motorcycle has been parked in violation of this
section intermittently or continuously during a period of three weeks and such vehicle is
registered in the name of a person other than to the occupant of the property, a member
of his or her immediate family or a resident of the household residing on the property, it
shall constitute in evidence a presumption that such vehicle is unlawfully parked in
violation of this section.

(4) No trailer of any type may be kept in any required yard continuously for more than
72 hours, except as may be provided in sections 90-192 and 90-193. All trailers must
display a valid license plate and registration decal as required by state law, be in
operating condition and be supported by fully inflated tires on functioning wheels.

{(b) Where off-street parking spaces serve an existing permitted structure located in the RD-2,
RM-1 or the RT-1 districts and occupy all or portions of the required front yard, such use may be
continued until the existing structure is removed.

Page 181
http:/library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/153 6/19/20006



DIVISION 3. OFF -STREE’(T PARKING | Page 3 of 4

{(c) No motor vehicle, as defined by state law, may be kept in any unpaved area of any lot or
parcel in the town. :

{(d) No motor vehicle, as defined by state law, which is not in operating condition or which does
not have a valid registration and a valid license plate decal properly displayed, as required by
state law, may be kept in any paved area of any lot for more than 30 days.

(e) The off-street parking of trucks and other commercial vehicles, in excess of what is
commonly known as a three-fourth-ton truck or vehicle, or any other equipment used for
commercial purposes, is prohibited in RS-1 single-family residential district, RS-2 single-family
residential district, RD-1 two-family residential district, RD-2 two-story multiple-family residential
district, RM-1 multiple-family residential district, RMO-1 residential multi-family overlay district,
RT-1 tourist district and CO-1 commercial office overlay district. This prohibition shall not apply
to any such vehicle which is in process of making an expeditious delivery, rendering services to
the premises (such as electrical, plumbing or yard work) or continuously and completely
enclosed within the confines of a permitted garage.

(Code 1960, § 18-55; Ord. No. 1250, § 1, 2-12-91; Ord. No. 1282, § 1, 6-9-92; Ord. No. 1374, § 1, 7-8-
97)

Sec. 90-229. Joint use and off-site facilities.

(a) All parking spaces required herein shall be located on the same lot with the building or use
served, except that where an increase in the number of spaces is required by a change or
enlargement of use or where such spaces are provided collectively or used jointly by two or
more buildings or establishments, the required spaces may be located and maintained not to
exceed 300 feet from the building served.

(b) Where the required parking spaces are not located on the same lot with the building or use
served, or where such spaces are collectively or jointly provided and used, a deed restriction or
covenant thereby assuring their retention for such purposes shall be properly drawn and
executed in recordable form by the parties concerned, approved as to form by the town
attorney, and shall be filed with the application for a building permit.

(Code 1960, § 18-56)

Sec. 90-230. Design standards.

(a) Minimum area. For the purpose of these regulations, except as provided below, off-street
parking spaces shall not be less than nine feet by 20 feet, exclusive of driveways, for the
temporary storage of one automobile. Alsles shall have dimensions as set forth in the Zoning
Code of Metropolitan Dade County entitled "Minimum Parking Stall Dimensions," except as may
be set forth below, Such parking spaces shall be connected with a street or alley by a driveway
which affords ingress and egress without requiring another automobile to be moved. However,
where compact car spaces are permitted they shall be a minimum of eight feet by 16 feet, and
where parking spaces for the handicapped are to be provided they shall be a minimum of 12
feet by 19 feet or nine feet by 19 feet where located immediately to the right of and paraliel to an
access aisle four feet or greater in width.

(b) Drainage and maintenance. Off-street parking facilities shall be drained to prevent damage
to abutting property and/or public streets and alleys and surfaced with a minimum of at least one
inch of asphaltic concrete or a wearing surface on a six-inch compacted lime rock base. Off-
street parking areas shall be maintained in a clean, orderly, and dustfree condition at the
expense of the owner or lessee and not used for the sale, repair, or dismantling or servicing of
any vehicles, equipment, materials or supplies.

Page 182
http://library3.municode.com/mec/DocView/10940/1/140/150/153 6/19/2006



DIVISION 3. OFF-STREE?" PARKING _ Page 4 of 4

(c) Separation from walkways and sfreets. Except in the RS-1 and RS-2 districts, off-street
parking spaces shall be separated from walkways, sidewalks, streets or alleys by a wall, fence
or curhing or other approved protective device.

(d) Enfrances and exits. Location and design of entrances and exits shall be in accord with the .
requirements of the town manager, but not more than one enfrance or exit, not exceeding 12
feet in width, shall be permitted for every 50 feet of width of the parking lot.

(e) Marking. Parking spaces in lots of more than ten spaces shall be marked by a painted line
or other means to indicate individual spaces; a curb or stop shall be provided at each parking
space. Signs or markers shall be used as necessary to ensure efficient operation of the lot.

(f) Lighting. Adequate lighting shall be provided if off-street parking spaces are to be used at
night. As provided in section 90-189, the lighting shali be installed, maintained and regulated so
as to reflect the light away from adjoining property and avoid annoyance fo such premises.

(g) Screening. Off-street parking lots with capacity for six or more vehicles shall provide along
the lot lines, except for ingress and egress, a visual screen with a height of not less than two
feet or more than three feet. Such screen shall consist of a compact evergreen hedge.

(h) Compact and handicapped spaces. Parking stall and aisle dimensions shall conform to the
Zoning Code of Metropolitan Dade County entitled "Minimum Parking Stall Dimensions," except
as may otherwise be provided in this Code. The percentage of compact spaces in any individual
parking facility shali not exceed 30 percent for facilities of 25 to 50 spaces; 35 percent for
facilities of 51 to 250 spaces; and 40 percent for facilities of 251 or more. The compact car
spaces shall be cleariy designated for "Compact Cars Only." Handicapped spaces shall likewise
be clearly designated for "Handicapped Only." The placement of compact car spaces within a
parking area shall be subject to site plan review which shall take into consideration parking
design standards and such matters as frequency of use, safe and expedient fraffic flow,
recognition and accommodation. For purposes of this section, a compact car shall mean an
automobile which has a width of no more than 74 inches and a length of no more than 192
inches. In all instances, adequate interior driveways and ingress and egress driveways shall be
provided to connect all parking spaces with a public street or alley. Where a parking space
heads into and abuts a sidewalk, the paved length shali be curbed in order to prevent extension
of the vehicle over the sidewalk. Required parking shall comply with these provisions and such
parking cannot be placed in dedicated or official rights-of-way. Private, noncommercial off-street
parking shall be reserved exclusively for the tenant or owner and their customersand
employees, unless otherwise approved as a result of a public hearing.

(Code 1960, § 18-57; Ord. No. 1382, § 1, 2-10-98)

Secs. 90-231--90-240. Reserved.

Page 183
http://library3.municode.com/mecc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/153 6/19/2006



DIVISION 4. OFF-STREE(T "OADING

DIVISION 4. OFF-STREET LOADING

Sec. 90-241. Off-street loading requirements.

Page 1 of 1

Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, when any building or structure is hereafter erected
or structurally altered to the extent of increasing the floor area by 25 percent or more, or any building is
hereafter converted for the uses listed in Column 1 of the chart below, when such buiidings contain the
floor areas specified in Column 2, accessory off-street ioading spaces shall be provided as required in

Column 3 and subsequent sections of this article.

TABLE INSET:
Column 2
Column 1 Floor area as
Use or Use Defined in Ec?;léjrlrr:g %paces Required in All Districts
Category Definitions,

in Square Feet

Business, commercial 10,000--60,000 Cne
Office building 60,000 and over Two
Multiple-family building 20,000--100,000 One
Hotel or motel 100,000 and over Two

(Code 1960, § 18-58)

Sec. 90-242, Interpretation of the chart.

The loading space requirements apply to all districts but do not limit the special requirements
which may be imposed in connection_with other articles of this chapter.

(Code 1960, § 18-59)

Sec. 90-243. Design standards.

(a) Minimum size. For the purpose of these regulations, a loading space is a space within the
main building or on the same lot, providing for the standing, loading or unloading of trucks,
having a minimum width of 12 feet, a minimum depth of 30 feet, and a vertical clearance of at

least 14 1/2 feet,

(b) Drainage and maintenance. Off-street loading facilities shall be drained to eliminate
standing water and prevent damage to abutting property and/or public streets and alleys and
surfaced with at least one inch of asphaltic concrete as a wearing surface on a six-inch
compacted lime rock base,

(c) Entrances and exits. Location and design of enfrances and exits shall be in accordance
with applicable requirements of the town manager.

(Code 1960, § 18-60)

Page 184

http://library3.municode.com/mcc/DocView/10940/1/140/150/1 54

6/19/2006



Exhibit

Town of Surfside Zoning Code

Prepared by:

gCaIvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.
EEXCEPT[ONAL SOLUTIONS
b
F
-]

1800 Eller Drive, Suite 600, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316
Phone: 954.921.7781 » fax: 954.921.8807

May 2008

Page 185


deastman
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A


Table of Contents Page

Article 1 [ GEEIIEEA ovrneeeeevateseesssassaeeserssnersarsasssnsssarasmsesesshissassotanarnss fEabsaEsE st nsebaraiEar s e st 1
Sec. 9041 General Rules of ConsitUGHION......ccvmirrisiis e s 1
Sesc. 802 (D181 e 8 1= T T O PO P PRSPPI TTLEI NPT 1
Sec. 903 Enforcement, interpretation, purpose and Conflict........ccovii i 8
Sec. 804 Policy and ODJECIVES ... g
Sec. 905 Compliance With regUlationS.......c i 9
Sec, 906 Zoning in progress, applicability, temporary hold on permits and
TR TE o (e RO O P VPSPPSR I PRI ATIY 10
Sec. 907 Buildings under construction ... 11
Sec. 908 OULSLANAING PEIMIES 1.vueaeremrcreriisieree s s s 11
Sec. 809 Relationship to the comprehensive Plan.........inne i1
Sec. 90.10 Provision for Storm draiNage.....c. i 12
Sec. 90.11 Charges for consulting seivices established ... 12
Sec. 90.12 ESCIOW BCCOUNES crrvreererereiersresrsrssisssassessevasasssrsassannisnssmssmassnasissatasmaneasansssssssiais 12
Sec. 9013 COllBGHON OF EES 1.vvvvvecvvsisremreiessinrsr e s saartssn s s s s s sbr s s s n e gt 12
Article 1l Administration and Enfarcemant......c.crioiimenme 12
Division | Planning and Zaning BoArd.........cusiimmnsnmmmon s 12
Sec. 90.14 CHOALEM ... vevereessares e s SR 1 13
Sec. 90.15 Membership/quorum, minimum qualifications, officers, terms of
officers, vacancies, general regulations, recommendations, expenditures,
[TTe 10 =T [T 1= TR TTT U OSSP PRSI PTE L ERITILD 13
Sec. 90,16 Meetings: Board Year; Timeframe; Order of Presentation; Location ........cccce.s 14
Sec. 9017 POWEES AN DUHES ...eeeeerieereesieerarmisrr et ransanss st st s sy s st 14
Sec. 90.18 Design RevIBW BOAI....u e 15
Sec. 9019 Single-family and two-family development review PIOCeSS .......ivvwimieerasenns 16
Sec, 9020 Development Review Requirements for submittals other than single-family
AN TWOTAMIY .. vvrereesererce i s s 18
Sec. 80.21 Cettificate of OCCUDPANGY ...vcouerissiensineiar s s s s s 22
Sec. 90.22 Changes and amendments ... 22
Sec, 90.23 CONAONEL USES 1erererrrseeimesisssisistsssenesiesststissmssmaseinsstons sansss sanssnstavarssssssasnanisassiss 22
Sec. 90.24 No-fes operational licensing of not-for-profit places of public assembly.......... 23
Sec. 90.25 Home-based on common-area based assembly USES .........cnnninien 24
Sec. 90.26 HOTNE OfI8 cveverttererseerassseseressserarssssaeseessreestsstiansrsesssnssiepatasesmasinss ity srnnansasesats 25
Sec. 90.27 COMICALOS OF UBB.vvrerseeee e iriisistermssese st s sras e snssb samss a1y sasssesn s nananiss s 26
Division il Nonconforming uses, fots and SHUCHIES ... 34
Sec. 90.28 Nonconforming Uses and Structures — Purpose and SCope ... e 34
Sec, 90.29 NONCONFOTMING (018 1evevererriersimis e b s 34
Sec, 90.30 Nonconforming use of BUILAINGS.......cercr 35
Sec. 90.31 Discontinuance of NONCONOIMING USBS ..o 35
Sec. 90.32 Existerice of NONCONTOTMING USE .orvvrtimiimieissmsimnsarssisssiiss s ssssrsssta s 36
Sec. 90.33 Alterations or Entargement of Nonconforming SHUctures ... 36
Sec. 90.34 Nonconforming uses not validated......c. e 36
Page 186 i

PREFARED BY CALVING'OADARNO R ABSCCWIES ING




Division lfl Special exceptions, zoning changes, conditional use, and vanances.......c..... 36
Sec. 9035 Planning and Zoning Board; Appfications for zoning changes, conditional
uses and variances; rules of ProCedure.......cuunnn 36
Sec. 90.36 VETIATICES 11eererseressenssrnoseessesssessrasessreassasemsesstasiisss io4sseastnanrestassnishsibastassasnissitatans 38
Sec. 9037 Special BXCEPHONS curi it s 41
Sec. 90.38 Lapse of Special Exception oF Vanance ... 42
Article 1l Establishment of Zoning Designations ... 42
Sec. 9039 ZONING DISHICIS 11vvvverresereesrereisst s s s s 42
Sec.  90.40 RegUlating MapS.....cooveiimmmmis s s s s 43
Town Of SUMHSIAS ZONING MAD 1.vveererriirersris i iiasiscberrs e e s s s S sbTEEr) 44
Article IV District ReGUIBHONS ....ucviiie e 45
Sec. 9041 REQUIALEA USBS «.u.vivrercmmersisesiins s issmssss s ss s s b s s s 45
Sec, 90.42 MIMIMUIT UNIE SIZES ..vvvve e sisrsrermsenseseniessnissssssesssasinssness s sstsstsnasissssanssansenssss 50
Sec. 9043 Maximum Building Helghts ....cooev i 50
Sec. 90.44 Modifications of height regulations ... 51
Sec. 9045 LT 10 o - TR PSPPI TR S ISR 51
Sec, 90.46 Projections into required §etbacks......eniii 52
Sec. 9047 Yards generaily, allowable projections........c . 53
Sec. 90.48 Madification of side and rear yard regulations.......... oo 53
Sec. 90.48 [ e £ 12 = o L T OO SPTP PP PP TPPPT PRI 54
Atticle V DesigN SANAANS ..o s 55
Sec. 90.50 RO DECK PrOVISIONS vivreeeeereesrrrmrrariseesessrmsstinsisssisnssinstesssassasss ssssn st esasnsnsnenans 55
Sec.  90.51 Maximumn frontage and depth of bulldings ... 55
Sec. 9062 REQUIFEd CIBAIANCES ...vuiversrerrers st s 55
Sec. 9053 Portable Storage UntS ... s st 56
Sec. 90.54 Accessory buildings and structures in H30 and H40 districts ........ceeeesinee 57
Sec. 9055 Accessory buildings and structures in the H30C, H40, SD-B40 and H120
CISITICES +ouvivevereesrereresaessessssssssssesbronsrnnssness ess bratsbEsamEsEeb e naE I eI AR IR SRRSO R AT e S e s 02 58
Sec. 90.56 Fences, walis and hedges ... 58
Sec. 9057 MEATITNE SUCKUIES 11vvvverereeeeestssesieseresersesssssttr st iasesess besrstbsasenssesass b s st e nansassanss 59
Sec. 90.68 CAIPOM CANOPIBS .1evvveeeseri i s e s s s 59
Sec. 90.59 Outdoor recsiving and broadeasting antennag ... 60
Sec. 9060 Construction adjacent to bulkhead INBS.........cciie e, 61
Sec. 9061 Paving front yards in H30 and HA0 districts........covinimnn 62
Sec, 9062 O ]110 (5151 1701311110 TRUDUEE O OO R S P S S LU 63
Sec. 9063 Miscellaneous elevations for seawalls, and groins ..., 64
Sec. 90.64 COMBINEA OIS 11revvireererereesriseesrerserarsiess it rrs asat e s sse e s s AL e a R E e s e s rn s 64
Sec. 90.65 BOAE SIOTAQE ..cvvverereerirescrernisss st s s b b e s s 64
Sec. 90.66 Temporary storage of campers and house rallers ... 64
Sec. 80.67 EImMergency POWE! JENETBIOMS ... it ene 65
Article Vi SINS 11 vsrueerrrercaneeresetsssiis s s T 65
Sec. 90.68 General and miscellanaous Provisions ... 65
Sec. 90.69 Sign Design Parameters ......ems e 689
Sec, 90.70 SIGN PEIMIS. ccvvecerresress s st s s s s 70
Sec.  90.71 Permanent Signs by DISCL.....ciis e 71
Sec. 90.72 EXSIMPE SIONS 1vcrvrierernrnsinsiaessssmsss st s s i s s 75
Sec. 90.73 ProhIDItEd SIgNS..veciuriire et s s e 75
Sec. 90.74 TEMPOTALY SIGNS it s s e e 76
Sec. 90.75 NON-CONfOIMING SIGNS cerve v e 77
Page 187 ii

PREFARED BY CALVN (GROTDAND & ABSOCATES NG




Sec. 90.76
Article VI
Sec. 90.77
Sec, 9078
Sec. 90.79
Sec. 90.80
Sec. 90.81
Sec. 90.82
Division il
Sec. 90.83
Sec. 90.84
Sec. 90.85
Aricle VI
Sec. 90.86
Sec. 8087
Sec. 90.88
Sec. 980.89
Sec. 9080
Sec. 90.91
Sec. 9092
Sec. 8093
Sec. 9094
Sec. 9095
Sec. 90.96
Sec. 9097
Sec. 6098
Sec. 90.99
Page 188

Sign Construction and MaiNtENaNCe ... 77
Off-Street Parking and Loading .......evieeimmininsssss s 78
Off-street parking reQUIBMENLS ....vcvvv it e 78
Interpretation of these reqUIFEMENES ... 79
Restricted and prohibited parking ..o 79
Joint use and off-site faCilitIes . ....cvrrriinm G 80
Shared ParkiNG ..c.ocoeveirvseeisisieersimsir sttt s s 80
DESIGN SLANAAIGS. .1 ceevereserr et b s 81
Of-SIreet LOAAING «ovvrereee e crcimmisre e s asa s enes 82
Off-strest loading reQUINEMENES ..o ier s s s 82
Interpretation of the Chart..... o B2
Design SEANAAMS....cv i 82
Landscape REqUITEMENES....coui it s 83
GROMIETA 11vvivereereressssteressasssessbeeasensriassssesrnsatanbirssaayasanrs e tassseb 4 IEA R AR SR r bRt 83
Landscape permit PIANS ... st s 87
installation of fandscaping and irmgation ..o 88
Maintenance of landscaped areas ... 90
T B 2 1=, (= ISV TE T Oy PP ST ST PP SISO 91
Vegetative PIOVISIONS ....v i a8
Landscape buffer areas between residentiai and non-residential
properties and vehiCUlar US8 areas..........wiininm e 99
Sight triangles and ClearanNCes.. ... s s 100
OPBIN SPACE...vcrrrseisssissnirss s ers s b R 100
LANASCAPS BUIAIS.....vcvoirer it s 101
Single-family H30A and H308B District landscape requirements .......o.....ceeee. 102
Preparer's certification of landscape compliance ... 103
Tree removal, tree relocation, tree praservation, and tree abuse..........cene. 103
Landscape manual and Materials ... 103
iii

PREFARED 8Y CALVN (FORDANO & ASSOSWIES INC




Appendix

Exhibit A DeSIgN GUIJEIINGS. ... ceersrrrrss e

Page 189 iv

PREFARED BY CALWN (FOADANG & ASSCCINTES. ING




Article 1

Sec. 90.1
Sec. 902
Page 190

In General

General Rules of Construction.
The following general rules of construction shall apply to the reguiations
contained in this chapter:

1. The singular number includes the plural and the plural the singular, unless
the context clearly indicates the contrary.

2 Words used in the present tense include the past and future tenses, and
the future the present.

3. Words and terms not defined herein shall be interpreted in accordance with
their normal dictionary meaning and customary usage.

Definitions.
For the purpose of this chapter, certain terms and words are hereby defined.
For convenience, all dsfined words and terms are set out in different typs.

Accessory building: a detached covered or screened subordinate building or a
portion thereof, the use of which is incidental to and customary in connection
with the main building or use and which is located on the same lot with such
main building or use. Where there is no main building on the lot, an accessory
building shall be considered as a main building for the purposes of the height,
area and bulk regulations.

Accessory use: a subordinate use which is incidental to and customary in
connaction with the main building or use and which is located on the same lot
with such main building use.

Afley: a public or private thoroughiare which affords only a secondary means of
access to abutting property.

Awning: a detachable, roof like cloth cover, supported from the walls of a
building for protection from the sun or weather.

Bar: an establishment licensed by the state which is devoted to the selling or
the dispensing and drinking of alcoholic beverages on the premises.

Basement: that portion of a building between floor and ceiling which has at
least one-half of its height below the grade of the street on which it fronts. The
height of a basement above grade shall not exceed one-half of the average
height of a story in the building.

Breezeway: a covered passageway or space between the main buitding and an
accessory building, open on two sides and the roof of which is structurally
integrated with the buildings it separates.

Building: any structure having a roof supported by columns or walls for the
shelter or enclosure of persons or property.

Building area: the area within the confines of the exterior walls of the main
building, accessory buildings, covered porches and terraces.

Building, completely enclosed: a buitding having no outside openings, other
than doors, windows, and ventilators.

Building, main: a building in which the principal use of the 1ot on which it is
located is conducted, or is intended to be conducted.

Bulk: a term used in these regulations to describe the size (and shape) of a
building or structure and its refationship to other buildings, to the lof area for a
building, and to open spaces and yards.

PREFARED BY CALVIN GOADANCIA ASSOCIATES INC




Page 191

Business:

1. Includes all vocations, occupations, professions, antetprises,
establishments and all activities and matters, together with all devices,
machines, vehicles and appurtenances used herein, and of which are
conducted for private profit or benefit, either direclly or indirectly, on or
from any premise in the town

2. Does not include the customary activities of religious, charitable, nonprofit
service clubs and organizations or educational nonprofit institutions as
those terms are defined in Division 205, Florida Statules, as may be
amended.

Cabana: a permanent or portable bath cabin on the exterior of a residence,
hote! or apartment house, together with only such accessories as wood slat
walks or decks, terraces, rubbing rooms and toilet facilities, but not intended
for steeping or living guarters. Cabanas erected on the exterior may be of pipe
frame and canvas, wood frame and masonite and be constructed in such a
manner that they are portable and easily dismantled in the event of a hurricane.
Cabanas of any other type shall be buit of masonry. Cabanas shall be
permitted only in conjunction with an outdoor swinming pool.

Canopy: a permanent, roof-like cover made of cloth, metal, vinyl or other
permanent material supported from the ground or deck or fleor of a building,
and from the walls of a building for protection from sun or weather.

Caretaker's quarters: living quarters within a portion of a main building or in an
accessory building located on the same lot with the main building, used for
workers employed on the premises and not rented as a separate dwelling.

Carport: a roofed and usually wall-less shed projecting from the side of a
building, used as a shelter for automobiles.

Certificate of Occupancy, Final: a document issued by the Town Manager or
designee certifying that he/she reasonably believes a building, or part thereof,
and its occupancy to be in compliance with the minimum standards of safely,
as set forth in the Florida Building Code, prior to the building’s occupancy and
after its inspection and that said building is in conformity with all other
applicable laws and regulations.

Certificate of Use: a document issued by the Town Manager or designee that
the zoning use classification of any business, within any approved structure or
building or unit therein, is allowed prior to its occupancy and after inspection of
the premises and proof of compliance with all the requirements of the Town
Code of Ordinances and all other applicable laws and regulations; provided,
however, that no Certificate of Use shall be issued until it has been reviewed
and approved by Town Manager or designee.

Clinic: an establishment where patients are not lodged overight, but are
admitted for examination and treatment by a group of physicians or dentists
practicing medicine together in a business relationship. The term does not
include a place for the treatment of animals.

Club, private: a building and facilities or premises, owned and operated by a
corporation, association, person or persons for social, educational, or
recreational purposes, but not primarily for profit and not primarily to render a
senvice which is customarily carried on as a business. A private club may
include the normal accessory uses such as tennis courts, cabanas and parking
spaces.

PREPARED BY CALVN GFORDANG & ABSOOIATES INC




Page 192

Common area: a room or designated area within a building or complex of
buildings zoned for residential use served by shared or public parking area,
which is reserved for the exclusive use of the residents of the building or
complex and their invited guests, and as an accessory use to the primary
residential use of such buildings.

Conditional use: any use listed in Section 20-23 as a conditional use which
would not be appropriate generally or without restriction throughout a particular
zoning district, but would be appropriate if controlled as to number, area,
location, or relation to the neighborhood.

Design Guidelines: Design Guidelines, as adopted by the Town of Surfside,
intended to provide direction and suggestions for ali development.

Detached Single-Family: One (1) dwelling unit, other than a mobile home,
sharing no walls with another dwelling unit.

District: any section of the Town within which the zoning regulations are
uniform. (See district map.)

Duplex, two-family dwelling: Two (2) dwelling units attached by a common party
or firewall in one building.

Dwelling: a building or portion thereof, designed or used exclusively for
residential occupancy.

Dwelling unit: a room, or group of rooms, ocoupied or intended to be occupied
as separate living quarters by a single family.

Family: an individual or two (2) or more persons related by blood or marriage or
a group of not more than three (3) unrelated persons (excluding workers
employed by the household) living together as a single housekeeping unit in a
dwelling.

Fence: a structure forming a physical barrier constructed of wood, aluminum,
or other materials except chainlink or wire.

Filling station: any building, structure, or land used for the sale at retall of motor
vehicles fusls, ofls, or accessories, or for the servicing or repairing of minor
parts and accessories, but not including major repair work such as motor
replacement, body and fender repair, or spray painting, and excluding public
garages.

Floor area: the sum of the gross horizontal areas of the several floors of a
building or buildings, measured from the exterior faces of exterior walls or from
the centerline of walls separating two {2) aftached buildings. Basement space
used for retailing shall be included for the purposes of calculating requiremenis
for accessory off-street parking spaces and accessory off-street loading
berths.

1. In particutar, floor area includes:

a. Elevator shafts or stairwells at each floor.

b. Floor space used for mechanical equipment.
c. Floor space in penthouses.
d

Altic floor space {whether or not a floor has been laid) providing
structural headroom of seven (7) feet six (6) inches or more.

Floor space in interior balconies or interior mezzanines.

f. Floor space in porches and pools enclosed with plastic, glass or
permanent type of material.
3

PREFARED BY CALVN G CADANO & ASSOTINIES. INC




Page 193

g. Any floor space used for residential use, no matier where located
within the building.

2. However, the floor area of a building shall not include:

a. Bassment space when used for parking of vehicles, as provided in
the design standards for underground parking in this Code.

Accessory water tanks or cooling towers.
Uncovered steps and exterior balconies.

4. Interior balconies. The width of an interior balcony shall not e
greater than the depth.

e. Covered or uncovered terraces, patios, breezeways, or porches
which are open on two (2) sides.

Floor area ratio: the floor area of a building or buildings on any lot divided by
the area of the lot.

Franchise chain: nationally recognized retailer or restaurant.

Frontage, street; the distance along a sireet line from one {1) intersecting street
to another or from one (1) intersecting street to the end of a dead-end strast.

Frontage, lot: the distance for which the front lot line and street line are
coincident.

Garage, parking: a building or portion thereof designed or used for the
temporary storage of motor-driven vehicles.

Garage, private: an accessory building, nol exceeding nine hundred (900)
square feet in floor area, designed or used for the storage of not more than four
(4) automobiles.

Grade: the average datum or elevation of the crown of the road upon the street
serving the 1ot or building site.

Height: the vertical distance from the grade, which is the average datum or
clevation of the crown of the road upon the street serving the lot or building
site, o the highest point of the roof.

Hotel: a building in which lodging is provided and offered, including all utilities
and housekeeping services, to the general public for compensation, with or
without meals, excluding accommodations for employees, and in which ingress
and egress to and from all rooms is made through an inside lobby supervised
by a person in charge at all times.

1. Hotel room means a room or group of rooms in a hotel intended for
rental to transients and not intended for use or used as a permanent
dwelling.

2 FEach hotel room shall have a private bath attached thereto, but no
kitchen facilities therein.

3. The existence of separate utility meters serving any room or group of
rooms shall be deemed sufficient to classify such rcom or group of
rooms as an apartment.

Impervious Area: An area covered by a material which does not permit
infiltration or percolation of water directly into the ground.
Indian Creek bulkhead line: the bulkhead line as defined in Section 14-101.

Interor balcony: a platform that is supported by the watl of a building that is
surrounded by three sides of the building and open on one side.

4

PAEFARED BY CALVN GGURADANO & ABSOTINES INC




Page 194

Loading space: a space within the main building or on the same lot providing
for the standing, loading, or unloading of trucks.

Lot: a parcel of land occupied or which may bhe hereafter occupied by a
building, buildings and any accessory buildings, together with such open
spaces and parking spaces or area as are required under this Article and
having its principal frontage upon an officially approved street or place. "Lot"
includes the word "plot" or "parcel" or "tract” or "site."

Lot area: the total horizontal area within the lot fines of the lot. In determining
usable lot area in the H120 district, it shall be from the west lot line to the
erosion control line and the north lot fine shall be the north boundary and the
south lat ling shall be the south boundary.

Lot, corner: a lot abutting upon two (2) or more streets at their intersection.

Lot coverage: the percentage of the total area of a lot that, when viewed from
above, would be covered by all principal and accessory bulldings and
structures, or portions thereof; provided however that allowable exclusions, as
described under "floor area," shall not be included in determining the building
area.

Lot, depth of: the average horizontal distance between the front and rear lot
lines, except where a ot abuts the ocean, Indian Creek or other established
waterway; then the depth of the lot shall be the average horizontal distance
between the front lot line and the erosion control line.

Lot, front: shall be construed to be the portion nearest the street. For corner
Jots, the lot front shall be the narrowest portion abutting the street.

Lot, interior: a lot other than a corner ot

Lot of record: a lot which is part of a subdivision, the map of which has been
recorded in the office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court of the county; or a parcel
of land which became legally established and defined by a deed or act of sale.

Lot, through {double-frontage): a lol having a frontage on two (2) parallel or
approximately parallel streets or places.

Lot width: the horizonta! distance between the side lot lines measured at the
required front yard line and parallel to the front street line, or measured at the
strest line if no front yard is required.

May: permissive

Multi-dwelling structure: a residential building on a plot, consisting of three (3)
or more dweliing units, having at least three (3) common party walls with
adjacent dwelling units, except for end or corner units.

Nonconforming fot: a lot which had a separate existence prior 1o the enactment
of these zoning regulations, or any amendment thereto, which requires a larger
area, frontage, width or depth than that which existed prior fo such enactment.

Nonconforming structure: a slructure which tawfully existed prior to the
enactment of these regulations or any amendment thereto, which does not
comply with the restrictions as to size, nature of construction, location of the
structure on the land, or location of the siructure in proximity to other buildings
required by the regulations adopted subsequent to its construction, and which
is continuously maintained after the effective date of such regulations or
amendment thersto.

PREFARSD BY CALYNGORDANG & ABSOCIATES NG




Page 195

Nonconforming use: a use of land andfor buildings which tawfully existed prior
to the enactment of these regulations or any amendment thereto, which does
not comply with the use restrictions applicable to the district in which it is
situated, and which is continuousty maintained after the effective dale of such
regulations or amendment thereto.

Ocean bulkhead fine: that bulkhead line as defined in Section 14-86.

Occupied: possession and use of a structure for its intended purpose. The
words "used' or "occupied' include the words ‘intended,” "designed" or
arranged" to be used or ocoupied.

Parking lof: an open, unoccupied area of land used of required for use for
parking automobiles exclusively and in which no gasoline, ol, services, wash-
racks or accessorles are sold or no other business conducted.

Parking space, off-street: a paved area not in the street or alley and having an
area of not less than nine (9) feet by twenty (20) feet, exclusive of driveways,
permanently reserved for the temporary storage of one (1) vehicle and
connected with a street or alley by a paved driveway which affords ingress and
egress for an automobile without requiring another automobile to be moved.

Person: any individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, syndicate or other group
or combination acting as a unit, association, corporation, estate, trust, business
trust, trustee, executor, administrator receiver or other fiduciary.

Pervious Area: Area maintained in its natural condition, or covered by a material
that permits infiltration or percolation of water directly into the ground.

Place of business: any structure used for the purpose of exercising the privilege
of engaging in business within the Town limits.

Place of public assembly: any area where individuals assemble, whether
publicly or privately owned and maintained. Includes, but is not limited to,
public assembly buildings, such as auditoriums, private clubs and lodges,
community centers, clubhouses and theaters; and places of worship or other
facilities that are used for prayer and assembly by persons of similar beliefs.

Regulations: the whole body of regulations, texi, charts, lables, diagrams,
maps, notations, references and symbols, contained or referred to in this
chapter.

Restaurant: an establishment maintained and operated as a place where food
is regularly prepared, served or sold for immediate consumption on or about
the premises and every establishment preparing food to be called for, delivered
to or taken out by customers.

Roof Deck: An open, unroofed floor structure used in conjunction with a
principal building and installed on the roof of a building.

Sethack: the minimum distance required by a zoning district that all structures
shall be from front, side and rear lot lines. Setback includes the words ‘required
yards" or "minimum required yards" and "minimum yards.'

Shall: always mandatory and not merely discretionary.

Show window or display window: an area enclosed on one (1)or more sides by
glass, adjacent to the public right-of-way, for the purposes of displaying signs
and merchandise to the public. Where transparent glass constitutes part of a
front or side of a building adjacent to the public right-of-way, all areas within
five (5) feel of such glass shall constitute a show window.

PREFARED BY CALVNGORADANG 8 ASSOCINTES {NC




Page 196

Site plan: a drawing illustrating a proposed development of a lot or tract, In
accordance with the specifications and requirements set forth in Section 90-
19.8 and 90.20(3)(b}).

Special exception: a use that would generally not be appropriate in the zoning
district, which may be authorized by the Planning and Zoning Board if specific
provisions and controls are applied.

Story: that portion of a building other than a basement, included between the
surface of any floor and the surface of the floor next above it; or, if there be no
floor next above it, then the space between such floor and ceiling next above it.

Strest: a public thoroughfare which affords the principal means of access 1o
abutting property.

Streetline: a dividing line between a lot and the adjacent street.

Structure: anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires rigid
location on the ground or attachment to something having a permanent
[ocation on the ground, including, but not limited to buildings, individual units
within a building, trailers/construction trailers, signs, backstop for tennis courts,
swimming pools, fences, screen enclosures, and pergolas.

Structural alterations: any change that would change the shape or size of any
portion of the exierior of the building or structurs, including any work affecting
the supporting members of a building or structure, such as bearing walls,
columns, beams, arches, floor or roof joists, or girders.

Substantial improvement: any combination of repairs, reconstruction, alteration
or improvements 1o a building, taking place during a five (5} year period, in
which the cumulative cost equals or exceeds fifty (60) percent of the market
value of the building. The market value of the building should be:

1. The appraised value of the building prior to the start of the initial repair or
impravement;

2. Such other value as approved by the federal government or the state; or

In the case of damage, the value of the building prior to the damage
Qceurring.

This term includes structures which have incurred substantial damage,
regardless of the actual repair work performed. For the purposes of this
definition, substantial improvement is considered to occur when the first
alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor or other structural part of the building
commences, whether ar not that alteration affects the external dimensions of
the building. The term does not, however, include any project for improvement
of a building required to comply with existing health, sanitary or safety code
specifications which have been identified by the code enforcemant official and
which are solely necessary to assure safe living conditions.

Suite-hotel: a hotel containing one or more suite-hotel rooms as defined below.
A minimum of fifteen (15) percent of fotal gross building area shall be
maintained as common or recreational areas. The building shall have central air
conditioning or flush-mounted wall units; provided, howaver, no air conditioning
equipment may face any street or body of water. The buitding shall not have
open exterior walkways providing access to units. Provided that all conditions
of this Code are met, a suite-hotel may be a timeshare property as defined in
F.S. Ch. 721,

PREPARED BY CALWN GORDAND & ASSGUATES INC




Sac 90.3

Page 197

Suite-hotel room: a hotel room in a suite-hotel containing not less than five
hundred twenty-five (525) square feet of net useable interior space and shall
contain kitchen facilities.

Swimming pool: any permanent structure containing a body of water intended
for recreational purposes, inctuding a wading pool.

Townhouse: Two (2) or more dwelling units attached by a common party or fire
walll with each unit having two {2) or more stories.

Transient: any person who exercises occupancy or is entittled 1o exercise
occupancy of any structure or part thereof by reason of renting, leasing, letting
or granting a license for a period of thirty (30) consecutive calendar days or
less, counting portions of calendar days as full days.

Use: any purpose for which buildings or other structures or land may be
arranged, designed, intended, maintained, or occupied; or any occupation,
business, activity or operation carried on or intended to be carried on in a
building or other structure or on land.

Wall- a structure or device forming a physical barrier that is constructed so that
the vertical surface is closed to prevent the passage of vision in a horizontal
plane.

Weep Holes: small holes in a retaining wall or other omamental wall where it
may be necessary to drain off excess water 10 avoid pressure build-up and
ponding of water.

Yard: an open area which is on the same lot as a building and which is
unoccupied and unobstructed from the ground upward, except as otherwise
provided in these regulations.

Yard, front: a yard across the full width of the lot extending from the front line of
the building to the front street line of the lot.

Yard, rear: a yard extending the full width of the Tot between the main building
and the rear lot line.

Yard, side: a yard on the same lot with the building between the main building
and the adjacent side of the o, and extending from the front yard to the rear
yard thereof.

Enforcement, interpretation, purpose and conflict.
1. The Town Manager or designee shall designate personnel who shall
have the authority to enforce the provisions of this Code.

5 Where it is found that any of the provisions of this Code are being
violated, enforcement proceedings may be initiated against the real
property owner, the tenant if applicable and any other person violating
the provisions of this Code. Any enforcement procedure authorized by
the Town of Surfside Code of Ordinances or state law may be used to
enforce the provisions of this Code. It shall be at the discretion of the
Town Manager or designee to determine which method of enforcement
is appropriate and whether more than one method of enforcement
should be brought.

3. In addition to enforcement by the Town Manager or designee, the
provisions of this Code may be enforced by the Surfside Police
Department if appropriate.

4. Further, the Town Commission may direct the Town Attorney to bring an
action for injunctive refief in appropriate circumstances.

PREFABED BY CALVAN GORDANG & ASSOUIATES NG




Sec. 804
Sec. 905
Page 198

5. Where this Code includes regulations on the same point as contained in
any other law or ordinance, the provisions of this Code shall govern;
except that where the regulations of the other law or ordinance are more
restrictive than those of this Code, the other shall govern.

6. Ininterpreting and applying the provisions of these regulations, they shall
be held to be the minimum requirements for the promotion of the public
safety, health, convenience, comfort, prosperity, or general welfare. It is
not intended by these regulations fo interfere with or abrogate or annul
any easements, covenants, or other agreement, provided however, that
where these regulations impose a greater restriction upon the use of
huildings or premises or upon the height of buildings, or require larger
open spaces or yards or lot areas than are imposed or required by other
ordinances, rules, regulations, or by easements, covenants, or
agreements, the provisions of these reguiations shall govern.

Palicy and objectives.

The purpose of this chapter is to encourage and promote, in accordance with
present and future needs, the safety, morals, health, order, convenience,
prosperity, and general welfare of the citizens of the Town and of the citizens of
Miami-Dade County, Florida, and to provide for efficiency and economy in the
process of development, for the appropriate and best use of land, for
convenience of traffic and circulation of people and goods, for the use and
occupancy of buildings, for healthful and convenient distribution of population,
for adequate public utilities and facilities, for promotion of the civic amenities of
beauty and visual interest, and for development in accord with the
comprehensive plan by establishing zoning districts and by regulating the
location and use of buildings, structures, and land for trade and residence, by
regulating and limiting or determining the height, bulk and access to light and
air of buildings and structures, the area of yards and other open spaces and
the density of same. To accomplish these objectives, the regulations and
districts and accompanying map have been designed with reasonable
consideration, among other things, to the character of the districts and their
peculiar suitability for particular uses.

Compliance with regulations.

1. Purpose: Permitted uses are considered to be fundamentally appropriate
within the district in which they are located and are deemed to be
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. These uses are permitied as of
right, subject to the required permits and procedures described in this
Section. Permitted uses require final site plan review and approval for
compliance with the standards applicable to a particular permitted use
as provided in this Zoning Code.

2. Permits required. Except as explicitly provided herein, no use designated
as a permitted use in this chapter shall be established until after the
person proposing such use has applied for and received all required
development permits.

3. No building shall be erected, converled, enlarged, reconstructed,
moved, or structurally altered, nor shall any building or part thereof be
used except for a use permitted in the district in which the building is
located.

4. No building shall be erected, converted, enlarged, reconstructed,
moved, or structurally aftered to exceed the height limit herein
established for the district in which the building is located.

PREFARED BY CALMNGORDANG A ASSCONTES INC




80.5.1
Sec. 906
Page 199

10.

11.

No building shali be erected, converted, enlarged, reconstructed,
moved, or structurally altered except in conformity with the area
regulations of the district in which the building is located.

No building shall be erected, converted, enlarged, reconstructed,
moved, or structurally altered except in conformity with the off-strest
parking and loading regulations of the district in which the building is
located.

No building shall be erected, converted, enlarged, reconstructed,
moved, or structurally altered except in conformity with the floor area
regulations of the district in which it is located.

No building shall be erected or moved except in conformity with the
established flood criteria, as indicated on the most current edition of the
Federal Flood Insurance Rate Maps and in Chapler 42, Aricle TI,
applicable to the lot on which the building is located.

No building shall be erected or enlarged after the effective date of these
regulations, which reduces any level of service standard established in
the Town's adopted Comprehensive Plan.

All improved properties shall have their street number displayed and
clearly visible from the strest on which the front entrance of the building
faces. In the SD-B40 and the H120 districts, all properties additionally
shall have Lheir street numbers displayed and clearly visible from the rear
of the property.

Nothing in this chapter shall be construed or applied to abrogate the
vested right of a property owner to complete development where the
property owner demonstrates each of the faflowing:

a. A govemnmental act of development approval was obtained prior to
the effective date of this Chapter or prior to the effective date of an
amendment to this Chapter; and

b. Upon which the properly owner has detrimentally refied, in good
faith, by making substantial expenditures; and

c. That it would be highly inequitable to deny the property owner the
right to complete the development.

Only one (1) main building and the accessory buildings and uses customarily
incident thereto shall be located on any single lol. In the case of singte-family
dwellings, only one (1) kitchen shall be provided on each lot.

Zoning in progress, applicability, temporary hold on permits and
Licenses

1.

Purpose. The zoning in progress doctrine (“zoning in progress”)
generally allows the Town 1o apply, on a retroactive basis, if necessary,
changes to zoning regulations or to the zoning district status of property,
to previously approved or currently in process development applications.
Additionally, the zoning in progress allows a temporary hold on permits
and licenses If there is a change in zoning, which is already in progress
that would affect the permit of license.

Initial adoption of zoning regulations. Zoning in progress shall be applied
to the initial adoption of this Section in the following manner:

a. Zoning in progress shall not be applied to the extent that vested
rights are established.

10

PREFARED BY CAVN GORDANG & ABSOCIATES NG




Sec. 90.7
Sec. 908
Sec. 909
Page 200

b. Zoning in progress shall apply to applications for development
approvals, which were filed with the Town after the cut-off date
established in (2) above. Upon the adoption of any impact fees, all
applicants will be responsible for the remittance of same fo the
Town, irrespective of time of filing of the application, up to and
including to the time of issuance of a building permit.

¢c. Zoning in progress shall not apply to the grant of any moratorium
waiver specifically granted by the Town Commission.

3. Future amendments to zoning reguiations. When an amendment to the
zoning regulations or in the application of any particular zoning district
clagsification to land Is being considered, the Town may impose a
temporary hold on any development applications pending before the
Town with respect to the area of the zoning regulatory text which is the
subject of the amendment. The hold shall commence upon the date that
the notice of zoning in progress is published in a newspaper of general
circulation in the Town and shall continue in effect for a period from the
date of notice until the subject change, with or withoul amendments,
shalt have been approved or disapproved by the Town Commission or
for a period of three (3) months, whichever is sooner, unless such
development application would be in conformity with the more restrictive
of the existing zoning district status or the zoning district regulations as
compared to the proposed zoning district status or zoning district
regulations. An affected person may appeal the Town staff's application
of this provision to the Town Commission for review by the Town
Commission by filing a notice with the Town Manager.

Buildings under construction.

Any building or structure for which a lawful building permit has been issued,
and the construction of which has been siarted prior to the effective date of the
ordinance from which this chapter was derived may be completed and used in
accordance with the plans and specifications upon which such building permit
was granted, provided such construction is completed within one (1) year after
the effective date of the ordinance from which this chapter was derived.

Outstanding permits.

1. Whare, on the effective date of the ordinance from which this chapter
was derived, there are outstanding valid building permits, authorizing the
construction of buildings, structures, additions or alterations, the use or
canstruction of which do not conform to the requirements of this chapter,
such permits shall be vold unless actual construction work, excluding
grading or excavating, is substantially underway on that date and the
underiying vested rights to construction are vested. Vested rights are
defined in 90-5.11.

2. Where, on the effective date of the ordinance from which this chapter
was derived, thers are outstanding valid permits, authorizing the use of
land or buildings without construction wark, and where such use is not
permissible under the terms of this chapter, such permit shall be void
unless the use is actually in operation on that date.

Relationship to the comprehensive plan.

All regulations contained in this chapter and the maps altached thereto shall be
amendad, supplemented or changed only in compliance with Florida law and
shall be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

11

PREFAFED BY CALVIN GOADANO S ASSOCIATES INC




Sec. 90.10
Sec. 90.11
Sec, 9042
Sec. 90.13
Article I
Division |
Page 201

Provision for storm drainage.

No structure shall be constructed or enlarged unless it meets all requirements
of Chapter 34 regarding storm drainage management. Such requirements shall
apply to all accessory buildings or struciures or uses serving such structures.

Charges for consulting services established.

1. Except for applications by a single-family homeowner in the H30A and
H30R districts, the Town Manager or designee, in the review of any
application, may refer any such application presented to it to such
angineering, planning, legal, technical, or environmental consultant or
professional(s) employed by the Town as the Manager shall deem
reasonably necessary to enable him/her to review such application as
required by law. Charges made by such consuitant shall be in accord
with the charges customarily made for such services in Miami-Dade
County, and pursuant to an existing contraciual agreement by and
hetween the Town and such consultant. Charges made by the Town
shall be in accord with the hourly rates charges by such consultants or
hourly rates of employed professionals and shall be paid on
submission of a Town invoice.

2. Unless prohibited by law, the applicant shall reimburse the Town for
the cost of such consultant or employed professional services upon
submission of a copy of the invoice, within thirty (30} days of
submission of a copy of the invoice. These fees are in addition to any
and all other fees required by other law, rule or regulation of the Town
Caode.

Escrow accounts.

At the time of submission of any application or thereafter, it is required that an
escrow account be established, from which withdrawals shall be made o
reimburse the Town for the cost of professional review services. The applicant
shall then provide funds to the Town for deposit into such account in an
amount to be determined by the Town Manager, based on evaluation of the
naiure and complexity of the application. The applicant shall be provided with
copies of any Town invoice for such services as they are submitted to the
Town. When the balance in such escrow is reduced to one-third {1/3) of its
initial amount, the applicant shall deposit additional funds into such account {0
bring its balance up to the amount of the initial deposit. [f such account is not
replenished within thirty (30) days after the applicant is notified, in writing, of the
requirement for such additional deposit, the Town may suspend its review of
the application. An application shall be deemed incomplete if any amount shall
be outstanding. A building permit, Certificate of Use and occupancy or other
action shall not be issued unless all professional review fees charged in
connection with the application have been reimbursed to the Town. Once all
pertinent charges have been paid, the Town shall refund to the applicant any
funds remaining on deposit.

Collection of fees.
The Town Manager or designee shall collect ali fees required pursuant to this
Avticle.

Administration and Enforcement

Planning and Zoning Board

12

PREFARED BY CALYN GOADANG & ASSOCATES. ING




Sec. 90.14 Created.
There is created a Town Planning and Zoning Board.

Sec. 90,16 Membership/quorum, minimum qualifications, officers, terms of
officers, vacancies, general regulations, recomimendations, expenditures,
indebtedness.

1. Membership/quorum: The Planning and Zoning Board membership and
guorum requirements for zoning matters and design review matters are as
follows:

a. Zoning matters: The Planning and Zoning Board, when performing
its zoning functions, shall consist of five (5) members. Cne of the
board members must be a Florida licensed architect. Each
Commissioner shall be entitled to one (1} Board appeintment, not
subject to majority approval. The Town Commissioner responsible
for appointing a Florida licensed architect shall rotate through the
Commission beginning with Seat 1. Three (3} members present at
the Planning and Zoning Board mestings shall constitute a quorum.

b. Al Board Matters: One Town Commissioner shall be a llaison, non-
voting representative without a vote at all Planning and Zoning Board
meetings.

2. Minimum Board Member Qualifications: All board members must have
been a Town resident for a minimum period of one (1) year, except for the
licensed architects, including the Florida licensed landscape architect, if
applicable, who must have been a Town resident for a minimum period of
six (6) months. The Florida licensed architects must have a minimum of five
(5) years of practical experience in the field of landscape design.
Notwithstanding this minimum number of required architects satisfying
these qualifications, including residency requirements, the Town
Commission at its discretion, may consider and appoint architectural
members who have at least three (3} years minimum experience as a
licensed architect within the State of Florida.

3. Officers: The Board shall elect one (1) of its members as chairman and one
(1) of its members as vice-chairman, at its first regular meeting in April of
each year. In the event of the resignation, removal, or inability of the
chairman to serve, the vice-chairman shall succeed to the chairman
position for the unexpired term; and the Board shall, thereupon, elect one
{1) of its members as vice-chairman for the unexpired term. The chairman
shall preside at all meetings. In the chairman’s absence, the vice-chairman
shall preside. The chairman shall submit all Board reports and
recommendations to the Town Commission, by and through the chairman,
vice-chairman or the Town Commission liaison member. The Town shall
provide a secretary for the Board and the Town Clerk shall be custodian of
all records, books and journals of the Board.

4, Board Member Term(s): The term of each beard member appointment
shall begin on the last Thursday of April of the year in which the board
member is appointed and end when a successor board member is
appointed or on the last Thursday in April, whichever dates comes first. The
term of any board member filing a vacancy created on the Board as
provided in Paragraph (e) shall begin at the time of the board members
appointment and end the last Thursday in April or whenever a replacement
is appointed.

13

Page 202

PREFAHED BY CALVN (FORDANO & ABEOCIATES. ING



Vacancies: A vacancy shall exist: (1} on the date that any member ceases
to possess the minimum required membership qualifications provided
herein; or {2) when a board member has been absent from threz (3)
consecutive regularly convened board meetings or has been absent from
five (5) regutarly convened board meetings within a hoard year. Vacancies
on the Board shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term in the
same manner as original appointments are made.

General regulations governing members: Board members shall be
appointed in accordance with all applicable state, county and Town ethics
laws, rules and regulations. Appointed members of the Board shall not,
during their term, hold any other public office, paid position or serve on any
other board under Town government, except as a temporary board
member, or that of a voluntary fireman.

Expenditures; indebledness: The Town Commission may authorize the
expenditure by the Planning and Zoning Board of such funds as the Town
Commission may deem necessary to perform the requirements of this
chapter. The Town Commission may appropriate from the general fund as
set up in the annual budget and such sums as it may from time to time
authorize the Board to expend. The Board may not incur indebtedness
without prior Comimission approval.

Sec  90.16 Meetings: Board Year; Timeframe; Order of Presentation; Location.

1. Board Year: The Board year shall commence on the last Thursday of
April in each year.

2. Meetings on Zoning Matters/Timeframe: Regular board mestings for
zoning matters shall be held on the last Thursday of each month. The
chair may call special meetings and may cancel or continue meetings as
may be necessary.

3. Mestings on Design Review Matters/Timeframe: The Board shall mest as
needed on design review matters. The chairman may call special
meetings and may cancel or continue meetings as may be necessary.

4. Order of Presentation for Zoning Matlers and Design Review Matters: In

order to avoid unnecessary project costs and delays, the Board shall
address and finalize each project zoning matter prior to initiating sach
project design review, to the extent applicable.

5. Location of All Board Meetings: All board meetings shall be held in the
Town Hall or Community Center.
Sec 9017 Powers and Duties.

1.

Page 203

Zoning Matters: The Planning and Zoning Board shall act as an advisory
board to the Town Commission on zoning matters and design review
matters. The Boards’ powers and duties are as follows:

a. To perform its responsibiities as the Local Planning Agency
pursuant to local and state government comprehensive planning
and land development regulations (F.S. Ch. 163);

b, To review and make recommendations to the Town Manager and the
Town Commission regarding the adopting and amendment of the
officlal zoning map; the land development regulations amendments;
zoning district  boundary changes; and comprehensive  plan
amendments;

c. To review and make recommendations to the Town Commission, on
applications pertaining to site plans (if applicable) zoning changes,

14

PAZFARED BY CALVIN (FOADAND & ASSOCATES NG




Sec 90.18

Page 204

special use permits, conditional use variances vested rights and any
other zoning applications;

d. To conduct such studies and investigations required under the Town
Code andfor requested by the Town Commission; and

e. The Planning and Zoning Board shall have such other duties
pertaining to zoning matters as prescribed by law, this Section and
the Town Code.

Design Review: The Planning and Zoning Board shall conduct a design
review for all structures to be constructed and renovated within Town
limits on the terms outlined below.

Design Review Board.

The Planning and Zoning Board, when performing its design review functions
shall serve as the Design Review Board and shall have seven (7) members.
The seven (7) members shall include the five (5) members appointed by the
Commission and two (2) additional Florida licensed architects, one (1) of which
may be a Florida licensed landscape architect. Both of these architects shall be
appointed by a majority of the Town Commission. Four (4) members present at
the Planning and Zoning Board design review meetings shall constitute a
quorum and at least one (i} of the four (4) members shall be a licensed
architect.

1.

Purpose. This Section is intended to promote excellence in architectural
and urban design; preservation of the Town's historic and architectural
and neighborhcod character; and desirable urban growth and
development. To implement this goal, the Design Review Board is
hereby created to review and make advisory recommendations 10 the
Planning and Zoning Board as to whether the design of new
developments and/or improvements within the Town are consistent with
and in conformance wiith the Design Guidelines set forth in the Town
Code. The Design Guidelines are attached thereto as Exhibit A provided
that the Town Commission may amend said Guidelines from time to time
via Resolution. The Guidelines as amended, shall govern and be applied
as fully set forth herein.

2, Design Review Procedure:

a. Al applications for new developments or improvements that are
subject to the Town's adopted Design Guidelines shall be referred to
the Board for review and consideration.

b. The Board shall review each application whether for development of
single family, multi-family, commercial or other districts for
conformity with the Town’s adopted Design Guidelines and
recommend the application to the Planning and Zoning Board for
approval, approval with conditions, or disapproval of the application.
No applicant shall be required to appear before the Design Review
Board more than twice per application.

¢. Mestings held by the Board for review and recommendations of
applications shall be arranged to permit participation by the person
or group making the application or request and representatives of
such person or group, if desired. Architectural plans and drawings of
the building facades, lists of finish materials and other information
necessary to provide adeguate insight into the proposed
development/improvement shall be provided to the Board by the
person or group making the proposal or request.

15

PREFARED BY CALVN (FORDANO & ABEROCWTES INC




Sec. 90.18
90.19.4

90.19.2

90.19.3

90.19.4

90.19.5

90.19.6

90.19.7

Page 205

3. Design Review application fees are set forth in the Town designated fee
schedule.

4. Al meetings of the Design Review Board shall be publicly noticed.

Single-family and two-family development review process

Permits. No building shall be erected, constructed, altered, moved, converted,
extended or enlarged without the owner or owners first having obtained a
building permit from the Building Ofticial. Such permit shall require conformity
with the provisions of these regulaiions. When issued, such permit shall be
valid for a period of one hundred eighty (180) days. However, the Town
Manager or designee may grant an extension to the permit due to an
uncantroliable act of nature of up to one hundred eighty (180) days.

The Building Official reviews all applications for building permits or certificates
of occupancy for compliance with the provisions of the Zoning Code and all
other applicable codes. The Building Official shall issue a building permit if the
applicant demonstrates that the proposed development is in compliance with
all applicable codes and in compliance with any and all development orders
issued in connection with the project, and that all fees have been paid.

Permit Card. Upon approval of plan specifications and application for permit
and payment of required fees, the Building Official shall issue a permit. The
Building Official shall issue a permit card for each permit which shall bear the
description of the property, identify the work being done, identify the owner and
contactor and other pertinent information, and such card shall be maintained in
a conspicuous place on the premises effected there by the hours of work and
available on demand for examination.

Permit Requirements. The Florida Building Code as amended is hereby
adopted as the regulation governing the construction of buildings and
structures in the Town. Al qualified applicants desiring a permit to be issued by
the Building Official as required shall file an application in writing on a form
provided by the Town. No development shall occur untit and unless the
Building Official has issued a building permit.

Design Guidelines — The Town has adopted Design Guidelines intended to
provide direction and suggestions for all development. The purpose of the
Design Review Board s to interpret those guidefines and provide guidance o
the applicants as to how the design should be revised to more closely
approximate or reflect the Town’s adopted Guidelines. The applicant shall then
incorporate those suggestions prior to proceeding to building permit.

Single-family and two-family development shall be reviewed by the Design
Review Board.

The following shall be exempt from Design Review Board review, however, the
design guidelines shall be followed:

Inkerior or rear yard fences
Interior renovations
Awnings

Screens

Driveways

Re-roofs

ook N

16

PREFARED BY CALYMN GOADANO & ASSOOIATES INC




90.19.8 The following are required for submittal to the Design Review Board:

1. Applicalion Form: Each application shall describe the land on which the
proposed work is to be done by legal description, and address shall
show the use or occupancy of the building or structure; shall be
accampanied by plans and specifications as required; shall state the
value of the proposed work; shall give such other information as may
reasonably required by the Town Manager or designee and the Florida
Building Code; shall describe the proposed work and shall be attested to
by the applicant and/or property owner.

Ownership affidavit

Survey less than one (1) year old. A survey over one (1} year is sufiicient
as long as the property has not changed ownership and the owner
provides an affidavit that no changes change occurred since the date of
the survey.

4. Two {2) tull-sized sets of complete design development drawings (24 X
36 sheets) signed and sealed by a Registered Architect. Eight (8)
reduced sized (11 X 17) copies of the plans.

5. Surrounding Context:

Provide recent photographs of the subject property and of all abutting,
diagonal and fronting properties, as visible from the street.

6. Site Plan {Minimum scale of 1" = 20Y:

a. Show entire parcel(s) with dimensions and ot size in square feet
Show existing and proposed buildings with square footage
Show any buildings fo be removed
Show all setbacks

Show dimensions and locations of all existing and proposed right-
of-ways, easements and street frontage, including sidewalks, curb
and gutter and planting strips

f.  Show all existing and proposed site improvements, including, but
not limited 1o, all ulilities, retaining walls, fences, decks and patios,
driveways and sidewalks, signs, parking areas, and erosion
control features

® a0 T

g. Show the localion of all existing and proposed trees, vegetation,
palms and note tree species

h.  Show locations and dimensions of parking spaces and lot layout
i. Show driveway entrance width and setbacks from property line

7. Architectural Elevations {Minimum scale of 1/8" = 19:

a. Provide color elevations, showing all material finishes, textures and
landscaping for all elevations of the proposed building(s). They
should include, at a minimum:

b. Al exterior materials, colors and finishes, keyed to samples
provided

Roof slopes and materials and color

Detail of doors, windows, garage doors

Lighting locations and details

Dimensions of structure(s) - height, width, and length

~ o a0

17




g. Deck, railing, stairs details including materials, colors, finishes, and
decorative details

h. Exposed foundation treatment
i. Guiters and eaves
j.  Abutting structure heights

90.19.9 Effective period of Design Review Board approval. An approval from the Design
Review Board shall be effective until the development is completed except that
if, after twenty-four (24) months from the date of the approval by the Design
Review Board a buiiding peremit for a principal building has not been issued and
remains in effect, the approval shall be null and void.

1.

Extensions for good cause, not to exceed a total of one (1) year for all
extensions, may be granted by the Town Commission, at its sole
discretion, provided the applicant submits a request in wiiting to the
Town Manager or designee in advance of the expiration of the original
approval, setting forth good cause for such an extension. For the
purpose of this Section, a building permit for a principal building shall
cease to be in effect once required inspections have lapsed or once a
certificate of completion or Ceriificate of Occupancy is issued.

All approvals which have been granted prior 0 the effective date of this
chapter, shall be null and void and of no further force or effect if not
utilized within two (2) years after the effective date of this chapter, unless
vested rights are demonstrated pursuant to Section 20.5.11 of the
Zoning Code. The foregoing provision of this paragraph shall not apply if
the governmental resolution granting the approva expressly established
a specific time limitation for utilizing the approval. In such instances, the
time limitation established by such resolution shall prevail.

90.20 Development Review Requirements for submittals other than single-family and
two-family

1.

Page 207

Generally. Review and approval of a site plan by staff reviewing
agencies, the Design Review Board and the Planning and Zoning Board
is required prior to any development of land in the Town.

Process. Submit plans (sets to be determined by Town staff as
appropriately needed), which are distributed to the staff members of the
Development Review Group (DRG).

a. The DRG member shall review the site plan and prepare
comments. The comments shall be forwarded to the Town
Manager or designee. The comments shall be addressed by the
applicant, if applicable. The Town Manager or designee shall hold
a Development Review Group mesting with appropriate Town staff
and the applicant to discuss the comments.

b. After the revisions and upon review of the final site plan by the
DRG members, the site plan will be scheduled for the next
available Town Design Review Board and Planning and Zoning
Board meetings. If possible, the Planning and Zoning Board
meeting and the Design Review Board meeting should be held on
the same date. The materials required under 80.19.8 should not be
duplicated for both the Planning and Zoning Board meeting and
Design Review Board mesting. They ghall he considered one
{1) submittal package.

18

PHEFAREG BY CALVN GORDAND & ASSOCATES ING




3. Submitta! requirements for DRG, Planning and Zoning and Design
Review Board are provided below.

a. Application. An application is required for site plan approval. This
application shall include the following where appficable:

b. Site Plan. A site plan, the overall size of which shall be 24" x 36",
drawn ai a scale not less than 1" = 20" and shall include the
following:

i. A legal description, including the section, township, and
range or subdivision lot and block.

if. Site boundarles cleady identified, and ties-lo-section
corners.

ii.  Proposed uses.

iv.  Location and height of all structures and total floor area with
dimensions to lot lines, and designations of use.

V. Building separations.

vi.  Vehicular circulation system for cars, bicycles, and other
required vehicle types, with indication of connection to
public rights-of-way. Location of all parking and [oading
areas.

vi. Al adjacent rights-of-way, with indication of ultimate right-of-
way line, center line, width, paving width, axisting median
cuts and intersections, strest light poles, and other utility
facilities and easements. Location of all cross streets and
driveways within three hundred fifty (350} feet of property
fimits.

viil.  Pedestrian circulation system.

ix.  Provider of water and wastewater facilities.

X Existing and proposed fire hydrant locations.

xi.  The following computations:

- Gross acreage.

- Net acreage. Gross acreage covered by the property
excluding road easements and rights-of-way, if any.
Number of dwelling units and density for residential
uses only.

- Square footage of ground covered by buildings or
structures and designation of use.

- Required number of parking spaces.

- Number of parking spaces provided.

Pervious, impervious and paved surface, in square
footage and percentage.

xi.  Site Plan location sketch, including section, township, and
range, showing adjacent property owners.

xiii. Geometry of all paved areas including centerlines,
dimensions, radii, and elevations.

xiv. Location of trash and garbage disposal system and
provisions for accessibility to garbage trucks.

xv. Loading areas and provisions for accessibility to vehicles of
the required type.

xvi. Areas for emergency vehicles and fire engines, and
provisions for accessibility to vehicles of the required type.

xvil.  Number of sets required shall be determined by Town Staff.

xviii. Other such information as required by the Town.

Page 208 19

PREPARED BY CALVWN GOADAND & ABSCCIATES ING




Page 209

PREFAAED BY CALVN GORDANO & ASSOUIATES ING

Survey. A survey fess than one (1) year old {including owner's
affidavit that no changes have occurred since the date of the
survey). The survey shall be prepared by a Florida registered fand
surveyor, certified as to meeting the requirements of the applicable
Section of the Florida Adminisirative Code, reflecting existing
natural features, such as topography, vegetation, existing paving,
existing structures, and water bodies.

Landscape Plan and Irrigation Plan. Landscape plan and irrigation
plan with landscape calculations, existing tree survey with
indication of existing native vegetation that will be preserved, as
required herein.

Lighting Plan. Lighting plan showing photometric measurements,
lighting detalls and spiliage onto adjacent properties and rights-of-
way.

Sign Plan for all signs which will be on site.
Paverment markings and traffic signing plan.

Schematic water and sewer plan. Plans shall include the location
and size of all mains and lift stations (Note: Final engineering plans
must be submitled and approved).

Paving and drainage plans. Plans shall show the location of all
drainage features and retention areas, if any.

Architectural Elavations {Minimurn scale of 1/8" = 1}.

i.  Show separate elevations of all sides of existing and proposed
buildings with all dimensions, including height.

ii. Llabe! exterior materials, color, texture and trim, roof material,
roof color and pitch, windows, doors, screens, skylights and
all exposed mechanical equipment and screening

iii. Provide color elevations, showing all material finishes, textures
and landscaping for all elevations of the proposed building(s)
and structure(s), which should include at a minimum:

- All exlerior materials, colors and finishes, keyed to
samples provided

- Roof slopes and materials including specifications and
color
Detait of doors, windows, garage doors

- Dimensions of structure(s) — height, width, and length

- Deck, railing, stairs details including materials, colors,
finishes, and decorative details
Exposed foundation treatment

- Gutters and eaves

Signs

i.  Show dimensioned locations and mounting details of signs on
building elevations and locations of signs on site plan

ii. Note colors, materials, lighting and dimensions

ii. Show dimensions and square footages (proposed and
existing)

iv, Identify materials and colors — background, trim/border, and

copy
v. Show fonts and graphics

20




90.20.1

©0.20.2

90.20.3

Page 210

Site Plan amendments. If an applicant's development plans change after
previously receiving final site plan approval, the applicant may file an
application for revised final site plan approval with the Town Manager or
designee. However, no application will be considered for property that is the
subject of pending Code enforcement action by the Town or that has an
unpaid Code enforcement lien.

1.  Site Plan Amendment Criteria,

a. Amendments may not be contrary to a condition of the original site
plan approval or any previously approved amendment {except that
conditions that were impased for a particular use may be lifted if that
use is deleted from the site plan).

b. Amendments may not change the character or location of any
structure on the property that is not part of the main building.

¢. Amendments may not alter the location of any points of ingress or
egress from the public right-of-way, nor alter any vehicular or
pedestrian flows.

Exemnpt development. Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, the
following activities shall not require site plan approval, however, may require
Design Review Board approval:

i.  The deposit and contouring of fill on land.
2. Construction of a single-family home on an existing single-family lot.
3. Construction of a single duplex on an existing single lot.

Effective period of final site plan approval. An approved final site plan shall be
effective until the development is completed except that if, after twenty-four (24)
months from the date the site plan is approved by the Planning and Zoning
Board a building permit for a principal building has not been issued and
remains in effect, the site plan shall be null and void.

1. Extensions for good cause, not to exceed a total of one (1) year for all
extensions, may be granted by the Town Commission, at its sole
discretion, provided the applicant submits a request in writing to the
Town Manager or designee in advance of the expiration of the original
approval, setting forth good cause for such an extension. For the
purpose of this Section, a building permit for a principal building shall
cease to be in effect once required inspactions have lapsed or once a
certificate of completion or Certificate of Occupancy is issued. In those
cases where a development includes more than one (1) principal
building and it is contemplated that the development shown on a site
plan will not be completed with a building permit for a principal building
continuously in effect, approval by the Planning and Zoning Board of a
phasing schedule must be obtained as part of the overall site plan
approval. Amendments to the original site plan shall not extend this time
frame unless an extension is expressly granted by the Planning and
Zoning Board as a part of the approval of the amendment.

2. All approvals which have been granted prior to the effective date of this
chapter, shall be null and void and of no further force or effect if not
utilized within two (2) years after the effective date of this chapter, unless
vested rights are demonstrated pursuant {o Section 90.5.11 of the
Zoning Code. The foregoing provision of this paragraph shall not apply if
the governmental resolution granting the approval expressly established
a spegcific time limitation for utifizing the approval. In such instances, the
time limitation established by such resolution shall prevail.

21

PREFARED By CALVIN GORDANG & ASSOCIATES. INC




Sec. 90.21

Sec. 90.22

20.22.1

90.22.2

Sec, 90.23
90.23.1

90.23.2

Page 211

Certificate of occupancy
1. No vacant land shall be occupied or used until a Ceriificate of
Occupancy shall have been issued by the Building Official.

2. No premises shall be used and no buildings hereafter erected or
structurally altered shall be used, occupied, or changed use until a
Certificate of Occupancy and compliance shall have been issued by the
Building Official, stating that the building or proposed use of a building or
premises complies with the building laws and the provisions of these
regulations.

3. Certificates of occupancy and compliance shall be applied for within ten
(10) days after the erection or structural alteration of such have been
completed in conformity with the provisions of these regulations. A
record of all certificates shall be kept on file in the office of the Building
Official.

Changes and amendments

The Town Commission may, from time-to-time, amend, supplement, or change
by ordinance, the boundaries of the dislricts or the regulations herein
established.

Reconsideration of district boundary changes. When a proposed change in
district boundaries has been acted upon by the Town Commission and
disapproved or failed of passage, such proposed change, in the same of
substantiat similar form, shall not be reconsidered by the Town for a period of
at least one (1) year following the date of such action.

Withdrawal of a petition. Any petition for amendment, supplement, or change
may be withdrawn by a request in writing from the petitioner at any time before
a decision of the Town Commission, but if withdrawn after advertisement for a
public hearing or posting of the property, the same or a substantially simitar
petition covering the same property shall not be resubmitted, except by the
Town Manager or a member of the Town Commission, sooner than one (1)
year after date established for the prior hearing. Filing fees shall not be
refunded upon withdrawal.

State law references; Zoning amendments, F.S. §§ 163.3194, 166.041.

Conditional uses

Purpose. The purpose of this Section is to provide a process which is designed
to determine if certain uses, hereafter referred to as conditional uses, should be
permitted. Special review of conditional uses is required because such uses
are generally of a public or semipublic character and are essential and
desirable for the general convenience and welfare of the community, but
because of the nature of the use and possible impact on neighboring
properties, require the exercise of planning judgment on location and site plan.

Conditional uses enumerated. The following uses may be approved by the
Town Commission as conditional uses in any district in which they are
specifically allowed, as indicated within the provisions for individual Zoning
districts. Approval of such conditional use(s) in accordance with the
procedures and standards of this Section shall only be granted where it has
been clearly shown that the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare
will not be adversely affected; that adequate off-street parking facilities, in
accordance with this chapter, will be provided; and that necessary safeguards
will be provided for the protection of surrounding property:

1. Institutions, educational or phitanthropic, including museums, but not
including nursing homes or hospitals,

22

PREPAREG BY CALVN GORDANO & ABSCUIATES ING




90.23.3

80.23.4

80.23.5

Sec. 90.24

90.24.1

90.24.2

Page 212

2. Off-street parking fots and garages.
3. Public and governmental buildings.

4. Public ufflities or public service uses, buildings, structures and
appurtenances thereto.

5, A bar accessible from the pool or pool deck for use solely by guests of
hotels and their guests in the H120 district. In all cases, it shall be the
exclusive responsibility of the owner, operator, tenant or user of the
property to assure that neither the sale nor consumption of beverages
shall occur or be allowed 1o occur off the properly or on any portion of
the property lying east of the bulkhead line.

Site plan required. Each application for approval for a conditional use shail be
accompanied by a site plan. Such site plan shall be prepared in accordance
with the provisions of Section 90.20(3){(b). In addition, each application shall be
accompanied by a letter and survey indicating compliance with all of the
provisions of Section 90.20(3)(b), and any additional information as may be
required to permit a determination of the exact nature of the proposed use and
its effect on surrounding properties, the adjacent neighborhood, and its
consistency with the Town's adopted Comprehensive Plan.

Procedures; conditional uses.

Application and fee shall be submitted to the Town for a Conditional Use review
and are subject to the requirements of Section 90.23. Applications for approval
of a conditional use shall be heard by the Planning and Zoning Board for a
recommendation to the Town Commission. The Planning and Zoning Board's
report may contain recommendations regarding conditions which should be
imposed by the Town Commission in approving the conditional use. The Town
Commission may establish these and/or additional conditions for an approval
by a simple majority vote.

The approval of a Conditional Use shall be void if the applicant does not obtain
a building permit or other permit required to implement the Conditional Use
within twenty-four (24) months after the granting of the Conditional Use. An
applicant who has obtained approval of a Conditional Use may request an
extension of this time period within the original approval period. The Town
Commission may grant one or more extensions for a period of up 1o a total of
six (8) months for good cause shown by the applicant.

No-fee operationat licensing of noi-for-profit places of public assembly

A place of public assembly operated by a not-for-profit organization qualified
under Section 501{c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and registered pursuant
to Chapter 496, Florida Statutes, shall not be occupied until it obtains an
operational license from the Town.

The operator of a qualifying place of public assembly shall obtain a form and
submit an application for an operational license by contacting the Department
of Building and Zoning. No fee shall be charged by the Department.

The Town Manager or designee shall notify the holder of any operational
ficense, in writing, of the Town's intent to revoke an operational license if he or
she determines that the following circumstances exist.

1. The Town has reasonable grounds to believe that the premises are being
used in a manner that is inconsistent with, or contrary to, the provisions
of the Zoning Code or any other applicable code or statute.

23

PREFARED BY CALMN GORDANO & ASECCIATES ING




90.24.3

80.24.4

90.24.5

Sec. 90.25
90.25.1

90.2b.2

90.26.3

90.25.4

Page 213

2. In the event of a conviction of any director of the organization holding the
operational license by a court of competent jurisdiction, for the violation
of any criminal statute committed in conjunction with the operation.

3. It has been ascertained that the holder of the operational license falsified
any information on its application.

4. The holder of the operational license, or the holder's designated
manager, operator, or supervisor, refuses to permit an authorized law
enforcement officer or code enforcement officer to inspect the premises
during normal operating hours for the purpose of investigating a
complaint which has been filed against the operation.

The notice of intended revocation of an operational license shall state the
following:

THE HOLDER OF THE OPERATIONAL LICENSE SHALL HAVE TEN (10) DAYS
FROM THE DATE OF RECEIPT OF THIS NOTIFICATION EITHER TO BRING
THE PREMISES INTO COMPLIANCE OR TO REQUEST A HEARING, IN
WRITING, BEFORE THE TOWN COMMISSION. IF THE VIOLATION IS NOT
CURED OR IF NO WRITTEN REQUEST FOR A HEARING 1S RECEIVED BY THE
TOWN OF SURFSIDE WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS
NOTIFICATION BY THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THE OPERATIONAL LICENSE
SHALL BE CONSIDERED REVOKED.

If the holder of the operational license requests a hearing before the Town

Commission, the operational license shalf remain in effect during the pendency
of the action before the Town Commission.

The original of the operational license shall be posted upon the premises at all
times.

Home-based and common-area based assembly uses

Applicability. The standards set forth in this subsection shall apply to any
proposed or existing home-based or common-area based assembly Lse
Jocated in the following residential zoning districts: H30A, H308, H30C, H40
and H120.

Home-based and common-area based assemblies are permitted, whether for
social, religious, or other reasons, as an incidental accessory use fo the
principal residential use.

Frequency of home-based and common-area based assembly uses.

Assemblies that occur four (4) or more times per month for two (2) consecutive
months will be deemed to be beyond the scope of the accessory use and shall
not be permitted.

Parking standard.

1. Home-based assembly uses. A home-based assembly use which restlts
in an additional eleven (11) vehicles being parked near the dwelling unit
at each assembly will be deemed to be beyond the scope of the
accessory use and shall not be permitted. Vehicles parked legally on the
site of the home-based assembly, or upon another parcel pursuant to a
lawful agresment with the owner of such parcel, shall not be counted
toward the eleven (11} vehicles.

2. Common-area based assembly use. A common area-based assermbly
use which results in an additional six (6) vehicles being parked near the
common-area based assembly use will be deemed to be beyond the
scope of the accessory use and shall not be permitted. Additionally, the

24

PREFARED BY CALVIN G'OFDANO & AGSOCIATES ING




parking demand created by such assemblies shall not exceed the supply
of parking spaces provided within the shared guest or visitor parking
areas allocated to commeoen-area functions.

Sec. 90.26 Home Offices

1.

Page 214

Home offices are permitted in residential areas of the Town provided
that:

a. Users of the home office are residents of the premises;

b. The use of the dwelling unit or residence for a home office is clearly
incidental and secondary to its use for residential purposes. No
outside display, storage or use of the land is permitted.

¢. There is no change in the outside appearance of the building or
premises as a result of the home office;

d. No equipment is used or stored on the premises that creates noise,
vibration, glare, fumes, odors or electrical interference, detectable to
the normal senses outside the dwelling unit. In the case of clectrical
interference, no equipment or process shall be used which creates
visual or audio interference in any radio, television sel or olher
electronic device off the premises or causes fluctuation in line
voltage or other similar nuisarnce;

e. No trash, sewage, solid waste or other waste than normal household
trash and recyclables is generated. No commercial dumpsters or
trash service shall be allowed;

f.  No retail or wholesale sales on the premises shall be permitted
except for telephone, mail, delivery service, internet order sales or
similar electronic sales;

g. No traffic is generated by such home office in greater volume than
would normally be expected in the neighborhood for residential
purposes. No customers, clients, business associates, sales
persons, invitees, assistants, outside employees, independent
representatives, or the like shall visit the dwelling unit or residence for
a business purpose,

A home office shall not be construed to include among other uses,
personal services, such as the practice of medicine, chiropractic
medicine, dentistry, massage, cosmetology, barbershops, beauty
parlors, tea rooms, food processing for sale, kennels, animal grooming,
radio and television repair, furniture refinishing or building, cabinet
making, boat building, marine charter or towing service, auto servicing or
rebuilding and repair for others, metal fabrication or culting empioying
welding or cutting torches, or any other occupation requiring state
mandated inspection of the premises;

No more than one (1) vehicle related to the home office shafl be
permitted upon the premises. Such vehicle must be twenty (20) feet or
less in overall length and must be parked off any public right-of-way. All
exterior storage of cargo, equipment or other materials on such vehicle
shall be shielded from view at all times when such vehicle is located on a
residential lot;

The home office activities shall be compatible with the residential use of
the property and surrounding residential units;

The home office activities shall not involve any illegal activities;

25

PREFARED BY CALV-N GOADAND & ASEOCRTES ING




6. The home office activities shall not result in any increase in demand on
Town services as compared to the average typical residence of the same
size.

7. No signs, lights, lawn markers, postings, adveriising, etc. which are not
compatible with the residential appearance and use of the property shall
be located on or ahout the residence or unit.

a. The Town Manager or designee shall determine whether the home
office meets the established criteria as set forth in Section 1 above.
The determination may be appealed to the Planning and Zoning
Board whose ruling shall be final and may be appealed to the Circuit
Court.

b. A local business tax receipt must be obtained from the Town for
home offices.

¢. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to authorize, legalize or
otherwise permit a home based business that is otherwise prohibiled
by a legally enforceable covenant, association document or other
instrument or restriction on such use pertaining to a residential unit.

Sec. 90.27 Ceriificates of Use
1. it is hereby deemed unlawful for any person to open or operate any
business andfor occupy any structure within the Town limits for the
privilege of engaging in any business prior to obtaining the required
Certificate of Use.

2. No structure used for the purpose of exercising the privilege of doing
business within the Town limits shall be used or occupied or any existing
use enlarged, or any new use made of any land, body of water, or
structure, without first obtaining a Certificate of Use therefore from the
Town Manager or designes as may be required herein.

3. The Certificate of Use shall be renswable annually for all existing, new,
and future business use classifications on any land, body of water, and
or in any structure including the individual units within said structure
within the Town limits,

4. A separate Certificate of Use shall be obtained for each place of
business and for each corporation and/or legal entity within each place
of business.

5. [t shall be the duty of every person owning, operating, or purchasing any
business within the Town limits to comply with the requirements of this
division prior to opening any business and/for cccupying structure.

90.27.14 Term of Certificate of Use and transfer.
1. No Cerlificate of Use shall be issued for more than one (1) year, and all
certificates shall expire on September 30 of each year.

2. Certificates of Use may be issued for a fractional portion of a year, but no
Certificate of Use shall be issued for a fractional portion of a month.

3. When there is a change of use, business, business ownership or
business name the application for Certificate of Use shall be treated as
new application.

g0.27.2 Due date for payment of Certificate of Use fee.
1. Certificates shall be available for issuance by the Town, commencing on
August 1 of each year. Both the renewal and renewal fee shall be due on
October 1 of each year. If October 1 falls on a weekend or holiday, the

Page 215 26

PREFARED BY. CALVN GORDANO & ASSCGOIATES INC




fee shall be due and payable on or before the first working day following
October 1. Those ceriificates not renewed by October 1 shall be
considered delinquent and subject to a delinquency penalty of ten (1 0)
percent) for the month of October, plus an additional five (5) percent
penalty for each month of delinquency thersafter until paid; provided,
that the total delinquency penalty shali not exceed twenty-five (25)
percent of the fee due.

2. Any person exercising the privilege of engaging in or managing any
husiness without first obtaining a Certificate of Use, if required under this
division, shall be subject o a penally of twenty-five (25) percent of the
fee determined to be due, in addition to any other penalty provided by
law or ordinance,

90.27.3 Fees.
Fees to be charged for the purpose of administering this division are hereby
imposed as follows:

1. The Town Manager or designee shall collect fee. No origination fes shall
be charged for a Certificate of Use to any business within the Town limits
that has a current and appropriate Certificate of Use from Miami-Dade
County or the Town, but the annual renewal fee shall be charged
accordingly.

2. The Town Manager or designee shall collect and annual renewal fee for
the renewal of existing Certificates of Use as issued herein.

3. An application fee shall be assessed for the processing of a new
application for Certificate of Use.

4. Inspections of the applicant's business premises shall be scheduled at
the convenience of both the compliance officerfinspector and the
business owner. If the business owner faits to be present at the time of
the scheduled inspection or if the compliance officer/inspector is denied
and/for unable to gain access to the business premises to conduct the
requisite inspection, the business owner may be subject to being
charged a reinspaction fee per reinspection at the discretion of the Town
Manager or designee. Additionally, after three (3) such attempis and/or
denials of access to the premises the Town Manager or designee may
pursue the revocation of any existing certificate(s) of use issued to the
subject premises.

90.27.4 Application procedures.
1. Procedures for issuance. No Certificate of Use shall be issued or granted
to any person or location to engage in any business type use named,
identified or encompassed by this division unless:

a. An application is filed with the Town Manager or designee on forms
provided for that purpose, disclosing the following:

(i The applicant's name and address.

(i)  The name of the business for which a certificate is sought.

{iy The name and address of the owner and operator of the
business and if a corporation, the names and addresses of
each of its corporate officers and it's resident or registered
agent.

(iv) The type or classification of the business and the refationship
of the applicant o the business.

{v)  The location in the Town where the business will be operated.

Page 216 21

PREFARED BY CALVIN GOADANO & ABEOCIATES ING




Page 217

() The date of bith and driver's license number of the
ownerfoperator and any applicable federal employer
identification numbers.

(viy If the applicant is a corporation or partnership, the full name of
the corporation or partnership and the state of incorporation.
Applicant must submit a copy of the Articles of incorporation.

(viil) 1f the business is a corporation and is to be conducted under
another name, the business name and county of registration
under F.S. §865.09. Applicant must submit a copy of the
fictitious name registration.

b. There has been a site inspection of the applicant's business
premises, except home hased businesses,

¢. The Town Manager or designes, as appropriate, has approved and
assigned the zoning use classification.

d. The Town Manager or designec has verified compliance with ali
applicable laws and regulations and has collected all applicable fees
due to the Town.

Legality of use. In the event there is a question as to the legality of a use,
the Town Manager or designee, as appropriate, may require affidavits
and such other information s/he may deem appropriate or necessary to
establish the legality of the use, before a Certificate of Use will be issued.

Emergency locator. The application shall contain a section designated
"smergency locator." The applicant shall fill out as part of the Certificate
of Use application the names, business and residence addresses and
residence and business phone numbers of the owner, and the manager
or other persons to be notified in case of fire or other emergencies. Any
changes in such information during the period for which the Certificate of
Use is issued shall be made to the Department, in writing.

Certificate number. All applications and certificates shall be assigned a
number.

Statement of accuracy. The application form shall contain the following
language:

“THE UNDERSIGNED HAS CAREFULLY REVIEWED THIS APPLICATION
AND ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN HAS BEEN FREELY AND
VOLUNTARILY PROVIDED. ALl FACTS, FIGURES, STATEMENTS
CONTAINED IN THIS APPLICATION ARE TRUE, CORRECT AND
COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF. THE
APPLICANT ALSO ACKNOWLEDGES AND UNDERSTANDS THAT THE
ISSUANCE OF A TOWN CERTIFICATE OF USE IS CONTINGENT UPON
A ZONING COMPLIANCE INSPECTION AND IN CONJUNCTION WITH
THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY, AND TOWN
BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE TOWN'S
ORDINANCES MAY RESULT IN REVOCATION OF SAID CERTIFICATE
OF USE."

Name; signature. The applicant shall print and sign his name to the
application immediately after the staternent required in Subsection 5
above. In the case of a corporation, an officer shall be required to sign
the application in his individual capacity and not solely as a corporate
agent.

Obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy prior to issuance of Certificate of
Use. All businesses required to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy from

28

PREFARED BY CALVNGORDAND & ASSOCIATES INC




10.

the Town Manager or designee pursuant to Section 307 of the Florida
Building Code, must do so prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Use.
Any Certificate of Occupancy issued by Miami-Dade County shall be
honored by the Town, provided that the occupancy for which the
certificate was issued remains the same.

Stale license, certification, registration required. All businesses and
professions regulated by the state must submit a copy of their current
state license, certification, andfor registration prior to the issuance of
their Certificate of Use thereafter each year at time of renewal. Oniy the
state license itself, or in the case of the state hotel and restaurant
Commission, the receipt issued by the state, shall constitute proof of
current state ficense.

Grease trap registration required. All restaurants are required to obtain a
grease trap permit from the Miami-Dade County Department of
Environmental Resources Management and shall provide a copy of said
permit to the Town Manager or designee prior to the issuance of any
Certificate of Use.

Fire inspection required. All businesses that require an annual inspection
from the Miami-Dade County Fire Department shall submit a copy of the
county fire inspection report or any such form indicating that said
business was inspected and passed the requisite inspection; prior to the
issuance of any Certificate of Use.

90.27.5 Grounds for denial.

1.

Page 218

PREFARED BY CALVNG'ORIARG & ASSOCIATES INC

The Town Manager or designee, as appropriate, shall have the authority
to deny an application for a Certificate of Use on the following grounds:

a. That the applicant has failed to disclose or has misrepresented a
material fact or any information required by this division in the
application.

b. That the applicant desiring to engage in the business, as described
in the application, has sclected a proposed site or type of business
activity, which does not comply with the Town's Zoning Ordinance or
other laws of the Town.

¢. That the applicant has failed to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy as
required by Section 307 of the Florida Building Code.

d. The Certificate of Occupancy for the proposed business location has
been denied, suspended or revoked for any reason.

e. The issuance of a Certificate of Use is based on the applicant's
compliance with specific provisions of federal, state, Town or county
law, withh respect to the specific zoning use, and the applicant has
violated such specific provisions.

f. The applicant has violated any provision of this division and has
failed or refused to cease or correct the violation within thirty (30)
days after notification thereof.

g. The premises have been condemned by the local health authority for
failure to mest sanitation standards or the premises have been
condemned by the local authority because the premises are unsafe
or unfit for human occupancy.

h. The applicant is dslinquent in the payment of any certification fee
imposed under this division; code compliance lien; special

assessment lien andfor any other debt or obligation due to the Town
under state or local law.

29




i, The applicant has been denied a Town business tax receipt, or the
applicant's business tax receipt has been revoked within the last
twelve {12} months.

j. The applicant fails to permit inspection by the Town as required and
prescribed herein.

Any person, whose application has been denied as provided herein shall
have the right to apply for a variance and/or public hearing. Such
application shall be governed in accordance with any Town or local
ordinance or law.

90.27.6 Renewal of Certificate of Use.

1.

4,

Renewed certificates will not be issued until all delinquent payments for
any fee imposed under this division, code compliance lien, special
assessment lien and/or any other debt or obligation due to the Town
under state or local law has been paid in full.

The Town shall endeavor to notify all cerlificate holders that their
Certificates of Use are due for renewal. However, if such certificate
holder does not receive a renewal notification, it is responsibility 1o renew
the Cerlificate of Use prior to October 1, to avoid delinquent charges.

Any current Certificate of Use may, at the discretion of the Department,
be renewed for each new certificate year without the need for a new
application, provided the applicant signs the following certification:

"l THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFIES THAT THE CERTIFICATE OF
USE FOR WHICH | AM NOW APPLYING IS ONE FOR A RENEWAL OF A
CURRENT CERTIFICATE OF USE WHICH 1S NOW IN FULL FORCE AND
EFFECT. | HAVE NOT CHANGED THE AUTHORIZED USE OF THE
PREMISES NOR HAVE | MADE ANY PHYSICAL OR STRUCTURAL
CHANGES TO THE PREMISES AND DO NOT PLAN TO MAKE ANY
PHYSICAL OR STRUCTURAL CHANGES TO THE PREMISES."

Any renewal application in which the applicant changes the authorized
use of the premises or makes or proposes any physical or structural
changes in the premises shall be reprocessed as if the cerlificate were a
new application.

90.27.7 Display of cerlificate.
Each Certificate of Use issued by the Town shall be displayed conspicuously at
ihe place of business and in such a manner as to be open to the view of the
public and subject to the inspection of all duly authorized officers of the Town.
Failure to display the certificate in the manner provided for in this Section shali
subject the owner/operator to applicable code compliance procedures andfor
any other remedies as permitted by law.

90.27.8 Duties of Building Depariment.
1. The Building Department, among other duties, shall collect all fees and
shall issue certificates in the name of the Town to all persons or businesses
qualified under the provisions of this division and shall:

a.

b.

C.

Page 219

Verify that the applicant is in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations of the Town as prescribed herein.

Investigate and determine the eligibility of any appiicant for a certificate
andfor the current status of any certificale as prescribed in this
division.

Accept applications for Certificates of Use and review for
completenass.

30

PREPARED BY CALWS GOADANG & ASSOUIATES ING




80.27.9

90.27.10

90.27.11

90.27.12

90.27.13

90.27.14

Page 220

d. Inspect the applicants' premises for compliance with the applicable
building codes identifying any necessary building permits and/or any
building code violations.

e. Coordinate with Miami-Dade County Fire Department and the
Depariment of Environmental Resources Management to obtain
copies of respective approvals as necessary.

2. The Town Manager or designee, as appropriate, shall among other duties:

a. Approve and assign the zoning use classification for each business
premises.

b. Examine the books and records of any applicant or certificate holder
when reasonably necessary for the administration and comptliance of
this division.

c. Notify any applicant of the acceptance or rejection of his application
and shall, upon his refusal of any certification, at the applicant's
request, state in writing the reasons therefore and deliver them to the
applicant.

Examination of records.

it shall be unlawful for any person andfor business to refuse to allow the
Department to investigate and examine relevant records for the purpose of
determining whether such person andfor business has a certificate andfor
whether such person and/or business shall be issued a certificate.

Approval of business location required.

No Certificate of Use shall be issued for any business until the zoning use
classification of the business premises is first approved by the Town Manager
or designee, as appropriate; and the Department verifies that the applicant is in
compliance with all applicable laws, and other regulatory ordinances of the
Townn.

Lost or stolen certificates; issuance of duplicate.

A duplicate Certificaie of Use shall be issued by the Town Manager or
designee, as appropriate, to replace any certificate or special permit previously
issued which has been lost, stolen, defaced or destroyed without any willful
conduct on the part of the certificate holder upon the filing by the certificate
holder of an affidavit sworn to before a notary public of this State attesting to
that fact. A duplication fee shall be charged for each duplicate certificate.

Obtaining certificate by faise statement.

Any Certificate of Use obtained under the provisions of this division upon a
misrepresentation of a material fact shall be deemed nufl and void and the
certificate holder who was thereafter engaged in any business under such
certificate shall be subject to compliance action for doing same without a
Certificate of Use with the same effect and degree as though no such
certificate had ever been issued.

llegal activity not approved by certificate.

The issuance or possession of a valid Certificate of Use obtained under the
provisions of this division does not constitute an approval of any offense, illegal
activity or act prohibited by law.

Revocation of Certificate of Use.

The Department, in consultation with the Town Manager or designee, as
appropriate, is granted the authority and charged with the duty to revoke,
refuse to renew or suspend any Gertificate of Use as follows:

31

PREPARED BY CALVIN GOADAND & ABBOUIATES ING




1. A Certificate of Use issued under this division may be revoked, suspendsd,
or renewal! of said certificate refused on the following grounds.

a.

The certificate holder has failed to disclose or has misrepresented a
material fact or information required by this division in the application.
If an intentional misrepresentation of a material fact is discovered.

The certificate holder does not engage in the business as dsscribed in
the application or has changed the use without authorization.

The certificate holder allows the premises to be utilized for soficitation
for prostitution, pandering, lewd and lascivious behavior, sale,
distribution or display of obscene materials or conduct; sale or
possession of any controlled substances or narcotics.

The Certificate of Occupancy for the proposed business location has
peen denied, suspended or revoked for any reason,

The issuance of a Certificate of Use is based on the applicant's
compliance with specific provisions of federal, state, town or county
law and the applicant has violated such specific provisions including
but not limited to violations of federal, state, or county criminal statutes,
and/or violations of county and/or Town zoning, business tax receipts,
and related ordinances.

The applicant has violated any provision of this division and has failled
or refused io cease or correct the violation after notification thereof.

The premises have been condemned by the local health authority for
failure to meet sanitation standards or the premises have been
condemned by the local authority because the premises are unsafe or
unfit for hurman occupancy.

The applicant is delinquent in the payment of any certification fee
imposed under this division, code compliance lien, special
assessment lien and/or any other debt or obligation due to the Town
under state or tocal law.

2. Procedure.

a.

Page 221

The Department may revoke, refuse to renew or suspend any
Certificate of Use on any grounds set forth herein. The Department
shall issue a written notice of intent to revoke and/or suspend that shall
set forth the grounds upon which the notice is issued, the corrections
necessary for compliance, and the certificate holder's right to request
an administrative hearing in froni of the Town Special Master, and that
said appeal must be taken within thirty (30) calendar days of the
service of said notice,

The thirty (30} calendar days shall be considered a warning period
during which the noticed certificate holder may come into compliance
as required herein. If compliance is achieved within said warmning
period the Department shall void the revocation and the certificate
holder shall dismiss any pending appeal.

The notice shall be sent certified mail, return receipt requested, 1o the
address provided in the application or the last known address of the
applicant. Alternate service may be made by delivery of the notice of
hearing to the place of business and/or posting such notice thereon. If
there is no appeal taken by the certificate holder as provided herein,
the Certificate of Use shall be automatically revoked. Upon revocation
of the Certificate of Use, the certificate holder shall immediately cease
doing business in any location listed therein.

32

PREFARED BY CALVN GOADANO & ABBOUATES ING




The request for hearing before the Special Master to appeal the
revocation notice shall stay any compliance action and the Certificate
of Use shall remain in effect unless, within the sole discretion of the
Department, it is determined that the grounds for denial represent an
immediate threat to the health, safety, and/or welfare of the public.

3. Scheduling and conduct of hearing.

a.

h.

Page 222

At any time prior to the expiration of thirty (30) days following the
service of the notice of intent to revoke andfor suspend the Certificate
of Use, the cerificate holder may request in writing that the
Department schedule a hearing on the basis that he/she wishes 1o
appeal the pending revocation notice. The office of the Town Clerk, in
consultation with the Town Special Master, shall set the matter down
for hearing on the next regularly scheduled hearing date or as soon
thereafter as practical, provided that the hearing daie is not more than
forty-five (45) calendar days from the date of the Town's receipt of the
timely request for appeal. The certificate holder shall receive a
minimum of fifteen (15) days' written notice of the hearing which shall
set forth the time and place for the administrative hearing.

The hearing shall be conducted by the Special Master.
The proceedings at the hearing shall be recorded by the Town Clerk,

The hearing shall be conducted in an informal manner and the formal
rules relating to evidence and witnesses shall not apply, but
fundamental due process shall be observed and shall govern the
proceedings. Any relevant evidence shall be admitted if the Special
Master finds it competent and reliable, regardless of the existence of
any common law or statutory rule to the contrary.

Each party shall have the right to call and examine witnesses; 1o
introduce exhibits; to cross-examine witnesses on any matter relevant
to the issues even though that matter was not covered in the direct
examination; to impeach any witnesses regardiess of which party first
called that witness to testify; and to offer rebultal to the evidence.

Requests for continuances will not be considered if not received by the
Special Master at least seven (7) calendar days prior to the date set for
the hearing.

The proceedings at the hearing shall be conducted as follows:

() The Department shali present testimony in evidence.

(i) The certificate holder shall then present testimony in evidence.

(i) Each side shall have the right of cross-examination at the
conclusion of the other's presentation.

(iv) The Special Master shall have the right of inquiry.

(v} Each party shall have the right to present rebuttal evidence.

{vi) Upon completion of the presentations, the hearing shall be
closed, and the Special Master shall analyze the testimony and
evidence of record and shall render a decision either affirming or
denying the determination of the Department.

The decision of the Special Master shall be reduced to wiiting and
copies thereof shall be furnished to the Department and certificate
hotder within five (5) business days of the hearing.

() This decision may be appealed by writ of certiorari within thirty
(30) days of such written order to the Circuit Court,

33

PAEPARED BY CALWIN GIOADANO & ASSOTNTES ING




90.27.15

90.27.16

Division Il

Sec  90.28

Sec 30.29

Page 223

(i) Upon the time period for such appeal having expired, and no
such appeal having been filed, or upen the expiration of such
appeal procedures resulting in the affirmation of the decision of
the Special Master, the certificate shall stand automatically and
immediately revoked and no new certificate shall be issued.
Upon revocation, the certificate holder shall immediately cease
doing business in any location listed therein.

i.  No application for a Certificate of Use shall be considered by the Town
until one (1) year after the date of any revocation or non-renswal.

Right of inspection.
1. Any person applying for or obtaining a Certificate of Use shall be subject to
an annual inspection of the place of business.

2. For the purpose of enforcing the provisions of this division, code officials,
inspectors, and compliance officers shall have the right of inspection
provided that said inspection shall be reasonable and scheduled at the
convenience of the applicant or certificate holder and the compliance
officer or inspector. The office of the Town Attorney is hereby authorized to
seek inspection warrants as necessary.

3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a home based business need only be
inspected if a complaint regarding the operation of the business is
received and subsequently observed by the Town Manager or designee.

Penalties for offenses.

Any person who violates any section of this division shail be subject to the
issuance of a civil penally to be issued in accordance with the code
compliance code.

Nonconforming uses, lots and structures

Nonconforming Uses and Structures - Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this rule is to regulate and limit the development and continued
existence of unlawful uses, structures and lawful uses established prior to the
effective date of this Zoning Code which does not now conform to the
requirement of this Code.

Revisions of this Section are designed to curtail substantial investment and
non-conformity and to bring about the eventual improvement or efimination in
order to the preserve the integrity of the restorations in a character of the Town.
Any non-conforming structure or ol which lawfully existed on the date of the
adoption of this Zoning Code and which remains non-conforming and any lot
which has become non-conforming as the result of the adoption of this Zoning
Code or any subsequent amendment thereto may be continued only in
accordance with the terms of this Article.

Moving a non-conforming structure. A non-conforming structure shall not be
moved in whole or in part to any other location unless every portion of such
structure and the use thereof is made to conform with all requirements whether
the district to which the structure is moved. The moving of the structure shafl
also comply with the requirernents of other applicable Town ordinance.

Nonconforming lots

If the owner of a ot in any district does not own a parcel or tract of fand
immediately adjacent to such lot, and if the deed or instrument under which
such owner acquired litle to such lot was of record prior to the adoption of the
ordinance from which this division was derived, or any amendment thereto
which requires a larger minimum lot size than currently exists, the owner may

34

PREFPAKED BY CALVIN G'CRDANG A ASSOCIATES ING




Sec 390.30
Sec 20.31

90.31.1
Page 224

use such fot for improvements that confarm in all other respects to applicable
zoning regulations. Any existing building which may be located on such a
nonconforming lot may be altered or enlarged, provided such alteration or
enlargement meets all other applicable requirements of these zoning
regulations, including the substantial improvements provisions.

Nonconforming use of buildings

Except as otherwise provided herein, the lawful use of a building existing at the
effective date of the ordinance from which this division was derived may be
continued, although such use does not conform to the provisions hereof, If no
structural alterations are made other than substantial improvements as defined
by this Code, a nonconforming use of a building may be changed to another
nonconforming use of the same or of a more compliant classification.
Whenever a nonconforming use has been changed fo a more compliant use or
to a conforming use, such use shall not thereafter be changed o a fess
compliant use. The nonconforming use of a building may be hereafter
extended throughout those parts of a building which were lawfully and
manifestly arranged or designed for such use at the time of passage of the
ordinance from which this division was derived.

Discontinuance of nonconforming uses

No building or land, or portion thereof, used in whole or in parl as a
nonconforming use in any zoning district, which remains idle or unused for a
continual period of six (6) months, or for eighteen (18) months during any three
(3) year period, irespective of whether or not existing equipment or fixtures
which contribute to the nonconformity are removed, shall again be used except
in conformity with the regulations of the district in which such building or land is
located.

Discontinuance or Destruction of a nenconforming use or structure.

1. Noncenforming use of land. If for any reason a nonconforming use of land
ceases or is discontinued for a period of more than six (6} months, or for
eighteen (18) months during any three (3) year period the [and shall not
thereafter be used for a nonconforming use.

2. Nonconforming use of building or structure. If for any reason the
nonconforming use of a building or structure ceases or is discontinued for
a period of six (6) months or more, the building or structure shall not
thereafter be used for a nonconforming use.

3. Reconstruction after catastrophe. If any nonconforming building or
structure is destroyed or damaged by a fire, flood, windstorm, natural
disaster or similar event, and the cost of restoring the structure to its
condition which existed immediately prior to the event does not exceed fifty
(50) percent of the cost of replacing the entire structure, then the structure
may be restored to its original nonconforming condition. [f any
nonconforming building or structure in which there is a nonconforming use,
is damaged by fire, flood, windstorm, natural disaster or similar event and
the cost of restoring the structure {o its original condition will exceed fifty-
one (51) percent of the replacement cost of the same building or structure,
then the structure shall not be restored.

4. Ordinary repairs and maintenance may be made to a non-conforming
structure provided that such repairs or maintenance does not exceed fifty
(50) percent of the value as determined by the building official.

Ordinary repairs and maintenance in accordance with the criteria, not
including repairs and maintenance that would substantially alter the

35

PAEFARED BY CALYN GOADANO & ASSOUATES ING




Sec 90.32
Sec 80.33
Sec 80.34
Division Il
Sec 90.35
Page 225

structure, result in a change of occupancy of the structure, or contravene
or circumvent other provisions hereof.

Existence of nonconforming use

In case of doubt, and on a specific question raised as to whether a
nonconforming use exists, it shall be a question of fact and shall be decided by
the Town Commission through the special exception process after public
notice and hearing and in accordance with the rules of the Commission.

Alterations or Enlargement of Nonconforming Structures

Except as provided in this Section a nonconforming structure shall not be
enlarged in any manner or undergo any structural alteration unless to make it a
conforming structure. Such alteration or enlargement may be permitted provide
that:

1. Enlargement or alteration itself conforms to the requirement of these
regulations;

2. Building non-conformity only as to height area or floor area requirements
may be altered or extended; enlarged so long as it does not increase the
degree of non-conformity for the applicable district.

Nonconforming uses not validated

A nonconforming use in violation of a provision of these regulations, or any
provision which these regulations amend or replace shall nol be validated by
the adoption of these regulations.

Special exceptions, zoning changes, conditional uses and variances

Planning and Zoning Board; Applications for special exceptions, zoning
changes, conditional uses and variances; rules of procedure.

Rules of procedure. The following rules shall govern procedure on all
applications for special exception, zoning changes, conditional uses, and/or
variances:

1. All applications shall be submitted to the Planning and Zoning Board on
the prescribed form and accompanied with the prescribed fee. The
Planning and Zoning Board shall be required schedule a public hearing not
later than thirty (30) days after receipt of such special exception, zoning
change, conditional use permit or variance request. The Board shall make
its views and recommendations known to the Commission for the
Commission’s determination. If the Board fails to take action within the
prescribed time, the Commission shall assume its duties.

2. A public hearing shall be advertised at leasl once in a local newspaper of
general circulation or publicly posted in the Town Hall at [east ten (10) days
prior to the public hearing. Written courtesy notices shall be sent by first
class mail to affected property owners within a radius of three hundred
(300) feet. Where practicable, such advertising shall contain, in addition to
a legal description, a strect address, together with the specific intended
use in layman's language, i.e., "apartment house” rather than “mulliple
dwelling," “meat market” rather than “business zoning.”

3. Anotice, eighteen (18) inches by twenty-four {24) inches, shall be placed in
a prominent place on the properly by the applicant at his own expense
denoting the following:

36

PAEFARED BY CALVN G ORDARD & ASSOUIAIES ING




10.

Page 226

REQUEST FOR:

PLANNING AND ZONING MEETING DATE AND TIME
TOWN COMMISSION MEETING: DATE AND TIME
TOWN HALL
9293 Harding Avenue

Surfside, FL 33154

COMPLETE INFORMATION REGARDING THE APPLICATION IS
AVAILABLE BY CONTACTING THE TOWN HALL AT

Such natice to be posted not less than ten (10} days prior to such hearing.

A posted notice shall contain the requested use change in layman's
fanguage as in subsection (3) of this Section. Posted notice shall be of
standard size in standard colors, approved by the Town Manager or
designee before erection.

All applications for rezoning must be made and presented by the fee title
owner or owners of the property sought to be rezoned or by a tenant or
attorney for the owner with the owner's written approvail.

Applications for special exceptions, variances and conditional uses shall
be adjudicated by resolution.

Applications for zoning changes to the land use map or rezonings shall be
adjudicated through the same procedures as required for ordinance
adoption as required by law.

Application for zoning change review criteria. In order to approve an
application for zoning change the Town Commission must find that the
application complies with each of the following criteria. The applicant is
required to provide a report at the time the application is filed which
includes documentation that the application complies with each of the
below criteria:

a. The zoning change is consistent with the comprehensive plan;

b. The proposed change will result in development that is consistent in
scale and character with those within 300 feel of the site;

The resulting boundaries of the zoning district are logically drawn;
The proposed change will not reduce property values in the Town;
The proposed change will enhance the quality of life in the Town; and

There are substantial and compelling reasons why the proposed
change is in the best interests of the Town.

Resolutions for approval of special exceptions, variances and conditional
use shall be sent to each member of the Planning and Zoning Board by the
Town Manager following approval by the Commission (except for a
rezoning of a parcel which shall be adopted by ordinance as provided by
law, and forwarded to the Planning and Zoning Board in the same
manner). All resolutions approving special exceptions, conditional uses
and variances granted by the Commission shall be kept in a journal
malrtained for such purpose.

The hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the quasi-judicial
procedures set forth in this Code.

~o o0

37

PREFARED BY CALYIN G'OHDANO & ASSCQOIATES INC




Sec. 90.36
90.36.1
Page 227

The following applications are quasi-judicial and shall comply with the
Town's quasi-judicial legislation:

a. Site specific rezoning.

b. Conditional use applications.
¢. Special exceptions.
d

Variances, including, but not limited to: trees, signs, setback, distance
requirements between buildings or other variances permitted by this
chapter.

e. Development of regional impact.
f.  Any other development approval desmed to be quasi-judicial by the
Town Attorney.
Variances

General Variances

1.

Purpose, definition, scope and fimitations. A variance is & relaxation of the
terms or provisions of the Zoning Code of the Town of Surfside (Zoning
Code) where such action will not be contrary to the public interest and
where, owing to conditions peculiar to the property and not the result of
actions of the applicant, a literal enforcement of the Zoning Code would
result in unnecessary and undue hardship on the property. As used in this
Section, a variance is authorized only for lot coverage, dimensions of
yards, setbacks, other open spaces, building spacing, parking, or loading
requirements.

Uses and height of structures not subject to varance. A variance is
authorized only as set out in subsection 1.

a. Under no circumstances shall the Town Commission grant a variance
that would allow a use of property that is not allowed within the zoning
district under the Town of Surfside Comprehensive Plan and the
Zoning Code.

b. Under no circumstances shall the Town Commission grant a variance
that would allow height of development and structures within the Town
of Surfside that exceeds the maximum building heights that are set out
in the Town of Surfside Comprehensive Plan or the Zoning Code,
whichever provisions are more restrictive.

Nonconforming uses and structures not grounds for granting variance.
Nonconforming use of neighboring lands, structures, or buildings in the
same zoning district, and permitted use of lands, structures or buildings in
any other district, shall not be considered grounds for granting a variance.

Town manager not authorized to vary terms of section. The Town Manager
or designee has no authority to relax the terms of this Section. Authority to
grant variances is lodged solely with the Town Commission.

Application requirements. An application for a General Variance shall be
filed by the owner of the property upon which the variance is requested or
the owners designated representative. The following shall, at minimum, be
required to suppaort a variance application:

a. Statements of ownership and control of the property, executed and
sworn to by the owner or owners of one hundred (100) percent of the
property described in the application, or by tenant or tenants with the
owners® written, sworn consent, or by duly authorized agents
evidenced by a written power of attorney if the agent is not a member
of the Florida Bar.

38

PREFARED BY CALVN GOSDANO & ASSOCIATES ING




b, The wrilten consent of all utiities and/or easement holders if the
proposed work encroaches into any easements.

¢. Survey less than one (1) year old (including owner's affidavit that no
changes have occurred since the date of the survey). A survey over
one (1) year is sufficient as long as the property has not changed
ownership and the owner provides an affidavit that no changes change
occurred since the date of the survey.

d. Site plan indicating the existing and proposed structures.
e. A map indicating the general location of the property.

6. Staff review. The Town Manager or designee shall review the application to
determine whether the proposed variance complies with the general
purpose and standards set forth herein. The Town Manager or designee
shall compile a written staff report summarizing the facts regarding the
application, including all refevant documents. The complete staff report
shall be transmitted to the Planning and Zoning Board and to the Town
Commission.

7. Review by Planning and Zoning Board and by the Town Commission. The
Town Manager or designee shall schedule the General Variance
application for a mesting of the Planning and Zoning Board. The Planning
and Zoning Board shall conduct one (1) public hearing on the General
Variance application, review the application, and make recommendations
to the Town Commission for final action, The Town Manager or designee
shall then schedule the variance application, including the
recommendation of the Pianning and Zoning Board, for a meeting of the
Town Commission.

a. Public hearing. The Town Commission shall hold one (1) public
hearing on the variance application.

h. Action by the Town Comymission. In considering whether to approve or
deny the application, the Town Commission shall review the
application, the purposes and standards set forth in this Section, the
staff report, the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board,
and relevant evidence, including oral and written comments received
at the public hearing. No variance shall be granted except upon the
affirmative vote of at least four (4) members of the Town Commission.

8. Standards of review. The Town Commission shall approve a variance only
if the variance applicant demonstrates by clear and convincing evidence
that all of the following are met and satisfied:

a. Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the
land, structure, or building involved, and which are not applicable to
other lands, structures, or buildings in the same zoning district;

b. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the
actions of the applicant or a prior owner of the property;

c. Literal interpretation of the provisions of the Zoning Code deprives the
applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same
zoning district under the terms of the Zoning Code and results in
unnecessary and undue hardship on the applicant;

d. The hardship has not been deliberately or knowingly created or
suffered to establish a use or structure which is not otherwise
consistent with the Town of Surfside Comprehensive Plan or the
Zoning Code;

Page 228 39

PREPARED BY CALVNGORTANDG S ASSOCLIATES ING




90.36.2

Page 229

10.

11.

e. An applicant's desire or ability to achieve greater financial return or
maximum financial return from his property does not constitute
hardship;

f. Granting the variance application conveys the same treatment to the
applicant as to the owner of other lands, buildings, or structures in the
same zoning diskrict;

g. The requested variance is the minimum variance that makes possible
the reasonable use of the land, building, or structure; and

h. The requested variance is in harmony with the general intent and
purpose of the Town of Surfside Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning
Code, is not injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to
the public safety and welfare, is compatible with the neighborhcod,
and will not substantially diminish or impair property values within the
neighborhood.

Conditions and restrictions. The Town Commission may impose such
conditions and restrictions upon the premises benefited by a variance as
may be necessary to comply with the standards set out in this Section, and
to prevent or minimize adverse effects on other property in the
neighborhood. Violation of such conditions and restrictions, when made a
part of the terms under which a variance is granted, shall be deemed a
violation of the Zoning Code, and shall constitute grounds for revocation of
the variance.

Expiration of approval. The approval of a varance shall be void if the
applicant does not obtain a building permit or other development order to
implement the variance within twenty-four (24} months after the granting of
the variance. An applicant who has obtained approval of a variance may
request an extension of this time period within the original approval period.
The Town Commission may grant one (1) or more extensions for a period
of up to a total of six (6) months for good cause shown by the applicant.

Amendments and alterations to approved variances. Any expansion to an
approved variance and any addition to or expansion of an existing variance
shall require the same application, review, and approval as required under
this Section for the original variance.

Administrative Variances

1.

The Administrative Variance procedure shall be used for a variance from
the provisions of the Zoning Code applying to setbacks for single-family
structures only. The Administrative Variance procedures may only be used
for applications which receive the approval from the Town Manager or
designee. The maximum amount of the wavier is up to, but not greater
than, five (5) percent for a side yard and ten (10) percent for a rear yard.
No Administrative Variance shall be allowed for a front yard or corner yard.

An application for an Administrative Variance shall be made by the owner
of the property and the application shall include:

a. The written consent of all the owners of all adjacent or abutting lots to
the subject property, and

b. The witten consent of all utilities andfor easement holders if the
proposed work encroaches into any Easements

¢. Survey less than one (1) year old (including owner’s affidavit that no
changes have occurred since the date of the survey). A survey over
one (1) year is sufficient as long as the propetty has not changed

40

PREFARED BY  CALV:N GORDANG & ASSOCITES INC




ownership and the owner provides an affidavit that no changes change
occurred since the date of the survey.

d. Site plan indicating the existing and proposed structures.
e. A map indicating the general location of the property.
3. The application shall be reviewed based on the following criteria:

a. That the requested variance maintains the basic intent and purpose of
the subject regulations, particularly as it affects the stability and
appearance of the Town;

b. That the requested variance is otherwise compatible with the
surrounding land uses and would not be detrimental to the Town;

¢. That the requested variance represents the minimum amount
reasonably necessary to accommodate the requested action.

d. That the requested variance is consistent with the Goals, Objectives
and Policies of the Town's Comprehensive Plan,

4, Upon receipt of the completed application for the Administrative Variance,
the Town Manager or designee shall review the request and provide a
result of denial or approval to the Planning and Zoning Board. The Planning
and Zoning Board shall either ratify or reject the Town Manager or
designee's determination. If the Planning and Zoning Board rejects the
approval or denial determination, the application shall no longer continue
as an Administrative Variance. The applicant shall submit a General
Variance application and be subject to the General Variance procedures.

5. The Planning and Zoning Board shall ratify the Town Manager or
designee’s approval of the Administrative Variance in a Resolution. It shall
be the burden of the applicant to record said Resolution in the official
records of Miami-Dade County.

Sec. 90-37 Special exceptions
1. The following are special exceptions which may be granted by resolution of
the Town Commission receiving at least three affirmative votes:

a. Nonconforming uses as follows:

i. A nonconforming use now existing in any part of a building to
be extended vertically or laterally {o other portions of the
building.

ii. To dotermine the existence of a nonconforming use.

2, Other special use exceptions as follows:

.. To determine, in cases of uncertainty, the classification of any
use not specifically named in these regulations; provided,
however, such use shall be in keeping with uses specifically
listed in the district.

3. The Town Manager or designee shall review the application and shall
compile a wiitten staff report summarizing the facts regarding the
application and the complete staff repoit shall be transmitied to the
Planning and Zoning Board. The Town Manager shall schedule the
application for a meeting of the Planning and Zoning Board. The Planning
and Zoning Board shall conduct one (1) public hearing and shail make a
recommendation to the Town Commission for final action.

Page 230 41

PREFAREDBY CALWN GCRDANO & ASEOTINTES ING




Sec. 90-38

Article [
Sec. 9039

90.39.1

90.39.1.1

90.39.2
90.39.2.1
90.39.3
90.39.3.1
090.39.4
90.39.4.1
90.39.5
90.39.5.1

90.39.6

Page 231

Lapse of spectal exception or variance.

After the Town Commission has approved a special exception or granted a
variance, or the Town Manager or designee has approved an Administrative
Variance, the special exception or variance so approved or granted shall lapse
after the expiration of two (2) years from its effective date if a building permit
has not been issued, or if no substantial construction or change of use has
taken place in accordance with the plans for which such special exception, or
variance was granted. However, the Town Commission may grant an extension
of up to six (6) months prior to the expiration of the original approvat for good
cause shown by the applicant.

Establishment of Zoning Designations

Zoning Districts

In order to regulate the overall character of the Town, in an effort to restrict the
massing, volume and bulk of building masses hereafter erected or structurally
altered and to ensure the character and livability of the Town, the following
zoning designations are hereby established. These designations further restrict
the location of uses, location of buildings and the use of lol arcas and
regulates and determines the areas of yards, and other open spaces within and
surrounding such buildings. Of primary importance is the designations' ability
to control development to ensure a high quality environment that is
comfortable, pedestrian friendly, safe and livable.

H30A and H30B - Districts wherein building masses are restricted o a
maximum building height of thirty {30) feet.

Purpose: The purpose of the H30 A&B districts is to protect the excellent
character and scale of the single-family development now prevailing
throughout much of the Town by preventing encroachment of incompatible
uses and new structures that do not adequately respond to the overall scale of
the existing context.

H30C: District wherein building masses are restricted to a maximum building
height of thirty (30) feet.

Purpose: The purpose of the H30C district is to permit single-family, two-family,
multi-family and hotel structures no more than thirty (30) feet in height.

H40 - District wherein building masses are restricted to a maximum building
height of forty (40} feet.

Purpose: The purpose of the H40 district is to permit single-family, two-family,
multi-family and hotel structures no more than forty (40) feet in height.

H120 — Dislrict wherein building masses are restricted to a maximum building
height of one hundred twenty (120} feet.

Purpose: The purpose of the H120 district is to permit multi-family dwellings
and hotels no more than one hundred twenty (120) feet in height.

SD-B40 - Special district wherein building masses are restricted to a maximum
building height of forty {40) feet.

Purpose: The purpose of the SD-B40 district is to permit businesses no more
than forty (4C) feet in height.

Municipal: Community and Town owned facilities. Municipal zoning districts are
assigned as municipal owned lands are aggregated.

42

PAREPARED BY CALWN G'ORDANG & ABSOCIATES INC




Sec. 9040

90.40.1

90.40.2

90.40.3

90.40.3.1

90.40.3.2

90.40.3.3

90.40.3.4

Page 232

Regulating Maps

The zoning classification thereaf shall be shown on a map designated as the
Zoning Map of Surfside. This zoning map and all notations, dimensions,
references, and symbols shown thereon pertaining to such districts shall be as
much a part of these regulations as if fully described herein, and shall be filed
as part of these regulations by the Clerk of the Town. Such map shall be
available for public inspaction in the offices of the Town Clerk and the Town
Manager and any later alterations to this map, adopted by amendment as
provided in these regulations, shall be similarly dated, filed, and made available
for public reference.

Purpose. The intent and purpose of the regulating maps is to identify certain
specific areas that, by virtue of their location, the Town desires to require
features that promote the safety, comfort and convenience of the pedestrian.

Map symbols. A district name or letter-number combination shown on the
district maps indicates that the reguiations pertaining to the district designated
by that name or letter-number combination extend throughout the whole area in
the municipality bounded by the district boundary lines which such name or
jelter-nurmber combination is shown or indicated, except as otherwise provided
by this Section.

Interpretation. Where uncertainty exists with respect to the boundaries of the
various districts as shown on the map accompanying and made a part of these
regulations, the following rules shall apply:

In cases where a boundary line Is given a position adjacent o or within a street
or alley, easement, or canal, it shall be deemed to be in the cenler of the strest,
alley, easement, or canal and if the actual location of such strest, alley,
gasement or canal varies slightly from the location as shown on the district
map, then the actual location shall control,

In cases where a boundary line is shown as being located a specific distance
from a street line or other physical feature, this distance shall control.

Where the district boundaries are not otherwise indicated and where the
property has been or may hereafter be re-subdivided into blocks and lots, the
district boundaries shall be construed to be the lot lines, and where the districts
designated on the map accompanying and made a part of these reguiations
are bounded approximately by lot lines, such lot fines shall be construed to be
the boundary of such districts unless such boundaries are otherwise indicated
in the map or by ordinance.

All water areas within the zoning jurisdiction are considered to be within a
zoning district and controlled by applicable district regulations. Straight line
district boundaries over water areas shall be assumed to continue as straight
lines until they intersect with each other or with the Town fimit line.

43

PHEFARED BY CALVN GOADANO & AGSOCINTES ING




TOWN OF SURFSIDE
ZONING MAP

LEGEND

Helght Resiriction to 30 feet

7 HaoB
" Helght Restriction to 30 feel

H30C

Page 233

PREPARED BY CALVINGORDANOQ ASSOOINES INC

44




Standards

Applicability and validity of tables — nothing shall be used to
rmisconstrue or reinterpret the provisions, limitations and allowances

Purpose. Permitted uses are considered fto be fundamentally
appropriate within the district in which they are located and are
deemed to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. These uses
are permitted as of right, subject to the required permits and
procedures described in this Section. Permitted uses require final site
plan review and approval for compliance with the standards applicable
to a particular permitted use as provided in this Zoning Code.

Article IV District Regulations
Sec. 90.41 Regutated Uses
made here in.
90.41.1
90.41.2

Permits required. Except as explicitly provided herein, no use
designated as a permitted use in this chapter shall be established until
after the person proposing such use has applied for and received all
required development permits.

Table - Regulated Uses

Detached Single Family AL

Duplex , - - P LA I

Multi-Dwelling Structure | - - P P P -

Townhouse P P P

Hotel

Suite-Hotel
Banks P
Business and Professional P
offices, except velerinary offices - - - - -
Currency exchange - - - - - P
Delivery service - - - - P{9)
Employment agencies - - - - - PG, 17)
General Ticket Agencies - - P
Interior decorator - - - - P
Loan or mortgage office - - - - - P{9)
Medical or dental clinic - P{9)
Radio or television station or P{9)
studio - - -
Savings and loan assoclates - - P
Secretarial service, mailing, P9)
bookkeaping, courl reporter - - -
Stocks and bond brokers - - - P
Taxi agency - - - P©)
Telegraph station - - - P
Telephone exchange - - - P
Title company - P{©)
Travel agency - - P

45

Page 234

PREFARED BY CALVN G ORDANG & ASBOUIATES {NC




Antique Shops , ,
Appliances IR S - - -
Art and photograph galleries SRR PO RS S
AtDealers Y TR EE. N AN
AtSupplies 1 - L - - - -
_Barbershops R S R B
Beauty Parlors R T F A B
Books and newspaper . - - -
C]gars and tobacco U RO A
_Coin-operated machines S IR N SR O SO
‘Department Storos S I AT NN WO -
Drug stores and sundries T - o

| Dry cleaning and laundry agency | - SR RS

Dry Goods - | Y N ol e
Flowers and plants , SO S T I
Furniture - R DS R

Fur[je_r_ - - - - -

Gift Shops ' o 7 - - —

: o
el irctiniinvinviinclinvk

L=

-
—
=

W
Nt

R -1
PO

Bv)
f——
b —
=

'viT|Tlo

Jewelry B B T S I N - L
Locksmith _ B - - - o - Pan
Luggage e R - P
Men's, women's, children’s P
clothing U S T LI R
Millinery I - I - P
Office machines and supplies - - - - D
P
P
P
P

Pet supplies U R I
Photographers and camera
stores R B F I I
Pottery S I N T I
Sale of televisions, radios,
phonagraph and recording
equipment | IR TN SN RO S L
Sheet music and musical P
instruments T | S R
ShoeRepair - L - m 1 P
‘Shoes . _ B - - - P
Sporting goods , T S B P
Stationery and grestingcards | - SR IS B

B L
Tailor , S B U N P
P
1

Toys S S B B

Video tapes sales and rentals . - - - - Pi

Bakeries N O D N 1)
CandyandNutShops | e ey
Confecnonary and ice cream P3)
slores L B TR ER SO SO -
Delicatessens SR DSSOY P [T P a4 )
FruitShops , , oo P(13) .

Page 235 46

PREPARED BY CALVIN GOADANO 2 ASSOUARTES NG




Grocery and meat stores or
supermarkets

Liguor Stores

' Restaurants

studios

_ P 0

See BLUIPA Map and Ordinance
071479

Playgrounds

P(13)

- 1P(13)

P

F’arks& Op_enSpas:é_\_, P

Bance or music instruction
Driving school offices - -
Modeling school, language

_School, or athistic instruction | - -

- P(13)

_|P@.29)
P(©)

P, 18)

Key: P: Permitied Blank: Nof Permitled {#):

Library
Parks & Open Space
Playgrounds o
Community Center |
_Gymnasiums
TJownOffices |
_Police Facilites |

Pump Stations

Refer to Notes

T U UIUIT DIOT

Key: P: Permitted {#): Refer 1o Notes Blank; Not Permitted

gs

da [io“éks Mo

Game Courts

_Home Bar-B-Q Grills
Laundry/Service Rooms
Office Spaces

_Subordinate Buildings

Parking

Recreational Rooms

SwimmingPools [ P
Vending Machines |

P@ | P@ | P@.
- -1 PB)
i

P@ |
lrPe L .
P@

P@ | -

P4

P®

Key: P: Permitted (#): Refer fo Notes Blank; Not Permitted

P 53‘&5 Iﬁ%\’: NEGORDARNO A ASECCIATES IRC

47




Sec. 80414 Uses Table Notes

1.

Page 237

Detached single-family dwellings, subject to the following restrictions and
fimitations, as follows:

a. No structure shall be used or permitted to be used and no structure
shall be hereafter erecied, constructed, moved, reconstructed,
structurally altered or maintained for any purpose which is designed,
arranged or intended to be used or occupied for any purpose other
than as a one-family residence, including every customary use not
incansistent therewith.

b. Every use not specifically authorized and permitted is prohibited and
nothing herein shall authorize or be construed to permit the renting of a
room or a portion of the property or improvement; or, to permit the use
of any part of the premises as a business, office or establishment for
the purpose of carrying on any business or the practice of rendering
personal, trade or professional services, except as provided under the
“Home Office” provision of this Code.

¢. An accessory or subordinate building, attached or detached from the
main premises in a single-family district, shall be construed to permit
the use of such building for the purposes of garages, cabanas,
storage and home workshops (non-commercial). However, nothing
herein shall authorize or be construed to permit the occupancy or the
use of any accessory building or struciture, as a place of abode or
dwelling, and no cooking or kitchen facilities shall be permitted.

d. When a garage is converted for any other use, the garage door or
doors may be replaced by a solid exterior wall and access to the
former garage area must be provided from the main premises, in
addition to any other permitted access. At least one (1) window shalil
be provided. It is intended hereby to prohibit and prevent any violation
of the single-family classification and to minimize the burden upon the
administrative forces of the Town in policing and enforcing the
provisions hereof. Changes to the appearance of the residence shall
not constitute a change prohibited by the "Home Office” provision of
this Code. If the exterior door of the garage conversion is no longer
level with grade, stairs may be installed and the exterior door must be
accordingly corrected to comply with the Florida Building Gode. The
stairs shall be permitted to encroach no more than twenty-four (24)
inches into the side or rear setbacks.

Shall be for private-use only limited to residents and guests only and not
public access.

Shall be limited to an area of not more than two (2) percent of the gross
floor area of the building for administration of rental units in a building
containing ten {10) or more living units.

Shall be limited to lounges, card rooms and auxiliary kitchens which are
solely for the use of residents and guests.

Shall be for the use of residents and guests of a multiple-family dwelling
and shall not be for public access. Coin-operated laundry machines may
be utilized.

Shall be allowable only inside buildings containing ten (i0) or more living
units or guest rooms.

May provide a barbershop, beauty parler, dining room, and coffee shop,
bar or cocktail lounge, telegraph office, tobacco, candy, and newsstand,

48

PREFARED BY CALVR G'CHIAND & ASSOCIATES INC




11.
12.
13.

14.
15,

16.

rﬁﬂg &\%ﬁg\' GORDANO A AGEOCIATES INC

automobile rentals where rental vehicles are not kept on premises, ready to
wear shops, travel agencies, gift and sundry shops, coin operated
machines, washing machines, and marble, coin or amusement machines
{other than gambling devices), and diet and health spas providing services
solely to guests; provided, however, that such facilities may be entered
only from the inside of the structure and there shall be no window or
avidence of such facilities from outside the hotel or motel,

Shalt conform 1o the following restrictions and conditions:

a. That no baking shall be done on the premises for other retail or
wholesale outlets.

b. That ovens or oven capacity is limited in total usable baking space, not
to exceed in volume eighteen (18) standard pans of sighteen (18) by
twenty-six (26) inches in width and length.

c. That adjoining properties shall be safeguarded and protected from
exhaust fan or other obnoxious noises and odors at all times.

d. That all baking will be done by the use of electiic or natural gas (not
bottled gas) ovens only.

o. Al machinery and equipment shall be entirely confined within the main
building.

f.  That the hours of baking operation shafl be limited to those hours
between 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.

g. That the entire store area shall be fully air-conditioned as required for
comfort,

h.  That baking shall not be permitted within twenty {20) feet of the store
front, and shall be separated from the sales area by a partition or
counter,

Shall only be allowed above the first Hoor.

. Provided all machinery which provides cleaning or laundry services shall

be separated from customer areas by a parliion or counter and no
customers shall be permitted to use such machinery. In addition, all dry
cleaning machinery shall be non-ventilated, sealed system type machinery
in which "Fluorocarbon R-113" type solvents are used.

Shall not be visible from sidewalk or strest and shall not be permitted
fronting Harding Avenue.

Provided all tapes sold are prerecorded, and all tapes are ratad either G,
PG, PG-13, or R.

Provided that no sales shall be made through an open window lo any
street, alley, driveway or sidewalk

Provided no repairing or servicing of furniture is permitted on the premises.

Coin-operated machines for dispensing goods or services are permitted,
except that washing machines, dryers and other laundry-related equipment
are prohibited. No coin-operated games of chance are permitted, but coin-
operated games of skil are permitied within establishments solely
dispensing liquor, for consumption on the premises only; provided,
however, that not more than three (3} such games of skill are permitted in
any such establishment, and that such games shall not be used for
wagering nor for the awarding of prizes of any value.

Shall only be allowed ahove the first floor and such studios meet all of the
following restrictions and conditions:

49




"

17.

18.

19.

20,

21.

22,

a. That the premises be air conditioned and soundproofed.

b. That no dance instruction or dancing shall be visible from any
sidewalk, street or alley,

c. That the opening and closing hours for such studios may be
established by the Town Commission at its discretion at any time.

Shall only be allowed above the first floor and such use shall maintain at all
times sufficient office space to accommodate all applicants for
employment using their services and obviate the congregating or loitering
of such applicants in any hallway or on any sidewalk.

Shall be any subordinate building or use which is clearly incidental to and
customary in connection with the main building or use, provided there shall
be no open storage of products and materials, including garbage and
debris, on any lot.

Shall be limited only to properties between Collins Avenue and Harding
Avenue.

Exterior windows on the ground floor shall be screened, curtained or
othernwise made opaque four feet six inches from the grade of the adjacent
sidewalk so as fo block the view of the interior premises from the public
right-of-way. However, such screening shall not be required where ondy hair
styling and manicures are performed within twenty (20) feet of the public
right-of-way.

Provided no machinery for providing repairs shall be visible from the
sidewalk or street and no shoe repair shap shall be permitted on Harding
Avenue

Provided such use shall be limited to offices only, and shall not be
interpreted in any manner as permitting the conduct of any such school's
or schools' business, activities or functions upon the public streets of the
town.

Sec, 08042 Minirnum Unit Sizes

Efficiencies _ N 600SF
One-bedroom Apartments .. 800SF
Two-Bedroom Apartments 950 SF
Three-Bedroom Apartments ... 1180SF
Hotel Rooms, each e S8QSF
Suite-Hotel Rooms, each 525 Sk

Sec. 9043 Maxirnum Building Heights

H30A S 30FT

H30B L3R
H30C e BOFT

H40 Single Family and Two Family only 30FT

H40 Development other than Single '

FamilyandTwofamily | L A0FT )
Hieo o 1e0FT
soB40 | 40 FT .

MU Surrounding Designation

50

Pa’ﬁ GE%@&‘AN CORDAND & ASGOUIATES INC




Sec. 9044
90.44.1

90.44.2

80.44.3

Sec. 9045
90.45.1

F’EE?}'\&?BYZ{ l‘\L\!oi"(wf HOANG 8 ABECOATES. ING

Modifications of height regulations.

Architectural elements including cupolas, chimneys, flagooles, spires, steeples,
slair accessways, antennas, ventilators, tanks, parapets, trellises, screens and
similar not used for human habitatiocn, may be erected o a reasonable and
necessary height, consistent with and not to exceed the following limitations:

H30A SFT 1 1%

H30B =15 N %
HsoG o} 8FT 10% .
H40 A N 3 Y I L. T
Hieo | 20FT | 30%

SD-B40_ 12FT 10%

Mechanical equipment rooms, including elevator shafts, may be allowed to
exceed the maximum height limitations, not to exceed the limitations listed
above, provided they shall be of a high architectural quality integral to the
dasign of the building.

In the H120 district, on lots or parcels where construction is regulated by the
State of Florida Coastal Construction Code, maximum height shall be
measured from whatever elevation is established by the Florida Department of
Environmental Protection for the first floor,

Setbacks
Required Setbacks - Tables

_Primary frontage )

Ineriorside 5FT
Rear B 20FT
Secondary frontage (Corner only) . 1 A0FT

Interior side setbacks for lots over 50 feet in W|dth 10% of the frontage B

Interiorside ... .| 8F
Rear | @FT
Seoondaryfrontage {Corner only) i 10FT

Interior side setbacks for lots over 50 feet in wrdth 10% of the fron.tage' “

51




Primary frontage | 20FT
Interiorside 1. 8FT

Rear . AOFT
Secondary frontage (Corner only) L IOFT
Interior side setbacks for lois aver 50 fest inwidth | 10% of the frontage

Prirnary frontag _ U rl
Interiorside 5FT
Rear TR SO -
Secondary frontage {Corner only) 10FT

Primary frontage B _
fnteriorside 7FT

Rear e 1O FT
| Secondary frontage (Corner only) 10 FT

Primary frontage
Interiorside L L B
Rear e NQET

| Secondary frontage (Corner only) 10 FT

Primary frontage

Interiorside
Rear
Secondary frontage {Corner only) 20FT

| ‘anary frontage
[nterior side

Rear o L oFT
Secondary frantage (Corner only) 0FT

Sec. 9046 Projections Into required setbacks
In determining compliance with the minimum seiback requirements established
within these reguiations, the controlling distance on each lot shall be measured
between the applicable lot line and the closest point thereto on any building or
structure erected on the lat, and no portion of any roof overhang, chimney,
caornice, or other similar architectural feature shall project into any required
front, side or rear yard, except as otherwise provided.

Page 241 52

PREPARED BY CALVIN G ORDANG S ASSCOATES INC




Sec. 80.47
90.47.1

90.47.2

90.47.3

80.47.4

90.47.5

90.47.6

90.47.7

90.47.8

Sec. 80.48
90.48.1

90.48.2

Page 242

Yards generally, allowable projections

Every part of a required yard shall be open to the sky, except ordinary
projections of sills, cornices, roof eaves and ornamental features may project
not more than twenty-four {24) inches into any required yard.

Moveable awnings may be placed over doors or windows and may project not
maore than three (3) fest into any required yard.

In properties designated H30A or H30B, air conditioning equipment, pool
pump or other mechanical equipment may be located in a required rear
setback, provided such equipment is at least fifieen (15} feet from any other
single-family or two-family residence and is not visible from any street or
walerway.

In the H40 district on lots with less than seventy-five (75) feet of frontage and
east of Harding Avenue in H30C district, unenclosed balconies may extend into
a required primary {front) and secondary (corner) setback not more than five
(6) feet, and may extend into a required rear and interior side setback not more
two and one half (2 14} feet.

In all districts except H120 district, open, unenclosed building entrance
porches, platforms, stairs or paved terraces, not covered by a roof or canopy,
and which do not extend above the level of the grade or entrance floor of the
building, may extend or project into the required front or side yard no more
than six {6) feet and the encroachments shall not provide jess than a twenty-
four (24) inch setback to the property line.

In the H120 district, open unenclosed balconies may extend into a required
primary (front), secondary (corner), or rear setback not more than eight (8) feet,
and may extend into a required interior side setback not more than five (5) feet.

In the H30C, H40, and H120 districts no mors than ninety (30) percent of a
halcony's footprint shall overhang the balcony on a lower level.

In the H30, H40 and H120 district a cantilevered canopy will be permitted in the
required front yard, subject to the following:

1. The structure must be completely supported (cantilevered) from the main
structure;

2. The structure must be transparent in nature with a solid to transparent
material ratio of no more than thirty-five {35) percent solid to sixty-five (65)
percent transparent;

3. The structure must not have a frontage of more than thirty (30) feet in
width;

4. The structure must not extend more than twenty (20) feet into the required
front setback; and

5. The structures shall not extend into any side setback area.

Modification of side and rear yard regulations

The minimum width of side setbacks for libraries, places of public assembly,
recreational centers and other public, semipublic and civic buildings shall be a
minimum of fifteen {15} feet.

In all districts other than the H120 districts, the required side setbacks for
corner lots adjoining canals or waterway shall comply with the secondary
frontage setback requirements for that frontage.

53

PREFARED BY CALVIN GORDAND & ASSCCATES ING




90.48.3 in the H30A district, no building shall be erected within twenty-five (25) feet of
the seawall on Point Lake nor within fifty (50) feet of the sea wall on Biscayne
Bay or on any lots in Blocks 26, 28 and 28A of the Normandy Beach
Subdivision, Second Amended.

90.48.4 Where a lot abuts an alley, the depth of the rear yard shall be seven (7) fest.
Sec. 90.49 Lot Standards
‘Minimumlotarea | 8,000FT |'5 600 FT | ] I
Maximum Lot coverage | 40% | 40% |- |- L
‘Minimum Pervious area | 35% | 35% | 20% |20 |-
Page 243 54

PREPARED BY CALVNGORDARO S ASSOOATES INC



Article V Design Standards

Sec. 90.50 Roof Deck Provisions,
90.50.1 Roof decks shall be permitted in all zoning districts.
90.50.2 For properties designated H30A and H30B, roof decks area limited as follows:

1. Exterior and interior stairs shall be permitted

2. No extension of stairs shall be permitted over the thirty (30} feet height
limitation of the building.

3. Roof decks shall provide ten (10} foot setbacks on the sides and rear of the
ouilding.

90.50.2 For properties designated H30C, H40, H120, SD-B40 and MU, roof decks are
limited to:
1. Amaximum of seventy (70) percent of the aggregate roof area;

2. Shall not exceed the maximum roof height required by any abuiting
property’s zoning designation;

3. Shall be sethack from the roofline at least ten (10) feet on all sides to
provide for minimal visibility of roof decks from any public way, except on
properties designated SD-B40; and

90.50.3 All roof decks added to existing buildings shall be inspected by a Registered
Structural Engineer and Registered Architect, who shall address in writing to
the Building Official the following issues:

1. How will the existing roofing system be protected or replaced to allow for
the new use;

2. Structural support strategies for any increase in live loads and dead loads;
Compliance with applicable ADA requirements;

4. location of plumbing and mechanical vent stacks, fans and other
appuitenances;

5. Egress design compliance per the Florida Building Code and the Florida
Fire Prevention Code;

6. Added occupancy and servicing restroom facilities; and
7. Ali other issues applicable in the Florida Building Cade.

90.50.4 All work performed on an existing roof deck to allow for occupancy shall be
considered a change of use and shall require both a Permit and a Certificate of
Occupancy.
Sec.  90.51 Maximum frontage of buildings
90.51.1 Continuous wall frontage shall be articulated as follows:

1. H30C: For every fifty (50) feel, a minimum three (3) foot change in wall
plane,

2. H40: For every saventy-five {75) feat, a minimum six (8) foot change in wall
plane.

3. H120: For every one-hundred (100) feet, a minimum six {6) foot change in
wall planses. The change shall be either vertical or horizontal.

Sec. 90.62 Required clearances
As an aid to free and safe movement of vehicles at and near strect
intersections and in order to promote more adequate protection for the safety
of children, pedestrians, operators of vehicles and for property, for proposed
construction hereafter, there shall bs limitations on the height of fences, walls,

Page 244 55
PREFARED BY CALVRGORTIANG R ASSCOIATES ING




Sec. 9053
90.53.1

80.53.2

90.53.3

90.53.4

90.53.5

90.53.6

Page 245

gateways, ornamental struclures, signs, hedges, shrubbery, and other fixtures,
construction, and planting on corner lots in all districts where front yards are
required as follows:

a. Al comer properties shall provide and maintain unobstructed corner
clearance areas measured a distance of twenty-five (25) feet along both
the front and side lot lines, measured from the point of intersection, of the
intersecting lot lines.

b. Al objects within any carner areas as previously defined shall be limited to
a maximum height of twenty-four (24) inches above the established
elevation of the nearest curb;

c. Any permanent or semi-permanent structures, including tress or shrubs,
with the exception of walls or fences subject to the height limitations stated
herein, shall not be allowed or constructed within any part of the corner
clearance areas; and

d. 1t shall be unlawful for any person to plant or cause to be planied any iree
or shrubs or to place any structure in the public right-of-way without a
permit from the Town Manager or designee. The elevation grades of the
public right-of-way adjacent to private properly shall not be altered.

Portable Storage Units
There shall be no more than one (1) portable storage unit allowed per site.

The portable storage unit shall be no larger than one hundred thirty
(130} square feet In area and no higher than nine (9) feet in height.

Placement: Portable storage units shall be permitted in all zoning districts and
are subject to the following restrictions:

a. In H30A and H30B districts: Portable storage unils shall ganerally be
placed only in a driveway.

b. In H40 and H120 districts, portable storage units shall be placed only in the
rear or side portion of a site. Portable storage units shall not be placed in
an area fronting Collins Avenue or Harding Avenue or in the front of an
establishment. The placement of portable storage units in fire lanes,
passenger loading zones, commercial loading zones or public rights-of-
way shall be strictly prohibited.

Duration of portable storage units shall be limited to the following:

a. In H30A, H30B, and H30C districts: Portable storage units shall not remain
at a site in excess of fourleen (14) consecutive days and poriable storage
units shall not be placed at any one (1) site in excess of twenty eight
{28} days in any calendar year.

b. In H40 and H120 districts: Poriable storage units shall not remain at a site
in excess of fourteen (14) consecutive days, and portable storage units
shall not be placed at any one (1) sile in excess of sixty (60) days in any
calendar year.

A portable storage unit shall have no signage other than the name, address
and telephone number of the person or firm engaged in the business of renting
or otherwise placing the portable storage unit.

The owner and operator of any site on which a portable storage unit is placed
shall be responsible to ensure that the portable storage unit is in good
condition, free from evidence of deteriorating, weathering, discoloration, rust,
ripping, tearing or other holes or breaks.

56

PREFARED BY CALVN (FCRDANOQ A ASSCOATES INC




90.53.7

Sec. 90.54
90.54.1

90.64.2

90.64.3

90.54.4

90.54.5

90.54.6

90.64.7

90.54.8

90.64.9

90.54.10

Page 246

Notwithstanding the time limitations set forth herein, all portable storage units
shall be removed immediately upon the issuance of a hurricane warning by a
recagnized government agency. If the Town Manager or designee determines
that an emergency, other than a hurricane waming by a recognized
government agency, provides sufficient cause to exceed the time limitations
which would otherwise apply, the Town Manager or designee may permit a
portable storage unit to remain at a site for a period in excess of such time
limitations.

Accessory buildings and structures in the H30A and H30B districts:

Any accessory buildings not connected to the main building, except by a
breezeway, may be constructed in a rear yard, subject to the following
provisions:

a. The maximum height shall be twelve (12} feet.
b. The maximum aggregated area shall be five hundred (500) square leet

¢. The structure shall provide a minimum rear setback of five (5) feet and shalt
conform to all other setbacks applicable to the property.

Accessory swimming pools and decks, open and unenclosed, or covered by a
screen enclosure, may occupy a required rear, front, or side setback, subject to
the following minimum setbacks:

a. Rear: five (6) feet
b. Interior Side: five (B) feet
c. Primary (Front} and Secondary {Corner): ten (10} feet

An open, uncovered porch, palio, or terrace may occupy a required rear or
interior side setback, subject to the following minimum setbacks:

4. Rear: five (5) feet
b. Interior Side: five (b) feet
¢. Primary {Front) and Secondary (Corner): ten (10) feet

Tents and canvas cabanas for temporary shelter and not used for overnight
sleeping or containing cocking facilities shall be considered as accessory
buildings and subject to the same regulations as other accessory buildings.

A detached garage shall not be remodeled and used as a part of the main
building

An attached garage may not be remodeled and used as a part of the main
building unless all required off-street parking spaces are provided elsewhere
on the lot.

A too! shed, the area of which does not exceed seventy (70) square feet, shall
be permitted in a rear yard, subject to the following minimum setbacks:

a. Rear: five (5) feet
b. Side and Secondary Frontage {Corner): Per Zoning Designation

All accessory buildings and structures, swimming pools, and accompanying
fences and landscaping, located in the front vard seiback shall be subject to
review by the Design Review Board.

All accessory buildings and structures, swimming pools, and accompanying
fences shall meet all applicable requirements of the Florida Building Code.

No accessory building shall be constructed upon a lot until the construction of
a main building has been actually completed, except where construction of
main and accessory buildings is concurrent. No accessory building shall be
used unless the main building on the lot is also being in use.

57

PREPARED BY CALVIN G ORDARO R ASSCCATES ING




Sec. 90.55

90.55.1
Sec.  90.56
90.56.1

90.56.2

90.66.3

90.56.4

90.56.56

90.56.6

90.56.7

90.56.8

90.56.9

Page 247

Accessory buildings and structures in the H30C, H40, SD-B40 and
H120 districls:

Non-habitable structures, including but not limited to cabanas, pergolas,
gazeboes and trellises shall have a maximum height of twelve (12) feel.

Fences, walls and hadges

An crnamental fence or wall not more than six {6) feet in height, as measured
from crown of road, may project into or enclose any vard, except as otherwise
provided harein.

The height of such ornamentat fence or wall shall be measured from the
elevation of the crown of the road upon the strest serving the 1ot or building
site.

An ormamental fence or wall may be placed within the front yard of side corner
vard if granted approval by the Design Review Board.

Ornamental walls placed within the front vard or side corner yard shall be
subject to the following:

a. The top twenty (20) percent of the wall shall have variations in height at
regular intervals and it shall be consistent with the architectural style of the
building; or

b. Al wall surfaces above twenty-four (24) inches measured from grade shall
have a maximum opacity of fifty {50) percent; or

¢. No ormamental walls and fences shall have a continuous distance on the
same plane of greater than ten (10} feet and planes shall be separated by
a minimum of three (3) feet. Areas belween the plane offset shall be
landscaped.

In order to prevent water ponding at the base of ornamental walls, the
installation of weep holes or other similar drainage features shall be reguired.
The number and spacing shall be determined per lot per review.

Hedges shall be no more than four (4) feet in height in the front yard and side
corner yards and ten (10} feet in height in the rear and interior side yards.
Hedges may be higher if granted approval by the Design Review Board, on a
case-by-case basis.

Under no circumstances is any fence, wall or hedge to be located on a corner
lot in such a way as to conflict with the requirements of Section 90-52
(Required Clearances) or fire codes, including concealment of fire hydrants.

No fence, wall or hedge maybe placed within the public right-of-way except
that landscaped islands surrounded by circular driveways on lots no more than
one hundred and fifteen (115) fest in width shall be permitted, provided that it is
understood by the property owner that the Town does not waive its right fo
demand removal without notice as deemed necessary within the Town's
discretion and the Town shall not be liable for any damages arising from such
removal. Property owner shall install or plant such materials at own risk. All
improvemaents, other than groundcovers, as defined in the tandscape section,
shall be placed on private property.

Fences and walls shall be constructad so that the finished side shall face out or
away from the property upon which it is constructed, and all support posts and
the unfinished side shall ke on the inside facing the property upon which said
fence or wall is constructed. All masonry fences or walls shall be constructed
so as to have a finished surface, including concrete block walls which shall
have a plastered finish on all sides above ground level. In the event that a wood
fence is constructed against a significant obstacle on the adjoining property,
such as a hedge or another fence, that line of fence against the obstacle may

58

PREFARED BY CALWN G ORDAND & ASSOCIATES, INC




80.56.10

90.56.11

90.56.12

90.56.13

90.56.14

Sec. 9057

Sec. 90.58

Page 248

be constructed with posts on the outside of the fence provided that the
horizontal rails are at least fifty (50) percent covered by boards on the side
facing away from the property on which the fence is constructed.

It shall be a violation under this Article for any person to erect or maintain a
structure to serve as a fence in manner that endangers the health, safely, and
welfare of the public as described in this Section and as determined by the
Town Manager or designes.

The following fencing material shall be prohibited:
a. Chain-link and other wire fencing

b. Loosely aitached masonry products, such as concrete block, bricks or
other similar products not bonded together by mortar or comparable
adhesive.

No grandfathering of chain-link fences shall be permitted in the front yard or in
the comner side yard. Grandiathering of chain-link fences shall be permitted in
interior side yards or rear yards.

In all districts, the owner or his agent, shali be responsible for the maintenance,
in perpetuity, of all landscaping material in good condition so as to present a
healthy, neat and orderly appearance and clear of weeds, refuse and debris.
Landscaping material shall be trimmed and maintained so as to mest afl site
distance requirements. Hedges planted along property lines shall be
maintained and neatly trimmed to prevent growth extended across the property
lone or otherwise encroaching on an adjacent property. In the event of any
discrepancy as to whether healthy, neat and orderly appearance is being
maintained shall be determined by the Town Manager or designee.

Temporary construction fences shall be permitted. The maximum height of
such fence shall be six (6) feet as measured from crown of road. The fence
shall be constructed of wood or chain-link and shall be concealed with a
windscrean.

Marine structures
The following regulations shall apply to boat docks, piers, and mooring piles, in
any district:

1. Projection of docks and piers into waterways beyond the waterway line, lot
line, or established bulkhead lines shall be mited as follows, subject to
final approval of DERM and any other applicable agency:

a. Biscayne Bay: thirly-five (35) feet
b. Indian Creek: thirty-five (35) fest
¢. Point Lake: thirty-five (35) fest

2. Under no circumstances shall any dock or pier be constructed so as to
project into any waterway for a distance equal {o more than ten (10)
percent of the width of such waterway's frontage.

Carport canopies
Carport canopies may be constructed, in a front, side or rear yard setback in
the H30A and H30B districts.

1. Such canopy shall not excead twenty (20} feet in length, nor ten (10) feet in
width.

2. No cancpy shall extend beyond a property line or shall be closer than five
{5) fest to the rear of the strest curb, and supporting pipes shall be no
closer than seven {7) feet.

59

PREFARED BY CALVINGORDARG & AGRGCIATES, INC




3. The height of such canopy shall not exceed ten (10) feet, measured from
the ground level to the uppermost point of the cover.

A front yard canopy shall be at least five {5} feet from the side property line.

5. A canopy shall at all times remain open on all four (4) sides, if free
standing, and open on three (3) sides if attached 1o the main building.

6. The area under a canopy must be entirely concreted or asphalted.

7. Side openings shall be at least six {6) feet, three (3) inches, in height as
measured from the ground level,

8. The width of the canopy shall not be less than the width of the driveway.

90.58.1 in addition to all provisions of the Florida Building Code, the following
construction standards for canvas-covered canopies are required and shall be
complied with:

1. No canopy carport shall be consiructed except of canvas {or similar
material} covered pipe. Framework shall be galvanized Schedule 40 pipe
assembled either with Schedule 4 galvanized fittings or welded and joints
painted with a liquid zinc compound. For a ten (10) foot by twenty (20) foot
canopy, uprights shall be of nol less than one and a quarter (1 ) inch
pipe; the perimeter shall be of not less than one (1) inch pipe and the
rafters of not less than three fourths (3/4) inch pipe. For a twenty {20) foot
by twenty (20) foot canopy, the pipe sizes shall each be increased by one
fourth {1/4) inch. All uprights shall be either lag-bolted into a concrete base
or, if mounted in dirt, concreted at least one (1} foot deep with a safety tee
at the bottom of the pipe. The design and the minimum size of structural
members shall not be less than required to resist a seventy-five (75) mile-
per-hour wind with applicable shape factors. Al fabric shall be designed
for quick removal, which shall be required al a wind velocity in excess of
saventy-five (75) miles per hour.

2. The framework height shall be a maximum of ten (10) feet and a minimum
of seven (7) fest above grade. No uprights shall be installed closer than
two (2) feat from the front lot fine.

3. Covering material shall carry the Miami-Dade Fire Marshal's certificate of
non-flammability. The material shall be attached to the framework by
lacings only.

Sec. 9059 Cutdoor receiving and broadcasting antennae
No outdoor receiving or broadcasting antenna, whether tower, pole, mast, disk,
bowl, planar or similar structure, weighing more than twenty (20) pounds shall
be placed or erected in the Town without a permit from the Town. Only one
permit shall be issued for each main building on a lot, in accordance to the
following:

1. Permit application. The application for a permit shall be made to the Town
Manager, accompanied by a site sketch, showing dimension and location
of the antenna in relation to the site boundaries, setback lines and the
existing structures on the site; and drawings by a licensed structural
engineer, showing the method of permanently anchoring the antenna and
listing the materials to be used in such anchoring. A landscaping or
covering plan may be required when appropriate.

2. Fee. A permit fee shall be required.

Construction provisions; yard placement. All such antennae shall be
constructed to withstand a one hundred foriy-six {(146) mile-per-hour wind
and in accordance with the provisions of the Florida Building Code and

Page 249 60

PREPARED BY CALVN GORDANO 3 ASSGCIATES, INC




these regulations; and in no case shall they be placed within, or intruding
into, the front or side yards of any property. In the H120 zoning districl,
Collins Avenus shall be deemed to be the front of the property.

4. Roof placement, No antenna requiring a Town parmit shall be placed upon
the roof of any structure except in the H120 zoning district.

5. Height limits-Tower, pole, mast. For aesthatic reasons, tower, pole or mast
antennae, except in the H120 zoning district, shall not be more than eight
(8) feet, at their highest point, above the highest point of the main
structure's roof., However, such antennae for amafeur broadcasiing
purpases (ham radio) may have antennae thirty-five (35) feet in height from
the average grade of the lot, or fifty (50) feet in height, if the antennae is of
a retractable type that can readily be lowered to twenty-five (25} feet or less
when not in use.

6. Height limits-Disk, bowl, planar. Disk, bowi, planar or similar-shaped
antennae In any zoning district, except H120, shall not exceed a total of
twelve (12) feet in height above the ground, including supporting
structures; and the diameter shall not exceed thirty six {38) inches. All such
disk, bowl, planar or similar-shaped antennae shall be sufficiently
landscaped or covered so as o obscure the antennae from view from
surrounding and adjacent properties.

Sec. 90.60 Construction adjacent to bulkhead lines

80.60.1 Ocean bulkhead lines are establ